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We create outsthndmgﬂmlaces which make a pos'ti' 1
difference 1o pe}:ple sdveryday bves. Qur po;tfol qoth h
quatty commerbral praoperty s focusad on rétail ‘[:m.s.!:[_ 3 S
arcurd the UK and London offices.

Our objactive 1s to deliver long term and sustanable total
returns to all our stakeholders. We do thrs by focusing on
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In this year's
Annual Report

The importance

of people

Read about the importance
we place on our people and
how that fits inta our strategy

@ To read more go to
pages 22 to 23

QOur portfolio

Read more about our £14 6 billion
property portfolio and how it has
performed this year

To read more go to
pages 36 to 47

Major trends impacting
our markets

Read about the long term trends
in our markets and how we

are responding

@ To read more go to
pages 12 to 17




Our strategy
4 Understand our approach
v and how it drves value for
P9 ourshareholders

4 To read more go to

pages 181025

Our business model
Learn about what we do and
why that sets us apart

@ To read more go to
pages 1010 11

For more information

or relevant tnformation
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www britishland com

Feedback

U=

QOur corporate wehsite
www britishland com/contacts

T

Follow us on Twitter
@BriushLandPLC

EE You will find kinks throughout this
Rapor tto guide you to fur ther reading  wnformation in this Reportin Line with

For more information visit our wehsite

We value your feedback Please contact us at

We are placemakers
Understand how our properties
enhance the lives of those who
work shap and live in them

To read more go to
pages 261035

Integrated reporting
We integrate social and environmental

the Internationat Integrated Reporting
framework This reflects how
sustainability 1s integrated into our
placemaking strategy governance

and business operations Our industry-
leading sustainability strategyis a
powerful tool to deliver Llasting value
for all our stakeholders

For more information visit
www britishtand com/sustamahility




HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

Portfolio valuation [proportionally consalidated)
£14.6bn

FPRA MAY per share’

Dwidend pershare
28.36p

Underlying Prafit

£363m

Underlying EPS

34. lp

Carbon intensity findex scora]

sinee
-409%

2009
- Strong full year resulis

Total property return'
11.3%

IFRS net assets
£9,619m
Total accounting return
14.29%

IFRS profit before tax
£1.331m
IFRS EPS
131.2p

Customer satisfaction

79/10

- Valuation performance driven by improving ERV growth and lettings

- Placemaking skills delivering leasing success, portfolio nearty fully let

- Allocating capitat into our London campuses and multi-let Retatl assets

- Modest commutted development, but a significant pipeline with optionabity

- Robust financial position with continued access to low cost finance

Presentat.en of financial informat on

The Group financial sta.ements are prepared under IFRS where the Group s interests in joint veniures
and funds are shown as a single bne itern on the income statermnent and balance sheet and all subswdiaries

are consolidated at 10095

Management considers the busness principalty en a proportionally consolidated basis when sething

the strategy determining anaual priorities making investment and financing decisions and reviewing
performance This includes the Group s share of joint ventures and funds on a line-by-bne basis and
excludes non-controtling mterests n the Group s subs ianes The hinancial key perfarmance indicators
are also presented on this basis Refer to the Financial review for a discussion of the [FRS results

" See glossary fer defimtions

CONTENTS

Strategic Report
Highlights and contents

Group at a glance

Chairman s statement

Chref Executive s review

Cur business model

Market overview

Qur strategy

Placemaking

Per for mance 1eview

Carbon reparting

Frnancial review

Fmancial policies and principles
Managing risk in delwvering our strategy

Governance and remuneration
Board of Directars

Board of Directors - btographies
Chairman s goverfpance review

Qur governance structure

Governance review

Report of the Audit Cormmitiee

Repar tof the Nomipation Committes
Remuneration report

B OAY

10
12
18
26
36
48
49

57

i ectors report and additional disclosures 171

Directors responsibility statement 13

Financial statements

Report of the auditor 14

Primary statemenis and notes 122

Campany balance sheet 163

Supplementar y disclosures unaudited 177

Other mnformation

Otherinformation unaudited 184

Tenyearrecord 197

Sharehatder information 198

Glossary 700

European Public Real

Estate Association (EPRA)

Perfoimance measures’

As al 31 March [£m] 2014 2015 2014

EPRA earmings 345 313 2935

EPRA NAY 10,074 9035 7027

EPRA NNNAY 9,640 8359 4700

As at 31 March [35) 2014 2015 2014

EPRA net imuial yield 41 43 48

EPRA Topped-up

net initial yield 45 48 53

EPRA vacancy rate 20 29 52

EPRA Cost Ratio

fincluding direct

vacancy costs) %s 164 162

{excluding direct

vacancy costsl 149 146 139
1
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Strategic Report

GROUP AT A GLANCE

We create outstanding places which
make a positive difference to people’s
everyday lives: Places People Prefer

Total Portfolio

We create and operate attractive places for
peopie towork shop and livein Cur properties
are well connected and well designed and we
use gur placemaking skills to enhance and
enbivenrthem providing environments which
meel the growing expeclaltons of our occupiers
and customers

£20.0bn° 674w

Assets under management  Contracted rent

14.6600  98.8%

British Land owned Occupancy rate

29m sq ft’ 90y

Of tioor space Weighted average
lease length

Highlights

- Total accounting return of 14 2% for the year

- Strong ERV growth of 3 3% 130 bps ahead
of the market benchmat k

- Completed €1 3 bitlion of gross investment
actmity with acqwsttion and development/
capital spend broadly balancing disposals

- Proportionately consolidated weighted
average interest rate reduced by 50 bps
103 3%

- Roger Madelin appointed to head up
Canada Water development

-Winner of the 2014 Queen s Award for
Enter prise for Sustamable Development

@ To read more information about cur
performance go to pages 36 to 47

Retal & Leisure

Our Retail and Leisure portfolicis focused cn
regional and local mulii-tet assels We provide
high quabity retadt alongside a growing leisure
offer and best in class services to deliver
outstanding places whrch are in tune with
mader i consumer liestyles placeswhere
people go to shop eat and be enter tamned

£9.8bn’ 47

Assets under management multi-let assets

s4.3bn’ 152

British Land owned other retail and

leisure assets
20m sq ft'

Of floor space

Highlights
- Portfatio valuation up 2 4% to £7 3 billion

- Over 903 000 sq ft of Retail letungs and
renewats 8% ahead of ERV

- Accelerating ERV trend broadly batanced
across regional and tocal sub sectors
leading to IPD outperformance of 100 bps
dernonstrating the guabity of our portfolio

- £420 mullion of disposals fusther reducing
exposure to rmature or non-core assets
multi-let now represents over 70%
of retall portfoclio

To read mare information aboust our Retal
and Leisure go to pages 40 to 43

' Includes 100% of the assets owned by the Group s joint ventures and funds
? Includes the Group share of joint ventures and funds and excludes non-centrolling

interests in the Group s subsidianes
* |nctudes Canada Water property of £0 3 bitlion

2 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016

Offices & Residential

Our Offices and Residental portiolio 1s focused
on London We provide a 1ange of working

and biving space across our campuses and
distinctive standalone praperties which
combine a bt oad mix of retail and leisure

1o create attractive well-located and well-
mdnaged environments

£9 9 R

Assets under management Mixed use campuses

sd4O0on S7

British Land owned Stand-zlone offces

Om sq ft' ri

Of fioor space Qffice and residential
developments

Highlights
- Portfolio vatuation uplift of 11 8% to £/ 0 butlion

- 296 000 sq ft of Office tettings and renewals
5 4% shead of ERV

- Leadenhalt Building 98% let or under offer
with just one {loor left to let

~ Net investment of £280 miltion into our
London campuses including acquisition
of 1 Sheldon Square at Paddington

- 739,000 sq It of developments completed
in the period with 5 Broadgate accourting
for 710 000 sq ft

- Planning consent received for a B23 000 sq ft
redevelopment at our Bi oadgate campus
(100 Liver pool Street and 1 Finsbury Avenuel

@ To tead more infarmation about our Offices
and Residenual ge to pages 44 10 47




Our portfolio is focused on
retail locations around the
UK and London offices

Qur preperties are home to over 1200 different
organisations tanging from internationat
hrands to local start-ups More than 64 000
people work across our Office portfolio and our
Retai sites recerve 330 ritkion visits per year

London

Meadowhall

L.5m sq ft \\ @

Retart and laisure space \
]
98 AN
0 L]
Oceupancy ®® ®
@
Yorkshire s premmier shapping [ ]
dastination and home to nearly 300 e ®
®
shops and restaurants The centre first o o
opened 0 1990and 1s undergoing a ] ©
substantial refurbishmeni on ds 25th -
annwversary L has attracted 560 mallien L ]
visitors 1 s 25 years A PwC report o
published this year reveated thai o ® °
suppoarts 1obinevery 180:n the
region and 1p mevery £1 generated e

by the regranal economy
www meadowhatl co uk L

To read the PwC report go to
www britishland com/Meadowhall25

Map key

@ Oiffices & Resigentiat

@ Retal & Lewsure

The Leadenhall Buinlding

603,000 sq it

Gffice and Retad space

989

let/under offer

Prominently tocated in the City of London
The Leadenhall Building s distinctive shape
was developed as a response to planning
reguirements which prolect the viewing
corridors of St Paul s Cathedral Officially
opened by the Duke of Cambridge and Prince
Harry in 2015, 1t has attracted some high
profile occupmers including joint owners
OMERS and ihe building s architects
Rogers Stirk Harbour + Partners

www theleadenhallbuilding com

5.5m sq ft

A designated London Oppertuniy Area
this 46-acre site was assembled infour
transactions over five years We are
working with the London Borough of
Souifiwark io create an exciiing new
place for Londoen which connects with
the tocal community and 1s intagrated
with the surround ng area Thisis a
major long term project which will

be delivered in s number of phases
and 1s one ol the largest mixed use
regeneration projects i London

www canadawatermasterplan com

British Land | Annuat Report and Accounts 2016 3




Strategic Report

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

We have had another busy

and successful year

Key highlights of the year

Total accounting returnt

14.2%

Reflecting the increase in cur nat assel value
per share and income yiald from the dividend

EPRA net asset value per share'

219,

Up 109%

Dividend per share

28.36p

Up 2 5%

' Please see the glossary for defimtion

Welcome to our 2016 Annual Report We have
had a strong year reflecting the work we have
done repositioning cur pet tfolio to rartor the
changing way peaple live their lives

Buildings are most successiut when they
teflect the needs of those who occupy and

use them Getting closer to our customers
continues 1o be a key theme for us and an
understanding of how modern Wfestyles
increasinglty merge work and leisure ime
informs not anly how we manage and develap
our assets but also the allocation of our capiial

Our delsver y of Places Peepte Prefer s
evidenced once again by our near fully let
pot tfolio and the growth we have generated
across our husiness

Underlying Profit for the year was £363 million
up 16% The valuauon of our pertfohio also
increased by 6 7% to £14 6 billion and NAY was
up 10 9% to 919 pence pe: share The Board has
recommended a fourth quarter dvidend of 709
pence per share making a total of 28 36 pence
for the year We have proposed a first quarter
dividend of 7 30 pence per share for 2017 an
wcrease of 3 6% The total accounting return
was 14 2%

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016

Actoss the global markets equities have had
a difficult year the FTSE 100 was down 11 6%
over the last 12 months lyear to 16 May 2016}
reflecting herghtened concerns about
macro-ecanomic and politcal nsks Closer to
home our shares along with the REIT sector
have underperformed the FTSE principally
reflecting concerns zhout the impact an exit
from Europe would have on the property sector
particularly in London While we are mindful
of this uncer lainty we are confident that our
bustness s bath resiient and well placed for
the tong term

Ahighlight for me this year was the official
opening of The Leadenhall Building

last October iwas delighted to welcarne

the Buke of Carnbr idge and Prince Harry as
guests of honou: as the building officially
cpened for business The Cheesegrater as

it1s affectionately known 15 a great example

of what British Land does best - financing
developing and managing exceptional burldings

From its nnovative canstruciton techmque and
distinctive design to its immediate recognition
en the London skyline The Leadenhall Building
has been an autstandng success story Voted
The City of London Building of the Year in 2010
it has atiracted the highest rents ever achieved
in the Csty of London 11 s no surprise thatitis
now 98% let/under offer

Buring the year we were once again also
recogrised as sustamability leaders in glebal
indices and awards Since launching our 2020
sustainability strategy in 2015 we have made
strong progress embedding sustamability
across our business We are achieving resuiis
by setting high standards delivering tr aining
providing support and sharing best practice
working closely with our development partners
and property management subsidiary
Bivadgate Estates Ltd lam pleased that we
suppert RE100 - commitied to purchasing
electrioty from renewable power We atso mvest
Inrenewable energy soutces at our assets with
photovaltaic panels installed at St Stephen s in
Hull during the year By promoting wellbeing
supporing communities, operating efficient




19

Our delivery of Places People Prefer is evidenced once
again by our near fully let portfolio and the growth we
have generated across our business.”

bulldings developing people s skills and growing

economies we are creating places that attract @ 2016 Queen's Award for Enterprise
occuplers wor kers shoppers and residents and
se gain value over ime - Places People Prefer In Apri this year Briish Land was one of only seven companies
to recesve the 2016 Queen s Awai d for Enterprise Sustainable
Our high guality portfolic the eptienality within Develepment as part of Hes Majesty The Queen s 90th
our developmenl programime and our strang birthday honours
finances positions us well for the future THE QUEEN S AWARDS
PO B The Awar ¢ 1s the UK s tughest aceolade for husiness success

and i1s given to cornpanies which bring major ecenamic

sociat and environmental benefits through their own business
/H(VWW- success I hasbeen awarded to B itish Land fer continuous
achievemnentin all these areas over the last five years
According to Business Secretary Sapid Javid winners are
leacing the way In a broad range of 1ndustries and show
John Gildersleeve they are involved in activity that ensures a better quality of
Mon-Executive Charrman Life for everyone now and in the future

We wei e abviously thrlled to receive the award Understanding
what really matters to our customners 1s helping us drive continued
improvements throughout our business As people s attiudes
and expectations change good businesses respond Our purpose
of creating Places People Prefer and the huge amount of work
we have done on placemaking i1s making a matenal positive
difference 1o the custorner experience at ous assets

This award recognises the contribuiion of ever yone at British
L.and We also appreciale that the help and commitment of ot
customers partners suppliers and many other stakeholders
has played a partin this achievement Integrating social and
environmental activiies into every area of a business s not
samething you can do on the side orinisolation We would like
10 extend our thanks to everyone who has worked with us over
the years and Like us believes that adopting a responsible
approach to business 1s a powerful toot which helps drive
customer preference and deliver tasting value

Full year resulls 20146 LA {é
www britishland com/results

For more information on sustanabdlity John Gilderslecye Chns Grigg
www britishtand com/sustanability Non-Executive Chairman Chitef Executive

@ Chief Executive s review go (o pages

6108 For more miormation on The Queen s Awards for Enterpnse

hitp //queensawardsmagazine com/
Chawrman s governance review o to

pages 700 71 For more sigrmation on our awards

www britishland com/awards

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016 R)



Strategie Report

CHIEF EXECUTIVE S REVIEW

Our strong results are underpinned
by good performances across

the business

Key highlights of the vear
Total accounting returns?

14.2%

Reflecimg the increase in cur net assat value
per share and incoma yield from the dvidend

Underlying Profit growth!

16.0%

Oriven by fsnancing activity development
comptetions and like-for Uke net rental
Inceme growth

Planning granted on

1.5m sq ft

of development space

' Please see the glossary for defimtion
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In a fast changing market we are focusing

our business to benefil from long term trends
notably the transforming tmpact technology

1$ having on the way we work shop and live the
impact of population growth and urbamsation
particutarly in London and the South East and
ncreasing consumer expectations in areas
such as health wellbeing and sustainability
We are fecusing our portfelio on places where
we can control the environment exptoiting

our placemaking exper i1se to manage mare
complex mixed use envirgnments delivering

on our core purpase of ¢ eating Places People
Preter We see wncreasing cverlap between our
office campuses and our multr-let regronal and
local retail centres as they combne a greater
rmix of uses and evolve to reflect our customers
changing bfestyles

We have had another good year both in terms
of our underlytng hinanciat performance and
our delivery against our sirategic objectves
Performance in the year was underpinned by
strengthening rental growth reflecting the
Investmenis we have made across our portfolio
in recent years alongside good occupatianat
markets We made good progresswith aur
commuitted developmens and are in a strong
position to be able to move forward with our
near term development pipeline when the

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016

trne 1s right We continued ta sell mature and
nen-core assets redeploying capital principally
into our existing portfolio - in our campuses
and regional and local retail centres Overatl
our investment activity was broadly balanced

EPRA net asset value was 10 9% ahead at

919 pence per share at the year end {932 pence
excluding the tmpact of the recent increase in
stamp duty] Valuation was up 6 7% with Difices
up 11 8% and Retail up 2 4% principally due to

5 3% ERV growth across the portfolic which
was 130 bps ahead of IPD We generated total
property returns of 11 3% for the year

Underlying Profit was 16 0% ahead at

£363 rillion dreven both by our successfut
leasing activity and our lewer linancing costs
Diluted Underlying EPS was up 11 4% at

34 1 pence pershare In line with previous
annauncements ihe final quarterly dvidend
15 709 pence per share biinging the full year
dividend to 28 36 pence per share aninciease
of 2 5% deliversng a total accounting return of
14 2% OQur proportionately consolidated LTV
reduced to 32% in line with our stiategy of not
gearing up on yield shift with our investment
activity broadly batanced Asaresult of our
relinancing activiies including the £350 milbon
zero coupon cenver tible bond our average
finaneing cost 1s down 50 bps to 3 3%
Reflecting our confidence in the coming year
the Board s proposing a quarterly dividend of
730 pence per share or 29 20 pence per share
for the full year anncrease of 3 0%

Our portfalio s virtually full with occupancy

of 99% In good occupational markets in hoth
Retall and Otfices we saw stiong levels of
demand for our remaining space Thisis
teflected in our {easing transactians with

1 3million sq ft of letings and renewals agreed
on average 6 8% ahead of ERY

In Offices we made geod preogress enhancing
and enliverung environments sirergthening
tong term demand for our space and appealing
10 a broader range of occuplers We let or
renewed 296 000 sq ft of space on average

9 6% ahead of ERV and added £3 8 million

of rent through rent reviews settled onterms




17% ahead of previous rents The [ eadenhal!
Building 1s now 98% let or under offer with pust
one of the top ftoors to let We are making goed
progress on ol campusvisions At Broadgate
we completed 5 Broadgate and we are
progressing our development opportunities
across the campus Elsewhere our focus on
creating Places Peaple Prefer s driving public
reabm improvements at Paddington Central
and will influence our plans at Regent s Place
where we see further near term refurbishmeni
opportuniies Our campuses remaimn
affordable and the investment we are
undertaking leaves us well positioned to
capture rental growth gomnyg forward

In Retall we (et or renewed 903 000 sq £t of
space on average 8 0% ahead of ERV reflecting
the strength of our markets as well as the
quality of our assets and the work we have been
doing to improve them We now manage our
mulu-let porifolso along regional and local lines
reflecting how we see consumers spend thewr
time and money We continued to invest in our
multi-let portfolio through large scale leisure
extensions but also through smaller asset
management mitiatives impreving the
arnenities at our assets Lo drive footfall

dwell and spend through improved customer
satisfaction Footfall acioss ouwr multi-let
pertfolio was up 3 0% outperforming the

mar ket benchmark by 440 bps with retailers
In-slore sales also ahead of the market up

2 4% We saw strong demand for our pipeline
of leisure extenstons and at those assets where
we have completed exlensions orimprovement
works we have already seen good ERV growth
and gper ational improvements Superstores
performance was more subdued as expected
but we have been active in selling down our
holding 1o £0 8 tullion from £3 3 billion two
years ago With deals under ofier this falls

lo €0 7 bilion

As expected our invesiment activity was
broadly batanced over the year including

our share of capital spend We continued

to allocate mor e capita! into our London
campuses investing a net £280 mitlion through
developments at Broadgate Regeni s Place
and Paddington Central where we also
acquired One Sheldon Square In Retall we
made £420 mullion of disposals as we Increase
our focus on the mulii-let portfolio where we
can put our placemaking skilis to work to drive
rental growth

In April Brnitish Land was one of only seven
companies to receve the 2016 Queen s Award
lor Enterprise Sustainable Development as
part of Her Majesty The Queen s 90th birthday
honours The Award s the UK s fughest
accolade for business success andis given

to compantes which bring major economc
soctal and environmental benefits through
their business The award reflects our

We create outstanding places which
make a postive difference to people s
everyday ives

Places People Prefer

This s the care umifying purpose of
our business guiding our strategy
and shaping our actions

Strategic focus
We deliver leng term sustainable returns
for our stakehotders by focusmg on

Customer QOrientation
Right Places

Cupital Efficiency
Expert People

This drives demand from our occupiers
sustainable growth mincome and
ultimately capital values

Maore inforrmation about our strategy
and progress can be found on pages

18to 25

Placemaking

Placemaking 1s how we deliver places
people want to work shop live and
spend time

We connect
We design
We enhance
We enliven

Find out more about our placemaking
approach on pages 261035

Qur salues
Our values underpin everything we do

Do what is right not
what is easy

Work efficiently as one teum

Muake commercial decisions
thit create long term vulue

Make things happen

continuous achievernent in alk these areas over
the last five years We made strong progress
embedding our sustainablity strategy
including innovating on wellbeing through
public realm improvements where we invesied
£30 mutlion over the year We diverted 98% of
alt managed waste from landfill and delivered
a 40% carban mtensity reduction leading

the Global Real Estate Sustainability
Benchmark for Europe/fdiversified for the
second year runnimg

Development remains & core part of our
business With the delivery of 5 Broadgate

our 2010 programime completed i the year
generating profit of £1 1 bitlion and an IRR of over
30% We are currenily on site at §29 000 sq f of
develepments a speculative commitment of
£530 mithon principally & Kegdom Street and
Clarges Mayfair our super prime residentiat
scheme [over 50% pre-sold) Looking forwar d
we have a significant fulure pipeline with built

in optionality meaning we can start each project
at theright irme A Broadgate our near term
pipeling includes 100 Liverpool Street and

1 Finsbury Avenue, wher e we receved planning
during the year and looking to the medium

term we submitted a planning application at
2-3Finsbury Avenue Other polentiat near tarm
opportunities in Offices include 1 Trkon Square
at Regent s Place and b Kingdom Street at
Paddington Central InRetall our near term
pipetine mctudes leisure extensions at Drake
Circus Plymouth and New Mersey Speke

Our mediurm term plans include our mixed use
redevetepment of the Eden Walk Kingston and
a stgnilicant leisure extension at Meadowhall
[currently in pubtic cansultation] whichwill
enhance its position as a flagship regicnal centre

We have an exceptional opportunity at Canada
Water to create a wbrant new destmation for
London and are delighted Roger Madelin has
jowned Brivsh Land 1o head up the project

we are already beneliting from his experience
leading the redevelopment of King s Cross
Thists along term project but we are making
progress with a public consultation taking
place in February 2016 ahead of an outhne
planming submisston in 2017

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016 7




Strategic Report

CHIEF EXECUTIVE S REVIEW CONTINUED

Outlook

Looking ferward we remain confident m the
underlying strength of the business despite
continued global macro uncertainty and the
poteniatly adverse wnpact of a vote for the UK
to leave the European Union Qur business s
resilient our portfoliois modern nearly fully
tet to quabity occupiers on long leases and our
hinances are strong with moderate LTV tow
costs and long dated financing from a wide
range of sources Our cur ent committed
development pipeline 1s modest but we have
built aptionality into our future pipeline sowe
can exploit its potential when the time 1s right
Qur strategy of creating Places People Prefer
locuses our investment and activities on macro
trends ensuring our reat estate reflects the
changing way people work shop and Live

We have significant opportunties across our
existing par tiohio including i our three existing
London campuses and the potentiat ta create
a new London campus at Canada Watet
alongside our regional and local multi-let
Retail assets

Chris Grigg

Chief Executive

To read more information about our
Business modet go to pages 10 and 11

Full year results 2016
www britishland com/results

@ Chiet Executive blog
www britishland com/ceohlog

Foi more informatson on sustainabiity
www brittshland com/sustainability

QOur pniorities for the year ahead

Deliver sustainable returns for stakeholders

Customer Orientation
- Irprove understanding of our customers

- Use placermaking to deliver mproved
customer experience

Capital Efficiency
~ Deliver budget

- Accelerate delivery of mult-let regienal
and local lifesiyle retail

8 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016

Right Places
- Progress develapments alongside material
pre-lets

- Progress Canada Water visign and plan

Expert People
- improve company organisalianal
effectweness

- Embed placemaking across the business
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The Leadenhall Bulding

Destgned by Rogers Surk Harbour + Partners
The Leadenhall Building 15 a urmque 603 800 sq
ft office tower promunently located inthe centre
of the City of London Its defining feature s its
distinctive tapening shape which when viewed
from the West appearsto lean away from

St Paul sCathedrat This was developed asa
response to the specific planming requiementis
which protect the views of St Paul s from a
number of locations in London The Briush Land
and Gxford Properties building won the
Worshipful Company of Chartered Archilects -
City of London s Building of the Year award in
2015 after judges declared Han extraordinary
example cf contemporary architecture” The
building was also recognised by the Bnitish
Council of Offices with a Commer cial Workplace
Award forits iconic structure and "intelligent
arrangements which allow the buitding layout
to change as it rises”

www theleadenhallbuilding com
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#8ay Cheesegrater

The wanning entry by Tom Mearns

to our #SayCheesegrater Instagram
competition designed to celebr ate the
officiat apening of The Leadenhall Building
by the Duke of Cambridge and Prince Harry
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Strategic Report

BUSINESS MODEL
2

. . Connect
Our business is

focused on creating Deszgn
Places People Prefer We ocus onatiracieand convenen

places which are in tune with modern
lifestyles, those which connect
with people and reflect the best

tn modern design
1 Q Connect We create places which Q
connect physically and digrtally
Source with those people who use them
including local communities in
& — which they are located

I Design Our butdings and
n@eSt environmenis offer the lnghest

quality of design with engaging
ldentitying and tnvesting architeclure and a fully integrated
In assets with the greatest publicrealm

potential {o provide value

Source The scale of our business .
the expertise of our people and our
network of comacts provide access

lo the best investment cpportumties D ,p Z
3 ! |
> ' 3 P11
Invest We have the skills experience Hrrt Q L
and finanoal {lexibilny to execute the T o old - 0 LLLD 0
most value-enhancing investments . ooocoaa N
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3
Enha
n &nce \ .

Enliven Evaluate

Active asset management to

enhance and enliven our assets

creates vibrant and engaging reat HOlcvsell
estate, which attracts the strongest

occupiers to our portfolio

Qur sector knowledge and expertise
altows us to evatuate the potential
of our assets and assess whether
they can deliver future value for
Entiven We provide evenls and sharehotders
activrties whichbring lite and a
real sense of community to our
buitdings and best in class services
which improve the experience loi
our customers Hold or Sell We allocate capital to
& sectors and assels with potential
and realise capital frem mature
Or Non-core assets

Enhance We enhance our properties
by attracting a strong diverse mix of
occupiers and broadening the offering

Evaluate We assessour sectors
and assets for theit potentiat to
[ deliver attractive returns over time

@ Find more information about our
strategy on pages 1810 25
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Strategic Report

MARKET OVERVIEW

More than

What sets 64,000

Y
us apartt people wark across our cffice portfolio

Placemalung skilis

Improving our assets to create a betier
overall experience for our custamers
and local communities Places which

Our approach to doing business puts are easy tovisit vibrant pleasant and

the customer at the heart of what we do engaging and with high guality on siie

This underpins our ability to detiver services places where people want

Places People Prefer D towork shop live and visit
Customer msight

Ournvesiment in data collecuion
and analytics brings us closer

to our customers guiding our
investiments and helping us lo
create ptaces that meet their
expectations and lfestyles

High qualitv office
campuses

Ottice-led environments focused
around key transportinfrastructure
with a growing retail and leisure offer
enabling people to comhine work and
play The dives sity of our offering
provides opportunities and amenities
for tocal communities hetping to
energise the broader campus

Lifestyle focused retal 330
environments 1m
annuat footiall at
our relail assets

Regional and tocal multi-let

retail assels i1 tune with modern
consumer lifestyles where people
go to shop eat and be entertained

12 British Land | Annuat Repert and Accounts 2016




Mixed use development
experience

Large scale projects combining
offices retal residential and
tersure set amidst aitractive
public spaces Typically these
develapments involve close
cotlabor ation with{ocal planming
authanies cemmunities and

partners aswell as active
day-to-day management

Ability to source and

execute complex deals
We have the expertise and

frnancial llexibility required 10
execute complex deals delivering
highly attr active returns for

our shareholders

Sustamability

credentials

We have been sustainabibity
leaders for a long time and

have successfully integrated
sustainability into our placemaking
apptoach innovating to improve
people s wellbesng supporting
local communities destgning for
the future and developing skitls
and opportuntties at our places

Strong network
of relationships
Our networks span accupier s
planners ltocal authortties
community leaders strategic
partners and investors reflecting For more information on sustainabitity
our many years as teading www britishland com/sustainability
developers and landlords

across the UK

29,500

Peopie benefited directly from our
cammunity programme this year
including apprentices jobseekers
and schooletvldren

British Land | Annuat Report and Accounts 2014 13




Strategic Report

MARKET OVERVIEW CONTINUED

Magor trends impacting

our markets

Globalisation

Ourinvestment and occupational markets are
increasingly global The UK s political stabstity
sound legal and hinanaial framework trme zone
and the Liquidity of 1ts property markels make
itan atti acuive home for international capital
London in particular offers some of the best
employment epportunities as welt as great
places to live and wor k underpinning the
growing gtehatisation of 1is workforce

Sources of nvestment in UK real estate

MUK 57%
B Amencas 17%
T Rest of World 26%

Source JLL 2016

14

@

Positive but moderate
economic growth

Qverall economic fundamentals in the UK
rernaw positive Real wages and emnployment
are forecast 1o continue to grow and infiation
and interest 1 ates are expected to remamn low
by tistoric standards However with markets
becoming increasingly glebal there ts a greater
risk that external factors including a vate for
the UK to leave the European Umon will smpact
our markels sowe are mindful of the needto
manage our business ta mitigate these nsks

5.1%

UK unemployment rate versus Euro area of 10 3%

Source Difice for Nationa! Statistics April 2014

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016

Population growth
and urbanisation

The UK population is expected to grow from

&4 & million in 2014 to 74 3 mullion by 2039
Much of the increase will be inits targest aities
notably London underpinning demand for
retail and office space aswell as infrastructure
and housing In London nvestrment in better
transport mcluding new rail Unks and
improved stations isunder way Thisis drniving
growth and regeneration across the capital

8.7m

Greater Langon population forecast to grow
by 1% per annum

Source Oxford Economics

1.Sm

extra people within 45 minutes of London
with Crossraitfrom 2018

Source Crossrail websile
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Transforiming impact
of technology

Technology continues to transform the way

we work shop and live The internet has created
a choice of delivery platforms s peaple can
shop in @ manner which suits them Peaple are
also able to work remotely ncreasingly they
see their working environment as a place to
collaborate and network and this changes the
type of office space they are looking for

344,000

additianal employees working for smatl firms

Source Department for Business Inngvatson & Skilis
Business Population Esumvates 2015

66

Our sustainable business nmodel is designed
to henefit from and exploit long term sector
and macro-economic trends.”

©O
OO
Increasing consumer
expectations

People s expectations of where they work

shop and live are nising They expect attiactive

well-managed environments mcdern facilities
and a high standard of service They like places
which are accessible and convenient and

ncreasingly they expect leisure to be a part
of their everyday lives

24%

increase n K FABaisure spend lorecast between
2016 and 2021

Source CACI

Focus on sustainable
and ethical behaviours

People expect companies 10 have sound
sustainabitsly credentials to adhere toa fugh
standard of ethical behaviour and g ensure the
wellbeing of thewr employees Thisis star ting

10 1nfluence who we want towork for the places
we shop and live and the kind of developments
local commumities are prepared toaccept
Reflecting thts I1s a growing expectation that
governments should use policy 1o promote
sustainable and ethical practices

80%

of people believe that compamies can play a leading role
in solving sociely s problems white still making profits

Source Edetman 2014 Trust Barometer

195

countries agreed to keep global warrmung below 2°C
pursu.ng ffarts to lmititto 15°C

Source United Nations Framework Convention
on Climate Change COP 21 Panis 2015

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016 15




Strategic Report

MARKET OVERVIEW CONTINUED

How we are

responding

Getting closer to our customers

- improving our understanding of our
customers preferences with effective
sysiems and processes 1o caplure and
analyse data

- Inereasing in-house expertise with dedicated
analytics and marketing capahiliies

- Improving in-house management of our
properties to deler cansistent bestin
class standards

- Investing an the Briish Land bt and so people
know what they can expect from us and the
properlies we own and manage

Completed

>150,000

consumer exit surveys cornpleted over the past four
years at our retail assets

- tnvesuing in places which are welt
connected well designed and m tune
with modern Wifeslyles

- Enhanang and enlivening our assets
through our placemaking activities
attraclive environinents hestin class
services and innovative leisure and
enterlainmert options

- Places which are well integrated which
add value to local communities and where
they choose to spend time

£280m

inwested in London campuses over the tast year

16 British Land | Annuat Report and Accounts 2016
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Focusing on internct resilient
lifestyle Retail

- Focusing on creating outstanding regronat
and lpcal mulb-let 1 etail assets which are
In tune with modern consumer lHestyles

- Understanding where a wide ranging mixed
use offering will drive footfalt and where
convenient and accessible assels are
more appiopriate

- Investing to keep pace with changing
consumer preferences

15%

ncrease in dwelt ume at the assets where we have
recently completed makeovers to improve the
shopping experience




&

Growing in London
and the South East

~ ldentifying ernerging areas that will benefit
from growth and regeneration particularly
transport/infrastructure-led

-increasing theretall teisure residentat
and other alterndtive uses to enhance our
office-led campuses

- Investing in relatively affluent retait locations
outside of London with population growth
where there Is potential to upscale the offer

- Idenufying cornpelling 1 esidential
opportunities

65%

of our assets are located
1n London or the South East

Profitable development

- Near term opportunities which focus on
keeping our campuses and our : etail-led
centres modern

- Long term large scale mixed use projects
where we can put ow placemaking skills
to work

- Managing risk through pre-tetung and
phasing development starts

92m sq ft

of developments in our near/medismterm p.peline

Embedding sustainability
in placemaking

- Adaplizhte and efficient buitdings

- Promating wellbeing and productivity foz
our occupiers customers and communities

- Supporting local commuritres with our
new Local Char ter launched this year

- Developing skifls and cpportunities to support
locat economies

RE100

We support RE100 ~ commutted to purchasing
electrcity from renewable power 10 our own space
and across service charge space

For more information on sustamabiity
www britishland com/sustainability

{o read more about our strategy
go to pages 180 25

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016 17



Strategie Report

OUR STRATEGY

Our strategy for creating
Places People Prefer

Our strategy
Our strategy deternmnes our focus
for our annual priorities

To read more on out prianties
tor lhe year ahead go to

page 8 Customer Orientation

- Leverage our customernsight services
experience and technology to be recognised
for creatmg Places Peaple Prefer

- Use consisient and scalable ways of working

- Provide best in class proper ty management
by developing in-house capabilities
through Broadgate Estates

000
CC)D

Expert People

- Maintain high standard of aperational
and investment skill sets and encourage
development in evolving areas

- Promole a culture which supports
the recrurtment and develcpment
of a diverse leam

- Improve ways of working
across the business

9

AVA

Right Places

- Create and operate excsing and engaging
lifestyte oriented real estate put Places
Peaple Preferat the heart of our approach

~ Invest in Londan - n existing assels and
emerging locations benehiting from
regeneration and grawth

- Focus on regional and locat mullr-let retail
assels which are in tune with modern
consumers lifestyles

Capital Efficiency
- Allocate capital to maximise returns from

our competitive odvantages

- Manage beth our development exposur e and
financial leverage through the cycle while
mamtaining the benelits of scale

- Be the partner of choice for international
capital and publec bodies

Creating Places This generates Together with
People Prefer long term growth  an optimal capital
drives enduring in rents and structure this
demand for capital value. delivers sustainable

our propertics.

18 British Land | Annual Repor t and Accounts 2014
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Our objective is to deliver sustainable
long term value for all stakeholders

Occupiers and

their customers

- High gquality envit cnments
wiuch promote productivity
and wellbeing

- Affordable and efficient buitdings

-Qutslanding customer services
and fagihities

Investors
- Access 1o high quality iigud real
estate imvestmeni

Employces
~ Annclusive enviionment
with enhanced wellbeing
and productvity

~Stable secure cash flows

- Superiortotal returns

and opportuntties

- Oppertumties to make
a positive difference

Local communities
- Attractive local environmeints

- Faciiues and services which
enhance the overall area

Partners

- Access lo high quakity real estate - Places which support locat jobs

and skills

- Stronger community networks
and facilities

- Asset management and
development skills

- Strong retationships
For mare information on sustainability

www britishland com/sustammabdity

British Land } Annual Report and Accounts 2016

- Potential to develap skills
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Strategie Report

OUR STRATEGY CONTINUED

How we pe"‘fomed Our long term objective

Delivenng sustanable

ooerY the paSt year long term value

Our priorities in the year were What we have achieved
Customer Orientation - 13m sq ft of teasing activily acrass Retail - 350 occupier surveys now completed
- Getting closer 1o our occupiers and end users and Offices in Offices with footfall counter s piloted
- Improving our systems and processes - The Leadenhall Building now 98% let/under at Broadgate
- Leveraging Broadgate Estates offer up from 84% at the start of the year - Broadgate Estates now managng all of
- Innovating to support customer wellbeing ~ £420m of mature/non-core Retall assets our retall assets covering over 20m sq ft
- Continuing to : eposstion the Retai portfalio sold ncludmg £122m of superstores - Partnered weth occupiers on iniliatives
reducing our weighting to 5% al our properties ncluting wellbeing
- Cver 43 000 pecple surveyed in Retall with and communiy
sales data on 94% of mulu-let assets and - internal team st engthened with improved
footfall data on 9% systems and processes 10 analyse dala

- 4 2/5 wisitor score for shopping experience

Right Places - £280m nat investment ito London campuses - Circa £B0m nvested in improvements and
- Progressing our strategy for London - Progressing the Broadgate vision with extensions to Retaill assets Orawing up plans
- Progressing committed and near term planning achieved on 100 Liverpool Street fer a proposed 330 000 sq ft Leisure Hail
developments and 1 Finsbury Avenue and submitted at at Meadowhall
- Retreshing medwm term strategees for 2 and 3 Finshury Avenue - £60m refurbishment of Meadowha!l under
Broadgate Meadowhall and Canada Water - Good progress at our development at way and progressing wedl
- Suppgrtmg successiul locat communities 4 ngdom Street and Paddlnglon Central -~ PI‘OQI’ESSIHQ our Canada Water development
- Refurbishment of 338 Eustan Read Regent s held & public consultation in February 2016 :
Place completed with over 80% of space - Launch of Local Charler to support i
pre-let to Facebook successiul local commumities and develop

local skitls and oppor tunities
- Comnmunily prograrmime equivalent 100 6%
of pre-tax profits benefiing 2% 500 people

Capital Efﬁciency - £618m non-core asset/matur e sales in the - 40% carbon intensity reduction versus 2009 :
- Optimising size and Linanciatl structure across year with acquisithons and capital investment lindex score) |
the property cycle of £639m i
- Balancing trade-off between a cost efficient - Building aur 1elationship with Southwark
and higher capability organesation Council our pariner on Canada Water
- Conunuing to bwld relationships with direct - Lompleted over £1bn of iinancing activity
and indirect capital and public bodies sice 31 March 2015 including a zero coupon
- Delivering futur e proofing mitatives £350m senior unsecured converiible bond

due 2020 and the tender offer and purchase of
£110m of debenture bonds reducing wenghted
average nteresl rate

by50bpsin3 3%

Expert People - Appointed Roger Madelin to head up Canada - 87% employee score for our offices
- Continuing to Imps ove organisationat design Water development supporting their wetlbeing
and effectiveness - Women s Network and BL Pride established - 100% of our employees and 72% supplier
- Build management capabilittes for new - Participation in the National Equality Standard waorkforce at our properties paid the Living
aswell as traditional skill sets - One Star rating in Best Companies to Work Wage Foundation wage
- Developtng skills and opportunities For Survey

- Creatlng an inclusive workmg environment

For definitions see glossary on
pages 200 1o 203

20 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016




How we measure up'

Risk indicators and incentive measures

Total accounting return (TAR) @

14 2%

2016 14.2%

- Totat accountng return is our overall measure
of per formance s the dividend paid plus the
growih in EPRA NAVIn the period

- Duning the year we generated a strong TAR
of 14 2% bringing the 3year TAR 10 67%%

Our dividend was increased by 2 5% to 28 36
pence per share and aur NAV increased
by 10 9% te 919 pence per share

Risk indicators we monitor

- forecast GOP

- the margin between property yiglds and
borrowing costs and

- property capital and ERV growth forecasts

Management compensation linked to
- total accounting retut ns relative to peers

Customer satisfaction
7 9out of 10

2016 7.9

] 1

' e
' "

We extensively survey people who use our
assets to assess our performance and
identfy opporturities for improvement

Sustanabhty Performance
- Dow Jones Sustainabibty Index World
and Europe 2015 94th percentile
- FTSE4Good 2015 98th percentle
- Global Real Estate Sustainabstity Benchmark
2015 Sector Leader European/Drver sified

We track our sustainabitity impacts on these
indices We are proud 1o have been awar ded the
Queen s Award for Enterprise Sustainable
Development 20146

Risk indicators we momtor

- consumer canfidence

- emnployment forecasts for refevant
sectors and

- market letting risk [vacancies expiries
adrrinistrations}

Management compensation linked to

- Company reputation with all stakehotders
and

- supporting the delivery of sustainahility
objectives

Total properts returns

11 3% vsiPD
n lme
b i w4 +130bps
S +60bps

We have performed in line with the IPD
benchmark on total property return this
year and outperformed over the last 3 years
by 60 bps per annum

% of standing investments

Development comnutiment
£0 8bn

2014 £0.8bn +5 8%
X o o +10 0%
R s 3

Development supports value and income
growth but also adds nsk We aim to keep
our committed developrnent exposure at

less than 15% of our Investment portfolio

Risk indicators we moniter

- property capital and ERV growth forecasts

- total and speculative development exposure
and

~ progress of developmenls against plan

Management compensation linked to

- total property returns relative to IPD

- execution of largeted acquisiions and
disposals and

- progress on key projects including
devetopments

Loan to value (LL.TV)
- proportionally consohdated

2%

2016 32%

®

We manage our leverage such that L1V should
not exceed a maximurm threshold if market
yields were o rise 1o previous peak ievels

Weighted average interest rate
~ proportionally consohdated®

33%

2014 3.3%

Cur low cost of finrance supports performance
ant s one of the lewest of histed UK REITs

Risk indicators we momitor

- likelihood of covenant breach

- whenrefinancing s required and

- percentage of debt at fixed interest rates

Management compensation linked to
- execetion of debt financings
- progress on strengthening the dividend and
- execution of targeted acquisitions
and disposals

The Sunda Times Best Compames
to Work For

One star

2016 One slar

1
S J

Piease see the g'ossary for definitians

The Sunday Times annual survey 15 one
of the most extensive benchmarks of
employer engagemnent

Long-term incentive Plan
Annuzt Incentive award

Risk indicators we monitor
- unplanned execulive departures

Management compensatron kinked to

- quality of people and management
renewal and

- Company reputation with atl stakeholders

Managing risk in delivering our strategy
see pages 57 10 63

Remuneration report see pages 86to 110
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Strategic Report

OUR STRATEGY CONTINUED

The importance
of people

Our focus on Places Peopte Prefer puts
people at the heart of our strategy

Customer Orientation

We are investing In the 1esour ces that bring
us closer to the people whowork shop and
live across our assets unproving both our
customer insight and our understanding of
lecal communities and helping to guide how
and wher e we do business

inretail our customers have more choice

than ever before the offering iswider and there
are more delwvery platforms We are buitding
our understanding of how our customers
manage these choices and are working with
our occupier s at our multi-let assets o deliver
outstanding places for modern consumer
lifestyles Our understanding of our customer s
1s underpinned by the dala we gather from our
schemes we have completed over 150 000
consumer exit surveys over the last four years
we collect turnover data on 94% of our muln-tet
assels by value and fooifall data from 98% of
our multi-let assets lmportantly we have the
systems and processes in place to generate
insights and learnings from this data and this
gundes our approach to placemaking We know
that our leading indscatars including footfall
dwetl ume and spend benefit dramatically
fram an increased leisure food and beverage
provision andg better services so thisiswhere
we are focusing our efforts Al our regional
assels we ar e focused on improving the
breadth and depth of our retat and teisur e offes
introducing cinemas and restaurants as well as
more innovative leisure concepts At our local
assels we are improving the services we offer
and creating a more attractive environment

for our visttors those who want convenience
and accessibility

In Offices our occupiersincreasingly see
property as key to attracting and retaining talent
s0 we are working together to help thern stay
ahead Ths year we have surveyed around 350
occuplers or prospective occupters to further
develop our understanding of what Places
People Prefer means to them We understand
that focation and in particutar proximity to

22

Our ralues
Ourvalues underpin our daily working
practices and set us apart They are

s
- \
Do what 15 nght, Work efficrenth

not what 15 ewsy 45 One team

LB

Make things
happen

‘Make commercial
decisions that create
long term value

transportinfrastructure are priorities so these
are important consideraiions for us when we
make investment decisions The quality and
efficiency of the building matters occupers
want the ability to adapt space as their needs
change and for their warkspaces to promote
cotlaboration and positive relationships across
their businesses Employees also expectan
altractive place towork aswell as a range of
facibties and services they can enjoy outside

of the office This s why our strategy in Qffices
1s focused on our campuses which are more
muxed i use and include retall teisure and
often residentiat space and cther amenities
where we can manage the broader
environment We have developed more
interactive marketing campaigns giving people
the opportunity to participate in the life of our
campuses and we are piloting footfall counters
at Broadgale to provide accurate data on how
successfully our activiies ar e attracting people
to the campus We are making a similar effortin
residentrdl wher e over 400 purchasers across
the super prime pome and top ber markets
were surveyed Al Clarges our super prime
residential developmentin Mayfair we work
with our customers on an individual basis 1o
ensure we deliver a product that really reflects
thewr specific Lilestyles

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016




We ensure the highest standards of service
across our office assets by managing them
in-house through Broadgate Estates our
wholly owned subsidiary and one of the UK s
teading property management companies

Its client portfolio includes some of the rmast
prestigious properiies in the UK and we
teverage 1is scale and expertise across the
wider market to provide a best in class service
Having proved tughly successfut at managing
our Offices pertfolio Broadgate Estates remit
now alse covers our muthi-let Retad por tiolio

To read more about Broadyale Estates
go to www broadgateestates co uk

The quality of our assets and strength of our
services enables us to attract a high calibre of
occupler Lo our portfolio This together wath our
high eccupancy levels and long average lease
tengths underpins the quality and secunity of our
rental iIncome We are increasing the diversity
of our occuprer mix and no single occupier
accounts for mare than 5 7% of cur revenues

for our major occupiers see the table on
page 188

Expert People

Our 589 employees ar e spli between the
core team at Brtish Land and our property
management subsidiary Broadgate Eslates
The breadth and depth of aur knawledge

our skills and aur retationships underpin

our compebitive advantages snd enable us to
deliver on our over-riding purpose of creating
Places People Prefer

The scale of our operations has enabled us

1o attract and retain a team of experts who
know our markeis well and hring a range of
expertise across a mix of actvities - retail
leisure offices and residential We have access
10 a broad netwoerk of contacts spanning
occupiers planners gavernment and local
autherties community keaders strategic
partners and investors so we see the best
tnvestment opportunities and the most
attractive partnering and funding possibitities
enabling us to successfully execute attractive
and often highly complex deals

Our people strategy focuses on creating a team
who can deliver Places People Prefer Getting
closer to our customersis one of our key
strateqic prionities and having a workforce which
reflects the diversity of our customers hetps us
achieve this The policy throughout British Land
15 to employ the best candidales available in
every posiion regardless of sex race éthnic
ongin nationality colour age religion or
phitosophical belief sexual orientatron
marriage or civit partnership pregnancy
matarnity gender reassignment or drsability

We achieved a key milestane on our journey
towards creaing a truly inclusive environmeny

this year with our farmation of BL Pride our
tesbian gay bisexual transgender |LGBT]
and allies network and our Women s netwark
Both networks have been active in the year
and we are pleased that our Chief Executive
Chris Grigg was ranked 11th in the 2015
Leading 30 LGBT Alty Executives by
Outstanding and the Financial Times

We are also piloting a mentoring scheme
inbially forwomen offering help guidance
advice and support where it 15 needed We
currently have three ferale Directors on the
Board LLucinda Bell Chief Financial Officer
and Lynn Gladden and Laura Wade-Gery both
Non-Executive Directars As at 31 March 2016
48% of employees across Briush Land and
Broadgate kstates were femate including
three out of ten of cur Executive Commutiee

Nurturing talent and supporting development
15 animper tant element of our people strategy
We operate a range of ontine rescurces to help
employees develop their skills and work with
Cambnidge University torun a Leadershipin
Real Estate programme 24 of our stafl have
benefited from this programme since itwas
launchedin 2014 Other training partners

this year inctude Happy City who promote
happimess and wellbemg through skills
tratning and campdigns and measure the
impact of change on local wellbeing They ran
aworkshop for senior managers on embedding
wellbeing principles across our business Our
ongamng volunteering programme also offers
our staff personal development opportunities
particutarty through skills-based opportunitres
such as mentoring 84% of cur staff tock part
n volunteening activities in the year

Our focus on Places People Prefer starts with
our people Both Briush Land and Broadgate
Estates were recognised in the Sunday Times
Best Compantes to Work For 2016 each
achieving a One Star raung This reflects stafi
satislaction with aspects such as leadership

1 1

weltbeing giving something back personat
growth pay and benefits aswell as with their
rmanager and team

We believe supporting the workforce of
tomarrow 1s important for our business and
markets We are involved in initiatives which
miake young people of all backgrounds aware
of real estale careers including Pathways to
Property and Budding Brunels 15 000 people
benefited fram employmeni traming and
educalion iniiatives acr 0ss our assets during
the year We are also working towards 3% of
our supplier workforce being apprentices by
2070 Asdetailed in our Supply Chain Charter
we try to use local suppliers and we pariner
with occuprers and suppliers on tair warking
praciices including the Living Wage
Foundatian wage

@ Fo read more about our Expert People

go lo www britishland comy/blegs
and4o read mare atrout skills go to
www britishland com/skills

@ Repart of the Nomination Cernmittee
see pages 84 to 85

@ Board of Direclors see pages
661069
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OUR STRATEGY CONTINUED

Managing our
portfolio

From sourcing and investing in the Right
Places, to enhancing and enlivening our
assets, we are focused on allocating capital
efficiently to maximise returns

Right Places

Qur investment decisions are heavily influenced
by the long term trends we see driving our
commercial property markels so we can
position our selves well for the longer term

Our focus on Londen and the South East
reflects the populatien growth and increasing
urbanisation we are seeing in the capitat
alongside 1ts attraction as a leading global aity
More specificatly our investment in London in
parucutar has focused on those areas where
nfrastructure 1S improving driving regeneration
and growth lhisiswhere we see the strongest
returns over the longer term

Our portfolio 15 approx:mately eventy split
between Retail and Leisure and Gfices and
Residentiat but more and more we are
Iincreasing the rmix of tises on owr existing sites
as well as investing directly in mixed use assets
This reflects the fact that people s work and
personat lives imcreasingly overtap they expect
more of the places they work shop arwisit They
want to wot k in offices which have places to eat
shop and relax and retail destinabions with awide
letsure and service offering This understanding
underpins our focus on placemaking

Placemaking 15 about owning assets which
connect with the people who use them and
which are designed with their needs in mind
We are investing in our assets to enhance
the oifer to entiven them with events and

services and to provide a broader more
engaging experience This approach is
shaping our portfalic

Qur Oftices and Resrdential pertfolio 1s focused
on our three mixed use campuses in London
and also includes distinctive London properties
such as The Leadenhall Bullding alongside
smaller ctusters of properties Qut campuses
benetit from excetlent transport infrastructure
and iwo Broadgate and Paddington Central
will have their own Crossrail stations when
Crossrail opensin 2018 They all have great
potential Broadgate also benefits from its
proximity to Shoreditch and the ermner ging tech
hubs to the north and east of the City which
are increasing the diversity of the occuprer

mix Regent s Place and Paddingten Central
are on the fringes of the West End offering high
quality flexible and afor dable space Regents
Place has benefited from regeneration andwe
are now seeing this at Paddington We are
using our placemaking principtes to evolve and
grow our campuses with new developments
which reflect the changing ways people work
‘with more tlexsbte floor plates break-out areas
and outside space We are alsoadding retail
and leisure and investing in public realm
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Improvements so our campuses are vib ant
and atiractive places in which to work and

to spend lime outside of work In Residential
we have been highly selective about the places
we Investin Looking forward 1t will become o
moaore signiftcant part of our portiotio as part
of our mix-use offer particularly as we make
progress at Canada Water where we are
creating one of the largest mixed use
regeneration projects in London

In Retail where technology 1s changing the
way people shop Right Places 1s about focusing
on assets which are in tune with modern
consumer lifestyles where people can shop
gat and be entertamed The core portfolio
compnises regional and local multi-lel assets
where we are able to rnanage and tmprove

the broader enviranment We focus on assets
which are prime in their catchment and capiure
a broad range of consurner spend Gur larger
regional assets have a wide-ranging retail

and leasure offering attracting visttors from
abroad catchment Our smaller local assets
are convenient and acressible aligned 1o the
daily ife of local commurtes Our focus on
Customer Orientation ensures a consistent
approach to placemaking across these




forrmats alihough our actions are carefully
conswdered 10 improve and optirmse each
indiwvidually Across our portiolio we are adding
leisure extensions where we see demand for
cinemas and restaurants with smaller scale
impravements where appropnate such as more
cafes or improved car parking helpingto
deliver ous broader placemaking strategy of
creating Places People Prefer

@

Development is an important part of what we do
and 1s a key driver of returns It keeps our assets
modesn ensuring demand for themn endures
We have a significant pipeline of development
opportunities focused on our campuses and our
mult:-let retail assels We have built optonality
into our pipeline so we can progress
oppertunities when the ume 1s nght
@ For detail on awr developmunt pipeline

see tables on pages 194 to 195

f or detail on our development perfor mance
see pages 37 o 19

For detad on our portfolio performance see
pages Jato 4/

Across our portiolio we are conscious of the
impact our ptaces have on local communities
We ar e working to improve how tccat people
can intluence dewsions relating to our assels
so we deliver places they prefer to live and work
around as well as shops reslaurants cinemas
and public places where they choose to spend
time Relationstups with local governmeni and
community leaders are important to our
business We build trust by supporting thewr
endeavours and work with themn to understand
and meet local challenges and aspirations

We make It easy for tocal people to influence
decisions relating to our assets so we deliver
places they are pleased to lve and werk
around aswell as shops restaurants cinemas
and public spaces where they choose to spend
urme At Regent s Place the launch of a new
Community Fund is empowering our eccuplers
to support local projects and 1s sirengthening
community links

For mare information on communities
www britishtand com/fcommunity

Capital Efficiency

Our capital 1s broadly batanced between

our Retall and our Office assets Investment
decisions are made across sectors based

on the prospective returns of indwidual assets
We assess our capital allocation by sector,
geography and asset level based on our
estimates of future mter nal rates of retuin
This hetps to identify where gur greatest
potential lies and where our capital 1s best
allocated Over the last five years we have sold
£3 4 billion of non-core asset/matur e assels
and retnvested the proceeds in high quality
incame generating assets and developments

Development 1s anamportant part of our
business but it 1s also higher risk than our
wncorme producing assets due to the Ume delay
between commitment tc a project and fully
letting the completed buillding sowe manage
our exposure carefully Development is ltrited
ta 15% of the total por tfoko by value] with a
maximum of 10% to be developed specutatively
Ire without a pre-let or residential pre-salel

at any one time

We manage our mix of equity and debl financing
to achieve the right balance between enhancing
returns for shareholders and the risk of higher
leverage Ourprimary measure of leverage 1s
loan to vaiue (LTV] on a proportionaily
consolidated basis [which includes the Group s
share of jomni ventures and funds and excludes
non-conti otling terests in the Group s
subsidizries) We aim to manage our LTV
through the properiy cycle such that our
financial position would rema:n robust in the
event of a significant fall in property values This
means we will not Increase our leverage solety
an the basis of an impiovement in market yields

For further details on our acguisitions and
disposals see the table on page 186

We access a broad  ange of debt finance on
attractive tesms reflecting the scale of cur

£350m

raised through a 0% coupon
canvert ble bond in June 2015
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business combined with the quality of our
assets and rental income sirearmn We raise

debt from a var ety of sources across a spread
of maturities Lo ensure the Group and its joint
ventures and funds ai e appropriately financed
We also mamntain significant undrawn loan
facilities to provide flexibility and suppor tcurrent
and future requr ements of the business

We use strategic partnerships te leverage our
investments achieve benefits of scale and
spread rnsk Around one third of our owned
assets by value are 1n joint ventures including
Broadyate and Meadowhalt This approach
has gnabied us to undertake more ambitious
development projects including The
Leadenhall Building where we woiked with
Oxford Propet tres Within these structures
we typicatly provide asset management
developmen! corporate and finance services
for which we earn management and
performance {fees enhancing our overall
returns and strengthering our relabonships
with partnet s key customers and suppliers

We proaclively manage our assets to promate
their tong term sustanability Our resource
efficiency programime continues to improve
operational efficiency reduce occupler costs
and suppor t well-managed environments

We took a positive appr oach to the Government s
Energy Savings Opportumity Scheme, auditing
enet gy use and implementing additienal
efficiency epportunites We are also innovative
in our use of materials to kower costs and secure
supply and consider an site energy generation

at all ourdevelopmenis This year we retrofitted
photovollaic panels at St Stephens Hull as part
of our plans to Increase energy generation

and enhance revenues al our assets and we
continue our efforts to mimmse (lood risk

@ Financial 1eview see pages 49 to 53

Financial policies and principles see pages
541096

Details on our carbon reduction
programime see page 48
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PLACEMAKING, , *
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We are —

Placemakers
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Ptacemaking is how we create altractive
and engaging 1 eal estate which1s m lune with
modern bfestyles and are Places People Prefer

Actively managing our assets 1s a core part of
our husiness We put our custormers first and
mnvest in the skifls and resources which help us
understand them better This understanding
guides our investment actvities from investing
and developing the right assets to enhancing
and enlivening them with a range of amenities
evenisand activities Thes creates preference
far our properties helping to drive occupier
demand growthinrents and capital values

Connect

— We —
Design

— We —
Enhance

— We —
Enliven
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PLACEMAKING CONTINUED

We

Connec

aal )
Places which connect physically and digitally (R )

with the people who use them, including & & &

local communities

Connecting 1s about providing assets which
complemant people s lifestyles enabling them
to integrate their work and then leisure time

It means places which are easy (0 access w4 3

so we focus on assets with great transpoit é;' . bIl
Infrastructure and those with convenient of our assets are within close proximity
access points or parking faciliiies We often of a Cressrail station {fopening 2018}
invest to iImpr ove connections for pedestrians
and cyclists 4nd we build lecel relatienships
connecting with local communities to better
under stand their needs We also think about
how digitally enabled we are and how we

can use these capabilities to create a

closer commupity

Building our exposure to Crossrail
When Crossrail opensin 2018 it will transform
rail Lransport in London and the South East
increasing central Londen i ail capacity by 10%
and bringing an estrnaied 15 milbon mere people
towithin 45 menutes of central London Already
Crossrall 1s driving regener ation and economic
devetopment Around £4 billion of our assets

are located near Crosstall and two of our Masterplanning a

London campuses Broadgate and Patidinglon destination for London

will have thewr own Crossral stations Canada We have shared our wnial ideas for the Canada
Water our 46-acre scheme i South London Water Masterplan with the local community

1s very close to Canary Wharfand from 2018, These include a 3 5 acre park two new public
will be just minutes from the West £nd squares cycling and pedestrian friendly spaces

and dockside improvernents so people can enjoy
and interact with the water andwildlife We are
also proposing a pedestrianised open-aun high
street with natienal and independent retaiters
alongside new restaurants and cafes and a new
culture and entertainment hub at the heart of
the town centre Our plans are at an ¢atly stage
and will evolve but creatingavibrant and
engaging environiment will be our key focus
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S60m

shopper visits io Meadowhall
over 25 years

Reviving historic hinks

1 new developments

At Aldgate Place designed by Allies and
Morrisen we are reinstating an onginal
pedestrian sti eet ink which sits above an old
Victorian ser vice tunnet conrecting Aldgate and
Aldgate £ast stations This public thoroughfare
will be remvigorated with shops and cafes
bringing a new sense of community to the area

Bt

ANy 4
=~ Al

Celebrating local heritage
Eik Mit{ rn Oldham i1s one of several assets

heritage and connect with lacal communmities
Professional sculptor Emma Hunter werked

nspired by tocal peaple s stories feature on a
bobbins Bronze footprints are set into paving

mill workers wenl barefoot (o avord slipping
on the oily {loor

@ To read more case studies go to
www britishland com/placemaking

where we are using public ari to celebrate local
with local people 1a create artwor ks llustrating
Elk Mill s cotton-spinning heritage and poems
trio of sculptures in the style of spinning cotton

stones around the Park recalling a ime when

Engaging with local communities
Qur fourth annual Community Day brought
together 200 British Land votunteers as well as
520 local jobseekers schoolchildren siudents
elderly residents and people with learning
disabilities across 20 community partnerships
Our partners commented on the cammitment
of those involved reflecting how the event helps
us strengthen local relationships around our
London asseis For our volunteerssiis a great
team building opportunity which enables them
to mleract with people of different ages and
backgrounds as well as learning new skitls

REP

>

IE
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PLACEMAKING CONTINUED

= We
L .g
Buildings and environments which offer
the highest quality of design in both form

and function with engaging architecture
and a fully integrated public realm

We took beyond individisal buitdings to think
about the spaces around them We focus on
assets where we are able 1o controt the broader
environment and can therefore under take
broader and bolder design We also pioneer
new building technologies and the most
sustainable practices

Making our developments distinctive
Yalding House our most recently completed
office development in the West End was home
10 Radio 1 untl 2012 Our refurbishment retained
mech of the originat character of the building
the reception features an adjoining meeting

and wating room complate with turntable

and extenswve record collection We believe

the disbinctive natur e of the butlding will appeal
ta creative and technology focused sectars
which have been a key area of growth acr oss

the capital in recent years

Great design 1s core to creating .
Places People Prefer To demonstrate [ P aa 3 _
our comrmitment La Innavakion in : >4 0 0 s

design Briiish Land 15 proud to / 1

M

sponsorthe London Design Festival

T
e
A,

i- :/:_;ggnn 3‘lmsqft

’-*@' n|oal; ofdevelopmentson track to achieve

13
T

]

BREEAM Excellent for offices retail
[ - T oI _. andleisure
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Improving the public realm

at Paddington Central

We know from our recent survey of 1 000

ofiice workers across the UK that outdoor
areas and gardens are a key pari of the ideal
office We ve recently embarked on our second
phase of upgrades at Paddmngton Central
which will transforrm the campus for the peaple
who woerk and live there by creating a greener
more pedestrian iriendly environment Our
plans iclude a Woodland Garden an outdoor
Games Room providing activilies where people
can socialise a Librarywher e people can relax
and a Kitchen Garden wath communal seating
n the summer months All enhancements are
being carefully phased and managed te
minimise disruption to retatiers residents
bullding occupants and visiiors

Drawing mspiration

from local heritage

At Clarges Mayfair we are creating a new

and elegant landmark It 1s entirely rooted

in the history of the surrounding area

taking 1nspiranon from lecal heritage and
craftsmanship This is reflected in the fluted
design of the columns which are made from
Portland stone the delicate alurnintum bronze
balustrades that are inspired by the branches
of the plane trees liming Green Park and the
bread lace cotlars that were {ashionable in
16th century Mayfair
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2.5m

number of visitors 10
Broadgate Circle smee
its re-design in 2015

Designing for a low carbon future
At St Stephen s in Hull we have instalied 1 108
photovoltaic panels generating encugh clean
powes 10 fulhil a third of all electricity demand
in the commeon areas 1he panets build on the
Centre s award-winning efficiency programme
which has r educed landlord energy by 40%
since 2010 saving occuprers £383 100 and
cutting carbon emisswons by 2 470 tonnes
Other innovations include a rainwater
harvesting systemwhich provides over

one million litres of water each year and

a food-to-water treatment plant which
recycles 15 tonnes of food waste annually

¢13m

of energy savings for us and our
occupiers through efficiency
reductiens over the past {our years

Delivering imnovative design

At Glasgow Fort we are building a multi-storey
car park with four restavrants an its ground
floor The building will be naturatly ventilated
with a sustainable wooden slated rear lagade
A corten steet facade with a punctured tree
design will cover the front of the building and
a green living canopy wilt overhang the four
restaurant unds The new car park 1s setin

a wild forest thered bufferto the surface

car park incorporating natural play elements
for young children

To read more case studies go to
www britishland com/placemaking
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PLACEMAKING CONTINUED

— We —
Enhance

Quality occuplers alongside a broad food, beverage
and leisure offering, reflecting the growing expectations
of our occupters and customers

We enhance out assels bymproving the
breadth depth and mix of occupiers and the
physical space at our properties Relatvely
sunple improvements such as cafes and
attractive places o rest or have lunch outside
the office or while you re shopping can make
a g difference to the places people work

aor shop

Incorporating open spaces
At Aldgate Place over 50% of the foatprintis
dedicated to new public realm spaces including
two landscaped gardens pedestrian streets

66(y well thought-out play spaces and water features

(§] The development inciudes a four-star hotel

of people who used Clck & cafes restaurants and shops The landscaping

Collect across our portiolio designed by Townshend Landscape Archutects

went an to spend at our assels refects the contemporary style of the City but .
matntans the industriat and histos ical fegacy “ai i, T

Investing 1n assets of the East End

with great potential

New Mersey Speke 1s the third largest
shopping par kin the UK with annual footfall of
89 million and a third of vistlors using click and
catlect Since the year end we have inci eased
our holding in New Mersey Speke to just over
66% We have approval for an 11-screen cinema
lwhich 1s pre-let] and six new restaurants
totalling 29 000 sq ft aswell as ptansfora
camprehensve i efur bishment ntrogucing
double height glazed shop frents and a new

customer services po 330,000 Sq ft

of new space planned at Meadowhall s proposed
new Leisure Hall
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Enhancing the environment

for our own team

Our focus on enhancing eur assets inctudes our
own head office at York House and Broadgate
Estates office at Paddington Central both of
which we recently refurbished with Broadgale

Estates achieving the world s first BREEAM
Qutstanding Fi-Out Surveys show that people % 99(y
feel happier healthuer and more produclive in /@E\ o

the new space which has more natural light of staif éind our newly

betier views and greenery as well as improved refurbished offices an

space planming to encourage active living and enjcyable place to work
f P g 9 a up from 69%

social interaction This sels the tone to promaote

welibemng and productivity across our portiolio

LlSteﬂll'lg to our customers

The data we collect from across our retait
portfolio gives us a clear wdea of what matier s
to our customers Inresponse (o customer
feedhack, we have been upgrading assets

in the portfolio to improve shopper satisfaction
Enhancements include addiional foed and
heverage options better car parking and
improved public realm such as new customer
walkways cycle routes seaung and atiractive
tandscaping as well as chitdren s play areas
and tailet {faciliies All lghthutbs installed are
energy efiicient taps and toillets are designed
to use as little water as possible and timber
comes from guar anteed sustainable sources

t T FEHHER M
o s = s

i

Leveraging Broadgate Estates

We have brought the management of our

retail assets in-house through our subsidary
Broadgate Estates a leading properiy
managernent company We are working o
enhance the offer for customers standardising
operational excellence and rolling out
value-added services including technology and
consumer services Broadgale Estates already
delivers hest in class service across our office
assets and for third parties including many
leading commercial and retail [andlords

We have extended its remit 1o cover retatt

as we work together to ensure all our assets
are recogmsably Places People Prefer

To read more case studies go to
www britishiand com/placemaking
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PLACEMAKING CONTINUED

— We —
Enliven

Events and activities and best in class services
bring life and a real sense of community to
our buildings

We enliven our properties by holding events
and activities which benefit our custometrs
and the local cormmurities which surreund
them We atso prowide best in class services
which rmprove the overall experience tor
our customers

Encouraging health and wellbeing
Last summer we celebrated health and
wellbeing week at Paddington Central to
encourage campus residents wor kers and
visilors to achieve 3 healthy work/lde halance
The schedute featured iree heatth-themed
pop-ups treatments evenis classesand
give-aways aimed o relax energise or activate
the mind We are now piloting wellbeing ang

pi oductivity snnovations with our occuplers
here who see promoting wellbemng as an
important part of then strategy to atlract

and retam the best tatent

003 go |
@%@Mﬁ@@ |

Promoting public art

Across our portfolio we have used public art
to bring our assets to life InJanuary this year
we sponsored aninstallatron catled Platonic
Spin by Nathaniet Rackowe at Regent s Place
aspartof Lumiere London a free outdoor light
festival Over four evenings in January the aity
was transformed with an extraordinary array
of installabons 1urning the capitat into a
winter playground

More than

800

pecple World Hast custamer
service lramned at our places
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Celebrating the summer
Last summer our recently developed Old Market

Erolving traditional retail space shopping destination in Hereford [aunched

At Meadowhall we are planming a £300 milhion Herefest aunique month-long summer
Leisure Hall torespond to our custamers programme of music street theatre arts and
changing biestyles where shopping is crafts and food and drink An iconic Routernaster
mcreasingly seen as a leisure activity bus was parked at the centre and inside wisitors
Comgprising 330 800 sq it of space the enjoyed warkshops makeovers cake sampling
proposed Leisure Hall will add 2 range sessions and cookery demonstrations

of dining and entertainment experiences

not currently avallable at the centre More than
Housed under an elegant glazed roof the
Lewsur e Hall will integrate with the existing 600
centre to create a new mult-tevetled
peaple al pur assels are

landscaped matt with mgh guality inernat
and external spaces for promotionat and
community uses

DR W s ;7
RS P2 S

Dementia Friengly irained

Attracting all ages to our assets
As part of our comprehensive programme

of assetupgrades we have designed and built
play areas for our younger visitars at Tollgate
2000 Colchester Wheatley Doncaster Orbital
Swindon and Etk Mill Otdham All the play
areas are heritage-themed and reflect
{eedback from shoppers and local heritage
experts At Swinden a Spithre art sculpture
and play area reference local industrial tinks
lo the manufacture of the Supermartne Spitfire
and designs ak Oldham reflect the old cotton
roult which formerty occupied the site with old
collon cans adapted to form play equipment
and seating areas

5.5m sq ft

of net space at Canada Water
which we plan ta develop

To read more case studies go to
www britishtand com/placemaking
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW

We are focusing the business around
long term trends and continue to see
the benefits of recent investment

Overview

2015/16 was another st ong peniod for the

UK property market overall despite the more
chatlenging macra environment London
continuved to gutperform the rest of the UK
Performance was driven by rental growth

as opposed o the yteld compression seen in
recent years with prime yields supparted by
rents wiuch continued to rise 1n bath the West
End and the City The occupational mar ket
overall rermarns favourable although more
recently there is evidence that some large
occupiei s are delaying decisions to take space
until after the upcerming EU referendurn
Inretait demand remains for prime assets
but wider uncertainty has impacted investment
market volumes sn recent months The retal
occupaztional market strengthened overall
reflecting improving consumer confidence
and rising reat wages However since the turn
of the year there have been some signs that
consumer confidence and spending have
started to weaken

Our portfolio performed well overall
benefiting from our strategy to increase our
focus on London and balance our portfolio
between Offices and Retail Landon and the

£14.6bn

UK portictio valuation

11.3%

Total property return

5.3%

ERY grawih

6.8%

Capuial return

6.8%

Lettingsfrenewals versus ERY

98.8%

South East now represenis 65% of the portfolio Occupancy rate
compared to 56% six years ago The portfolio
1s also brpadly balanced between Qifices
{49% on a pro-forma basis) and Retail This
compares with six years ago when Offices
accounted for 33% of the portiolic Our Dffices
and Retail businesses are increasingly
complementary reflecting our facus on
campuses in Offices and mulhi-let centres
Portfolio Performuance
Yaluation uplift
Investment Totat

Valuation nortiplie  Developments portfolio
Year endad 31 March 2014 £m % % %
Retad & Leisure 7341 24 32 24
Oifices & Residential 7024 117 127 18
Canada Water 283 - 17 17
Total 14,648 &4 24 &7

' Dna proportionately consolidated basis
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in Retait which are becoming mot e mixed

use Inaddiion the stable ncome generated
by the Retail business has allowed us to invesl
in more cychcal Office development projects

Qur portfolio generated a total property

return of 17 3% compnsing a capital return

of 6 8% and an income return of 4 2% We
outperformed IPD benchmarks by 50 bps on

a capital returns basis o 200 bps per annum
on a Syearview continuing a consistent trend
of outpe: formance Totat portiohe vatuation
was up 6 7% te £14 6 bithon This performance
includes the smpaci of a 1% increase in stamp
duty for commet cial property announced by
the Chancellor in March Excluding the stamp
duty increase the underlying perifolio valuation
was up 7 7% The standing nvestrment por tfolio
was up 6 4% and accounted for c90% of the
total uptift the contribution from developmeats
was lower as the completion of 5 Broadgate in
July 2015 brought our major 2010 development
programme to 8 close

Per farmance was driven by ERV giowth
across the business of 5 3% outperforming
the market by 130 bps with a far lower
cantribution frem yield compression wiich
was 17 bps compared to 48 bps 1n 2014/15
Oversll our actions accounted for around 60%
of performance in both the Retail and Offices
por tfolios Qffices and Residential delivered a
valuation uplift of 11 8% driven hy ERV growth
of % 6% and our Retail and Letsure portfolio
grew by 72 4% also benefting from 2 4% of ERY
growth Wilhin our Retad & Leisure portfolio
our multi-let assels were up 2 8% with ERY
growth of 3 4%

We ar e pleased with the shape of our portfolio
with our weightings in Retail and Offices
broadly batanced in the past the income
generated from the Retasl side of the por tfolio
allowed us to build out out sigrificant 2010
developmeni programme while mamntaining
aur dwidend and going forward as technology
transforms how we live and work we see that
the breadth of our porifolio wall provide a
campetitive advantage




Investment Activity

The gross value of our investment activity
since 1 Apiil 2015 as measured by our share
of acquisiions disposals capital spend on
developments and other capital projecis was
£1 3 billion On a net basis our activity was
broadly balanced We maintained our capita
discipline taking advantage of suppartive
markets to sell mature or non-core assets
and reinvesting in our existing business and
in selected acquisitions principally adjacent
to existing agsets

The most significant acquisition was

One Shelden Square Paddington Central
acquired for £210 millien in Aprit last year
This brought our total cwnership at the campus
to 804 000 sq [t including 4 Kingdom Street
which 1s under construction with the potential
to develop a further 240 000 sq ft at 5 Kingdom
Street We also acquired an additional £95
million mterest {gross asset value] in the
Hercules Unit Trust ["HUT") portfolio bringing
our gross investment over the last two years
to £492 miltion at an effective netiniial yreld

of 6 0% Our holding now stands at 75%

tn line with our strategy we continued to
reshape the Retad portfolio with £420 mullion
of matut ¢ or non-core asset disposals in the
period Key transactions included the sale

of Rotherham Parkgate and Birstall for

£120 rmultion ard €31 million respectively
{both our share] We also sold nine standalone
foadstores totalling £322 million reducing our
total superstore holding (o £0 8 billion from
£1 3 bilkan two years age We no longer have
any exposure to the European market since

9.0 years

Lease lengthto first break

£1.3bn

Gross envestment activity

£304m

Capitatinvestment

£332m

Acquisitions

¢618m

Oispasais

selling the remaiming £43 mutlion of our
European asseis i line with our exit strategy

In Offices we sold 39 Victoria Street in July

tast year for £13% million at an attractive yietd
of less than 4% crystallising an attractive

IRR of over 20% We also sold £59 nullion

lour share) of restdential properties on average
3% ahead of valuation and continued to achieve
completrons gn exchanged units Two thirds

by value [our sharef were at The Hempel
Collection Inline with our strategy we will

Retail Difices Residential Totak
From | April 2015 £m £m £m Em
Development Spend 17 140 30 187
Capital Spend 99 i 2 120
Purchases 100 232 - 332
Sales [420) 139 {591 [618)
Net Investment (204) 252 127} 21
Gross Investment 436 530 21 1,257

On a praportionately consolidated basis
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market no further units at Clarges Mayfaic until
practical camplettonin 2017 This follows our
successiul pre-sales campaign i September
2014 where we pre-sold just over 50% by value

Developmentt

We completed 908 D00 sq ft of developrnents
in the period with 5 Broadgate accounting for
710 000 sq ft The completion of 5 Broadgate
marked the conclusion of the 2 7 million sg £t
development programme started in 2010
which generated prohits of £1 1 billign and an
IRR of over 3G% We also completed Yalding
House a29 000 sq ft office-led refurbishment
in the heart of Fitzrovia as well as 169 000 sq I
of Retall developments including a retail
extension at Glasgow Fortand a leisure
extension at Whiteley

Our under construction pregramme covers
629 000 sq ft representing a speculative capal
commiment of £530 milken This principally
includes 192 000 sq ft at eur super prime

r esidential-led devetopment Clarges Maylfan
where we have already pre-sold over 50% of
the residential units by value and 147 000 sq ft
of office space at 4 Kingdem Street on our
Paddington Central campus

We are making good progress with our near
lerm development pipeline which increased
fram 1 5 milkton sq ftin March last year to

2 0 mitlion sq tt We bave built optionality into
our pipeling and are progressing the projects
sowe can be ready to commit when the time
1s right

The three largest schemes in the near

term pipeline reflect oflice lease expines
over the next 2 years at Broadgate and
Regent s Place where we expeci to deliver
a significant Increase n the overall floor space
on1edevelopment At 100 Liver pool Street
we recently received a resolution to grant
planntng consent for a revised 520 000 sq ft
redevelopment incorporating a larger retail
companent and at 1 Finsbury Avenue

we recewved consent on a 303 000 sq ft
redevelopment At 1 Triton Square on our
Regent s Place campus we are progressing
the design for a substantial returbishment
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Our planming applicavon for 340 800 sq ft of
mixed use space at Blossom Street Shoreditch
was also granted consent having been called
n by the Mayor of London The High Court has
since rejected a Judicial Review of the Mayor s
decision to take over the appbication butits
unthikety that we will start onsite in 2014 At

5 Kingdom Streei on our Paddington Central
campus we expect to subrnit & revised
planmeng application for a larger scheme

by the end of the year

in Retail we will continue to enhance our offer
with a strong near term pipeline of leisure
exiensiens including 102 000 sq ft at Drake
Cisrcus Pltymouth and 66 000 sq ft at New
Mersey Speke We also recewed planning
consenl at Ealing Broadway for the converswon
of an office block to 34 000 sq ft of private rented
residential apartments We also addect Crawley
Homewares Park to the near term pipeline
where we obtained planning consent to
redevelop the existing Homebase into a 52 000
sq ft homewares park comprising 5 units

L ooking ahead to our medium term mipeline
in Retail we submitted a planning application
for the £262 rmullion [our share £131 milion]
mixed use redevetopment of Eden Waik
Kingston The 562 000 sq ft development

will include public space leisure retail and
residential We are also in public consultation
for a 330 000 sq ft leisure scheme at
Meadowhall in Qffices we subrmutied a
planning application for the redevelopment of
2-3 Fmsbury Avenue which seeks to Increase
the area from 189 000 sq ft 10 550 000 sq {t

Comnutted Developments & Pipeline

The most sigmificant project in the medium term
pipeline 15 at Carada Water At the beginming of
February 2016 we were delighted to welcome
Reger Madelin to the team to head up this
exciting 44-acre redevelopment opportunity

As Chief Executive/Joint Chief Execubve of
Argent Roger was directly responsible for
teading a number of significant developments
and from 2000 led the teatn on the 67-acre

King s Cross development Canada Wateris

one of the largestiegeneration projects ininner
London it has good transport infrasiructure
with access to the City West End and Canary
Whar fwvia the Jubitee lme but also to emerging
al eas around Shoreditch os well as South West
London via the London Overground

Planmng policies have now been adopted
within the London Borough of Southwark and
the Greater Lordon Authority which encourage
and ar e supportive of a srgnificant quantum of
mixed development In February 2016 public
consultation commenced regarding the current
masterplan proposals Over the coming
months British Land and Southwar k Counat
wiil review the1esponses received from the
local commurity

Studies to assess how the proposed quantum
and mux of development might best be
configured and delivered over e are

curi enliy eing under taken alangside detaled
financral modetting Discussions with a numbe:
of prospective occupters from the retal
leisure workspace and the futl residentiat
spectrum are assisting us 1n this process

The implications of the Government s proposed

Housing Bill and of any emerqing policies
from the new London Mayar will be assessed
and incorporated whet e necessary

We anticipate a programme and resource

| schedule to ptepare evaluate and consider a

planning submisston will have been produced
and agreed with Scuthwark Counci by sumrmer
216 with the ambitton to submut an outline
planning apptication in 2017 As we work towards
a planning submisston we will continue to collect
rents of £8 mullion per annum from the shopping
centre and leisure park at Surrey Quays

Cuning the year we continyed to support
diversity and training iniliatives that make young
peaple of all backyrounds aware of real estate
careers mncluding Pathways to Property and
Budding Brunels as wetl as apprenticeships
and local employment programmes such

as Broadgaie Connect Together with oist
suppliers we supported 120 apprenticeshups
atour places in the year Inaddition a pilot
study on four developments reveated that 60%
of spend went wathin 25 mites and over 50%
went 1o small and medium sized enterprises
fuelling regtonal econemies around our assets

Meore details on the portfolio property
performance mdvidual developments

and assets acquired dunng the year can

be found in the Retail & I_eisure and Offices
& Residential revtews on pages 40 to 47
and Iin the detaited supplernentary lables
on pages 184 to195

British Land share
Current Costto Pre-let Residantial Pre-sold
Sqft value complete ERV ERV end value residenhial
At 31 March 2014 000 £m £m Em £m £m £m
Completed in Period 908 553 13 237 215 - -
Under Construction 529 405 204 161 02 657 358
Near term Pipeline 2,019 1,450
Meditm term Pipeline 7175

' Ona propartionately consohidated basis lexcept area which 15 shown at 100%)

s
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Our development pipeline

On site and committed

Near term

4 Kingdom Street

147,000 sq ft

Completing 2017

Oifice development at Paddingten Central an 11 acre
mixed vse campus :n Londan s West End

Clarges Mayfair

192,000 sq ft

Completing 2017

Mixed use davelopment in Maylar comprising 34 hgh
end apartments together with retad and office space

Aldgate Place, Phase 1

221,000 sqft

Completing 2014
A residential development

5 Kingdom Street

240,000 sq f:

Onstte 2017
Oifice development at Paddington Central

Blossom Street, Shoreditch

340,000 sq it

On site 2017

Character offices in a regeneration area wdeally
suited to the needs of small and medwum sized
oceupiers

100 Liverpool Street

320,000 sq fc

Onsue 2017

Office refurbshmend at Broadgate ingreasing capacity
and smproving local connections and pubhic spaces

1 Finsbury Avenue

303,000 sq fe

Qnsite 2017

Difice refurtishment & Broadgate increasing capacity
and improving locat connections and publit $paces

Plymouth Leisure

102,000 « i

Onsite 2016
Leisure extension including a cinema

Speke Leisure

66,000 sq ft

Onsite 2016
Lessure extension including a cinema
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RETAIL AND LEISURE REVIEW

Our Retail strategy 1is focused

on creating

outstanding

places

for modern consumer lifestyles

Key highlights of the year

¢4.3bn

Porttotio valuation [British Land sharel

1.8%

Total property return

2.4%

ERV growth

2.5%

Capuital return

8.0%

Lettings/renewals versus ERV

99 .09

QOccupancy rate

9.8 years

Lease length te first break

40
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Overview

The way people shop and spentt ther leisure
time continues o evolve with technology lying
at the heart of this It has become increasingly
clear that white online sales conlinue to grow
physical space remaimns at the hear t of how
people shop But today successful destinations
need to be about more than just shapping -
they are more muxed use often with food drink
and leisure and are more embedded in the
comrmunities wher e they are located Our
strategy in Retailis to focus on creating
outstanding places for madern consumer
lifestyles places for people to shop eal

and te enter tained

We have been progressively reducing our
exposure to smaller and single-let assets

and focusing the business around our larger
mulii-let assets where we can control the
environment in which we operate and use ocur
placemaking expertise to drive value Asa
result of these actions our mulii-let portfolio
now accounts for over 70% of our Retail
business up from 60% six years ago We now
manage and repor t our multi-let portfolio along
regtonal and local lines reflecting how we see
consumers spend their time and maney The
data we collect telis us that regionat and lecal
assets fullil different consumer needs but
wall-located and well-configured assels can
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be equally successful in today s omni-channel
world Regienal assets have a wide retail and
teisure offer a bigger catchment and longer
dwell time Local assets are typically simaller
inscale highly corventent and accessible and
often with more local community amensties
and activities

Over the year the retail occupational market
strenglhened reflecting nsing employment

and reat wages atongside falling ol prices
Occupancy rates improved as retail and leisure
operators continued to expand trial new formats
and focus on taking space In the most attiactive
tocetions Results have been positive overall
especially for food and beverage operators and
retailers with mature omni-channel strategies
This has created occupier tension driving rens
at those assets offering high levels of footfall
and sales wy high quality environments Since
the turn of the year however consumer
confidence has fallen and retail sales have
dipped with some admerusts ations in fashian
likely reflecting concer ns about the smpending
EU referendum and wider global ecenomic

and poliical uncertainty

The calendar year 2015 was also a good

year for the retail investment market and a
recar d breaking year for shopping parks with
£2 & bntion of deals transacted Since the turn
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of the year there has been a lack of benchmark
retail transactions and a slowdown in actiity
with the majority of deals carred over from
2075 Demand remamns strong for prime
mutit-tet retall assels andisincreasingly
diverse butthere)s a imited amount of stock
on the marketl Investors have become more
discerning wiih increased polarisation between
prime and secondary assels and demand far
secondary assets showng signs of softening

Portfolio Performance

Qur Retant & Lewsure portfolio valustion was up
2 4% over the yeat 10 £7 3 billon inctuding the
impact of the recent 1% increase in stamp duly
for commercial property Excluding the effects
of the stamp duty change valuation uplift was
broadiy the same 1n each half at around 1 8%,
driven by our actrons which contnibuted 60%

of the uplift The porifolio outperformed the
mar ket by 20 bps on a capital returns basis
and 30 bps on a totat returns basis

ERV across the portiotio was up 2 4%
{compared to 1 4% for the market as wholel
with growthin the second half of the year
hugher at 1 5% compared with 0 9% in the first
half ERY growth was sironger i the mulu-let
portfolio at 3 4% comparedto3 0% n 2014115
with the accelerating ERV trend broadiy

T3t

balanced across both regianal and tocal
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Retal letangs and renewals
by sector (by rent)
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®Fashion & Footwear

B Food & Lewsure

[ Health & Beauty

W General Retad

by

u Cther

MElectrical & Motle Phone

.
oA
B

32%
18%
16%
13%

%

subsectors teading to 1PD outperformance
of 210 bps demonstrating the quality of our
portfolio The Retall poi tfolio continued to
benebht from yietd movement over the year
with 13 bps of yietd compression compared
to £7 bpsn the prior year The average NLY
now stands at 5 0%

Asset Management

Our focus on the sirongest best located
schemes and our consistent approach to
deliver the most appropriate offer and standard
of service continued to drive good demand for
our space so occupancy acrass the portfolio
rematned fugh a1 99% Footfallwasup 3 0%
outperforming the market by 440 bps and our
retailers performed well with thetr in-store
salesup 2 4% outperforming the market by
200 bps

We provide a flexible and atfordable proposiion
for occuplers with an average rent to sales
ratio [excluding internet sales] of 10% We
signed 903 000 sq 1 of letuings/renewals on
attractive terms with investmenit lettings and
renewals on average 8 0% ahead of ERV We
saw good demand for units of all sizes including
larger units with aver 450 000 sq ft of lettings/
renewals on floor areas over 10 000 sq ft Using
our detaled consumner data we continued Lo
nprove the occuprer mix al our local and
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RETAIL AND LEISURE REVIEW CONTINUED

19

We continue to enjoy strong relationships
with our major occupiers, and work
closely with them to deliver the space

they want.”

regional asseis adding gquality brands and
broadening our leisure offenng to keep pace
with consumer needs We signed 35 new food
and beverage occuplers and 2 cinemas adding
174 000 sq ft of food beverage and leisure
space to our Retatt eperations thi ough tettings
and extensions We setiled 1 6 mullion sq ft of
rent reviews at 3 8% ahead of previous passing
rent and only 6% of cccupiers decided to teave
on expiry whach gives further confidence that
we are creating the right kind of space for
occupiers We saw like-far-lke net rental
income growth across the Retail porticho

of ¥ 4%

We continue to enjoy strong relationships

with our major cccupters and work closely
with them to deliver the space they wanl

The investments we are makmg 1o improve

our assets continued to attract new brands
and popular restaurant providers to our
regional and local assets Pnimark recently
opened 68 900 sq ft of space at Broughton
Chester and Fort Kinnaird Edinburgh and both
locations are trading well At Glasgow Fortwe
attracted 7 new occupier s out of town including
Pandora Kiko Milano GBK and Faot Asylum
This has improved the quality and range of
occuplers availlahle to consumers and driven
rentail growih

In order to attract such strong occupters to

our rnult-let assets we continued o Invest
across the portfotio 1o deliver the highest
quality retail environments Over the course

of the year we spent £80 million on asset
management initialives and the positive impact
of this s reflected both in our valuation and n
our gperational metrics Actwvity included the
£14 miltion refurbishment of Ealing Broadway
wihich completed in November 2015 yieiding
positve resulls including a 5% upliftin retailer
sales over the year along with several new
tenants Wasabi EAT and Srmiggle Thes resulted
in 7 5% ERV growth at Ealing Broadway in the
second half of the year At Teesside Stockton
our engoing refurtishment has led 1o new

out of town entrants inctuding Paperchase
taking space We cornpleted a programme

of upgrades on five assets which included
improved new cusiomer watkways parent

903,000 sq ft

of retasl and fetsure lettings and renewals
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and chitd parking provision custorner service
centres high quality landscaping community
artworks celebrating local heritage and
children s play areas We are already seeing
the posiuve impact of these works through
improved customer satisfaction an increase
nietaller sales and ERV growth

In ine with our a:m 1o provide a consistent

high level of service for our occupiers and
consumers we have taken the property
ranagement of our retait assets in-house

te Broadgate Estates ourwhelly owned
subsidiary and one of the UK s leading property
managemenl comparnies In the year we rotled
out WorldHost customer service training to
more than 800 pecple at our places and
Dementia Friendly training (o over 600 peaple
making sure that from cleaning and security o
mantenance and management our teams have
the understanding and skilis to welcorne and
support visitors We are delighted by the postive
feedback from visiters and we are recognising
tearm member s who ar e going aboave and
heyond through our Awards for Lxcellence

Meadowhall had a strong year Sales at the
centre were 2 2% ahead with retallers on

the refurbished premium malt sigmificantly
outper forming We are on site with a £60 nutlion
internal refurbishment ahead of which we have
already signed some tigh quality new brands
mcluding Diesel Joules Kiko Milana Jack Wills
and lapas Revolutien Overall long term deals
at Meadowhall were signed at an average of

6 3% ahead of ERV and lke-for-hike income was
up 5 7% over the year Looking forward we aie
n public consultatron for a 330 000 sq ft leisure
scheme which will cement Meadowhall s
position as ameng the best retaill and leisuie
destinations in the UK

We commussioned a review by PwC which
identified Meadowhalt s social and econonmic
contiibutien to the Sheffield City Region and
the wider UK for the first tme with 1pin
every £1 and one job in every 1004n the region
linking back to Meadowhall as well as 660
apprenuceships over five years The Centre
has also contiibuted £7 3 billion gross vatue
added tathe UK ecanomy over 25 years and




£303 mitlion tax over five years Environmental
achievements include 42% tess energy use
over $ix years and 17 000 tonnes of waste
recycled over ten years Looking forward
around half the matertals and labour for our
Meadowhall refurhishment are heing sourced
from companies within the Sheflield Ciy
Region bringing a further £25 snillton to

the regional economy

Imestinent Activity

Gross mvestment actmty aver the year was
£636 mullion with total sates of £420 rmillion
[BL share} and total acquesitions of E10G million
(BL sharel

We continued to reshape the portfolio
disposing £420 million of mature or non-core
assets Key transactions included the sate of
HUT assets in Rotherham Parkgate and Birstall
for £120 million and £31 rmilbion respectively
{both our share] We also dispased of nine
standalone foodstores totaling £122 million
This included the C60 million sale of Tesco
Bursleden ata 5 0% netinitial yeeld and the
£32 mullion sale of Sainsbury s Islington at
anetinial yetd of 3 96% This has reduced

ouwr total superstore holding to £0 8 billion from
£1 3 billson two years ago We have a further
£68 million of superstores under offer at a NiY
of 4 2% whichwill further reduce our holding
ta £0 7 billion

We acquired an addiional £95 milkion interest in
the HUT portfolio of shopping parks increasing
our owner ship from 6% 2% to 75 3% overthe
year On average these unitswere acquired

at NAV representing an effective net intial

yield of 6 3% [based on actual acquisition costst
With the disposals made in the year we have
rebalanced the HUT portfolio and in February
HUT unitholders resclved to replace Schioders
with Crestbridge as manager

We completed 169 000 sq 1t of developments
over the year The 57000 sq ft leisure extension
at Whiteley apened in November 2015 and has
traded well with sales growth of 8 2% in the
second halt The 112 060 g ft Marks and
Spencer anchored retail extenstan at Glasgow
Forl opened at the start of the year providing

a strong add:ionai anchor to the scheme with
footfalt sicreasing by 6 7% The new 12 000 sq it
leisure quarter and 600 space mutti-storey car
park are under construction at Glasgow Fort
and will coraplete later in the year the new
space 1s already exchanged or under offer

at record level rents and includes new out

of town occupters Thatkhun and GBK

Qur 254 000 near term development pipeline
includes 168 000 sq fi of tessure extensions and
B6 000 sqg ft of redevelopment At Drake Circus
Ptymouth where we have permission fora

102 000 sq ft teisure scheme including space
for 14 restaurants adjacent to the asset we

£636m

Gross investment act ity

169,000 sq ft

of retail and leisure de velopments completed
over the year

expect to take vacant possession of the bus
station site later this year We have already
pre-let space te Cineworld for & 12 s¢reen
cinema as well as Byron Wagamama and Zizzi
At New Mersey Speke we receved consent
for a 66 D00 sq ft lersure extension with an

11 screen cinemna also pre-let to Cineworld
and sixrestaurants Already we have exchanged
or areunder offer on six restaurant umts and
in the main part of the scheme Next has
renewad its lease and wilt extend its trading
space to 48 000 sq ft

We have also recewed planning consent

at Ealing Broadway for the conversion of an
office block to 34 000 sq fi of private ented
residential apartments This marks the next
stage in our development plan for this asset
and follows a successtul £14 millicn
refurbishment of the centre completed in
MNavember 2015 Planning permission has
also been granted for the redevelopment of a
Homebase at Crawley into a new 52 000 sq f1
hamewares park

Looking fur ther ahead to the madiim term
during the year we submitted a planning
application for & £2462 mallon four share

£131 milion] mixed use redevelopment of
EdenWalk Kmgston tomnclude 562 008 sq ft
public space leisure retarl and residential

Al Meadowhatl public consultation has started
on our 330 000 sq ft lessure extenston Across
our nea: and medium term pipebine we are
on track to achieve BREEAM Excetlent o1 Very
Good ratings on 444 000 sq ft of retail and
leisure space reftecting strang performance
cnwellbeing efficiency ecology and othes
sustainabitity criteria
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OFFICES AND RESIDENTIAL REVIEW

We have used our placemaking skills
to drive further improvement at our
London office assets, delivering value

Jor shareholders

Key highlights of the ycar

£4.0bn

Partiolio valuatian [British Land share)

15.49%

Total property return

9.6%

ERV growth

12.0%

Capiiat return

5.6%

Lettings/renewals versus ERV

98.6%

Occupancy rate

4.9 years

Lease lengthto first break

4
T |
- .
i
F l
Orverview

London again delivered good absolute

and relative perforinance over the year
continuing to benefit from trends such as
strong 1 elative economic growth population
growth globahisation of tabour and capital
and infrastructure-led regeneration Our
Offices & Residential business grew to

£7 0 butiron from £64 0 bilbion a year ago
driven by valuation upliit of 11 8%

Our strategy 1s focused on using our
placemaking skilis to drive further
improvement at our campuses which account
for over 70% of our Offices portiolio, through
development public realm improvements and
the intreduction of a greater range of uses

We are also using these placemaking skills

al our standalone assets which altow us to
experiment with different products - such

as Yalding House - and also provide Liguidity
to the portfolio - such as the disposal of

39 Victorta Street Our development capabilities
are a compelitive advantage enabling us te
improve our campuses and deliver value

to our shareholders

The occupational market in Landon remained
strong seeing healthy demand thr oughout
the year With Central London vacancy at

2 8% compared to the long term average of

5 3% prime rents continued to rise However
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inrecent months there have been signs of a
stowdown Likely due to the EU relerendum
Take up 15 likely to slow further in the shoi t
term but long term we beleve that London s
global pasition will endure

The investment maerket atso remaimned healthy
reflecting the fundamentat attractions of
London growing rents good bquidity and a
scarcity of sncome return around the wortd
Demand from globat and domestic investors
remaned robust despite the hustoricatly low
yields and while investrnent volumes have
fatten since January first quarter transactions
at £3 5 billion wer e 8% ahead of the 5 yeas
average Importantly there have been a number
ol transactions which support current yields

Inresidential the prime market has been
impacted by both mcreased supply and recent
tax changes and iransaction volumes have
slowed In the super prirne market theres
continued emphasis on the quality of stock
and although London continues to be viewed
as attractive volumes have moderated The
rmainstream market in Lendon has remained
relatively robust with steady demand

We continued to reduce our residental
commitment through further pre-sates at

The Hempel and Aldgate Place and with only
£292 million of units rernaiming our residential




business represents a manageable armount

of our portfolio The majonity of the rematmng
units by value are at Clarges Mayfair which we
will not miarket untl completion in late 2017 and
15 & scheme which we believe will stull gener ate
strong interest

Porttolio Pertormance

We continued to benefit from our focus on
London The value of our Offices and Residentiat
portfolio was up 11 8% te £7 0 bithon including
the impact of the recent 1% tncrease in stamp
duty for commeraial property The drivers of
vaiualicn growth shifted substantially over the
year wtth our actions accounting for 30% of
growthin the first hall and almost all growth
in the second half We saw inward yield stuft
of 21 bps across the Otfice portfolio compared
to 91 hps last year reflecting the stowdown in
the investment market

The West End and City portiolios were up

12 8% and 11 1% respectively with the West
End pertfolio showing a particularly sirong
petformance in the second half in part due to
the 15% uplift on the West End developments
The Restdential portfelowas up 5 7% This
movement translates into strong overakd
capital retuern of 12 0% ahead of the IPD
secial benchmark by 0 bps

The Offices and Residentialinvestmeni portfolio
wasup 11 7% driven by ¥ 6% ERV growth As
our development pipeline completed standing
investments have become anincreasingly
important contributar to performance
accounting for almost 0% of the upliftin the
year Developments debivered vatuation uphit

of 12 7% with strong periormance at 4 Kingdom
Street which saw a valuation upbit of 42%

Office letungs and renewals
by sector {by rent)

o
P

o

B Banks & Financial Services
B/ Professional & Corporate
e IMT

B Ratarl

B Manufacturing

B Govetnment

RInsurance Cos

B Other Business

11.8%

valuation uplift in offices

£3.8m

of annuabised rent added
throughrent reviews

38 3%
195%
153%
9 5%
72%
54%
3%
08%

Asset Management

Despuite delivering 2 2 rmutiion sq bt of
developments min the last 3years our portiolio
15 now vir tually fully let reflecting the strength
of nccupational demand and the quality of our
space Asaresult overalllething volumes at
296 000 sg ft are below recent years levels
but we continue to agree deals on terms5 6%
ahead of ERV

We added £3 8 million of annualised 1ent
through rent reviews on 687 000 sqg ft of space
an uptit of 17% compared o previous passing
rent Our campuses are retatively af fordable
and with 1 8 million sq ft of rent reviews to
settle in the next 18 months we are well placed
to capture rertat grawth going forward
Average ERVs at Paddington and Regent s
Place at {46 psf and £57 psi 1espectively are
low relative to core West End and at Broadgate
the average 1s £57 psf Overall ourportfolios
now 10% reversionary [7% City 11% Wesi End)

In the City The Leadenhalt Building 1s now
98% tet or under offer frem 84% at the start
of the year wtth Just one of the top floors to let
we contnued to set new rental highs in the City
We have been particularly pleased not only by
the occupier interest but also the critical
acclaim it has receved with the Leadenhall
Bullding named "Building of the Year by the
Warshipiul Cornpany of Chartered Architects
We were also delighted that The Duke of
Cambridge and Prince Har ry formally opened
the building in October 2015

At Broadgate we are progressing our viston to
create aworld ciass campus for London This
reflects the growth and diversily of its location
not only as an tmportant part of the City, but
veing adjacen! to the regenerating areas of
Shoreditch and Spualhelds which wncreasingly
cater totechnology and other creative sectors
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Our Offices portfolio is now virtually fully
let reflecting the strength of occupational
demand and the quality of our space.”

The opening of the Crossrail station at Liverpool
Street in 2018 witl alse be suppertive ot our
overall wsion Redevelopment oppartunittes will
significantly increase the scale of the campus
and better integrate It with the vibrant areas

to the north and east The redevelopment of
Broadgate Circle has done much to enliven

the campus and our plans will build on this
mamentum with a more diverse offer which
malches changing working lifestyles Our near
term development pipeline includes 823 000 sq
ft of space with a turther 550 000 1n the
medium term

At Regent s Place we are progressing our vision
to evotve the campus through redeveiopment
works We completed the refurbishment of
79000 sq ft at 338 Euston Road with Facebook
taking crcupation of the majority of the space
Levels 2 and 7 [i3 000 sq 1} are available and we
are seeing good interest both from existing and
new occupiers We have made good progress
with rent reviews at 20 Triton Street growing
rents on aver age from £52 psf to £70 psfon

151 000 sq ft of space and adding £2 5 rethon

to annualised rents with a further 600 00¢ sg §1
to re negotiated in the next 18 months The next
phase ol major works 1s at 1 Triton Square
where we are in the earty stages of designing

a significant refurhishment

At Paddington Central we are making good
progress towards our visian to complete

the campus through development and
transiormung the public reatm We completed
phase t of the public reaim enhancement
works and phase 2 which will be torussed
around Kingdom Street 15 out to tender and
will start this summer We have sacured 4
moorings on the canal and we have also
purchased 2 canal boats to he used to host
events and enliven the surrounding area

We saw ERV growth of 5% across the campus
in the second half of the year and seltled rent
reviews on 75 000 sq ft of space at 2 Kingdom
Street taking rents from £45 psf to £54 psf
and adding £0 6 million to annualised rents

Investment Activity

Gross investment activity aver the year was
£621 million with total sales of £198 mithion
[BL sharel and total acquisitions of £232 million
[BL. share)

We continued to make progress at our
Restdential schemes The Hempel Collection
and Aldgate Place selling £5% million of
apartments at prices on average 3% ahead
of valuation At Clarges Mayfair having
pre-sold over 50% of the gross development
value of the residentral element of the scheme
in Septernber 2014 1t remains our mtention
to undertake no further marketing until the
remaining apartments have reached
practical completion
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In July last year we sold an office building at

39 Victoria Sty eet for a nel price of £139 muilion
We acquired the bullding for £40 rullion in 2009
and 1t was let ints entirety to the Corporate
Officer of The House of Commans i 2013
following a substantial refurbishment The
disposal atayetd of tess than 4% crystatiised
an attractive IRR of over 20% per annum

sinre purchase

At the start of the year we acquired One
Sheldon Square for £210 million This is 1n line
with our strategy of expanding our interests

in and around our core campuses It also
Increases our exposure to an up and coming
area of London and Paddington station a
mayjor London transport interchange which




will benefit irom the opening of Crossrad in
2018 The acquisition adds nearly 200 000 sg ft
to our office space bringing the assets we own
in Paddington Central to 804 900 sq ft

We completed 739 000 sq £t of developments

in the pertod with 5 Broadgate accounting for
710 000 sq ft UBS began fitng out 5 Broadgate
in the summer and we expect them to move

in later this year We achreved a BREEAM
Excellent rating at 5 Broadgate and we are

on track to actueve BRELEAM Excellent across

a turther 2 7 mutlron sq ft of office space

We also completed Yalding House a 2% 000 sq ft
ofhice-led refurbishmentin the heart of
Fitzrowsa The buttding which was launched in
February has variable floor plates and 15
targeted at small and medium sized businesses
in the creative sectors We ave pleased with the
level of enguiries seen to date

Qur under construction programme covers

617 000 sq ftwith tetal speculative commitment
[including land] of £536 mullion This includes
192 000 sq ft at our super prime residential-led
development Clarges Mayfair where both the
relocation of the Kennel Club and the affordable
housing element were delivered in the period
We are on track to complete the 48 000 sq ft
office elernent in the summer with the
ressdential to complete in late 2017

At 4 Kingdom Street we are making good
progress We are ontrack (o top out later

this month and on target lo deliver 147 000 sq ft
of office space in 2017 At 2 Kingdom Street
Broadgate Estates achieved the world s first
BREEAM Qutstanding Fit Out Aswell as being
hughty efficient the new enviranments helping
Broadgate Estates attract and retain the

best talent

£330m

of committed specutative development

LSm sq ft

Near term development pipeline focused
onLendon

There gre signs that increases in construction
cosis are moderating reflecting lower raw
maternial costs However tender prices still

1 eflect imated capacity in the industry wath
contractors seeking to restor e margins and
Ut their risk exposure In central London
we are currently ferecasting cost inftation

of 5% per annum and fer our projects under
construction all our costs are fixed

We made good progress with out near term
development prpeline which hasincreased from
1 3 million sq ft n March lastyearto 1 8 million
sq ft We recently receved consent for a rewsed
520 000sg ft redevelopment of 100 Liverpeol
Street al Broadgate incorporating a larger retail
compenent than inthe previous consent inline
with our plans to add 400 0G0 sq ft of retailio the
campus in the medim term Subject 10 UBS
completing the fit out war ks at 5 Broadgate we
expect to be in a posihion to commence with

100 Liverpoot St eet in early 2017

At ¥ Finsbury Avenue we recewved planning
consent for a 303 000 sq ft 1edevelopment

and at 1 Tritan Square on our Regent s Place
campus we are progressing the design We
wilt make the decision whether to cornmit to
these schemes at the appropriate ime but

we are pleased with the level of interest we are
seeing from occupiers for petential pre-tets
despite the fact that the projects are still at

an earlystage

Our planming apphication tor 340 009 sq fx of
mixed use space at Blossom Street Shoieditch
was also granted consent having been called
in by the Mayor of London The High Court has
since rejected a Judicial Review of the Mayor 5
decision take over In the application but it1s
unbikely that we will start enste 1n 2016 as had
been our ntention At 5 Kingdom Street we
have made good progress on the proposed
design and we expect to subivut a planning
application by the end of the year

Looking ahead 10 our medium term pipelne
we submitted a planning appticaiion for the
redevelopment of 2 and 3 Finshury Avenue
increasing the area from 189000 sq ft to
550 000 sq it
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CARBON REPORTING

Our efficiency programme provides well-managed
environments for workers, shoppers and residents,
supports our occupiers’ sustainability goals, cuts
occupancy costs and enhances asset value

CLIMATE
WISCLESURE
LEABEN 206

We actively manage greenhouse gas emissions
across our business We are recogmised in the
CDP Bisclosure Leadership Index for the filth
yearrunmng with a 100% score for disclosure
We also achieved B for per formance

We have repor ted on atl emission sources
required under the Companies Act 2004
[Strategic Report and Directors Reports)
Regutations 2013 These sour ces fall within
our consolidated financial statement and
relate to head office activities and controlled
ermissions from our managed partfolio All

our scope 1and 2 emissions are included

n thts statement We have used purchased
energy consumplion data the GHG Protocol
Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard
[revised edition] and emission factors from the
UK Government s GHG Converston Factors for
Company Reparting 2015

Scope 1.and 2 carhon emissions reduced

this year due to several factors notably the
decarbonisation of the UK grid improvements
through our angoing efficiency programme and
changesin our porticlioaflecting energy use

Scope 1 and 2 emissions mtensty (tonnes CO.e)

Year ended 3% March 2018 2015 2809
Permi - Offices Inet letable areal 6075 0076 g
Per m? - Retail -~ enclosed 6073 0088 0174
Per parking space - Retall - open air 0063 Q0863 0104
Per m? - Residential 0081 0085 -
Per £m - gross rental iIncome from managed portioli! 7% 48 8730 -
Absolute Scope 1 and 2 ensssions (tonnes CO,¢)}

Year ended 31 March 2014 2015 2609
Combustion of fuel Managed porticlio gas use and fuel use

in British Land owned vehicles 7,284 69465 5156
Operation of factlities Managed portfolio refrigerant loss from

air conditioning (11 554 -
Purchase of electricity, heat, steam and cooling for our own use

Managed par tolio electricity use 38,710 42503 41186
Absalute Scope 3 emssions {tonnes CO,e}

Year ended 31 March 2016 2012
Occupier controlled energy use - Offices Eleciricily and gas use in our assels 50,291 51839
Qccupier controtled energy use — Retail Electricity and gas use in our assets 584,668 748150
Broadgate Estates controlled energy use - Third parties Electricity and gas use

10 assets owned by others 36,097 -
Development supply chain Construction materiats site activity design and other

business services 78,934 176622

Visitor travel Vehicte use 1o and from assets

2,914,903 4 970786

Corporate and other Group procurement finance employee travel eneigy

life-cycle relaled water and residential energy

137,816 109133

' Gress Rental tncome (GRI] from the managed portfolio comprises Group GRI of £451 mithion [2015 £39% million]
plus 100% of the GRI generated by joim veniures and funds of £451 mullion §2015 €495 mil on) tess GRI
generated by assets outside the managed portfolio of £315 mitlien 2015 £321 mulbion]
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and associated emissions Combustion of fuet
increased slightly due to occupier fit outs
notably in The Leadenhall Building

We cornmissicned a review of our Scepe 3
emissions by Arup which revealed that changes
inour portfolio since 2012 have substantially
reduced our carbon footprint The shift towards
assets with strong public transport kinks

has reduced emissicns from visitor travel by

1 3miltion tonnes More detaited information
around visitor numbers and transport use has
alsoimproved accuracy 1educing visitor travel
emissions by 800 Q00 tonnes 1o addition

the reduction in our total Hoor area and the
decarbonisation of the UK grid have contributed
lo reductions in esmissions from occumes
energy use of 164 000tonnes The increase

in Corporate and other emissions was due

to the addition of Broadgate Estates data and
residential energy use data within our footprint
dswell as increased emissions related to
property acquisiions and finance

Reducing Scope 3 emissions
We are working with our development
supply chain to reduce carbon emissions
frorm construction materiats At 160

Liver pool Street our design team has
developed ptans that re-use as much

of the building struclure as possibie
cutting construchion costs and reducing
embodied carbon by 7,2/0 tonnes Design
imp1 ovements are also targeting a further
4 360 tanne saving versus the onginat
concepls at no extra cost by changing
insulaton materials using cement
reptacement increasing recycled
alumimum content and swiiching to
Lightwerght engineered beams

We amended our methodology for
carbon intensities this year and have
restated previous numbers to reflect
this For our full methodology
explanation of changes and Pw(C s
ndependent assurance see our 2016
Sustanahility Accounts available ot
www britishland com/data




FINANCIAL REVIEW

Our strategic focus on placemaking
along with our active debt management
underpinned our strong results

Kev highlights of the vear

14.29%

Total accounting return’

919,

£PRA net asset value per share'

£9.6bn

IFRS net assets

284,

Dwidend per share

£303Im

Underlying Profit’

£1.3bn

IFRS protit before tax

329

LTV proportionally censotidated

3.39%

Weghted average interest rate
proporitonally consoldated

' See glossary for defimtions

L .

Overview

the suong per fermance this year 1s reflected in
our operating results and the total accounting
returnof 14 2%

Our focus on placemaking and accelerating
ERV growth have delivered a portfolio vatuation
uplift of 6 7% on a proportionally consolrdated
basisand a 10 Y% increase in MAY per share

to 219 pence excluding the impact of the 1%
increase n stamp duty on cormmerciat proper ty
NAV per share would have been 932 pence lan
increase of 12 4%]

We have completed £1 3 bitlon of investment
activity with acquisitton and development
spend broadly balancing disposals We have
sold mature and non-core assets and have
reinvested in our existing business and

In setected acquisitions adjacent to

existing assels

Our balance sheet metrics remain strong

The proportionally consolidated loan to value
ratio has decreased to 32% frem 35% due to

2 combmnation of aur actions including the
results of our placemaking activity and market
movernents We have raised £915 million of
new debt inctuding a £350 million zero coupon
convertible bond Together wrth the £110 mitlion
debenture bonds tender offer and purchase

we have completed over £1 billson of financing

activity in the year This drove the 50 hps
reduction in the Group s propor ionally
consotidated weighted average inlerest
rate to3 3% from 3 8%

Underlying Profit increased to €363 million
as a result of owt successful financing activity
teasing of our completed developments and
rental incorte growth in the investment
portfolio including a number oi significant
rent reviews in Offices

Underlying earnings per share increased by
tess than profits due to the requirernent to
antictpate conversion into new shares of the
£400 mithon ¥ 5% convertible bond 1ssued in
2012 and maturing in 2017 with a conversion
arice of 493 pence

IFRS profit before tax for the year of

£1 331 milbon 1s lower than the prier year
prunariy due te a reduced level of property
valuation movement reflecting the slowdown
n yield compression and the recent increase
in stamp duty on cammercial proper ty

Looking forward to next year we intend o
ncrease the dwvidend by 3% (o 25 20 pence per
share with a quarterly dividend of 7 30 pence
per share
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

Presentation of financial information | tnderbang Profit

The Group hnancial statements are prepared 5 2016 2015
under IFRS where the Group s interests in joint ection fm £m
veniures and funds are shown as a single ine Gross rental income 654 618
stem on the income stalement and balance Property operating expenses 34 (33
sheet and alt subsidiaries are consolidated Net rental income 11 6230 585
at 100%

Net fees and other income 17 17
Management considers the business principally | Administrative expenses 13 {94) (B8]
on a proportionally consolidated basis when Net financing costs 12 {180) 201
setting the strategy determining annual Underlying Profit 363 313
prioriites making mvestment and financing i
decisions and reviewing perfortnance This MNon-controllng interest i Undertying Profil 14
includes the Group s share of joint ventuwies EPRA adjustments” 954 1460
and funds on a line-by-tine basis and excludes IFRS profit before tax 2 1,331 1,789
non-controlling interesis in the Group s

h 14 341 30 4

subsidianes The financial key performance Underlying ear nings per share P P
indicators are also presented on thus basis tFRS basic earmings per share 2 1312p W683p

Dwidend per share 3 2836p 2748p

A summary thcome statement and surmmary

' Fees and other incorne and administrative expenses have been restated 10 reflect the change 1n presentation
balance sheet which reconcile the Group

of the resulls of Broadgate Estates a whotly owned subsidhary of the Group Thes restatement has had no

financial statements to Briush Land s impact on Underlying Profit Refer to nate 1of the financial statements for further detaits
nterests on a proportionally consolidated ! EPRA adjustmenis consist of investment and development property revatuations gainsflosses on investment
hasis are inctuded in Table A wittun the and trading property disposals changes in the fair value of financial instruments and associated close out

costs These ems are presentedn the caprtal and other column of the consolidated income statement
supplementary disclosures

Income statement
1 Underlying Profit
Underlying Profit 1s the measure that 1s used

iniernally 10 assess meome performance No Net rental meome (£m) (chen 11

compadny adiustments have been rmade in the

current or prior year and therefore this s the 40 e e
same as the pre-tax EPRA earnings measure .L,»—“: ¥ ‘.,‘ ;1
which includes a number of adjustiments to Pt E@‘ﬁ}%’?&%
the IFRS reported profit before tax Thisis 15 L7 L -

—_ Ll
22 [ @i

presented above on a propor tionally
consolidated basis

11 Net rental iIncome {chart 1)

The £35 mullion increase in net rertal income
during the year was the result of strong
letung activiiy

The successful tetting of our development
programme provided £23 mulbion of this
increase primarily due to the start of the lease
at 5 Broadgate and the letiings we have made
at the Leadenhall Buitding which 1s now almost
fulk with recent leasing deals setting new
records for City rents Net finanemg costs (€m) ichert 21

Developments Like-for-Lke Amursitions D.sposals
rerdal income growth

Like-for-like rental income growth was 3 4%
Offices and Residential growth was almost 7%

Just aver half of thiswas due 1o the letung up of - — 10
compteted developments that are now m the faa _ o
like-tor-tike portfolio with the remainder being i1 (5]

attribuiable to strong rent review activity
particularly at Regent s Place and Paddington
Retatl and Leisure growth was 1 4% 11 8%
excluding the impact of surrender premial

Our near termm development pipeline coutd add
a further £68 million of net rental income over
the next S years The three largest schemesin
the near term pipeline are income producing 015 Finanang Acquiszzas Thsposals Campletion of bl
actmly developments
investmenis with a current passmg rent of
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£24 mullion which 1s expected to run olf i the
last quarter of 2016/17

12 Net financing ¢osis [Chart 2]

We completed over £ 1 bitlion of fmancing
aclivity In the current year including the

£350 mitlron zero coupon convertible bond and
the £110 miltion debenture bonds tender offer
and purchase We have raised and retinanced
a total of E915 mullion of debt at lower margins
and in a lower interest rate environment
fogether with the impact of last year s inancing
activity this resulted in 2 £27 million decrease
it financing costs this year

Qur approach to interest rate management was
also important in reducing interest costs Al the
yeai end we had reduced the proportion of ous
debt held at fixed rates to 60% on average over
the next five years [44% at 31 March 2015}

Overall ouractions during the year drove the
reduction in our proportionzlly consolidated
welghted average interestiate to 3 3% at

31 March 2016 from 3 8% at 31 March 2015

Lower capitalised snterest in the current
year reflected our reduced development
comrutment This resulted in an additionat
£5 mullion of interest costin the year

13 Administrative expenses

During the year we brought the property
management of our etail assets in-house to
Broadgate Estates awholly owned subsidiary
in bine with our strategic focus on customer
otientation and pitacemaking In recognition

of the core role Broadgate Estates now plays
in how we run the business we have changed
the way its results are presented in the Group
income statement fhis hasresultedn a

£5 million increase in administrative expenses
and an equal and offsetting increase in net fees
and other income importantly this change has
noimpact on Underlying Proft The prior year
comparatives for net {ees and other income
and administrative expenses have also been
restated to reflect this change tn preseniation

Development team costs of £4 million were
capitabised {ar the fu st ime thisyear aswe
pregress our development pipeline

Gverall administrative expenses increased
by €6 rrullion this year in Uine with our planned
investmentan people and technology in order
lo enhance the capahility of the business
which includes a £2 million increase related
to Broadgate Estates The Group s operating
cost ratio rematns sector leading at 16 6%
{2014/15 16 4%

14 Underlymg EPS

Underlying EPS for 2015/16 was 34 1 pence
{20145 30 & pence} based en Underlying
Profit after tax of £365 miion [2014/15 £313

2018 2015

Balance sheet Section £m £m
Properues at valuation 14 648 13 677
Qther non-current assels 138 256

14,786 13,933
Other net current liabilities {257} {307)
Adjusted net debt & 14765) (4918}
Other non-current babilities [90] {73!
EPRA net assets [undiluted) 9,674 8,635
Gituticn impact of convertble bond 400 400
EPRA net assets [diluted} 10,074 9,035
EPRANAV per share 4 919p 829
Nen-controlling interest 277 333
EPRA adjustiments' (732)  {803)
IFRS net assets 5 9619 8,545

' EPRA net assets exclude the mark-ta market on effective cash flow hedges and related debt adjusiments the
mark-to-market on the convertible bonds as well as deferred taxation on property and derivative revaluations
They include the valuation sur plus ontrading propet tes and are adjusted for the dilutive impact of share options
and the £400 million converhible bond maturing in 2017 No adjustment s made for the £350 midlion zero coupon
convertible bond because this 1s aot currently dilutive Details of the EPRA adjustments are included in Table A
within the supplemeniary disclosures

EPRA NAY per share (p)} [Chan )

Starnp duty
131
2015 Oifices and Retad Underlyng Ddends Finarce 2016
Resdential and Leisure proft transaction
waluation wluaton casls
uplift uplify

Adjusted net debt (€m)* (chan &l

14,918]

£4, 7651

M5 Acquistions  Davetoprnent Drsposais Net cash Crvdends Other 2016
and capex from
eperaons

' Adjusted net debt 1s a proportionatly consolidated measure H represents the Group net debt as disclosed in
Note 17 and the Group s share of joint venture and funds net debt excluding the mark-ta-market on effecive
cash flow hedges and related debi adjustments and non-controlling interests A reconciliation between the
Group net debt and adjusted net debt 15 included in Table A wathin the supplementary disclosuras
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

million] adjusted 10 add back interest ont the
£400 million 1 5% convertible bond of £6 million
[2014/15 E£nil} and 1he weighted average diluted
number of shares of 1 389 million [2014/15
1022 rrullron)

The increase in Underlying EPS of 11 4% s less
than the increase in Undertying rofii because
we are now reguired to anticipate Conversion
into shares of the £400 millicn 1 5% convertible
bond which matures in 2017 in ourreported
Underlying £PS

2 IFRS profit before tax

The main difference between IFRS profit hefore
tax and Underlying Profit1s that itincludes
the valuation movement on investment and
development properties and the fai value
movements of financizl instruments in
addition the Group s investments i joint
ventures and funds are equity accounted

in the IFRS income statement but are
included on a proporuonatly consolidated
basis within Underlying Profit

The IFRS profit before tax for the year was
£1331 mullion a decrease of £458 million
primarsy due to the slowdown in yield
rompression and the 1% stamp duly increase
on commerctal property in the cuzrent year
resulling in tower levels of property vatuation
movement Thisimpacts IFRS profit before tax
through the valuation moverneni on the Group s
pioperties which was £268 millign less than
tast year and the valuation movement on the
proper ties held in jomnt ventur es and funds
which was £344 million less than last year

@ Further information an portialio valuation
perferrmance 1s provided on page 36

The £77 milbon decrease in net financing costs
to £75 million was principalty due to revaluation
gans recorded in respect of the Group s
convertible honds

The £50 million increase i net rentat ncome
to £425 mtllion was primanly the result of

the purchase of a controing interest in New
Mersey Speke in March 2015 the purchase

of controlling interests in two mixed portfolios
of single and mulu-let assets fthe Tesco
transaction ) also completed in March 2015
and like-for-like rental iIncome growth in

the standing portfolio

Basic earnings per share decreased by 22%

lo 131 2 pence per shaie The weighied average
number of shares inissue during the period
was 1025 mdlion [2014/15 1014 rmitlion]

1
(1%

»

3 Dvidends

The quarterly dmdend was increased to 709
pence per share 1n ihe year bringing the total
dwidend declared for the current financial year
to 28 36 pence per share [2014/15 27 48 pence
per sharel an increase of 2 5% over the prior
year The dividend paid n the financial year was
78 02 pence per share (2014/15 27 34 pence
pet share]

Itis the Board s intention to inci ease the
dividend by 3 0% rn 2016/17 1o 29 20 pence per
share with a quarterly dividend of 7 30 pence
per share

Balance Sheet

4 EPRANAVY per share {Chart 3)

The EPRA NAV per share of 219 pence includes
the 13 pence adverse impact from the 1% rise
tn Stamp Duty Land Tax on commercial

proper ty announced in the budget this year

The 10 9% increase in EPRA NAV per share
reflects a strong valuation performance across
the portfolio of & 7% Qur portiolio s broadly
split equalty between Offices and Retad The
valuation uplift in the year 1s primarily due to
ERV growth of 5 3% with an accelerated rend
compared to tast year reflecting our focus on
placemalung and the strength of the markels
we invest 1n Yield compressionwas 17 bps and
contributed significantly less to the valuation
uplift compared to the prior year

Returns were driven by our standing
iwestments up 6 4%, boosted by an
n¢rease of 9 4% in our developments

Offices and Residential valuations wet e up

11 8% with strong ERV growth of 9 6% the
West End performed slightly more strongly
than the City in part due to the valuation

uplift onour developments Retail and Leisure
valuations were up 2 4% underpinned by strong
performance in our multi-tet portfolio which
saw ERV growth of 3 4%

The finance transaction costs primarily retate

to the debenture bond tender offer and
pur chase completed in the year and are

Fitzncing statistics

compensated for by lower inierest costs over
the rematving period of the finance

5 IFRS net assets

IFRS net assets at 31 March 2016 were £9 619
million an increase of £1 034 rmllion This was
primarity due to property revatuation gans in
the current year which were £616 mullion for
the Group and £245 million for the Group s
share of joint ventures and funds

tn August 2015 the toan provided hy the Group
to the Broadgate joni venlure was repaid
Thiswas funded by additional shareholder
contributions to the joint venture and resutted
Ina £137 mithon decrease in net debt and

a £137 million Increase in the Group s
mvestrents in jotnt ventures and funds

Cash Flow, Net Debt and Financing
&  Adjusted net debt [Chart 4]

The impact of aur mvestment activity in the year
was broadly balanced

Significant acquisitions completed in the year
included One Sheldon Square and the purchase
of an additiona! 6 1% of the units in Hercules Unit
Trust bringing the Group s ownership to 75 3%

at the year end

Development expenditure of £190 million
related to the spend on our commitied
development programime and capital
expenditure of £120 million related o asset
management on the standing portfolio
Forecast development spend of £204 million
1s articipated over the next three years on the
Group s comrutted development programme
and £720 milkon on the Group s near term
devetopment ptpetine This compares to

£358 milbion of contracted restdential sales
along with a further £292 mithon of residential
units yet to be contracted for sale on existing
commitied projects

Significant disposals in the year included

39 Victona Street at an attractive yield which
generated an IRR of over 20% Raotherham
Parkgate and Leeds Birstall In addition
tisposals of standalone super stores totalling

Group Properticnally censolidated

2016 2015 2016 2015

Net debt/adjusted nat debt! E3617m  E£3828m £4765m  £4918m
Principal amount of gross debt £35352m  E3717m £5089m  £5202m
Loan tovalue 25% 28% 32% 35%
Weighted average mterest rate 2 6% 33% 33% 3 8%
Interest cover 33 29 30 26
Weighted average debt maturity 72years 75years 81years B7years

The Group figures represent net debt as presented in nate 17 of the financial statements the proportionally
consolidated figures include the Group s share of joint venture and funds net debt and exclude the mark to
market on effective cash flow hedges and related debt adjustments and ron-controlling interests
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£122 mllion were completed including the
sale of Tesco Bursledon for £60 million and
Samnsbury s Islington for £32 million reducing
the Group s total superstore exposure 1o under
£0 8 bilbon We currently have a further

£100 mullion of mature o1 non-cor e retail
assels under offer

7 Financing

Balance sheet metrics remain sireng LTV

and the weighted average interest rate on
drawn debt were reduced and interest cover
improved The decrease in bath our Group and
proportiondglly consobidated LTV measures s
due lo a combmation of our actions and market
movements Note 17 of the financial statements
sets out the calculation of the Group and
proportienally consobdated LTV

Our proportionally consalidated LTV was 32%
at March 2016 down from 40% twao years ago
Pro-forma for the full conversion of the £400
million 1 5% convertible bond maturing in 2017
proportionately consolidated LTV 15 29%

The strength of the Group s balance sheet1s
reftected in Briish Land s sentor unsecured
credit rating whtch continues to be rated oy
Frichat A-

Financing activity during the year amounted

to over £1 bition We continue to achieve
atiractive inancings which improve earnings
and liquichty tnciuding £915 rmillion of new debt
finance ssnce 31 March 2015

Taking advantage of favourable market
conditions we raised a £350 million zero
coupon senior unsecured convertible bond
due 2020 which includes flexible settlement
options and pravides further diversification
of our sources of finance

Following a tendet offer in respect of Briush
t.and s & 75% First Mortgage Debenture Bonds
due 2020 we purchased £110 rmilbon of bonds
The purchase was funded by existing committed
facities and the bonds wer e cancelled

Financang activity In our joint venture and
funds in the year consisied of the repayment
of £100 metlion af a Hercules Umit Trust term
loan reducing the facility to £250 milion and
its subsequent refinancing at pnicing less than
half the previous facility The Gibrattar Limited
Partnership £140 rmillion loan facility was
alsorefinanced in the year al significantly
lower pricing

Overall hinancing actwity we completed in the
year was the principal factor in the reduction
of the propartionally consolidated weighted
average interesi rate from 3 8% to 3 3%

We have also agreed one year extenstons lo
both our hank syndicated unsecured revolving
creditfaciities in total £1 245 mill:on

Bretish Land has £1 8 bullion of cermnmutied
unsecured revolving banking facilities and
£83 mitlion of cash and shortierm deposits
Of these faciibes £1 6 billion have raturites
of more than iwo years and £1 2 billion was
undrawn al 31 March 2016 Based on our
current commitments and these facilities
the Group has no requirement to refinance
for four years

@ Further :nformation on our approach to
financing 15 provided in the financiat policies
and principles section on pages 54 to 56
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Tax

The Group etected for REIT status on 1 Janudry
2007 paying a £308m conversion charge to
HMRC in the same year Asa cansequence

of the Group s REiT status taxis levied on the
distribution of incame from our qualiiying
property rental business rather than at the
carporate fevel Any income which does not
qualify as property mcome within the REIT
rules s subject to tax i the normat way This
includes prolits on properties devetoped and
sald within three years as well as fees and
interest The tax credit for the year s £2m
lexcluding deferred tax)

Our 2016 Total Tax Contréoulton was more than
£240m manly arising from taxes collected
from others which we admimistered together
with taxes and levies paid directly

HMRC continue to award British Land a low
nisk tax rating whichisn part a reflection of our
REIT status together with the open and 1 egutar
dialogue we maintain with them We continue

lo cornfor tably pass all REIT tests to ensure

our REIT status s mamntained

Umield

Lucinda Bell
Chiefl Financial Officer
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FINANCIAL POLICIES AND PRINCIPLES

We focus on having an appropriate
balance of debt and equity funding which
enables us to deliver our property strategy

Leverage

Our mix of equity and debt financing 1s managed
to acineve the appropriate balance hetween
enhancing returns for shareholders and the
risk of hugher leverage We use a loan lo value
ratio [debt as a percentage of the gross value

of our assets LTV} to measure our leverage
primarily on a proportionally consolidated basis
tncluding our share of jont ventures and funds
and excluding non-controlling interests

We seek 1o manage our leverage such that

aur LTY should not exceed a maximum
threshold if market yields were to rise to
previous peak levels This means we will not
increase our LTV if asset values increase only
as a result of market yield improvement
Consequently our maxirmum LTV may be higher
in the low point in the cycle and witl trend
downwar ds as rmarket yrelds tghten

We leverage our equity and achieve beneiits of
scdle while spr eading nsk through joint ventut es
and funds which are tymcatly partly inanced
with debt without recous se to Briush Land

Our current proportionally consolidated LTV
of 32% includes our share of the debt i joint
ventures and funds and is ingher than the
Group imeasur e of 5%

Debt finance

I'he scale of our business combined with

the quality of our assels and rental income
means that we ai e attractive 1o a bread range
of debt providers and able to airange hinance
on favourable terms Good access to the capital
and debt markets i1s a competitive advantage,
atlowing us to take opportuntties when

they arise

The Group s approach to debt hnancing for
Briush t.and 1s to rarse funds predorminantly on
an unsecur ed basis with our standard financial
covenants fset out on page 56] This provides
the greatest flexitnlity and low aperationel cost
Our joint ventures and funds are each financed
In ring-fenced structures without recourse 10
8ritish Land for repayment! and are secured on
the relevant assets

Presented opposite are the five guiding
principles that govern the way we structure
and manage our debt

Debt financing invelves risk {rom adverse
changes in the property and financing
markets Inarranging and montoring eur
financing we include rmpor tant sk disciplines
ensuring ithat retevant risks are fully evaluated
and managed

Managing nsk in deliversng our strategy see
pages 57 to 63

Meonitoring and contiolling our debt
We monilor our projected LTV and our debt
requirement using several key internally
generated repeorts focused principally on
borrowing levels debt maturity available
facitities and interest rate exposure We also
undertake sensitivily analysis 1o assess the
impact of proposed transactions movements
in interestrates and changes in propes ty values
on the key balance sheet liquidily and
profitability ratios

In assessing our ongong debt requirements
nctuding for our development programme

we consider potential downside scenarios such
as a fall in valuations and the effect that nught
have on our covenants

Based on our cuirent comraitments and
available faciliies the Group has no
requirement to refinance for four years

[z respective of whether the settlement of the
2012 converuble bond 1s with equity or debt]

Briush Land s current committed undrawn
bank facilittes are £1 2 billion

Managing interest rate exposure

We manage our interest rate profile
independently from our debt The Boa:d
consider s the appropriate maximum level of
sensitivity of underlying earnings to movermnents
in market rates of interest over a five-year
period and the appropt iate ranges of fixed

rate debt over relevant ime periods
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Our debt iinance 1s rased at both fixed and
variable rates Derivatives fprirnanity interest
rate swaps] are used to achieve the desi ed
interest rate profile across proportonatly
consolidated net debt Currently 60% on
average of projected net debt s fixed over the
next five years with a decreasing profile over
the period The use of derivatives 1s managed
by @ Derwatives Commuiitee The interest rate
management of joint ventures and funds 1s
addressed by each entity for its business

Counterparties

We monitor the credit standing of our
counterparties to minirmise our risk exposure
in respect of placing cash deposiis and
derivatives Regular reviews are made of the
externat credit ratings of the counterparties

Forcign currencey

Cur policy 1s 1o have ne material unhedged
net assets or liabiliies derorninated in
foreign currencies

When atiractive terms are available the
Graup may chraose 1o bor: owin freely available
currencies other than sterbing and will fully
hedge the foreign currency expasure




Our five gmding principles

Diversiy
our sources
of linance

We mannor finance markets and seek to access cifferent types of finance when the relevant mat ket conditions are favourable
to meel the needs of our business and where apprapriate those of our jemit ventures and funds The scale and quality of our
business enables us to access a broad range of unsecured and secured recourse and noa-recourse debt

We enjoy and encourage long ier m relationships wath banks and debt investors We aim io avoid reliance on particular sources
of funds and bor row §rom a farge number of lenders frorm different sectors in the market and a range of geographical ai eas
with a total of 33 debt providers of bank facilities and private placements atone We also aim to ensure that debt providers
understand our business we adopt a transparent approach to prowide sufficient disclasures so that lenders can evaluate their
exposur e wilhin the overal! context of the Group These factors ncrease our attractiveness ta debt provider s and in the last
five years we have arranged over €4 bilbion [Briish Land share over £5 tallion) of new finance i unsecured and secured bank
laan faclstes US Private flacements and convertible honds

£6.2bn |

Total debt portfolic {properianalty consolidated) 1

Phase matunty
of debt portfolio

The maturity profile of our debt 1s managed with a spread of repayment dates We monitor the various debt markets so that we
have Lthe ability to act quickly to arrange new finance as oppor tunities arise Maturities of diferent types of drawn debt are weil
spread reducing our refinancing nisk in respect of uming and mat ket conditions As a result of our financing activity we are
comiortably ahead of our preferred refinanciny date horizon of not less than two years

The current range of debt maturities is one to 20 years In accordance with ourusual practice we expect to refinance facihities
ahead of therr maturities

8.1 years

Average debt maturity [proportionally consoligated]

Maintain
Liquidity

In additon to our drawn debt we aim always to have a good level of undrawn commutted unsecured revolving bank facilities
in British Land These facilites provide financial kigmdity reduce the need to hold resourcesin cash and deposits and minimise
costs ansing fram the difference between borrowing and deposii rates while reducing credit exposure

We arrange these revolving credit facilities in excess of our committed and expecied requirements to ensuie we have adequate
fenancing availabrlety to support business requirements and opportuniies

£1.2bn

Undrawn committed {acilities

Maintain
flexibility

Qur facthives are structured to provide valuable flexibility for investment deal execution whether sales or purchases
developments ar asset management Ourbank revobving credit facilitres 1n British Land prowde full flexibility of drawing and
repayment fand cancellatron if we require] at short notice without additional cost These are arranged wath standard terms and
financial covenants and generally have maturities of five years Flexthitity 1s maintained with cur cembration of this unsecured
revolving debt and secured term debt in debentures with good substitution nghts where we have the ability to move assets in
and aut of the security

¢1.8bn

Revelving credit lacitities

Maintain strong
balance sheet
metrics

We acuvely manage our mix of equity and debt financing to achieve a balance between our ability to generate an atlractive return
far shareholders with the nsks of having more debt

Our capital strategy 1s responsive 10 the need to manage our exposure such that we aim net 1o exceed 8 maximum proportionatly
consolidated LTV threshold in an economic downturn if market yields rese to previous peak {evels

329% A- 3.0

LTV [preportionally consolidated)  Crednrating Interest cover [proportionally
consolidaied]

[4]]
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FINANCIAL POLICIES AND PRINCIPLES CONTINUED

Group borrowings

Unsecured financing for the Group s raised
through bilateral and syndicated unsecured
revalving bank facibities wath isbial terms of
five years [often extendable] US Private
Ptacements with matunties up to 2027 and the
convertible bonds maturing in 2017 and 2020

Secured deblis provided by debentures with
longer maturities up to 2035 at fixed rates of
interest and a bank term loan

Unsecured borrowings
The same financial covenants apply across
each of the Group s unsecured facilities These
covenants which have been consistently agreed
with all unsecured lenders since 2003 are
- net Barrowangs not to exceed 175%

of Adjusted Capital and Reserves and
- net Unsecured Borrowings not to exceed

70% of Unencumbered Assets

Covenant ratio

No income/interest cover ratios apply to these
facilities and there are no other unsecured
debt financial covenants in the Group

The Unencumbered Assets of the Group not
subject 1o any securily stood at £6 5 billion
as at 33 March 2016

Although secured assets are excluded from
tInencumbered Assets for the covenam
caleulations unsecured lender s beneilt from
the surplus value of these assets above the
related debt and the f1ee cash flow from them
During the year ended 3% March 2014 these
assets generated £63 million of surplus cash
after payment of interest Inadditron while
invesiments in jowt veniures do not form part
of Unencumber ed Assets our share of profits
generated by these ventures are regularly
passed up to the Group

At 31 March

Secured borrowings

Secured debt with recourse to British Land 1s
provided by debentures at fixed interest rates
with long matunities and no ainortisaticn
These are secured against a single combined
pool of assets with cornmon covenants, the
value of those assets Is required to cover the
arnaunt of these debentures by a minimum of
15 imes and net reatal income must cover the
interest at least once We use our rnights under
the debentures to withdraw substitute or add
proper ties for cash collaterall in the secunty
pool 0 order to manage these cover ratios
effectively and deal with any asset sales

Secured deht without 1 ecourse to British Land

comprises the followng each of which s

secured an a specific portfolio of propertes

- g fixed rate debenture of £30 million for BLD
Property Holdings Ltd to 202¢ and

- a bank loan of £295 mitlion for TBL Properties
Limited land 1ts subsidianes] ta 2019

Borroewings in our joint ventures and funds
External debt for our joint ventures and
funds has been arranged through long dated
secuntisatlions or bank debt according to the
requirements of the business of each ventuie

Hercutes Unit Trust has term loan faciliies
maturing in 201¥ and 2020 arranged for

its husmess and secured on its propes ty
pot tfolios without recourse to Britssh Land
These loans include value and income
based covenants

2014

2012
% %

2013
%

Net borrowings to adjusted capital and reserves!

44 3 40 38 34

Net unsecured borrowings o unencumbered assets? J4 23 3 28 729

Highest durtng the year to 31 March 2016
Y 42% and
1 33%

36
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The secuniusations of Broadgate [£1 667 million]
Meadowhall [£896 million] and the Sainsbury s
Superstores poi tfolio [£463 million] have
weighted average maturities of 12 1 years

10 4 years and 6 Hyears respectively The only
{tnanctal covenant applicable 15 to meet interest
and scheduled amortisation leqruvalent to

T umes caver] ihere are ne LTV covenants
These securitisations provide for quarterly
principal repayments with the balance
outstanding reducing to approximately

20% to 30% of the oniginal amount raised

by expected final maturity thus rmitigating
refinancing risk

Other debt arrangements with banks include
|.TV ratio covenants with maximum levels
tanging from 40% to 65% and most have
rental income to 1nferest o1 debt service
cover requirements

There 1s no obligation on British Land to
remedy any breach of these covenants and
any remedy needed would be considered by
the par ties on a case-by-case basis




MANAGING RISK IN DELIVERING OUR STRATEGY

Risk management is integral to our
strategy of delivering long term

sustainable returns

For Brisish Land, effective risk management is

a cornerstone of our strategy and fundamental
to the achievernent of our stralegic objectives

in delivery of tong term sustainable returns We
focus on the management of the principal 1 1sks
facing aur business including those nsks that
could threaten the Group s solvency and tiguidity
aswell as identifying emerging risks whilst at
the same ume making the most of our
opportunities

Our Rish Management Framework
Ourintegr ated approach combines a top-down
strategic view with a camplementary botlom-
up operational process outlined m the diagram
on page 58

The Board takes overall responsibility tor

risk management with a par ticular focus on
deterrining the nature and extent of princrpal
risks it 1s willing to take in achieving its sirategic
objectives Thisis setin the context of the
external envirenment sn which we operate - this
15 our risk appetite The Audit Commitee takes
responsibility for overseeing the effectiveness
of nisk management and internal control
systems las outlined on page 81) en behalf of
the Board and siso advises the Board on the
principal risks facing the Group including those
that would threaten its solvency or iquidity

Lucinda Bell
Chair of the
Risk Comimitiee

ihe Executive Qirectors are responsible
for delivering the Company s strategy and
managug nsk The Risk Comnutiee which
1s Chaired by the Chuef Financial Officer
and consists of all Executive Directors}is
responsible for managing strategic and
operational risk in achieving the Group s
performance goals

Whilst responsibility for oversight of 1isk
management rests with the Board the efiective
day-to-dday management of niskis embedded in
alt areas of our business and forms an integral
part of our core values and how we work This
bottom-up approach ensures potential risks
are identilied at an early stage, escalated as
appropriate and mitigalions are put in place

to manage such risks Each busmess unit
maintains a comps ehensive rnsk register which
1s reviewed quarterly by the Risk Commuttee
with significant and emerging risks escalated
to the Audst Committee for consideration

as appropriate
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Britsh Land Core Strengths

- High quabity commerciat property
focused on regicnat and local muiti let
retall assets around the UK and London
office campuses

- Placemaking strategy of creating
Places People Prefer

- Cuslorner orientation enables us to
develop a deep understanding of the
peopte who use our places

- Strong and diverse occupier base

- High occupaney and long lease lengths
provides stable secure cash flows

- Mixed use davelopment expertise

- Alnlrty to source and execule
attractive investment deals

- Effrcient capital sti uctus e with good
access to capital and debt markets

- Sustainability credentials

Our Risk Appetite

The Group s risk appetite 1s reviewed annually
{in the context of the core strengths of our
busmess model] and approved by the Board
This evatuation guides the actions we take in
executing our strategy The most sigmficant
judgements affecting our nisk appette include
our assessment of prospective property
returns our asset selection and investment
strateqgy the level of development exposure
and our financial lever age

We havedentified a suite of Key Risk Indicators
[KRts) te momitor our principat risks wiuch

are reviewed quarterly by the Risk Commuttee
to ensure that the acivities of the business
remamn withan our risk appetite and that our
risk exposure 1s well matched to changes in

the bustness and operating environment
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MANAGING RISK IN DELIVERING OUR STRATEGY CONTINUED

The Board has considered the Gioup s nisk
appebte and 1115 considered appropnals to
achieve our strategic objectives Our business
15 both resilient and well placed for the long
term Qur portfolic 1s modern and nearly fully
let to quality occupiers on long leases We
have mawntamed our capital discipline with
wrwestment and developrnent being broadly
balanced by asset disposals and reduced
our praopor ionally consolidated LTV to 32%
Development continues to remain a core part
of pur business and whilst our current
commutrnent has reduced as our 2010
programme has recently completed we are
progressing an attractive future pipeline

of development apportumties with the
flexibility to move forward when the ime

15 right

Assessment of Prospects

The Group s annual corporate planning
process micludes the completion of a
strategic review reassessing the Group srisk
appetie and updating the Group s torecasts

The Group s strategy provides the focus

for our annuat prionities and 1s formally
reviewed annually This process s led

by the Chief Executive through the
Executive Commutiee and includes the
active engagement of the Board Partof

the Board s role 1s to consider whether

the strategy takes appr opriate account of
the Group s principal risks The latest updates
to the strategic plan and Group risk appetite
were approved by the Board m March 2016

The strategy and risk appetite dive the
Group s forecasis These cover a five year
period and consist of a base case forecast
which includes commutted transaclians
anly and a farecastwhich alsoincludes
nen-committed iransactions the Board
axpects the Group to make n Line with

the Group s strategy

Assessment of Viability

The perwod aver which the Dir ectors consider
it feasible and apypr opriate to report on the
Group sviability s the five year penod ta

31 March 2021 Tins period has been selectad
because i1t 1s the peried that s used for the
Group s mediem term business plans and
individual asset performance forecasts

n
PO

Qur Rask Management Framework

Top-Down

Strategic risk management

Rewview externat environment
Robust assassment of principal risks
Set risk appelite and parameters

Determne strateqic action paints

Identity principai risks

Direct delvery of sirategic actions
1 bne with risk appetde

Manior key risk indicatars

-

Execute slrategic act ons

Report on key nsk indicators

—

The assumptions underpining these forecast
cash ftows and covenant compliance forecasts
were sensitised to explore the resitience of the
Group to the potential impact of the Group s
significant risks or a combination of those risks

The princspal risks table which foltows on
pages 60 1o 63 summarises those matters
that could prevent the Greup from delivering
aniis strategy A number of these principal
risks because of therr nature or potential
impact could also threaten the Graup s absliy
to continue In business i its cusrent formif
they were to occur

The Directors paid par ticular attention to the
risk of a deterioration in economic outlook which
woutd impact property fundamentals inctuding
investar and occupier demand which would have
a negative Impact on valuations and give rise

to a reduction in the availability of finance

The rematning principal nsks whilst having an
impact on the Group s business modet sre rot
cansigered by the Directors to have a reasonable
likelthood of impacting the Group s viability over
the five year peniod to 31 March 2021

The sensitivities performed were designed to
be severe but plausible and to take full account
of the avallability of mutigating actions that
could be taken to aveid or reduce the impact

or occurrence of the underlying risks
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BOARD/
AUDITCOMMITTEE

RISK COMMITTEE/
EXECUTIVE
— DIRECTORS

BUSINE SS UNITS

Bottom-Up
Operational risk management

./\

Assess effectiveness of nsk
management systems

Report on principal nsks
and uncertainties

/’/\

Constder compleleness of identified nsks
and adequacy of mitrigating aciions

Consxder aggregation of nsk exposures
across the business

/\

Report current and emerging risks

ldentity evaluate and mitigate aperational
risks recorded in: risk register

- Downturn in economic outlock Key
assumptions including occupancy voig
periods rental growth and yields were
sensitised to reflect reasonably likely levels
associated with an econorc downturn

- Restricted avanlabildy of finance Based
on the Group s cut i ent commitments and
availahle facilives there 1s no requirement
{o refinance for four years in the normal
course of business financing 1s arrangedin
advance of expected 1 equirements and the
Directors have reasonable confhidence that
additional or replacement debt facilities
will be put in place

Viability Statement

Having consider ed the lorecast cash {lows
and covenant comphiance and the impact of
the sensilivities 1 combination the Birecters
confitm that they have a reasonabte
expectation that the Group will be able to
continue 1n operation and meet its babilities
as they fall due over the pertod ending

31 March 2021

Gomg Concern

The Directors also cansidered 1t appe opriate
te prepare the financial staternents on the
going concern basis as explaned in the
Governance Review

@

To read mare nformation on going
concern go to page 77




Risk Focus mn the Year

The Board has undertaken a rebust assessment
of the principal nsks facing British Land and
our prencipal nsks have evolved as a result

of the uncertainty as to the outcome of the
pending referendum on the UK s membership
of the EU increased geopoliticat instabibty and
cyber secunty External faciors suchasthe
MaCro-economIc envitonment continue to
dominate the risk landscape Whilst we cannot
control the external envir onment we continue
to actively monitor leading ndicators on the
econamic and property cycle

Qur risk assessment

Principal Risks Key Strategic  Change in
Priorities affected year

External risks
ook Ps® &
autlooh QE®
g?cr:g;;rmal g@

@

@

Liketihood

mvestar
demand
Occupier @ o 28
demand and & &

tenant default

Avaitab:lity and @

cost of hnance
Devalopment g@
cost Intlation

Catastraphic e 600
business event ::‘" g €03

@ @0

Internal risks

Investment = o
sirategy @&é@) a7,
Development = £
q % o
O expasure &5© e
Income = o
sustainability &@ wug
Capital Fory
Strugture @ L
717" Finance (E\ ™
Strategy N ~

@ Peopla

@
Bo
©
e
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We continue to drive iImprovemenis in our risk The prinuipal risks facing British Land are

management process and the qualiy of risk surnmarised across the following pages
nformation generated whelst at the same lime mncluding an assessment of potential impact
maintaining a practical appioach Buring the and Likebihood togetherwith how they relate
year we intreduced an enhanced information to our strateqic proiities

Security Policy with the aim of providing greater
protection of British Land s electronic data by
mandating increasingly secure processes
appropriate cont ols and eperatiens and
promoting awar eness of cyber security We
have atso rewiewed and refreshed our Ant-
Bribery and Corruption policies and controls

impact

Note The above flustrates principat risks wh ch by their nature are those wh ch have the potential
to sigrificantly impact tha Group s sirategc objectives financial position or reputation

Key
Strategic prionties Change year-on-year
@ Customer 43 Unchanged
L4
Onentabion
g Right Ptaces @ Increased
@ Copal @  Reduced
Efficrency
528  ExpertPeople
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PRINCIPAL RISKS

External Risks

Rusks and How we momtor Change m the period
impacts and manage the nsk
Economic The econemic chimate and - The Risk Commutiee reviews the economic The UK economy has remained robust
outlook projections for interest rates envirortment in which we operate quarterly lo howsever there 1s continued econornic
present risks and opportunities n assess whether any changes to the economic and political uncertainty and concerns
property and financing marketsand  outlook justify a re-assessment of the strategy over the forthcoming EU referendum
the businesses of sur occuplers or nisk appetite of she business Uncertainty reinains over when interest
- Indicators such as farecast GOP growth raleswill nse atbe consensus has
employment rates busmess and consumer pushed back their expectations for
confidence interest rates and inflation/deftation wmierest rate rises and expects the
areconsidered as well as central bank quidance increase will not be steep
and government policy updates
- We focus on prime assets and sectors which
we believe will deliver cutperiormance over
the medium term benefiting from continuing
occupier demand and investor appetite
Political Significant political events - Whilst we are not able ta tnfluence the otlcome Uncertanty remaimns as o the outcome
outlook linctuding the pending EU of s;gmiicant political events we do take the ol the pending referendumonthe UK s
referendum} and policies, bring uncertainty related to such events and the range membership of the EU We maintain
risks both i terms of uncertamty of possible sutcomes into account when making support foer remaining in the EU
untl the outcome 1sknown and the  sirategic nvesiment and Imancing decisions There s uncertamly over the new
impact of policies introduced - We engage pubtic affairs consullants to ensure that Mayor of Londan s :pproach io planning
principally in two areas we are praperly briefed on the potential policy and and housing
~ 1eluctance of investors and regulatory unplications of political evenis Wher e
businesses to make investment appropriate we act with other industry participants The geopolitical environment remans
decssions whilst the outcome to influence the debate on these policies unstable with immigration issues
remains uncerian and resulting from the ongoing unrestin
- on deternunation of the outcome the Middle East putting pressure on
the impact on the case for state resources in Europe
nvestment in the UK and on
specific policies and regulation
introduced particularly those
which directiy inpact real estate
Commerciat Reduction inmvestor demand for - The Risk Cormmittee reviews ihe property mar ket There has ¢ontinued te be a high level
property UK real estate mayresultinfallsin  quar lerly 1o assess whether any changesto Lhe of investor demand for UK commercial
Investor assel valuations and could artse market outlook present risks and opportunities property both from domestic and
demand from variations in which should be reflected in the execution of our internatienal nvestors dus ng the year
- the healih of the UK econarmy strategy The Committee considers indicators such However since the turn of the year
as margin between property yields and borrowing there has been a slowdown in
- the attractiveness of investrnent costs and property capital growth forecasts which transactions m part due to heightened
n the UK are considered alongside the Commuttee members global uncertainty and investors
- avallabibity of finance knowtedge and experience of market aclwly and concerns over the pending EU
- relative attractiveness of oihe! trands reterendum The market for the most
asset classes - We focus on prime assets and sectors which we allrachve assets remained fughly Uguid
believe will deliver outperformance over the however lnvestors are becoming
medwim term, benefiling from continuing occupier increasingly discerang with some
demand and mvestor appelite softening 1n dernand for more secondary
assets particularly in retail
- Strong relatianships with agents and direct
investors active in the market
Development  Costinfiation presentsarisktothe - Foreach progct we make a judgement about

cost inflation

profitability of our development
projects and has the potential to
adversely affect our cash position
and overall return on investment

@ There are signs that construction cost

ilation 1s moder ating reltecting lower
taw material costs However tender
prices still reflect the limited capacity
in the tndustry with contractor s seeking
to rebuild margins and bimit thewr nisk
exposure We factor cost inflation into
our developrnent appraisals and for
our projects under constt uction
substantially all our costs are fixed

appor tonmen of censtruction nsk Where we
retain ths nisk we aim to fix costs early n the
process subject to other mar ket factors with key
contraclor s subject Lo finanoal covenant i eview

We factor in construchion cost inflationior our
projects as par t of the investment appraisat
process to assess the viability of each development

- We are working with our supply cham oninihatives
lo address skills shortages and to understand how
resout ce constraints could impact development
costs in the long term
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Risks and tow we momtor Change m the period

mpacts and manage the rish

Occupier Underlying income, rental growth - The Risk Carmimittee reviews indicators of occuprer @ The London occupational market has
demand and and capital performance could be demand quarterly including consumer confidence remained strong through the pened with
tenant default adversely affected by weakening surveys, employment and ERV growth forecasts healthy take-up and record low vacancy

occupler demand and eccupier
failures resulting from variations
in the health of the UK economy
and corresponding weakening

of cansumer confidence,
business activity and investment

Changing consumer and business
practices {including the growth

of internet retailing flexibte
working practices and dermand
for energy efficient buitdings)

new technologies new lemslation
and aiternalive locations may
result in earlier than aniicipated
obsolescence of our buildings s
evolving occupier and regulatory
requirements are not met

atongside the Commitiee members knowledge
and experience of occupier ptans trading
petformance and leasing actwity in guiding
execution of our strategy

- We have a diversified occupier base and monilor
concentration of exposui e to indwidual occupiers
or seclors We perform rgorous occupler
covenant checks on an ongoing basis so that
we can be proactive In ranaging expasure (o
waesker occuplers

- Ongoing engagement with our occupers Thiough
our Key Occupier Account programme we work
together with our occupiet s to tind ways to best
meet their evolving requirements

- Our sustainahility strategy links action on occupler
health and wetlbeing efficiency community and
sustainable design to our business strategy Our
social and environmental targets help us comply
with new legislatien and respond te customer
dernands for example we expect all olfice
developments to be BREEAM Excellent

rates occupiers are Increasmgly
thinking about requirernents several
years inadvance The matket has
however slowed since the turn of the
year as occuplers delay decisions unbil
after the pending EU referendum
Looking forward the development
pipeline indicates that office supply wll
resnaln canstrained in the near term
and potenlially longer 1f proposed
developments cantinue to be delayed

inretait the occupatienal market
remains robust with ncreasing
requirernents from new entrants and
for new stote formats particuiarly at
the most atiractive locations Retaiters
are conbinuing to focus their portiolios
on fewer better stores which suits therr
omri-channel strategies Challenges to
retailer profitabiity snclude the living
wage, business rates revaluation and
the increasing cost of omni-channel
platforms including distribution

Availability and
cost of finance

Reduced availability of property
finance may adversely impact
abibity to refinance debt and drive
upcost This may alse resultin
weaker investor demand for

real estate

- Increasing finance costs woutd
reduce Underlying Profits

Y

- Market borrowing rates and real estate credit
availablity and activity are monitored by the Risk
Commuttee quar terly and reviewed regularty n
order lo guide our fnancing aclions I execuimng
our straiegy

- We maintamn good relationships with aur key
financing pariners and advisors

-« We maintam a diverse range of sources of finance
to provide access 1o funding as required We aim
always to have a good level of undrawn comnutied
unsecured revolving facilities to ensure we have
adequate financing availab:lity 1o support business
requirements and opportunities

- We work with industry bodies and other relevant
orgamsations ta parucipate in any debale of
emerging banking regulalons where gur iferests
are aftected

@

There conlinues to be geod overalt
market appetite for rral estate finance
depending on quabty of the borrower
project and specific lender
requerements Qverall while there

has been market volatiity Hinancing
costs remained relatively low However
macro-ecenomic uncertainties could
adversely impact future liquidity

and precing

Catastrophic
business event

Anexternal event suchas a el
emergency, including a large-scale
terronist attack, cyber crime
extreme weather occurrence or
environmental disaster could
severely disrupt global markets
Iincluding property and finance)
and cause significant damage

and disruption to Briish Land s
portfolio and operations

We mamlam a comprehensive crisis response plan
across all business units as well as a head office
business continuity plan

®

- The Risk Commuttee momitors the Home Office
terrorism threat levels and we have access (o
securily threal information services

- Asset emergency procedures are regularly
reviewed and scenanio tested Physical security
measures are i place at properties and
development sites

- Asset risk assessments are carried out{e g
security flood environmental health and safetyl

- Our cyber security systems are hacked up by
incident management disaster recovery and
business continuity pians ail of which are regularly
reviewed to be able lo respond to changes inthe
threat landscape and orgamsational requirements

- We also have appropriate msur ance In place across
the portfolio

The Home Offrce threat tevel from
international terrorism remarms
severe Our business continuity plans
and asset emergency procedures have
been reviewed and enhanced where
appropriate

During the year we introduced an
enhanced tnformation Secunty Policy
with the aim of providing greater
protectton of Briish Land s electsomic
data by mandating increasengly secure
processes appropriate controls and *
operations and promoting awareness
ol cyber security

KEY

Change from last year

Qurpnnaipal Key Risk Indicators are lighlighted within Howwe monstor and manage the risk

@ Risk exposure hasincreased @ No signtficant change in risk exposure @ Risk exposure has reduced
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Stratetic Report

PRINCIPAL RISKS CONTINUED

Internal Risks

Risks and How we momitor Change n the period
mpacts and manage the risk
Investment In order to meet our strategic Ournvestment strategy Is determined to be We are focusing the business around
Strategy objectives we mustinvestin and consistent with our targel risk appettte andis based long term trends and continue to see
exitfromthe right properties on the evaluation of the external environment the benefits of the investments we
Responsible at the nghttime Significant made in recent years In bine with our
executives underperformance could - P[rogress 395',?51 the sktralegr'land gommumé] priorities set out last year we have
Chris Grigg resutt from inappropriate a lgﬂ"rl‘egl\zlé our rtlts HPIT:I ! ""S ISCUtSSl?-l focused ourinvesiment on London
Charles Maudsley determination and execution at eac " s ko:nml detehWI tre erlence athe and the South East and investing
Tim Roberts of our property investment proper ymatr €15 anc the externat econamic around transport infrastructure
strategy, including emvironmen we ve achieved some key development '
- sector selection and weighting - Indwidual investment decistons are subject to milestones and are also getting closer
robust risk evaluation overseen by our Investment toour customers In Retail we made
- :;mmg of mv;s‘mem and Commitiee lncludlng consideration of returns €420 mitlion of d[sposals as we Increase
Ivestment decisions relative to risk ad|usted hurdle rates our focus on the multi-let purtk)ho
- exposure to developments - Review of prospective performance of individuat where we can put our ptacemaking
- seclor asset lenanl region assets and therr business plans skills to work to drive rental growth
conceniration - We foster coltaborative retattonships with aur Our mveslinent strategy 1S
- CO-INvesimeant arrangeiments co-nvestors and enter inlo cwnership agreements outlined on pages 24 to 25
which balance the mnterests of the parties
Development Development provides an We rnaintain our levels of total and speculative Development 1s an importarnt part
exposure opporturuty for outperformance development exposure as a proportion of the of our business and a key driver of

Responsible
executives

Chris Grigg
Charles Maudstey
Tim Roberts

but this brings with it elevated risk
The care with which we make our
decisions around which schemes
to develop when, as well as our
execution of these projects,

must reflect this

Developrent risks could adversely
impact underlying ncome and
capital perforinance ncluding

- development letting exposure
- construction iming and costs
- major contractor failure

- advet se planning Judgements

refurns We have assembled an
atiractive pipeline of development
opportunities which gives us growlh
into the future and where we are able
to make timely decisions Lo reflect
changes t market condiiens These
mclude exciting opportunities across
our 1hree existing London camplises
the potential to create a new London
campus at Canada Water alongside
significant investment opporiumties
In our existing Retail assets

For more ¢n our development
programme see pages 37 to 39

investment portfalio value within a target range
taking inte account assaciated risks and the iImpact
on key financial metrics This is rnomtored quarierly
by the Risk Committee aleng with progress of
developments against plan

- Prior to committing to a deveiopment, the Group
undertakes a detailed appraisal overseer by our
Investment Commitee including consideration
of returns relative to risk adjusted hurdle rates

- Pre-lei targets are used to reduce devetopment
tetting risk where canstdered appropriate

- We actively engage with the cormmunities inwhich
we operate as detailed m our Local Charler to
ensure that our development activities consider
the interests of all stakeholders

- We manage environmental and social risks across
our development supply chain by engaging with our
suppliers ncludmg through our Sustamability Bret
for Developrnents and Health and Safety Policy

&

People

Responsible

A number of critical business
processes and decisions lie
inthe hands of a few people

Qur HR strategy s designed to minimese rsk through Having expert people s one of the dour
— formed and skilled recruitment processes core locus areas of our business model

tatent performance managernent and succession We provide 3 strong corporate culiure
- taient periarman rag uceasst commetted to our people a great

e e Falllure :of?ec%.(% devtelop a':g planning for key rolas, working environment competitive
Chris Grigy {sear':;ilikﬁg angii:erfi:nlce - highly corpetitive compensation and benefits benefits and carcer development
rmay result in sigruficant - people development and training ?ppor;ur:;iles Wf e’tuﬁ)owe&ouq grlzupllz
o make the most of thewr potential w
underperformance arimpact the The risk 1s measured through employee engagement Our hugh level of staff P
effectiveness of operations and us Qurhigh level of staft engagement
s atop surveys employee turnover and retention metrics db On
decision making in turn impacting was recognised by Imantaining a Une
business performance and regular people review activilies Star rating in the Sunday Times Best
We snonitor this thiough the number of unplanned Companies to Work For sur vey
executive departures in additton to conducting exit For maore on our expert people
interviews see page 23
We engage with our outsourced supplietsto make
clear our requirements In managing key risks
including health and safety fraud and bribery ang
other social and environmental 11sks as detalled
n our Supply Chain Charter
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Risks and

How ne momtor Change mn the pertod

1Hmpacts and manage the rsh

Capital We mantain a capital structure - We manage our mix of equity and deht Balance sheet metrics in the year
Structure which recognises the balance financing to achieve the night balance between remained strong We have maintained
- leverage between performance, risk enhancing returns for sharehoiders and the our capital discipline with investment

Responsible

and flexibility
- Leverage magnifies returns

and devetopment being broadly
bakanced by assei disposals and
reduced our propertionally consolidated

risk of higher leverage
- We monitor our LTV lo manage leverage levels

executive both positive and negative over the propet ty cycle and seek to ensut e that
Lucinda Bell - Anincrease in leverage ncreases L1V should not exeeed a maximum threshotd i LTV10.32% in line with our strategy o
g = nat nerease leverage solely on the basis
\he nsk of a breacth of covenants market yields were 1o rise to previous peak levels
on borrowing facilities and may This means we will not increase our LTV f asset of an improverment in market yields
increass finance costs valuesincrease only as a result of market @ For more on our financial
yield impravement policies see pages 54 to 56
~ We manage our investment activity the size
and timing of which can be uneven aswellas
our development commitments (o ensure that
our LTV tevel remains appropriate
- We lever age our equity and achieve benefits of
scale while spreading risk through joint ventures
and funds which are typicatly partly inanced with
debt without recourse to British Land
Finance Our strategy addresses risks both  We have five key principles guiding our financing We continue to achieve attractive
strategy to continuing solvency and the which tegether are employed to manage the r1sks financings which ienprove earmings
execution stability of our profits inthis area diver sify ot sources of finance phase and hquidity We have completed over
Falure + the 1l maturity of debt portfolio maintain hguidity maintain €1 billon of financing activity during
Responsible ailre to manage the ’lf INancing flexstulity and mantain strong hatance sheet meirics the year including a zero coupon £350
execulive riﬁ?:ﬁ:i??ﬂgéﬁiins::ui See page 55 for further detalls million senior unsecured conver tible
S d 020 which provides further
Lucinda Bell the operations of the business - We monitor the pertod until refinancing 1s bond due 2020 which provides furthe
tacil hey falld d which ke det Lott diversification of our sources of
or repay facikies as they fall due requre V; 1c Ils al ey le ern}lrr‘ma;mkol ;‘nar;cu;g finance and includes flexible
This and a breach of financial actmty atr; mg;: atly evaluate the likelinoad o settlement opticns Based on current
covenani limits are considered to covenanibreac comimtments and our curcent available
be significant risks o the continuing  ~— We are cominitted to maintainiag and enhancing facilities the Group has no requirernent
operation of British Land as a retationships with our key financing partners to refinance {or four years
going concern - We are mindiul of retevant emer ging regulation Fos mare on ow financial policies
which has the potential to impact the way that
see pages M4 te 36
we finance the Group
Income

sustainability

Responsible

We must be mindful of maintaining
sustarnable income streams n
order to continue to generate
returns for our shareholders

- We undertake comprehensive profit and cash
{tow lorecasting Incorporating scenarto analysis
to rnodet the impacl of proposed transactions

- Pro-active assel management approach to

The quality of our portiolio and
environments enables us te atiract
some of the sirongest eccupters to
aur properties this together with our

executives and provide the platform from marntam strong occupier ine-up We manitor high occupancy levels and long lease
Lucinda Bell which to grow the business our markel letting exposure including vacancies lengths provides security of income
Chartes Maudsley through development and upcoming expires and breaks and tenants In We are increasing the diversity of our
Tim Roberts capital appreciation adrmnistration as well as our weighted average occupier mix and no single oceupier
We consider sustamability {ease length accounts '?r ;n?re than 5 7% of stment
of our Income streams tn _ ‘ revenues In delivering our investraen
: [ : [ We havte n[drverflfled occu?er téass an{d monitor strategy we are mindiut of the impact
- executien of iInvestmen concentration of exposure to individual occuplers on our mcame secunty
strategy and capitai recycling orseclors
notably timing of reinvestment - We are proactve in addressing key tease breaks
of sale proceeds and expiries {o minimise perieds of vacancy
- nature and structure - We actvely engage with the commurities in
of leasing actrvty which we operate as detailed i our Local Charter,
- nature and urming of 1o ensure we provide buildings that meet the needs
assel management and of all relevant stakeholders
development activity
KEY

Change from last year

@ Risk exposure has increased @ No significant change 1n 115k expesure @ Risk exposure has reduced

Our principat Key Risk Indicators are ighlighted withinn Howwe mcnitor and rmanage the risk
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Governance and

remuneration

Board of Direclors
Beard of Directors - biographies
Chawman s gover nance review
Our governance siructure
Gover nance 1eview
Report of the Audit Commuttee
Report of the Nomunation Comimittee
Remuneration report
Letter from the Chawrman of the Remuneration Committee
Remuneration Policy
Annual Report on Remuneration

Directors report and
additwonal disclosures

Directors responsibility statement

Photo taken by Sennt Modi
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Governanee and remunerition

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Board develops strategy
and leads British Land to

achieve long term success

Chnis Grigg A
Chief Executive

Appointed in January 2009 ' *#

Lord Turnbull
Senier Independent Director

Appainted Non-Executive Director
n Apnl 2006 became Senior
Independent Director in January 2013

Lynn Gladden
Non-Executve Birector

Appointed in March 2015

Charles Maudsles
Head of Retaill and Leisure

Appointed in February 2010

P

Wilhiam Jackson
Non-Executive Director

Appomnted in Aprik 2011

1:
Smon Borrows [
Non-Executive Directar %

Appointed in March 2011
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Tim Score
Non-Executive Director

Appointed in March 2014

Lucinda Bell
Chief Financial Officer

Appainted in March 2011 became
Chief Financiat Officer in May 2011

Aubrev Adams
Non-Executive Director

Apponted it September 2008

Tim Roberts
Head of Offices and Residential

Appointed in July 2006

Laura Wade-Gen
Non-Executive Director

Appainted in May 2015

John Galdersleeve
Non-Executive Chairman

Appointed Non-Executive Director in
September 2008 and Chairman in
January 2013
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS - BIOGRAPHIES

About the Board

Board composition

9 Board of Directors
R

Men bt e

Wornen

B Non-Executive Chairman
& Independent Non-Executive Directors
Z: Executive Directors

Directors’ core areas of expertisel

Property

Finance

5 T PR

Retail and consumer  JERET L <

Acadermc
Public sector

' Some Directors are represented in more than cne category

Executn e Directors’ appointments

30% 50%

Appomnted internally Appointad externally

Length of Non-Eaxecutive Directors tenures
Under 3years
Jtobyears
Qver 6 years
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Non-Executive Chairman

John Gildersleese

Skills and experience Johnis deputy hairman and semor independent
director of Spire Healtheare Group ple and deputy chairman of TalkTalk
Telecom Group PLC John was the chawrman of Carphone Warehouse
Group unty December 2015 and a non-executive di ector of Pick n Pay SA
until March 2016 Hewas farmerly chairman of New Lock Retail Group
EMI Group and Gallaher Greup a non-executive director of Dixons
Cartphone ptc Lioyds TSB Bank PLC and Vodafone Group and an
executive directar of Tescopic (B 311&

Committee membership
- Nomunation [Charman}

Executive Directors

Chris Grigg

Chief Executive

Skitls and experience Chriswas chief executive of Barclays Commercial
Bank unul November 2008 having joned the bank (n 2005 Priorto
Barclays he was a par tner of Goldman Sachs where his career spanned
20 years

External appointments

- Non-executive directar of BAE Systems plc

- Member of the executive board of the European Public
Real Estate Assocration

- Member of the board of the Bnush Property Federation

Lucmda Beli
Chuef Financiat Officer

Skills and experience Lucinda is a char ter ed accountant with
over 2Gyears of industry expenience In 2006 she was a member
of the HM Treasury appointed working party which designed the
implementation of the REIT regime

External appointments
- Non-executive director of Rotork plc
- Member of the Accounting for Sustainability CFQ Leadership Network

Charles Maudsley

Head of Retarl and Leisure

Skills and experience Charles joired British Land in 2810 from LaSalte
investment Management He had previcusty been with AXA Real Estate
investment Managers for seven years

Tim Roberts
Head of Offices and Residential

Skills and experience Before joining British Land in 1997 Tim was
a partner at Drivers Jonas i the Investment Agency team He was
formerly a non-executive director of Songhbird Estates until 2009

External appointments
- Trustee of the propetty industry chanty LandAid
and Chair of the Grants Commitiee




Non-Executive Directors

Aubrev Adams

Siulls and experience Aubreyis group chairof L&Q the housing
assoc@non and residential developer He was formerly head of property
within RBS s Restructuring Dvision a non-execufive director of Pinnacle
Regeneration Grotp Lamted semorindependent director of Associated
British Ports PLC non-executive chairman of Unstech Carporate Parks
PLC non-executive chairman of Air Partner PLC chief executive of
Savills PL.C and non-executive charrman of Max Property Group PLC
Aubrey 1s chawrman of the board of trustees of Wigmor e Hall

Committee membership
- Audit

Smen Borrows

Skills and experience Simon s the chief executive of 31 Group plcand 2
member of the supervisory board of Peer Holdings BY the Dutch hotding
company for 3t s investment in Actton the non-food discount retatler

He worked for 28 years in the banking and finance industry most
recently as chairman of Greenhitl & Co International LLP He was atso
chref executive officer of Baring Brathers Imternational Limited the
corporate finance division of ING Barings and was a non-executive
director of Inchcape plc untd May 2015

Committee membership
- Audit

Lvnn Gladden

Skills and experience Lynriis a non-executive director of IP Group plc
She s Professor of Chermical Engineering at the Univer sity of Cambridge
cormsrussioner of the Royal Commission for the Exhibition of 1851 and

a feltow of the Royal Society and Royal Academy of Engineering She
was formerly a member of the Council of the Engineering and Physicat
Sciences Research Councit and held the position of pro-wice-chancellor
for research at the University of Cambridge until 3t Deceamber 2015

Committee membership
- Remuneration

William Jackson

Slalls and experience Wiihiam s Managing Partner of Bridgepoint one
of Europe s leading private equily groups winch he has led since 2002
He also serves as chairrman of the board of Pret A Manger and president
of Dorna Sparts SL the nghts helder to the MotoGP world motarcycling
championships He has served on a range of boards during tus career
and has extensive operational and transaction experience

Committee membership
- Remuneration
- Nomination

Laura Wade-Gerv

Skills and experience Laura is an executive director Multi Channel of
Marks and Spencer Group plc [M&S] Prior tojoining M&S in July 2011
she had served m a varely of senor roles at Tesco PLC Lauwrawasa
non-executive director of Trinity Mirror ple unhl 2012 {aurais a trustee
of the Royal Opera House and Aldeburgh Music

Committee membership
- Remuneration

Tim Score

Skills and experience Fim Is a non-executive director of Pearson ple
and HM Treasury He was formerly chuef financial officer of ARM
Holdings PLC and held semer financial positions at Rebus Group Limited
Willlam Bawrd ple LucasVarity plcand BTR ple Frorm 2005 to 2014

he was a nen-executive director of Naticnal Express Group PLC

Committee membership
- Audit {Charman)

Lord Turnbull

Senior Independent Director

Skitls and experience Andrew entered the House of Lords n 2005
as a Crossbench Life Peer He retired as Secretary of the Cabinet and
Head of the Home Cwil Sesvice in July 2005 Andrew previously held
the positions of Perrnanent Seci etary of HM Treasury and Permanent
Secretary at the Department of the Environment He was formerly a
non-executive director of Arup Group chairman of BH Glabat Limited
and a non-executive of Prudential PLC from 2086 untl May 2615 He
was a nan-execulive director of Frontier Economics Ltd from 2006
until Novernber 2015

Committee membership
- Remuneration [Chairman)
- Nomination

Companv Secretary

Elaine Williams

Elaine was appomted Company Secretary and General Counsel tn
November 2015 She was formerly Deputy Group Company Secrelary
at HSBC Haldings plcand priortothat a partnerat Freshfields
Bruckhaus Deringer
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Governance and remuneration

CHAIRMAN S GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Welcome to the Corporate Governance
and Remuneration sections of our
Annual Report

Our robust governance structure is anlegral part of the way Baittsh Land
designs and delivers its sirategy supporting effective decisien-making
and enabling the nght people 1o have access to the right infermation at the
right ime As reported in the Chief Executive s review we have delivered
another stiong set of results as we progress in tmplementing our strategy
of creating Places People Prefer The Board continues to make a valuzable
contribution in overseeing the delivery of our strategy providing
constructive challenge to management and ensurinig key nsks

are identified and properly managed

Mare infer mation on our strategy and
progress ¢an be found on pages 1810 25

British Land has a tughly effective Board as confirmed by thisyears
internally conducted Beard evaluaton exercise reinforcing the positive
results of last year s externally facilitated evaluation We have not made
any changes to the Board or Committee membership this year other
John Gildersleeve than the appointrment of Laura Wade-Gery on 13 May 2015 which we
Chatrman reported on last year We are not propesing any changes to the Board
at the 2076 Annual General Meeting [AGM]

Directors’ attendance during the vear ended

31 March 2016 Read our Board biographies on pages 66 o 69
John Gildersleeve 8/8
We value continuity and experience of British Land s businessand are
Chris Grigg 8/8
delighted to endorse the Nomination Committee s recommendation
Lord Turnbutt 8/8
Aubrov Adams 8/ that Lot d Turnbull be re-appointed as Senor Independent Director
y = Lot d Turnbull wili step down as Chairman of the Rernuneration
Lucinda Bell 8/8 Cornmittee following this year s Annual General Meeting although he
Simon Borrows 8/8 | will ;emaina member of that commuttee William Jackson has agreed
Lynn Gladden 8/8 to take on the positien of Chairman of the Remuner ation Comimittea
Williarn Jacksory 7/8
Chartes Maudsley 8/8 | The Remuneration Committee has recommended thal we seek appraval
I'm Roberts 8/8 this year of a new Remuneration Policy as aur Matching Share Plan
Tim Score’ 7/8 expires this year Amendments to cur Long-Term Incentive Plan [LTIP]
Laura Wade-Gery? 43 are pioposed to deliver & simplified remuneration structure with one
leng term incentive arrangement No other material changes 1o the
! Withiam Jacksan and Tim Score were unable to attend an unscheduled Board existing policy are proposed
meeting called on short nottce and held by telephone due to pre-existing
business cammitments The Rermnuneration Reportis setout on
? Laura Wade-Gery was appainted on 13 May 2015 Laura Wade-Gery was pages 86 to 110

unable to atizend one Board meeting due 10 a pre-existing business
commitiment and one due to iiiness
A121@
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We belteve that good governance requires open engagement with
stakeholders and have sought and responded to feedback about our
governance structures and the way our businessis run We have
consulted widely and taken into account mvester views In relation to
the proposed changes to our LTIP and hope to recemve your continued
support of our Remunes ation Poticy to enable us io offer competitive
remuneraticn structures to attract and retain the best pecple ilook
forward to receiving your feedback on this and other matters at and
in advance of our AGM on 19 July 2016

Weioers.

John Gildersleeve
Non-Executive Chairman

Chairman s statement go to pages 4 to 5

Comphanee with the Code

The Board has cantinued to apply good governance prachces during
the year operating in comphance with the UK Corporate Governance
Code [the Code ] For ease of reference this s howwe demonstrate
our comphiance throughout the Governance and remuneration sectron
of the Annual Report and Accounts 2016

@ A. Leadership

v B Effectveness

v/ C Accountability

@ D Remuneration

@ E Relations with shareholders

Padd.ngton Central

Ealing Broadway
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Governanee amd remuneration

OUR GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Our governance structure ensures
that the right people have access
to the right information

Board

- Develops strategy and leads Brihish Land
lo achieve long term success

- Determnes nature and extent
of significant risks

- Mantains dialogue with shareholders

L

P vk T E e

Comnuttecs of the Board
- Report on thew actvitres to the Board -

atd] suditfnvessges ‘
mggmgmmu .

o [P ¢ I

Risk Committee

- Manages strategic and operatonal risk in
achieving the Company s per{ormance goals

- Recommends appropriate nisk appetite levels

-~ Morutors the Company s risk exposure

- Reviews aperation of nsk management
processes

- Meets four bmes a yeai

- Reports to the Audit Commuttee

- Chared by Chief Financiat Officer

- Membership Execulive threclors

Management Comnuttees
- Report on their activities to the Board
and its Committees as appropriate

Operations Comnuttee

- Provides collaborative leader ship across
the Company opei ahonalises business stiategy
champions visicn placemaking and values
and leads change 1n the business

- Meets regularly through the year

- Memberslup semorindividuals across
business functions
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Repat of this Nommaiion Commutes
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Executive Committes

- Considers day-to-day operattonal matlers
for running the business

- Reviews performance of the Group s assels
and developiment pragramme

- Generally meets twice monthly

- Reports to the Board

- Chan ed by Chiel L xecutive

- Membership Executive Directors and stx
sanior execulives

Health and Safety Committee

~ Reviews performance agawst targels and drives
forward actions in pursust of the Company s
health and safety goals
Meeis four tmes a year

- Heports to the Risk Commutlee

- Chaired by Chief Financial Otficer

- Memberstup stail with relevant responsibilities
from across the business

- Three subcormmitiees Construclion Managed
Portfolio and Head Qffice [stati committeel




Matters reserved for Board approval

- Transactions and financing arrangements aver £100 million

- Issue of securities

- Employee share and optton schemes

~ Documents for distribution to sharehelders and the Annual Report
and Accounts

- Dvidends

- Establishing authority levels below those of the Board

R
5
ey
5&5(\9’1 X
- by g X

Remuneration Commiittee

- Seis remunershion of the Charman
Chuef Executive, Lxeculive Directors
and Company Secrelary

Rermusierat:on report see pages 86 to 116

Investment Committee

- Reviews approves or recommends
capitat transactions

- Recommends major transactions
for Board approval

- Meets as required

- Chaired by Chvet Executive

- Membership Executive Directors

Invesiment sticking to aur strategy

see page 77
Chanty and Cornmunity Committee Sustamnability Committee
- Approves all spend under the charity - Custodian for sustainabnlity strategy
and communy budget - Reporis o the Board
- Reporls to the Executive Commillee - Chaired by Chief Financial Officer
- Chaired by a Sentor Retail Asset Manager - Membership execulveswith defined areas

of responsibility
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Govermanee and remuneration

GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Our robust governance structure is an
integral part of the way we design and

deliver our strategy

The Board has contunued to apply good governance practices during

the year and considers that the Company has fully complied with the UK
Corporate Governance Code (the Code] This section of the Annual Report
and Accounis 2016 outlines how we have apglied the Code s principles
and prowsions throughout the year We are repos Uing 2agamst the Code
which applies te companies with reporting periods beginning on or after

1 Qctober 2614 A copy of the Code 15 availabie at www fre org uk

Leadership

The Board s coi e responsthilities inctude setting British Land s st ategic
aims and leading the Company as t works to achieve these aims and
atiain long term success The Board focuses on strategy throughout
the year and the annual Strategy Days provide a key opportunity to
dotins as explamed in the box to the night Progress against and the
dppropriateness of the aygreed strategy are considered at Board
meetings during the year i light of Company per formance and
changes to the external envitonment

There ts a written division of responsibitities between the Chairman
[responsible for running the Boardl and the Chief Executve [responsible
for running the Cornpany s businessl which has been approved by the
BoardA211®

The Executive Duectors led by the Chief Execulive are respensible

for ensuring that the business i1s run in accordance with the Board 5
strategy Therelatvely smali number of employees at Briush Land
rmeans that the Executive Directors are involved in or aware of all major
actmues of the Group - hence they are extremely well placed ic ensure
that actions are aligned with the Board s straiegy This s exemplified by
the process by which investment opportumues are appraised Maore
tnformation an the involvement of the Executive Directorsin the
investment process can be found on page 77

[he Board sets the parameters and contrats within which the Company s
ranagement imay oper ale when underiaking the day-to-day running of
the business These controls ensure that dectsions are taken by people
with the correct authority io do so

The major decisions reserved for Board approvdl and other decrsions
delegated to the Execulive Directors are formally documented (A 111 @
The Executive Directors make decisions within these predefined
parameters Decisions that would normally fall within these parameters
may sull be taken to the full Board for approval where such decisions
relate to actvities outside the ordinary course of business or where

the Executive Directors consider it appropriate to do so Management
Commitiees deat with their specific areas of responsibibity before making
decisions bwhere they have authority to do sof or recomimending actions
for Board-level approvat if thisis required Akey consideration when
making each decision 1s an whether the proposed action 1s aligned with
the strateqy the Board has developed
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The Chairman meets with indwiduat Directors outside formal Board
meetings as part of each Director s centinuing contribution to the
delivery of the Company s strategy This process also allows for apen
two-way discussion about the effectiveness of the Board ts Committees
and indwidual Directors both Executive and Non-Executive By these
means the Chairman s continually informed of the views of indiadual

Dii ectors and ranacl as necessary to deal with any 1ssues relating to
Board effecuveness before they become a risk 1o the Company

The Strategy Davs
The annual Strategy Days held in February are attended by the full
Boeard and the Executive Comrruttee

The Executive Director s semor executives and external guests deliver
a number of preseniations to the Board providing an in-depth anatysis
on all aspects of the business and the external environment The
Strategy Days are a key opportunity 1¢ discuss chatlenge and devetop
the Company s sirategy

As well as considering the Group as @ whole and the ovei all corparate
straiegy consideration is given to each par t of the Group s current and
prospective portfobo and to Group financing

The days are carefully structured to achieve a balance between
presentabians and tme for debate and discussian

Arvas focused on at the 2016 Strategy Days inctuded
- Corporate Stralegy

- Feedback from Investor Perception Audit

- Office Strategy

- Retail Strategy

- Canada Water

Cultmie and composition of the Boad

The composition of the Board 1s a fundamental driver of its success as

it provides strong and effective leadership the breadth of knowledge

skills and expenence of our Non-Executive Directors is detalled in thex
biographies on pages 68 and 69 The Nomination Committee 1s responsible
for reviewing the compasition of the Board and Board-level Commutlees
and assessing whether the balance of skills, experience knowledge and
independence 15 appropriate to enable them (o oper ate effectively (8 2 2] @

The procedure forthe appointrmeni of new Directors 1s rigorous and
transparent Other than the appomntment of Laura Wade-Gery on 13 May
2015 ne changes to the composition of the Board occurred during the year




Non-Executive Directors are appointed for specified terms and all
Directors offer themselves for etection or re-election by shareholders
at the Annual General Meeting [AGM} each year if the Board on the
recornmendation of the Nomination Commitiee deems it appropriate
that they remain n office (B 7} &

Lord Turnbull has been a Non-Executive Du ector since April 2004

He has now completed ten years :n office Whilst takeng into account the
need to progressively refresh its members through new appotntments
the Board recogruses the importance of continuity and the value

that Directers who serve for many year s are able to bring When a
Non-Executive Director s tenure goes further than nine years ther
independence s carefully r eviewed and momitored The Nomunation
Cominittee has again rigorously reviewed Lord Turnbull s contribution
and independence over the years and recommended to the Board that
It 1$ appropriate for hirn to remain in office and the Board is satisfied
that he remains ndependent (B 2 31&

We continue to have a strong mix of experienced indwiduals on the Board
with the majarity being Non-Executive Directors who ar e independent
and can offer an external perspective on the business and constructively
challenge the Executtve Diectors particularly when developing the
Company s strategy (B 111@ (B 12)@ The Non-Executive Directors
scrulimise the performance of managernent in meeting thewr agreed
goals and objectives and monitor the reporting of performance They
satisfy themselves of the integnity of financial information and that
internal controls and systems of risk management are effective

The Board culture is one of openness and constructive debate the
[recters voice ther apinions in a relaxed and respectful environment
allowmng coherent discussion The Chairman s responsible for mamtaining
this cullure He does so by ensuring information of an appropriate quality
15 provided In 2 timety manner before Beard meetings the apportunity to
properly consider such infarmalion in advance leads to focused discussion
in the boardreorn When running Board meeiings the Chairman maintains
a collaborative almosphere and ensures that all Directors contribute
todebates The Chairman arranges infoermal meetings and events
throughout the year ta help build constructive relationships between

the Board members

The high calibre of debate and the particopation of all Directors Executive
and Non-Executive allowthe Board te utilise the experience and skilis
of the individual Directors to ther maximum potential and make
well-considered decisions that are in the best interest of the Company

The Board considers that Aubrey Adams Sirnon Borrows Lynn Gladden
Willlam Jackson Tim Score Lord Turnbuil and Laura Wade-Gery are
independent In making this determmation the Boar d has considered
whether each Director s independent in character and judgement and
whether there are relationships or circumstances which are likely to
affect or could appear to affect the Diector s judgement [B 1 1) &

The Board believes that the Nen-Executive Directors biographues
demoensirate that they are of the stature and expenence required to
properly perforen their rotes as independent Nan-Executive Directors
Followirg this year s Board evatuation the Board believes each Nan-
Executrve fhrector standing for re-election at the next AGM continues to
effectively fulfit and remains commutted 10 then ¢ ole within Briish Land
The terms and conditions of appointment of Non-Executive Directors are
avatable for tnspection at the Company s registered office and at the AGM

B321@

Effectiveness

Regular Board and Committee meetings are scheduled thraughout

the year and the Directors ensure that they allocate sufficient time 1o
dischat ge their duties effectvely Dccasionally Beard meetings may be
held at short notice when Board-level decisions of a me-critical nature
need to he made Non-Executive Directors letters of appointment set out
the time commitments expected and each Director s attendance record
{shown on page 70] 1s considered when assessing whethes they should
stand for reappointment by sharehoiders

The Chairman considers that all the Directers continue to devote
sufficient ime ta dischai ging their duties to the required high standard
British Land s policy 15 to allow Executive Directors to take one non-
executive directorship atanother FTSE company subject to Briush Land
Board approval External appointments of the Director s are disclosed in
their hiographies and fees earned by Executive Director s are disclosed
on page 101 of the Remuneration Report [D12}@

The Directors are required ta naotify the Company of any petential
confliicts of interest that may affect them in their roles as Diectors of
Briush Land All potential conflicts of intet est are recorded and reviewed
by the full Board at teast annually

The Non-Executive Directors are kept well informed of the key
developments i the business by both the Executive Directors and other
senior executives through reqular reports and presentations Reports
include a Management Report delivered by the Chief Executive at each
Board meeting and updates on the activities of the Risk and Sustainability
Committees

Throughout the year presentations and reports on specific aspects of
the business and individual assets are also delivered along with updates
on the regulatory and external envir onment

Care s taken to ensure that nformation s circulated in goad ume

before Board and Commuttee meetings whenever possible and that
reports are presented clearly and contain the appropriate levet of detait
to enable the Board to discharge its duties [Uis the Company Secrelary s
rote to facilitate effective information flows between the Board and

its Committees and between senior management and Non-Executive
Directors The Company Secretary 1s responssble for advising the

Board on governance matters thiough the Chairman [B 5 2]@

The Mon-Executive Director s are therefore able to monitor the
management of lhe business and the implementation of the strategic
aims effectively and are able 1o assess the suitabibity of the current
strategy and the performance of the Chawrman and Executive threctors

B51)@

Board evaluation

The effectiveness of the Board and its Committees is reviewed annuatly
with an independent externaily facititated review being conducted at
least once every three years Thelast external review was conducted
n2015(B & 2) &

An internal review of the Board and its Commmitiees was conducted in
2016 hy the Company Secretary by way of questionnaire and covered

the followwng areas § role orgznisation and a cormpasition of the Board
and is Committees [nl agenda [uil corporate governance (v} quality

of nformation §) monttoring Company performance and (v} Beard
leadershup and culiure The review concluded that overatt the Board
operated very effectivelywith a continuous high standard of pertormance
throughout theyear (B 611 &
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Governanee and remuneration

GOVERNANCE REVIEW CONTINUED

During the year the Ehairman met each Non-Executive Director
individually to discuss their contribubion to the Board and the Senior
Independent Director met with the other Non-Executive Directors fwith
Executive Dit ectors present] 1o discuss the performance of the Chairman
(A 421@1(B 6 3)©@ The Remuneration Commutize was provided with

an appraisal of the Chief Evecutive s performance by the Chairman

and an apprarsal of the performance of the Executive Directors by

the Chief Executive

Board traiming and development

British Land provides for all Directors a tailor ed and thorough induction
ncluding the oppot tunity to meet with senior executives 1o be given

an averview of their specrfic areas of responsibility withan the business
and the oppartunity to visit the Campany s key properties and
developments [B 4 1)@

The Company also offers Directers opportumties to update and relresh
their knowledge on an ongaing basis to enable them 1o continue fulfiling
their roles as Board mernber s and Commitiee members effectively

This includes training opportumties and fur ther visits to the Company s
propet ties asrequired In2015/14 the Board held meetings at the
Company s properties Broadgate Estate and Paddington Central

n addition to the Company s head office Uptlates on the external
enviranment and regulatory matters are delivered to the Board

and relevant comrmuttees by exlernal speaker s including corporate
governance updates B 4 2] &

Key areas dhiscussed and reviewed by the Board
m 2016

- puicomes of the Board Strategy Days and approval of strategy

- approval of risk appetite

- pringspal risks faced by the Company

- reports of the actvities of the Audit [ingluding risk] Remuneration
and Nomination Committees

- Chief Executive s Management Reports quarterly updates on
the business and exterpal environment

- updates on the portfolio including devetopments acquisittons
and disposals

- updates on financing

= results of the Board performance evatuation

~ reappointment of Directors at the AGM

- conflicts of mterest

- approval of year end results the Annual Report and Accounts
the AGM Circular and dividends

- people development and succession ptanning

- heatth & salety

- sustarabibity

~ wesior relations reperts

- Remuneration policy

- cybersecurity and

- information technology
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Accountabilin

The Board 1s responsible for preparning the Annual Report and Accounts
and as confirmed in the Directors responstbilily statement the Board
hetieves that this Annuzl Report and Accounts taken as a whote s far
halanced and understandable and provides the infermation necessary
to assess Briush Land s position performance business model and
strategy [C 11}« The basis on which the Company creates and

preser ves value over the long term is described in the strategic

report {C12) %2

@ [he Directors Responsibility Staternent 1s set out on page 113

Strategic report see pages 1o 62

The Annuat Repaort and Accounts 1s cormpiled by the relevant responsible
individuals across the Company Specific sections are reviewed by
Department Heads and Executive Comsuttee members as appropriate
ensuring that all key stakeholders across the business are involved

The Executive Directors are closely nvalved in drafting and reviewing
theu 1elevant sections of the Report before formally signing them off
Finance Investor Relations and Company Secretariat canduct a 1 obust
due dilbgence process venifying key staternents made within the Annual
Report and Accounts The full Annual Repor t and Accounts is then
1eviewed tharoughly by the Audit Commiitee heforeitis presented

to the Beard for approvat

The procedure undertaken to enable the Board to provide the fair
balanced and understandable confirrnation to shareholders has been
reviewed by the Audit Committee The processis enhanced by a specihic
meetng belween the Chief Financial Officer Head of Strategy and
investor Relations and the Group Financial Controller and their retevant
team member s to review and document the key considerations

undei taken to ensure that mformation presented s fair batanced and
understandable Areport detailing those considerations was reviewed
by the Audit Commiltee alongside a summary of the detaited procedures
undertaken and the full Annual Repar t and Accounts

Risk management and mternal control
The Board determines the nature and extent of the significant risks
it1s wilbing to take in achieving the Company s strategic objectives

The maintenance of the Company s risk managerment and miternal
controt systems s the responsibility of the Board Oversight of the
eflectiveness of the r1sk management and internal control system

has been delegated to the Audit Commuiilee A lop-down risk review

15 combined with a complementary botlom-up appi oach 1o ensut e that
risks are fully considered Aswell as complying with the Code the best
practice recommendattons in Guidance for Risk Management Internal
Control and Related Financiat and Business Repor ting have been
adopled and the Company s internzl cont: ol framework has been
assessed againsi the internationally recognised COS0 Internal Control
Integrated Framework The latier assessment showed that all key
control elements are in place Appropriate internal conirol and nisk
management processes apply to all entites which Briush Land
adminssters including all matenial joint ventures and funds (C 2 3] 2

Brish Land 5 approach tanisk inctuding the roles of the Board the
Audit Commitiee and the Risk Commutlee in seting risk appetite and
maonitoring risk exposure 1s descnbed in the Managing 11k in delives ng
our strateqy section of the report on pages 57 ta 631{C 2 1@

Formal and transparent arrangements exist for considering how
corporate reporung risk management and internal control principles
are applied and for maintaining an appropriate relationship with the
Company s auditor




Imvestiment sticking to our stategy

Executive Birectors are involved throughout the investment process
and alignment with the Board s strategy is considered from the
tnittal discussion of a transaction, right through to final approval

| |

.

All new investment opportunities are discussed at weekly
deal sour cing mertings attended by invesiment executives
Potentiatly attractive deals that aze in ine with sirategy
are selected to be investigated and analysed 0 detail by
project tearns

Project teams assess whether investment opportuntties
should be pursued cenducting detailed progerty and
carperate due dilgence ongoing dialogue with the relevant
Executive Committee members takes place throughout
the process

2

Investment cppartuniies with potential are presented for
Investment Commitiee approval Depending on the size
and nature of a transaction the Investment Commitiee
can approve the proposed transaction cutright or
recommend it for approvat by the full Board

{nvestment opportunities are presented to the full Board
far approval when required

4

The Group s inter nal control system 15 built on the fellowing fundamentat

principles and is subject to review by Internat Audit

- A defined schedule of matters reserved for approval by the full Board

- A detaited authonsation process na matertal commitrnients are entered
into without thorough review and approval by more than one
authorised person

- Format documentation of ail significant transactions

~ A robust system of business and financial ptanning includes cash flow
and prefitability for ecasting and scenario analysis pecformed on major
corporate property and financing proposals

- A robust process for property investment appraisais

- Monitoring of key outcemes particularly expendiure and performance
of signdicant investments against budget and forecast

- Clearly defined policies and review of actual performance against policies

- Benchmarking of property performance against external sources such
as tnvestment Property Databank

- Key controls testing

- A comprehensive property and corporate insurance programme and

- A formal whistle-blowing policy

The Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of the Group s system

of internal control over financiai repor ting annuatly icluding the
syslemns of control for material joint ventures and funds Duning the
course of Its review of the risk management and internal control systems
over financial reporting the Audit Cornmittee has notidentified nor

been advised of a failbing or weakness which 1t has determined 1o be
significant [C 23] &

A number of policies are in place (o ensure that the Company not ondy
meets is legal obligatrons but also behaves ethically acts with integnity
and protects its assets from the unlawful activities of others These
include an Anti-Bribery and Cor ruption Pobicy a Competition Policy

and a Fraud Awareness Pelicy Al employees are made aware of the
policies and procedures in plare with understanding enhanced hy staft
comemunications and Lrawung

Viability and going concern
To read ous wability statement see page 58 [C 2 21€)

The Group has censiderable undrawn debt facilities and cash deposits
i excess of current drawn banlang faciliies There 1s substanual
headroom against the cavenants for its unsecured banking facilities

it also benefits from a diverse and secure income strearn from leases
with leng average tease terms

Having assessed the principal nisks and other matters discussed in
connection with the viabiliy statement the Directors believe that the
Group1s well placed to manage 1its financing and other business risks
satisfactorily and have areascnable expectation thet the Company and
the Group have adequate resources to continue i oper ation for at {east
12 months from the date of the Annuat Report They therefore consider it
appropriate o adopt the going concern basis of accounting

1n preparing the hnanciai statemants [C 131 &

Taxation

Our principles of good governance extend to our responsible approach

to tax It remains important to our stakeholders that the Company s
approach to tax s gligned to the long term values and strategy of the
Group The Group s tax strategy 1s the responsimbity of the ( hief Francial
Officer with close involvement of Executive Directors and senior
management in all activity The Audit Commuttee 1s presented with

an annual tax update

Employees

Having expert people at Briush L and 15 one of the four core elements
of ourbusiness model This applies both to the indmiduals on the Board
whao have respenstbility for teading the Company and to the employees
who work throughout Bntish Land

We encourage a high degree of employee involvernent in the Company
and provide regular infermation on business activities and explanations
of strategy through Cempany meettngs tratning sessiens mternal
communicaticns and an annual Cempany conference Employee
feedback s also strongly encouraged

The Operations Committee [0pCol which 1s comprised of senior
individuats across British Land sbusiness functions assists the
Executive Cemmitiee with operatienal matters arising in the day-to-day
management of the business The CpCo forms a link between the
Executive Committee and wider teams of employees enhancing the flow
of information around the Company both upwards and downwards to
improve the strategic and tactical decisions that are made The aim of
the OpCots to strengthen collaboration across the Company in driving
imtiatives that help us achieve our objectives The OpCo also plays an
increasingly important 1 ele i the development of the operational
leadership areas of cur business such as technology

Briush Land continues te imptement a number of initiatives to heip
develop our employees and grow internat talent rewnforcing the
Cornpany culturs of excellence and embedding values and hehaviours
As a relatively smalt company in terms of number of employees we are
proud Lo be able to invest in cur people on an indwidual hasis taking
time to understand specific requirermnents to progress careers

We have well-established all-employee share schemes to incentivise
employees at all levels in the Company and align ther interests with
those of shareholders by building 2 hotding of British Land shares
Separate pension fund reports are made available to members
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Governznee surd remuneration

GOVERNANCE REVIEW CONTINUED

Staff turnover
2014 2015 2014
Head office 44 §19%) 31(12%) 32 115%!}
Broadgate Estates 53115%) 28 (1%} 42 [20%I]
Totat [averagel 98 117%¢ 59 {12%) 74 [17%]

The benefit of dwersity both an the Board and throughout the Company
continues to be a key consideration when searching for candidates for
Board and other apposntments In addition, the Company continues Lo
support the Pathways to Property programme which aims lo increase
diversity within the property industry as a whole by attracting students
from a variety of backgrounds into the property sector

Funding to charity and good causes

Cur Local Charter sets out how we build trust by suppor ting successful
local communities and develop skilis and opportunities to help local
people and businesses giew Cur Charstable and Community Funding
Guidalines set out how we allocate funding with a particular focus on
initiatives close to our assets that have a positive impact on young people
education employment and training Both decuments can be found on
our website at www britishland com/policies

The Chanity and Community Cornrmuittee which approves oll spend under
the Chanty and Community Budget 1s chaired by a Senior Retail Asset
Manager and reports te the Executive Commuttee on an annual basis

Donations during the year totalled £1 371 044 compared with £1 287 500
in the previous year British Land does not make any donations to
political organisations

Health and Safety

We have retained formal recogmition of our focus on health and safety
through a successtul audit of our OHSAS 18007 accreditation We
continue to improve ocur approach to health and safety management to
ensure that we consistently achieve best practice across all activities in
the business [censtruction managed porifolio and head office] to detver
Places People Prefer to cur employees and our customers

RIDDOR* Year ended 31 March

Total RIDDOR
Accidents Accident Freguency Rate
2014 2015 e 2015

Constructicn 3 8 014 019 per 160 000
hours worked
Retaill 23 19 am 00%  per100000
footiall
Offices 4 2 18 85 750 per 100000
workers
Head Office a ] 0 0 perig0 OGO
full time
equivalents

*Reporting of Injuries Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 2013
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Remuneration

The Rermwuneration Cormmittee has recommended that we seek approval
this year of a new Remuneration Policy as our Matching Share Plan
expires this year We are notintending to renew the Matching Share Plan
Amendments to our Long-Term Incentive Plan are proposed te detiver

a simpiified remuneration structure with one long term incentive
arrangement The new Remuneration Policy 1s set out on pages 92 to 98

Relations with shareholders

The Board remains cornmmutied to mantarnng open channels

of communtcation with shareholders it s important to us that
shareholders understand the Company s strategy and objectives
these must be explamed clearly and shareholders feedback must
be heard and theissues and questions raised property considered

British Land has a dedicated investor Relations team which reports o
the Chief Financial Officer Communication with investors and analysts
1s an ongoing process throughout the year Thisincludes regular
scheduled Investor Relations events summarised in the box on the page
apposite one-to-one and group meetings with Executive Oirectors and
tours of our properties aswell as regular contacl with the Investor
Relations team During the year the Chief Execulive Chuef Fingncial
Offtcer and cur investor Relations team met with representatives from
over 180 nstitutions We periodically commission an independent
investor perception study which 1s presented to the Board

The full Board plans to attend the AGM which provides an opportunity
for all shareholders to question the Direclors in person

Significant emphasis is placed on the smportance of feeding shareholder
views both positive and negative back to the Board Awnitten investor
relations report which includes direct market feedback on actvity during
the period Is presented o the Executive and Non-Executive Directors

at earh scheduled Board meeting for discussion Shareholder opinions
are also given due consideration throughout the annuat Str ategy Days
ENM@EI 2@




Kev un estor relations actn itzes daring the year meluded

May 2015 - Full-year resulls presentation
- Full-year rcadshow London

June 2015 - Investor property conferences London
and Netherlands
- investor rozdshow Edinburgh

July 2015 - (1 imerim managerneni siatement and call
- AGM
-~ Retait capitat markets day London

September 2015 - Investor roadshow US
~ Private Client roadshow London
- Investor property canterence London
- Investor property towr The Leadenhall Building

November 2015 - Half-year resulis presentation
~ Half-year resulis roadshow London
- lnvestor propetty conference London

December 2015 ~ Investor property conference London

- Analyst and investor tour Broadgate
Januaiy 2016 - Investor property conference London

- Trading statement investervideo and catl
February 2016 - Investor roadshow Netherlands
March 2016 -~ investor conference US

- Private Client readshow, London

British Land avms 1o be informative and accessible to all shareholders
For results and other key announcements we provide imformation on
a timely basis to both retail and institutional shareholders A number
of case studies covering topics that range from profiles of our key
assets Lo sustainability activities are also avallable to view onine
Shareholders can ask guestions at any time via our contacts page on
the corporate wehsite

Contact British Land
www britishland com/contacts

We are pleased with the tevel of engagement with shareholders acheved
duning the year and the Board also recognises the important contributton
of provider s of capital other than shareholders namely our lenders and
hond holders We maintain a regular and open dizlogue with our lenders
to help us understand their investment appetite and cnitenia

Lord Turnbutt Semor Independent Director 15 available to address
any concerns shareholders may wish o rarse other than via the usual
chiannels of the Chairman Chief Executive or other Executive Directors

AL
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Governance aml remunersttion

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

We are committed to monitoring
the Group’s control environment
and financial reporting processes

——

Tim Score
Chawman of the Audit Committee

Audit Committee members’ attendance during
the year ended 31 March 2016!

Tim Score 5/5
Aubrey Adams 5/5
Simon Borrows 5/5

During 2016 senior executives were invited to attend and/or present at
meetings of the Commuitee including the Cheef Financial Dfficer the Head of
Strategy and investor Relations the Financial Coniroller the Head of Tax the
Head of Financial Reporting and the Head of Financial Planming and Analysis
and Risk Committee Secretary

a121@

Terms of Reference

The Commitlee s Terms of Reference, can be feund on the Company s
websile al www britishland com/committees
IC3214iCc33l«

80 British Land | Annval Report and Accounts 2016

Wetcome to the report of the Audit Commuttee

The key areas of focus for the Committee this year have heen reviewing
and adwising the Board on the wiability statement included in the Annuat
Report and Accounts scrutimising the process for valuation of
investment and development properties by the Group s external valuers
and overseeing the Internal Audit tender

Composition
The Committee comprises Aubrey Adams, Simon Borrows and mysetf
as Commuttee Charman [C31]%

Each of the Comimitiee members s constdered to be appropriately
qualfied and expenienced to futfil their role For the purposes of the
Code 1am the member of the Commitige nomnated as having
significant recent and relevant linancial experience

Acovities

During the year the Comrmitiee has undertaken each of sts principal
responsdibities receming relevant repai ts irom the external valuers

the internal and external auditors the Risk Committee and managernent
and challenging the valithty of accounting assumptions and judgements
The table on page 81 details the principal responsibitities of the
Comimuttee and key areas of focus throughout the year

The Commuttee performs a detaled review of the content and tone ef

the annual and hatl-year ly press releases and the Annual Report and
Accounis as wellas rading updates The Committee has satisfied itself
that controls over the accuracy and consistency of information presented
n the Annual Report and Accounts are robust and has confirmed to the
Board that it believes this Annual Report and Accounts)is fair balanced
and understandable [C 3 4] “2 An assurance opimion 1s obtained for

the Cornpany [t om Pricewaler houseCooper s LLP [PwC) over selected
sustainahility data and a venlication exer cise 1s per formed by management
lo ensure consistency and accuracy of information presented

In addition to tegular committee meetings additional tirne is spent by
members of the Audit Commuittee meeting with executive management
to understand keyissues The Cormmittee regularly meets with PwC
and Internal Auditwithout management present and the Commiitee
Chawman meets privately with the external valuers




Prineipal responsibibises Key areas discussed and reviewed by the

ot the Commuttee Commuttee durng 2016
Reporting - Monstering the integrity of the Company s firancizl statements - Results commentary and announcements
and External and all formal announcements relating to the Company s - Key accounting judgements ncleding valuations
Audit financal performance, reviewing signuficant fmancial reporting — Chanoes (o accountinG palicies
1ssues Judgements and estimates Including the consistency 4 gp
quality and appropriateness of accounting policies and the guality - Going concernand the viability statement
and completenass of disclosures - Farr balanced and understandable assessment in relation
- Making recommendations te the Board regarding the tothe anaual report [C 3 4) 2
reappomtment of the external auditor and approving the external - Externat auditor effeciveness
auditor s rermuneration and terms of engagement IC 37| &

- External auditor reports on planning the half yearly review
- Momitoring and reviewing the external auditor s :ndependence and the full-year audit including the final opinion
objectiity and effectiveness

- Reviewing the content of the Annual Report and Accounts
ta ensure it 1s fair, balanced and understandable

- Developing and impieinenting policy en the engagement
of the external audilor to supply non-audn services takmng
inte account relevant guidance

- The external auditor s remuneration

Valuations - Memtering and reviewing the valuation process - Effectiveness of the external valuers
- Reviewing assurnptions and methodoiogy - The quality of the valuation process and judgements at half year
- Monitoring the external valuers compelence and year end
and effectiveness - Valuer presentations to the Committee
Risk and - Overseeing the infernal control environmment and risk - Risk register including identification of the Group s principal
tnternat rmanagement systems on behalfl of the Beard risks and movermnent In exposures
control - Monitoring the Company s risk exposure and recommending - Status of key nsk indicators including any breaches of
the Company s risk appetite to the Board for approval threshelds
- Overseeng the assessrnent of the principal risks and - Activities of the Risk Committee mcluding review of its minutes
mitigating actiens - Effectiveness af internal contral systems
- Reviewing the risk management disclosures on the Group s - Responses to audit findings and recommendations for comrel
approach to nisk in the hatf-yearly and annuat reports improvemnents including reviewing the Externat Audit
- Rewew;_ng thewhistle-hlowing poticy and its imglementation management letter
C351% - Anannualfraud risk assessment

- Cybersecurity

- The insurance programme for property development and
corporate risks

Internal Audit - Approval of arrangements for the prowision of internal audit - Annualinternal audit plan including censideration of its
services and any termnation of such arrangements abgnment to the principal risks cansiderahon of emerging
~ Montoring and reviewsng the effectiveness of the Company s areas of risk coverage across the Group andits joint ventures
Internat Audit funciion includng its plans level of resources and revtew of the Grou s processes and controls
and budget - KPMG s execution of the internal audst plan and reviewing
-~ Reviewing internat audit reports recommendations and progress the resultant audst reports and findings
inimplementation of those recommendations - Internat Auds effectiveness
- Coordination between Internal Audit and External Audit - Internal Audst reparts payroll tax compliance, IT
The Leadenhalt Building and Broadgate jomt ventures
procuremnent [phase 2] Broadgate Estates leasing process
anti bribery and corruption key financial controts treasury
|
- Annual sternal controls overview ‘
- Internat Audit charter defiming sts role and responsibibities ‘
-~ Internal Auds tender process
Other - Reviewing the Audit Comimittee s effectiveness and its Terms - The Commiitee s Tei ms of Reference [
of Reference - Effectiveness of the Commultee
- Considering compliance with tegal requirements accounting — Mantenance ¢ the Group s REIT siatus :

standards and the Listing Rules - Annual tax update

- Review of PwC s Sustainability Assurance Report
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE CONTINUED

Sigmficant issues in relation to financial statements
The Commitiee pays pai ticular attention ko matiers it considers o

be important by wiriue of thewr size complexity level of jJudgement
required and potential impact on the financial statements and wider
bustness model Identification of the sssues deemed to be sigmificant
takes place following open frank and challenging discussion hetween
the Commuttee members with input fram the Cheef Financial Officer
PwC and Internal Audit and other relevant Britsh Land employees

Aparticular area of focus for the Commutiee has been the viability
statemnent which 1s imcluded within the strategic repor t for the first

time this year on page 58 The Committee has discussed the form

and content of the statement and the analys:is carried out to support it
with management and PwC throughout the year The Commitiee has
confirmed ta the Board that it believes the viability statement adequately
considers the Group s principal nisks covers an appropriate period 15
suppor ied by the assessment prepared by management and includes
disclosure of atl relevant material assumptions made

The significant 1ssues consider ed by the Comimuttee during the year
ended 31 March 2014 a1 e detalled below alongside the actiens taken
by the Commutiee to add: ess thesa ssues (C 3 8] ~

Significant wssues in relation to fimancial statements
consudered by the Comnuttee durning the vear

Internal Audit

The Company s Internat Audit function durimg the year was ouisourced
to KPMG who reported regularly to the Committee The Cormnmittee
monitared the performance of internal Audit throughout the year as
well as performing an annual review of 115 effectiveness The Commuttee
betieves KPMG discharged is duties effectwvely IC 3 6] £

KPMG has performed the Inter nal Audit function since 1t was outsourced
in 2012 1t was decided that the Irternal Avdit function should be put out
to tender in March 2016 to factlitate evatuation of differentinternal audit
approaches Followng a competilive process Ernst & Young LLP [EY]
was appointed EYwill report regularly to the Commiitee and it 1s
envisaged that its perfor mance will be menitored in a simiar way

Policy on PwC providing non-audit services (C 3 8) 2
With respect to non-audit services provided by PwC the following
framewark was in place during the year

- Audit related services audit related services include farrmal reporting
refating to borrowings shareholder and other circutars and various work
in respect of acquisitions and disposals Where the external auditor must
carry out the work because of theyr office the external auditor 15 setected
In other circumstances the selection depends on which firm s best suited

How these 1ssues were addressed by the Commuttee

Valuation of
investment and
development
properties

The valuation of investment and development
properties which s conducted by external
valuers s inherantly subjective as ttis made
on the bagis of assumptions made by the
valuers which rmay not prove to be accurate
The outcome of the valuation 1s significant

to the Group in terms of mnvestment decisions
resulls and remuneration

The external valuers presented their reports to the Commuttee and were
asked to highlight any sigruficant judgements or disagreements with
management Yaluaion certificates and outcomes wes e reviewed and
assumptions challenged with particutarly rigorous scrutiny this year
given the tower volumes of evidence setting transactions compared

to recent periods

Accounting for
transactions

Risk 1s encountered through property and
financing transactions as large and non-standard
accounting eniries can be required

The Commultee reviewed management papers on key jJudgerments
ncluding those for significant transactions as well as the external
auditor s report presented followtng the conclusson of the audit

Going concern
statement

The appropriateness of preparing the Group
financial statements on a going concern basis

The Commitiee reviewed management s analysis supporting the going
concern basis of preparation This included consideration of forecast

cash flows availabity of commitied deb facrlines and expected covenant
headroom PwC reported (o the Committee the results of testing performed
on managemern s analysis

Viability statement

Whether the statement approprialely reflects the
prospects of the Group and covers an appi opriate
period of time

The Committee constdered whether the assessment perforred by
management adequately reflects the Group s princspal risks as disctosed on
pages 5910 63 whether the period coverad by the statement 1s reasonable in
light of the industrythe Group operates in and 1s a lair reflection of the
forecast penod tymically conssdered by management and whether the
assumptigns made and sensitivities identified represent severe but plausible
scenarios In the context of solvency or hiquidity

REIT status

Maintenance of the Group s REIT status through
compliance with cerlain condetions has a
sigrmficant impact on the Group s results

The Comnmiittee reviews compliance with the REIT tests annually
Management presented the methodology and resulis of the REIT tests
highlighting any change i fong term tiends and the current level of
headroom

Judgemnents affecting
revenue recognition

For certain transactions judgement s applied
by management as to whether and towhat
extert they should be treated as revenue for
the fimancial year

The Commuttee and PwC considered the appropriateness of the accounting
treatment applied by management in relation to revenue recognition The
Committee and PwC also considered the scepe of the accounting standard
and the reasonableness of the judgernent made
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- Sustainatitity assurance the selection depends an which firm 1s best
suiied and 1s reviewed on a five yearly basis Currently the external
auditor provides an assurance opinion over setected sustainability data

- Tax advisory the selection depends on which firm is best suited i the
creumstances

- General consuliing the external auditor 15 not selected to provide general
consultancy services except 1n certain imited circumstances and then
only after consideration that they are best placed te provide the service
and that ther independence and objectnaty will not be compromssed

The foilowing comrmtinent pretocol operated throughout the year and
applied to any engagerment far conducting other work [excluding audit
and half-yearly reportingl performed by PwC
- The total non-audit fees are imited to 70% of the audit fees in any
ore year The audit and non-audit fees for the three-year average
are calculated in line with the methodology set out in the 2014
EU Regulatians and include fees for joint ventures and funds
- Audit Committee approval is required where there were any doubts
s Lo whether the external audior had a conflict of interest and
- Approval by the Audi Committee Chairman ts required for each
addrtional project over £0 1m in vatue where the cumulative fees for
non-audit work are projected to exceed 50% of the audit fee in any
financial year Duning the year no project approvals by the Audit
Commuttes Chairman were required

Effectiveness of the External Audit process

The Comrmttee places great importance on ensuring a high quatity,
effective External Audit process Following best practice and in
accordance with its Terms of Reference the Commuttee annually reviews
the audit requirements of the Group for the business and in the context of
the external environment The Commuttee also conducts an annual review
of the performance of the external auditor and considers its ndependence
compliance with relevant statutory regulatory and ethical standards and
objectmty (C3 8@

Following its appointment in 2014 PwC successiully completed is first
audittast year The Commtiee reviewed PwC s pet formance this year and
was content with the quality of the audit it had delivered The Committee
reviewed PwC s propesats for the audit and 1s confident that appropriate
ptans were putin place to carry out an effective and hugh quality audit
Nosigrificant issues were ransed during the course of the audit PwC
confirmed to the Cornmitiee that 1t mamvtained appi opriate internat
safeguards to ensure sts independence and objectivity The Commuttee
considered and approved PwC s assessment of its iIndependence and
has recornmendedits 1 eappointment to the Board approval of which
will be sought frem shareholders at the 20146 AGM

The Committee has agreed 1o consider the need for a competitive tender
far the role of external auditor every five years with a competitive tender
taking place at least every ten years To the extent that the auditor did
not rotate earlier through this process, the Company will rotate audst
partner as required by legislation There are no contractual obligations
which would restrict the selection of a different auditor

The Company has complied with the relevant parts of the Competition
and Markets Authority Final Order on the statutory audit market for the
year ended 31 March 2015

Valuations

The external valuakon of British Land s pertfolio is a key deter minant

of the Group s balance sheet performance and senior management s
remuner ation [n accordance with its Terms of Reference the Committee
adopts a rigorous approach ta monrtoring and reviewing the valuation
process and the effectiveness of the Group s valuers Kmight Frank and
CBRE The Committee revitews the effectiveness of the external vatuers
annually focusing on a qualitative analysss of capitat values yield
benchmarking avastability of compar abie market ewdence and major
cutliers io subsector movements

The valuers present directly to the Commuttee al the half-yearly

and annual reviews of results including providing confirmation of the
valuation process market canditions and signiicant Judgements made
PwC reviews the valuations and valuation process having full access

to the valuers to determmine that due process has been followed and
appropriate information used Hreportsits findings to the Committee
The vatuation process is also subject to regular review by Internat Audit
the most recent being undertakenin 2013 with another oneg planned for
later this calendar year In addition | as the Cormnmmuttee Chairman meet
privately with the valuers

For the valuation of the Group s whotly-owned assets the Company

has fixed fee arrangements with Kmight Frank and CBRE inline with
the recommendations of the Carsberg Committee Repert Copies of
the vatuation cer ificates of Knight Frank and CBRE can be found an

the corporate website at www briishland com/reports

Ldentification and evaluation of commer cial rsks and
related contiol objectives

The Audit Cormmittee 1s responsible for overseeing the effectiveness

of sound risk managernent and internal controt systems It futfils this
role by oversee:ng the activities of and receiving reports from the Risk
Comrmutiee and monitor ing the nisk management processes in place ang
the activiies of the Internat Audit function including (ts reparting on the
effectiveness of conrols The Risk Commuttee minutes are airculated to
the Commuttee for review with any significant matters highlighted for
discussion Twice yearly the prinapat nisks which are derived from an
assessment of the nisk registes are presented to the Committee atong
with commentaty on changes in the exposure to these risks in the period
Annually a report on the effectiveness of internal controls and the risk
managemnent system 1s prepared by Internal Audit for presentation to the
Commitiee Internal Audit and the Risk Commuittee work closely together
te ensure that identifted rnisk areas are incorporated in the Internal Audst
programme and similarly findings of Inter nal Audit reviews ai e taken
inte acceunt imidentifying and evaluating risks within the business
British Land maintains a framework of controls related to key financial
processes and management of the associated risks The effectiveness
of such controls 1s reviewed annuzlly erther by Internat Audst or as part
of the year-end external audi

Tim Score
Chairman of the Audit Commuttee
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Governanee and remunceration

REPORT OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Committee
leads the process for
Board appointments

Jolin Gildersleeve
Charman of the Nominetion Lommittee

Nomunation Committee members' attendance during
the yvear ended 31 March 2016

John Gildersleeve 212
Willtam Jackson 2/2
Lord Turnbullt 212
ia121®

Composition of the Board

B Non-Executive Chairman
BIndependent Non-Executive Directars
L1Executve Directars

Directors’ core areas of expertise!

Property

Finance

Retail and consumer [ W’j
Acaderc
Public sector

" Some Direclors are represented 1n more than one category
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The Board and its Committees

Throughout the year the membership of each Cormmitiee has comprised
independent Non-Executive Dy ectors to the extent required by the Code
[B 2 11 We vaiue continuity and experience of British Land s business
and were delbighted to recammend that Lord Turnbull be re-appointed

as Senior Independent Director Lord Tur nbull will however step dawn
as Chairman of the Remuneration Commuttee following this year s AGM
although he will remain a member of that Committee Willam Jackson
has agreed {o take on the position of Chairman of the Rernuneration
Committee (B 24]&

As reported last year following a rigorous selection process Laura
Wade-Gery was appomted as a Non-Executive Director of British Land
on 13 May 2015 Laura s biography demonstirates her huge retail and
consumer experience Nafurther changes to the Baard occurred during
the year

Composition of the Board

The Committee considers that the Board censists of individuals with
the right balance of skills experience and knowledge to provide strong
and effective leadership of the Company The majority of the Board

are independent Non-Executive [hrectors and the Board s collective
experience covers a range of relevant sectors asllustrated in the teft
hand column As well as a breadth of property and financiat experience
many Board members have personal experience of wor king in the retail
and cor porate environments that are typical of many of our occupiers

Allof Brissh Land s Directors will retire and submit themselves for
re-election by shareholders at the 2316 Annual Generat Meeting

The Committee believes that ali the Direclor s continuwe te demonstr ate
commitment to theirroles as Board and Cemmitiee members continue
to discharge their duties effectively and that each makes a valuable
canteibution 1o the leadership of the Company

Diversity

British Land pays full regard to the benelits of diversity including gender
diversity both when the Nomination Commuttee 1s searching for
candidates for Hoard appomntments and when the Company is searching
for candidates for other appaintments

The Board agrees with the conclusions of the Women on Boards repo: t
by Lord Davies of Abersoch that greater efforts should be made in
improving the gender balance of corporate boards and that quotas

for fernale board representation are not the preferred approach The
Company cureently has three fernale Directors Lynn Gladden and Laura
Wade-Gery who were appomted as Non-Executive Directors in 2015
and Lucinda Bell who was appointed Chief Financial Officer in May 201
This currently represents 25% female Board membership




Principal responsibilities of the Commiittee

Key areas discussed and reviewed
by the Committee in 2016 '

Regular review of the structure size and composiiion of the Board

Review of the structure size composition of 1he Board alongwith
the skills knowledge and experience of its members to ensure that
Dwrectors remam able to discharge thew duties and responsibilities
effectivety and to the i equired high standard

Recormmendations to the Board with regard to Board changes
and Commitiee membership changes

Selection and appointment of Laura Wade-Gery as a Non-Executive
Director Appointment of William Jackson as Chairman of the
Remuneration Commsttee

Succession pianning for Directors and other senlor execulives

Successton planning including iwdentification of potential nternal
candidates for senior vacancies which may arise on a crisis short
medium or long term basis

Reviewing time commuitrnents reguired from Non-Executive Directors

Time commutments i equired from Non-Executive Directors were
reviewed as part of the year end process

Recommendations for re-election of Non-Executive Director s

Recermmendations to the Board regarding Directors standing
for re-electron by shareholders at the AGM

Terms of Reference

The Committee s Terms of Reference can be found on the Carnpany s website at www britishland com/committees (B 2 } &

The premotion of women to the Board and other sentor positions
within the Cempany is dependent on the recrutment developrment
and retention of women in the workforce bothwithin the Company

and more widely throughout the business and pralessional commurnity

As of 31 March 2014 Brish Land s employees including Broadgate
Estates] comprised 283 females and 306 roales {2015 218 and 247
respectivelyl of the employees considered {o be executives 141 were
fernale and 257 ware male (2015 115 and 205 respectively] Serior
executives comprismg the bExecutive Cornmittee and Cperations
Commuttee consisted of 11 ferales and 26 mates (2015 8and ¥7
respectively) To encourage and hetp mothers return towork we offer
enhznced maternity leave payments and support flexible workmg
patterns currently 27 of our female employees take advantage of this
faciliy (2015 31 We atso offer enhanced patermly leave payments and
support flexible working patterns for all parents and other employees
whose personal circumstances may make this beneficial Currently 13
men wark flextbly and 5 men took advantage of enhanced paternity leave
(2015 ¢ end 14 respectively] Training and mentor Ing programmes are
provided to ensure that all our empioyees achieve their patential taking
account of their diverse development needs Itis pleasing that our Chief
Financial Offrcer Lucinda Bett was an internal appointment reflecting
the development of our own people

The Nomination Committee seeks to increase the percentage cof female
Board members as quickly as we are able The speed at which we can
achieve this will be subgect to the availability of suitable candidates

and compliance with the requirements of the Equality Act the Board

has a fundamental obligation to ensure that appointments are of the
candidates best able to promote the success of the Company and we

do not consider that it would be to the long term benefit of the Company
iF apposntments were made on any other basis Subject to these
requirements we have an engoing comemitment to further strengthening
female representation at Beard and top managerment tevel

Our people strategy focuses on creating a team who can deliver

Places People Prefer Getting closer to our customers 1s ene of our key

str ategic priortties and having a wor kfor ce which reflects the diversity

of our customers helps us achueve this The policy throughout British Land

15 to emnploy the best candidates available in every position regardless of

sex race ethnicorigin nationality coiour age religion or philosophical

belief sexual orentation marriage or civil partnership pregnancy

maternity gender reassignment or disability Applications for employment

by disabled persons are always fully considered bearing in mind the

apbitudes of the applicants concerned In the event of members of staff

becoming disabled every effert 1smade to ensur e that their employment [
continues and that appropriate traming 15 arranged  The policy provides i
that the traiming career developrent and gremotion of disabled people

should as faraspossible beidentical to that of other employees

We achieved a key rmilestone an our journey towards creating a truly
Inctusive environment with our formation of BL Pride our leshian gay
brsexual transgender [LGBT) and alties network and aur Women s
network thes year Both networks have been active in the year and we are
pleased that cur Cheef Executive Chris Grigg was ranked 1ith in the 2015
Leading 30 L GBT Ally Executives by OUTstanding and the Financiat Times

We are also piloting a mentortng scheme forwomen offering help
guidance advice and support where it1s needed

L

John Gildersleeve
Chairman of the Nomination Commutiee
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Governanee s Kemaneration

REMUNERATION REPORT LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Our Remuneration Policy is
designed to alish management
incentives with our strategy

Lord Turnbull

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

Remuneration Commuttec members' attendance
during the vear ended 31 March 2016*

Lord Turnbull 313
Lynn Gladden 33
Withiam Jackson 373
Laura Wade-Gery? 212

* Otherindividuals attend Remuneration Committee meetings by mvitation
Alan Judes of Strategic Remuneration attended Cormmittee meetings during
2016 Alan Judes has baen appeimnted by the Cornmittee a5 its Independent
Advisar further detaibis provided on gage 110 Durning the year bythe
Commities s invitation the fetlowing sentor executives artended and/orwere
present at Commitiee meatings {other thanwhen their own remuneration was
being discussed| the Company Chairrman the Chief Executive the Company
Sacretary and General Counseland the Head of Operations

?Laura Wade-Gery was appointed as a Directorand member of the
Remuneration Cormmitiee on 13 May 2015
ta12)@

Terms of Reference

The Cormnmittee s Terms of Reference can be found on the Company s
websiie al www britishland com/committees (D 2 1@ (D2 21@

86 British Land | Annual Reportand Accaunts 2616

During the year we as the Commitlee have conlinued to focus

on ensuring that our Remuneration Policy appropriately reflects

our remuneratian philosophy which 1s based on three

fundamental princples

- rernuneration shoutd align management incentives with strategy
and so encourage activities that support our strategy of creating
Ptaces People Prefer

- remuneration packages should be designed to attract and retain
expert people throughout Batish Land s business and

- the level of rernuneratton should be directly inked to corporate
and individuat performance

We were delighted to recewve over $7% of shareholder votes in favour of
our existing Remuneration Policy at our 2014 AGM As our Matching
Share Plan IMSP] will expire m July 2016 we have taken the oppor tunity
to review the current Remuneration Policy this year rather than at its
expiry in 2017 with a particular facus an simplifying our fong term
incentive arrangements Taking mnto account investor sentiment around
matching share plans we have decided not to renew the MSP

As a result we will have one singte long term incentive arrangement
under the proposed new Remuner ation Policy

To achieve this we are propesing the following key changes to our
Remuneration Policy removat of the MSP and amendments to the
Long-Term Incentive Plan [LTIP} which address the removal of the MSP
and respond to invesior prefer ences for the ntroduction of post-vesting
holding pericds and the extension of time periods overwhich awards
should be subject to clawback Proposed amendments are summarised in
the box on the facing page Giver the level of sharehetder support received
for the existing Remuneration Policy in 2074 we are not proposing to make
any other material changes to our Rernuneration Policy

Consultation on proposed changes to Remuneration Policy

We were pleased to be able to engage in meaningful discussion with

key shareholders during consuttation on the proposed amendments
to our Remuneration Policy A number of opiniens expressed during

consultation have directly influenced the design of the Remuneration
Policy that will be presented for approva! ¢t cur AGM in July 2016

Our proposals to move to a single long term incentive arrangement
introduce a two year holding period following LTIP vesting and maintain
the compulsory deferral of a propor tion of an Annual Incentive award
into shares were particularly well received by investors and have been
incorporated into the new Remuneration Policy

tn response to feedback received duning consultation we are also this
year praviding more information about perfarmance against Annual
incentive measures over the financial vear fincluded on pages 102 to 103
of this Report) and we are reducing the percentage of LTiP that vests for
achieving median performance under the new Policy




Design of new Remuneration Policy

The Remuneration Commuttee Is satisfied that the design of our new
Remuneration Policy remains aligned with our remuneration philosophy
The elerments of our remuneration structure have been chosen so that
they support our business madel and our four areas of strategic focus
Customer Ortentation Right Places Capual Efficiency and Expert
People Performance measures attached to variahle elements of
remuneration are stretching with Annual Incentive starting to be

awat ded and LTIP awards slar ting to vest only once med:an performance
has been reached maximuem tevels of remuneration are anly pad out
when upper quartile perfarmance isachieved Both short term [Annual
Incentivel and long term {LTIP) performance measures have been
carefully selected 1o Incentivise artivities that support our strategy of
creating Ptaces People Prefer The measures that will be attached to
awadr ds granted under the amended LTIP and thetwr respective links to
our sirategy are summarised in the box on the next page Page 21 of our
Strategic Report highlighis the relationship between our strategy and
ourncantive measures

Our new Remuneration Poltcy will be presented to shareholders for

appraval at the AGM i July 2016 Shareholder s will also be asked to

vote on separate resolulions to approve the amendments to the LTIP

ID 2 4) @ and to approve the Directors Remuneratien Report for the year

ended 31 March 2016 (fapproved our new Remuner atien Policy will

apply from the date of the AGM and will consisi of the followtng key

elements for Executive Directors

- Basic salanes and benefits will be set by reference to comparator
companies of a similar posthion in the FTSE 100 Index

- Annual Incentive awards will be linked to perfoi mance against
quantitative qualitative and personal measures and one third of
each Annuat Incentive award granted wall be delerred to purchase
Bntsh Land shares and

- LTIP awards will be linked to bath specific property related performance
measures {TPR and TAR assessing performance at the gross and net
levels respectivelyl and TSR performance measures and will be subject
to a lwa year hotding peried following the thiee year vesting penod

The Executive Errectors are responsible for setting the levels of fees paid
to the Non-Executive Directors In line with other FTSE 100 cormpantes
it1s proposed that under the new Remuneration Policy fees payable

to Non-Executive On ectors will be structured as an annual fee plus
additional fees for membership of committees and/or holding certain
positions as outhned i the box te the right This represents a change
from the structure under the current Policy whereby Non-Executive
Durectors receive fees based in part on ther attendance at Board and
Comnutiee meetings throughoul the year Levels of fees under the new
Policy foutlined on page 100] have been selected so that totat fees for the
year commencing 1 April 2016 will not change materially compared to
the fees that would have heen received had the current Policy remained
in place based on the anticipated number of meetings that will take
place during the year (D 2 312

Element of remuneration

Change i Remuneration Policy

Matching Share Plan
{MSP}

MNo MSP will be included in the Policy presented
tor shareholder approval at the AGM In July 20146
Underthe current Policy ane third of an Executive
Director s post-tax Annuat Incentive award is
deferred and used 1o purchase shares [MSP
Bonus Shares) that must be held for three years
and a conditionat awar d of additionat matching
shares » granted

Annuat Incentive
Detferral

The deferral of one thurd of the post tax Annuat
Incentve into shares will be retained but no
award of additional matching shares will be
granted This will resutt in continued alignment
between Executive Directars and shareholders
mterests and will provide a lenger term aspert
to the Annual incentive award One third of an
Executive Director s post-tax Annual Incentive
award will be deferred and used to purchase
Annual Incentive Shares that must be held

for threeyears regardless of whether or

not the indwidual remains an employee of
British Land throughout this period Annual
Incentive Shares will be subject to clawback
during the holdmg period

Long-Term Incentive
Plan (LTIP}

For Execute Directors a hwo year holding period
will be introduced following vesting of an LTIP
award diring which awards will be subject

to ctawback The holding period will apply
regardless of whether or not the tndividual
remains an employee of British LLand throughout
this perod The maxirmum award potentiat will be
wcreased from 200% to 300% of basic salary as
Executive Directors wili no tonger be eligible to
receive additional matching share awards under
the MSP The propertion of award vesting on
achievemnent of the median level of performance
will be reduced from 25% to 20% of the award
The performance conditions attached to LTIP
awards witl be amended as detailed in the box

on the next page

Non-Executive
Directors’ Fees

Non-Executive Directors will receive an annual
fee withadditional fees «f they are members of
Board Commuttees or hold the position of Semor
Independemt Director or Chairman of the Audrt
or Remuneration Comemitiee Thus replaces the
current fee struciure which 1s based 1n part

on meeting attendance
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Governance and Remuneration

REMUNERATION REPORT LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATIGN COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

Remuneration tn respect of the year ended 31 March 2014 Kev activities of the Commuttee (lurmg the yvear
British Land has had another active and successful year demonstrated ended 31 March 2016 ’
in our strang full year results Relative to the prior year underlying profit - Approval of the Remuneration Report presented for shareholder
has increased by 16% our NAV s 11% ahead and the dividend has approval at the AGM on 21 July 2015
increased by 2 5% The results were driven by good performances - Developiment of Remuneration Policy Lo be presented for sharehotder
across the business with good leasing activity and rental growth key approval at the AGM on 19 July 2014 and preparation for consultations
features The executive management leam was strengthened through with key sharehelders
a number of key appointments including Roger Madelin who has been - Review of corporate and :ndwvidual perfarmances over the year ended
tured to lead our important Canada Water project Thereceipt of the 31 March 2015
prestigious 2016 Queen s Award for Enterprise is a great endorsement - Approval of performance measures for the year ended 31 March 2016
of our economic social and environmental achievements ~ Review of

- Charman s annual fee
Performance during the year was in line with or exceeded expectations _ Chief Fxecutive s remuneration
on all but one of the Annual Incentive measures However overall — Executive Directors remunerabion and
performance was less strong than performance m the previous financial - Employees salanes and Annual Incenives
year Consequenlly Annual incentives awarded to Executive Directorsin - Approval of discretionary share scheme grants and vestings
respect of the year ended 31 March 2016 are lower than those awarded in | Approval of alt-employee share scheme grants

respect of performance over the prior financial year The Remuneration
Cemmitlee s assessment of Annual Incentive per formance over the year
5 set out on pages 102 to 103 of this Report

LTIP performance measures
The lollowing performance measures will apply to LTIP awards granted under the new Remuneration Policy

Measure Link to strategy Measured relative to

Total Property Returni{TPR)

The change in capital value, less any capiial The TPR measure 1s designed to link rewardto  TPR performance will be assassed against
expendiure incurred plus net income TPRis streng performance at the gross propertylevel  the performance ol an iPD benchmark

expressed as a percentage of capial employed
over the LTIP performance period and 15 calculated
by Investment Property Databank {IPD}

Total Accounting Return [TAR)

The growth in British Land s EPRA NAV per The TAR measure ts designed 1o link reward TAR will be measured relatwe to a comparator

share ptus dwidends per share paid overs the to performance at the net preperty level that group consisting of the 17 targest F1SE property

LTIP periormance period takes account of gearing and our distributions  cempanies that use EPRA accounting lincluding
to shareholders British |and]

Totat Shareholder Return (TSR]

The growth in value of a Briush Land The TSR measure I1s designed o directly 50% of the TSR measure witl be measured
shareholding over the L TIP performance correlate reward with the return delivered relative to the performance of the FTSE 100
penod assuming dividends are remnvested to sharehotders and 50% of the TSR measure will be measured
to purchase additional shares relative to the performance of a comparator

group consisting of the 17 largest FTSE property
companies that use EPRA accounting [including
British Land}

Performance agamnsi the LTIP measures will be assessed over a period of three years [ o each measure 100% of the par t of the award aitached

to that measure will vest if British Land s performance 15 a! tha upper quar tile tevel If performance against a measure is equal to the medan 20% of the
part of the award altached to that measure will vest and if perfor mance 1s below median the part of the award attached to that measure will lapse There
will be straight-line vesting between median and upper quartile performance for each measure
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Vesting of the MSP and LTIP awai ds granted to Executive Dinectors in
201315 dependent on Briush Land s performance over the three year
period ended 31 March 2016 Vesting of these awat ds is scheduled to
take place in August 2016 and esumated vesting values are included in
the Executive Directors single total figures of remuneration on page 101
Per formance measur es attached to the MSF awar d measure growth in
gross income and total shareholder return [TSR] Half of the MSP award
i1s expected to vest as the gross income growth larget has been fully
achieved however the remaining half of the MSP award will tapse as
British Land s TSR over the period was below the median TSR of the
compas ator group of companies

The twa performance measures attached to the vesting L1iP award
measure total property return [TPR] and total accounting return [TAR]
The TPR part of the awar d 15 expected to vest at 9% reflecting par tial
achievement of this cendition and the TAR pdartis estimsted o vest ot
44% again showing that the performance condition has been met in part
but upper quartile performance [requtr ed for the full award to vestl has
nol been achieved

Executive Directors single total figures of remuneration for the year
10 31 March 2016 have decregased relative 1o the figures for the previous
financial year reflecting the par tial vesting of lang term incentive awards
and reduced Annual [ncentrve awar ds compared to the prioryear The
Commuttee believes this demonstrates that our Rernuneration Policy
15 designed so that the third strand of our remuneration philosophy

the level of remuneration received should be directly linked 1o corporate
and indwiduat performance” 1s praperly reflected in the Policy

Remuneration in respect of the year commencing 1 April 2016

The Commuttee 1s salisited that the Executive Directors salaries and
the Chawman s annual fee rermain correctly posilicned in telation to
our camparator group lbemng FTSE 100 companies of a similar market
capitabsation to British Land] and these will not be increased for the
year cornmencing 1 April 2016

As explained earlier in this letler a new Remuneration Policy and
amended LTIP rules will be presented for sharehotder approval at the
AGM in July 2016 The Commuitee iniends 1o grant the final LTIP award
under the current Remuneration Policy and rules before the AGM
therefore the first LTIP awar ¢ under the new Pelicy and amended
rules will not be gr anted untl the year cemmencing 1 April 2017

TFhus s my last report as Chatrman of the Remuneratien Commuttee as
intend ta stand down following British Land s Annual General Meeting

in Juty 2016 Twill rermain @ member of the Commuttee and lock forward

to continuing to work with William Jackson who will take over the
Commuttee Chasrmanship aswell as Lynn Gtadden and Laura Wade-Gery
who were both appointed Committee members in 2015

The Commuiitee very much valued your support of our Remuneration
Policy when it was intraduced in 2614 We hope that youwill be
supportive of the proposed changes to our long term incentive
arrangements set oul In our new Reinuneration Policy and supportive

of our Annual Report an Remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2016
al the AGM in July 2016

1
Lord Turnbull

Chawrman of the Remuneration Committee
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Governanee and Remuneration

REMUNERATION REPORT OVERVIEW OF REMUNERATION POLICY

Overview of Remuneration Policy

Hawving expert people 15 one of the {our core focus areas of our business
model Our Remuneration Policy is intended to help retam the expert
people we have recruted and developed and mitigate the risk of losing
themn Our Remuneration Policy 1s also designed to foster employee share
ownership and align Executive Duectors interests with those of investors
The Remuneration Policy outlined on pages 92 (o 98 will take effect from
19 July 2016 subject to shareholder approval at British Land s Annual
General Meeting on that day The bar charts below illustrate the levels of
remuner ation recewvable by the Executive Director s under this proposed
Remuneration Policy for varying levels of performance

Within the remuneration package variable elements [the Annual
Incentwe and Long-Term Incentive Plan [L1IP]} are designed to reward
performance that supports our strategy and ¢reates sustainable long
term value for shareholders If only the minnmum level of performance 1s
actieved, only hixed remuneration elements wilt be paid to the Directors
In the tustrative bar charts this munimum remuner atron consists of
basic salary benefits pension or pension allowance and shares awarded
by British Land under the all-employee Share tncentive Ptan!

For performance that 1sn {ine with expectations up to haif of the
maximurn Annual Incentive awar d possible will be granted lequivalent
to 75% of basic salaryl and the proportion of the LTIP award expected
to vest 1s equivalent to 140% of basic salary One third of the Annual
Incentive award granted will be deferred into shares which must be
held by the Execulive Director for three years [Annual Incentive Shar es)

Hlust1atien of application of Remunerauon Poliey

For the maximum level of petformance the Annual Incentive award

wilt be granted at a level equivalent 1o 150% of basic salary and the LTIP
award 15 expecled o vest in [ull {equivalent to 300% of basic salary] One
third of the Annuat Incentive aword granted will be deferred into Annual
Incentive Shares Remuneration payable inrespect of this maximum tevel
of performance has net changed materially compared to that payable
under the current Remuneration Policy approved by shareholders in 2014

The llustr ative bar charts below do not take into account any share
price appreciation between grant and vesting of LTIP awards or between
deferral and release of Annual Incentive Shares Share price growth will
result in the values of LTIP awards and Anpuat Incentive Shares mcreasing
in the period between gt ant and vesting/retease to the Director

As explained on page 89 the first LTIP award grant under the new Policy
Iwith maximum level equivalent to 300% basic salaryl will not take ptace
until the year ending 31 March 2018 asitis intended that an LTIP award
wili be granted under the existing Policy [with maximum level equivalent
to 200% basic salary) m advance of the 2016 AGM

' Caiculated using salaries for the yaar ending 31 March 2017 assumung that
benetit values for the year ending 31 March 2017 will remain the same as the
values for the year endad 31 March 2015 and that the maximum value of shares
thai can be awarded by the Company under the Share Incentive Ptan s granted
Pension vaiues are based onthe Remuneration Palicy and estimates supplied
by the scheme actuary for defined benefit schame members

Chns Grigg Charles Maudslev

Chief Executive £000 Head of Retail and Leisure £000
Minimum £1,187  Mimmum £553
in lrne with —— ta line with ” y

expectations i0% P1%  39% £2,993 expectations 37% 2M% 4% £1,512
Maximum 26% - 25%- 51% £4.967 Maumum 22%  26% 52% £2,561
Lucinda Bell Tim Roberts

Chief Financial Officer €000 Head of Offices and Residential £000
Minimum £609  Minimum £572
A 7% 2% 41% E1.669  oncmnans 37% 2% 41% £1,531
Maximim 2%  28% 52% £2.828 Mawmum 22%  26% 52% £2,580

B Fixed remunaration M Annual Incentive W iong Term Incentive
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Executne Directors

?ﬁl Frxed Remuneration

@ Long-Term Incentive Plan {LTIP)

The companents of ixed remuner ation are tntended to provide a base
package at a level that will altract lugh-catibre ndwiduals with the
appropr 1ate degree of expertise and experience to carr y out their roles
to the htgh standards we require Executive Directors salaries are
positioned around the median of cur comparator group (FTSE100
companies with broadly similar market capitalisations to British LLand)
and inaddition to salary the fixed remuneration package includes the
provisian of benefits a pension or pension allowance and the opportunity
10 take part in all-employee share schemes

% Annual Incontive

[he Annual Incentive forms part of the variable propor tion of an
Executrve Director s remuneration package The level of Annuallncenuve
award recewed is directly inked to corporate and indwidual performance
aganst annually tallored measures

A proportion of each Execulive Director s Annual Incentive award 15 used
te purchase shares that must be held for three years adding a longer
term aspect Lo the Annual Incentive award

Magnrtude of Annual Incentwve award 5 dependent on perfermarce
against Annual incentive measures over one year

Cre thrrd [~et of tax] 1 used
to purzhase shares wiith must
be hetd for thres years
{Annual Incentive Shares)

Two thirds s pad as
cash on award

The LTIP 15 the second element of variabte remuneration The proportion
of an LTIP award that s actually released to an Executive Directoris
dependent on Briush £.and s perfor mance against specified per formance
measures over a three year period

LTIP award consists of perfermance shares
ar market vatue options ar a combination of the two
with performance measures attached

Perfarmance 15 measured
over three years

The number of performance shames vesting and the number of opt on»
betoming exercisable are both dependent on the degree
to which the performance measures have been met

Atwoyear holding per iod apples to LTIP awards following vesting

Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

Fees paid to the Company Chairman and Non-Executive Directors are
posittoned around the median of our comparator group of companies
[FTSE100 companies with broadly similar market capitabisations to
Briush Land] with the aim of attracting individuals with the appropnriate
degree of experise and experience o wor k with and challenge the
Executive Directors
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Governancee and Remuneration

REMUNERATION REPORT REMUNERATION POLICY

Caecutive Directors Remuneration Pohiev

Component and Purpose

Operation

?@. Fixed Remuneration

Basic salary

To attract and 1 etain exper | people
with the appropi iate degree of
experlise and experience

The level of bastc salary 1s posittoned around the median of our comparator group of FTSE 100
compames with broadly simitar market capitalisations Executive Directors responsinlibies
are taken into account when basic salares are set

Basic salarses are reviewed annualty by the Remuneration Cornmitiee with increases usually
lalang effect on 1 April for the subsequent year Employment conditions and salary increases
throughout the Group are taken inio account when basic salaries are set

In addition to basic salary Executive Directors may be eligible to 1 eceive fees for siting on the
boards of certain subsidiary companes

Benefits and ali-employee
share schemes

To attract and retain
expert people and to
foster share ownership

A car allowance s paid to Executive D ectors in tieu of the provision of & company car

Executive Directors are eligible to receive other taxable and non-taxable benefits which
may inciude
- prvate medical insurance [covering the Director spouse and any children under the age of 25]
- life assurance cover under which a lump sum of four ttmes basic satary will be paid outin
the event of death in service
- permanent healthinsurance under which 75% of basic satary witt be paid in the event
of long terr absence due to certain medical reasons
- access to independent actuanial financial and legal advice when necessary
- gym membership subsidised by the Company
- annual medcal checks
- relevant professional subscrption fees
- other benefits on substantially the same basis as other employees

Executive Director s are eligible to partiupate w Briiish Land s Share Incentive Plan [SIP
and Sharesave Scheme on the same basis as other ¢ligible employees

The Company provides Directors and Otficers Liabitity insurance and may provide an
indemnity to the fullest extent permitted by the Comparwes Act

Penstan or pension allowance

To attract and retain expert people
and to provide an appropriate level
of pension on retirement

Executive Director s may receive pension henefits through a defined contribution
arrangement may receve a cash allowance i Lieu of pension contributions or (provided the
Director joined Brntish Land before its defined benefit scherne closed to new membersm
2006] may recewe benelits through a defined benaht ar rangement as deemed appropriate
by the Commitiee

Accrual rates for Directors recewing benefits through the defined benefit scheme are
deter mined by the 1 ules of the scheme and are dependent on the age at which the Director
joined the Company Benehits up to the imit permitted by the tax legisiation are provided

mn a registered plan Benefils over thal limst are currently provided in an employer hinanced
retrement benefit scheme {EFRBS] EFRBS participants are currently of fered a chosce
annually as to whether they wish to accrue benefits in the EFRBS or to recesve a cash
paymentn bieu

Dt ector s partivipating i a defined contrbution arrangement may choose whether
contribubions are made into Britsh Land s dehined contribution scheme or into thewr
awn personal pension plan Cash allowances in keu of penston centributions would
typically be paid at the same level of satary as Company contributions under the defined
contribution arrangement
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Maximum Opportunity

Performance Conditions

The maxmum tevel of basic salary will not be greater than the upper
quartile of the comparatoer group

Increases will lypically be in line with inflation and general salary
increases throughout the Group I an mdidual 1s appomnted at a
salary pesttioned below the level atigned with our comparator group
a larger increase may be awarded in order to position the salary
arcund the median of our comparater group

Executive Directors fees for sitting on subsidsary company boards
are capped at a maximum of £1 500 per annum In aggregate forall
quatfying appoiniments

Not applicable

The maximum carallowance 15 £20 008 per 2nnum

The maxirmum cost of other taxable and non taxable benefits
permutted under the Palicy 1s the amount required fo continue
providing benefits at a sinilar tevel year-on-year

The maxinum opportunittes under the SIP and Sharesave Scheme
are set by the rutes of the schemes and deternuned by statutory imits

Not applicable

Under the detined benefit scheme the target beneht s the pension
that can be provided by the 31 March 2012 lifeume atlowance [£18
millon] uplifted by RPI fiom that date The maximum accrual rate

for g defined benefit scheme member is that which will give the target

benefit at age 60 subject to the accrual rate being ne greater than
one thirtieth and na less than one sixtieth of salary

Employer pension contribuirons to Executive Directors under

the defined contribution arrangement and cash allowances in lieu
of pensson are made at a fixed percentaqe of salary between

15% and 30%

Not applicable
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Governancee and Remuneration

REMUNERATION REPORT REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

Component and Purpese

Qperation

Ay armL o

To reward Company and individual
performance that supports the
strategic priorities of the business
and to promaote actmities that help
the business successlully
implement its strategy

To foster share ownership and align

participants interests with those of
shareholders

@\3 Lang-Term tncentive Plan [LTIP]

Annual incentive awards may be granted to Executive Directors each year with the level of
award reflecting Company and individual performance against measures sel by the
Remuneration Committee Awards are granted fotlowing the financial year end when actual
perfor mance over that year has been measured

Two thirds of an Executive Director s Annual Incentive award is paid in cash when the award
15 granted The remamang third of the Annual Incentive award [net of tax] 1s used to purchase
British Land shares on behalf of the Executive Director [Annual Incentive Shares] Annual
Incentive Shares must be held for three years from the date of grant of the Annual Incentive
award before they may be transierred or sold regardless of whether or not the individual
remains an employee of Brinsh Land throughout this period Executive Directors are entitled
to the dividends paid in respect of the Annuat (ncentive Shares during the holding period

The Annual Incentive Shares may be ctawed back during the three year period following 1ssue
1t ss discover ed that the relevant Annual Incentive award was granted on the basis of
materially risstated accounts or other dala

To link the level of reward to
Company performance agamst
specified long term measures,
prometing and rewarding activities
that support our strategy and create
sustainable long term value for
sharcholders

To foster share ownership and align
participants interests with those of
sharehelders

LTIP awards may be granted annually by the Remuneraton Commutiee to Executive Directors
Awards may consist of performance shares [conditonal rights to recesve shares] or market
value oplicns or a coinbination of the two Executive Directors may indicate a prefe: ence as to
the proporuens of their award received as performance shar es andfer market value eptions

LTIP awar ds vest after three years The number of perfarmance shares and/or options vesting
1s dependent on the degree to which performance conditions attached to the LTIP award have
been met over this three year performance pertod A payment equivalent Lo the dwidends
accrued on vesting performance shares and the interest thereon 1s paid at the point of vesting

On vesung sufficient per farmance shares may be sold to cover any Liabehiy to incoime tax and
Nat:onat Insurance Contributions The remasning perfoermance shares must be held for two
yeas s following vesting before they are permitted to be transferred ar sold regardless of
whether or not the individual remains an employee of Briush Land throughout this period

LTIP oplions may be exeraised at any point duning the seven years following vesting If LTIP
optrons are exercised within two years of the vesting date sufficient of the shares acquired
may be sold to cover the cost of exercise and any liability to income tax and Natienal insurance
Contributions but the itemaining shares must be held untit the point two years frem the
vesting date before they are permitted to be transferred or sold regardless of whether or not
the individual remains an employee of British Land throughout this peried

If it 15 discovered that an LTtP award was granted or vested on the basis of materially

misstated accounts er other data

- the Committee may require some or ali of the performance shares to be forferted or clawed
back during the five year pened following the grant date

- the Cormnmitiee may require some or alt unexercised options to be forfeited at any pomnt and

- where an oplion ts exercised within five years of its grant dale the Commuittee may requrre
some or ati of the shares acquired to be clawed back during the five year penod fotlowing the
opiion gran! date
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Maximurm Oppartunity

Performance Conditions

The maximum tevel of Annual Incentive which may be granted
15 equivatent to 150% of basic salary

The Annal Incenuive performance measures relate to British Land s
strategic focus areas and the Executive Director s individual areas of
responsibility The measures are set by the Rernuneration Commuittee
at the beginnung of the financial year over which performance will be
assessed and are not strictly weighted When deterrmiming the evel of
an Executive Director s Annuat incentive award the Commttiee iakes
into account performance aganst all measures and makes an
assessmaent i the round

If actual performance averaged over all measures s equal to the
median level of performance the Annual Incentive award granted
will be one quarter of the maxmurm potenual award lequivaleni to
375% of basic satary] Up to hatt of the maximum potential award
lequivalent to 75% of basic salary) 15 payable for performance that
15 1n line with expectatons If average performance 1s below the
medsan level of performance no Annual Incentive award will

be granted

No further perfarmance conditions are attached to the Annpual
Incenlive Shares during the holding period

The maximum value of an L TIP award which may be granted s
equivalent to 300% of basic salary The value for this purpose
1S the aggr egate fair value of the shares and/or aptions gr anted
at the date of award

The {atr value of a share 15 the average market value of Briush Land
shares aver the three dealing days preceding grant The fair value of
a market vatue option 1s such fraction of the farr value of a share asis
set by the Comumuittee This fraction s currently one quarter but may
he varied by the Committee to reflect the economic models used by
the Company for the vatuation of options

The LTIP performance conditions have been chosen to reward

per formance that 1s aligned with British Land s strategy

- totat property return [TPR] perfor mance 15 assessed relalive
to an Investmeni Property Databank {IPD) benchmark rewarding
strong relurns at the property level

- total accounting return {TAR] performiance is assessed relative
1o a carnparator group censisting of the 17 largest property
companies within the FTSE thal use EPRA accounting including
BritisheLand] and

- total shareholder return {TSRI performance 1s assesset against both
the FTSE100 and & cornparator group consisting of the 17 largest
property companies within the FTSE that use £PRA accounting
{including Briush Land}

The relative waighting of the perfarmance condibons may be varied
by the Commuttee ta ensure the LTIP best supporis British Land s
strategy and to meet investor preferences The Committee currently
irtends to apply the performance condions with the following
weightings 40% of the awar d wilt be linked to the TPR condition
40% will be inked to the TAR condition and 20% will be linked to

the TSR conditian

TPR performance 15 currenily assessed aganst the IPD UK Annual

Property Index The Commuitee may amend the comparator groups

of companies during the performance period if thei e ts a corporate

event affecting any member of the group and may amend the IPD |
benchmark if a different benchmark 1s deemed more appropnate

Perforrnance conditigns are challenging requining sigmifrcant

outperformance for 100% of the £TIP award tovest 20% of the

award vall vest if the minimum performance threshold s achieved

per for mance below the minimum threshald for a performance |
condibon will result in the LTIP award i respect of that condition

lapsing Upper quartile performance must be achieved agamnst

each performance measure for the entire award to vest
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REMUNERATION REPORT REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

Non-Executne Directors’ Rennmeration Poliey

Component and Purpose

Operation

Maximum Oppartunity

Performance Conditions

Chairmans fee

To attract and retain an dividual
with the appropriate degree

of expertise and experience

The Chairman s annual fee

15 set by the Remuneration Comymittee
and reviewed annualty The level of 1he
Chairman s annual fee 15 posittoned
around the medizn of sur chosen
compat ator group which consists

of FTSE 100 comparues with broadly
stilar market capitalisations

The maxirmum annuat {ee
will not be greater than the
upper quartile of the chosen
comparator group Typicatly
increases Ifrequired

will be in tine with inflation

Not applicable

Chairman s benefits

To facilitaie the Chairman s
travel in the fulktment of hus
or her duties

The Chawman is provided with o car
and chauffeur together with any taxes
thereon

The maximum opportumty
1s the cost tothe Company
of providing this grossed-up
taxable benef:d al a simular
level each year

Net applicable

Non-Executive Directors fees
To attract and retain expest
people with the appropriate
degree of expertise and
experience

Remuneration of the Non-Executive
Directors 1s a matter for the Executive
Directors and fees are reviewed
annuatly

Non-Executive Directors receive an
annual fee plus additional fees f they
are members of a Commitiee or if
they hold the position of Sentor
tndependent Director or Charman
of the Remuneration or Audit
Comrmitiee

The Carnpany s Policy 1s to delivera
total tee at a teveln lne with similar
posiions at our chosen comparakor
gioup winch consists of FTSE 100
companies with broadly similar
market capitalisations

The maximum aggregate
amount of basic fees payable
toall Nan Executive Directors
shall not exceed the £600,000
limit setinthe Company s
Arucles of Asseciation

Not applicable

Other arrangements for
the Chairman and the
Non-Executive Directors
To support the Directors in
the fullilment of their duties

The Cempany ray resmburse
expenses easonably incurred by
the Chairman and the Non-Executive
Di ectors in fulhlment of the
Company s business 1ogether

with any taxes thereon

The Company provides the Chatrman
and the Non Executive Directors wath
Dicectors and Officers Liablity
Insurance and may provide an
indemnity to the fullest extent
permitted by the Companies Act

The maximum rerrmbursement
Is expenses reasonably
mcurred logether with any
taxes therean

The maximum value of the
Directors and Qfficers Liability
Insurance and the Company s
indemnity is the cost at the
relevant trne

Not applicable
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Notes to the Remuneration Poliey table

Remuneration Policy for other employees

Salary reviews across the Group are carnied out on the same basis

as salary reviews for the Executive Directors constder ation 1s given

to the individual s role duties, experience and performance along

with consideration of typical salary levels of employees in similar

roles i compar able cornpanies where the data is avadable Employees
are entitled 1o taxable and non-taxable benefits with executives being
entitled to substantially the same benefits as the Executive Directors

Allemployees are ebgible to receive an Annual Incentive the level of
which will be dependent on indiduat deparimentat and Company
performance A propertion of a senior executive s Annual Incentive
award may he deferred to purchase Annual incentive Shares Executives
may he granted Long-Term Incentive Plan awards Some executives

inot including Executive Directors) are eligible to receive shares under
the Fund Managers Performance Plan [FMPP] The final FMPP award
was gi anted in 2013 and the {inal FMPP vesting will take place m 2016
Employees joining the company after 2006 are eligtble to take partin a
defined contribution penston arrangement The Company s all-employee
share schemes [the Share Incentive Plan and the Sharesave Schemel}
are also open to eligible employees

Pre-existing obligations and commitments

it 15 @ provision of this Peticy that the Company can henour all
pre-existing abligations and commitments that were entered into prior to
this Remuneration Policy taking effect The terms of those pre-existing
obligations and cornrmitmenis may differ from the terms of the Remuneration
Policy and may include [without limitation] obligations and commitments
under service contracts long term incentive schemes fincluding previous
Long-Term Incentive Plans and the Matching Share Plan} pension and
benefit plans

Caonsiderations when setting Remuneration Policy

In drawing up the Remuneratan Pelicy the Commuitiee took into
account views expressed by shareholders during meetings and
communicated to the Company The Company engdged with its
shareholders via consultation meetings with mvestor bodies

and by writing to 11s largest shareholders offering each a meeting
to discuss remuneration praposals

Each year the Remuneration Comrmttee takes into account the pay and
employment conditions of employees in the Group noting the general
increase th salary proposed for att employees and levels of incentive
payments ond pes formance belfore setiing the remuneration of the
Directors The Comrmttee did not consutt with the Company s employees
or use remuneralion comparison measurements when drawing up the
Oirectors Remuneration Policy

Approach to recrutment remuneration

Executive Directors

Basrc salary 1s set at a level appropriate o recrust a suitable candidate
taking :nto account exter nal market compelitiveness and intel nal equily
The level of basic salary may inibicily be positioned below the median

of the chosen comparater group with the intention of Increasing  to
around the median of the comparator group after an inttial period of
salisfactory service

Where a rectuitis forfeiing mncentve awards granted by his or her existing
employer, compensaton m the form of a Restiicted Share Plan RSP}
awar d may be made In accordance with Listing Rule 9 4 2] the maxmum
value of which will be that which the Commultee n1is reasonabte opinion
considers to be equal to the value of the awards which have lapsed

The value of dvidends paid on the RSP shares during the vesting penod
15 pard directly 1o the Director Vesting of the shares granted under the
RSP award will be subject to the Directos completing a mmimum period
of gualifying service sothe award will not be released until thts conditian
has been satisfied The vesting of the RSP award may be subject to
additsonal performance measures being met over the same period

the Committee will determine the most relevant measures to use at

the tme of award bearing in mind the responsibilities of the individual
being appointed and the Company s strategic priorities at the ime

The Commitiee may choose to offer a Co-tnvestment Share Plan (CIP]
award to a new Executive Director on recrustment in accordance with
Listing Rule 9 4 2] toassist the Director in buidding a holding of Briish
Land shares with the aim of further aligning the Director s personal
interests with those af British Land s shareholders

Under the CIP a director may invest a maximum of 150% saiary

[225% salary for a Cheef Executive] to purchase British Land shares
thase limits being determined by the Director s menimum shareholding
gudeline The Comnpany will match the purchased CIP shares on a

11 basis [befor e allowing for tax iabilities that will arise on vesuing of
the matching shares] All the CIP shares are then deferred for three
years subject to the Director remaiming employed by the Group and
holding the shares for this ime Should the Director leave the Group
betore the qualifying period 1s completed all of the matching shares
will lapse and the purchased shares will be released to the Director
Dividends paid on the purchased CIP shares during the vesting period
at e paid directly to the Director a dividend equivatent payment 1s inade
on vesting 19 compensaie for dividends acerued on matching CIP shares
The Committee willimpose periormance measures on CIP awards
which must be achieved over the three-year holding period for the
matching shares to vest The Committee will determing ihe most
relevant measures to use al the tme of award bearing in mind the
responsibilities of the individual bewng appointed and the Company s
strategic priorities at the time

The Company s Policy 1s {o give notice periods of no longer than

12 months However when recruiing an external candhdate it may
be necessary o give an instial notice period of up 1o 24 months this
1educes al the end of 2 months work to 12 months The remainder
of the package offered to a new Executive Director would be in bine
with the Company s ongoing Remuneration Policy

Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

On recruniment the Chatrrnanwill be offered an annual fee and benefits
in accor dance with the Policy The level of the annual fee may mitially

be pesitioned below the median of the chosen comparater group with
the intention of Increasing it to around the median of the comparator
graup after an initial period of satisfactory service Non-Executive
Director swill be offered Non-E xecutive Directors fees m accordance
with the Policy

Appointment of internal candidates

If an existing employee of the Group 1s appointed as an Executive Director
Chairman or Non-Executive Director any abligatien or commitment
entered into with that individual prier to his or her appointment can

be honoured in accordance with the terms of those obhgations or
commitments even where they differ from the terms of the Folicy
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Policy on loss of office

Executive Directors

The Executive Direclors service contracts can be lawfully terminated by
either party giving 12 months notice or by the Company making a lump
sum payment In lieu of notice {PILON] equal 1o the Executive Director s
base salary for the notice period Additionally when the Company makes
a PILON, it may either pay a lump sum equal to the value of any henefits
for the nottce period or continue 1o provide benefits untit the notice perod
expires or the Executive Director star ts new employment whichever

15 the earlier] These lawful termination machanisms do not prevent

the Company i approprate cwcumstances from terminating an
Executive Directer s employment in breach of his or her service

contract and secking to apply mitigation in deter mining the damages
payable Where this 1s actwevable in negotiation with the outgoing
Director settlement arrangements are structured so that the
termination payment 1s paid innstalments and the instatments

are reduced by an amount equal to any earnings recewved from the
outgetng Director s new employment consuttancy or other paid work

For departing Executive Directors and Executive Directors thal have left
Brissh Land the Commuttee may agree to cash commuiation of pension
benefits under the defined benefit scheme [including EFRBS benefits)
and othe: pension arrangements entered inte prior 1o the adoption of the
2014 Remuneration Policy Any commutation would take inte account
valuations prowvided by independent actuanal advisors so as to be

under taken on a basis considered by the Commitiee to be cast neutral
to the Company

The circumstances of the loss of office dictale whether the individualis
treated as a good leaver or otherwise In accordance with the Company s
Policy The Remuneration Committee uses its discretion to form a view
taking nto account the circumstances Good leavers typically receve
pro-rata Annual Incentive and long term incentive awards subject to
performance measurement and othet leavers for feit ther entitierents
In the event of a change of control the rules of the share plans gener ally
provide for acceler ated vesting of awat ds subject lwher e appticable]

to time apportionment and achievement of performance targets All of
the Company s Executive Directors have contr acts that pre-date 27 June
2012 but these do not contain contractual provisions that could inpact
on the amount of any payment {or loss of affice and which fall outside
the Policy Details of the Executive Director s service contracts and
notice pericds are givenin the table below {11 5/ @

Normal Normal

notice notice

Length Oate of penod to periog o

of service service  begwenby begunenby

Director contract contract Company Director
Chris Grigg 12 mths 1912 08 12mths 12 mths
Lucinda Bell 12 mths 10031 12 mths 12 mths
Charles Maudsley 12mths 03 V109 12mths 12 mths
Tim Roberts 12 mths 141106 12 mths 12 mths

The Company may termunate a Direclor s appointment with immediate
effect without notice or payment in lieu of notice under certain
cicumsiances prescribed within the Director s service contract
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Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

The letters of appaintment of Non-Executive Directors are subject

to renewal on a trrennial basis in accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code all Directors stand far election or re-election by

the Company s shareholders on an annual basis The Directors service
contracts and letters of appointment are available for inspection during
normal business hours at the Company s registered office and at the
Annual General Meeting The unexpired terms of the Chairman s and
Non-Executive Directars letiers of appointment are shown betow

Unexpired term of |

Dateof current appaintment at [

Director appointment 31 March 2016
John Gildersleeve {Chairmanl] 01/01/2036 33 months
Aubrey Adams 0%/09/2014 17 months
Simon Borrows 17/03/2014 11 months
Lynn Gladden 20/03/2015 23 months
Witharn Jackson 11/04/2014 12 months
Tin Score 20/03/2014 11 monihs |
Lord Turnbull 01/04/2015 24 maonths
Laura Wade-Gery 13/05/2015 25 months

Although the Chairman s and Non-Executive Directors appointments
are for fixed terms therr appaintments may be terrinated immediately
without notice if they are noi reappointed by shaieholders or (f they are
removed fram the Board under the Campany s Artictes of Association
or if they: esign and do not offer themsetves for re-electton In addition
their appomtments may be terminated by either the individuat or the
Company giving thrze months written notice of termination lor for

the Chairman six menths written notice of termmation] Despite these
terms of appoistment neither the Chairman nor the Non-Executive
Diectors are entitled to any compensation [ather than accrued and
unpaid fees and expenses for the period up to the termination for loss
of office for any reasen




REMUNERATION REPORT ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

How we intend to apply our
Remuneration Policy during the
year commencing 1 April 2016

Pages 99 to 100 detail how the Remuner ation Comimittee intends to apply
the Remuneration Policy during the coming year

Executne Directors’ Remuner ation

% Basic salaries

Basic salares have been set at the following levels for the year
commencing 1 Aprit 2016 Salaries have not been changed relative
to the preor year

Direttor Basic salary £
Chris Grigg 840 60O
Lucinda Bell 493,000
Charles Maudsley 446 250
Tim Roberts 446 250

@ Annual Incentive avards

Durning the year Annual Incentive performance will be assessed agamnst
a range of quantitative and qualitative measures

Quantitative measures

- Property retums Unlevered property capital returns relatve to IPD
and wotal property retw o relative 10 1PD

- Accounting returns Total accounting return relative to property majors

- Rental growth ERV growth relatwe to IPD ond

- Undertymg profit performance Profit performance relative to budget

Qualitative measures supparting the four areas of our business modet
- Right Places progress on key projects including developments and
execution of targeted acqursitions and disposals
- Custorner Onentation company reputation with ail stakeholders
and supporitng the delivery of sustainability abjectives
- Caputal Efiiciency execution of debt financings and progress
on strengthenmng the dwvidend and
- Expert People quality of people and management renewal

The Executive Directors indwidual performance will also be assessed
against measures retating 1o their speciiic areas of responsibility that
support the corporate measures above Further nformation regarding
the measures and the assessment of performance used to determine
Executive Directors Annual Incentive awards for the year ending

31 March 2017 will be disctosed n the 2017 Rermnuner ation Report

@ Long term incentive awards

Matching Share Ptan [MSP}

Under the Resmuneration Policy appr oved by shareholder s at the Apnual
General Meeting in 2014 (avadable on pages 84 to 91 of Brish Land s
2014 Annual Report} one thid of each Executive Directers Annual
Incentve award must be deferred and used to purchase MSP Benus
Shares Thercfore the Annual Incentive awar ds that are due to be paid to
Executive Directer s in June 2016 in respect of per formance during the
year ended 3% Mar ch 2094 will be subject to such a deferrat and an
associated award of MSP Matching Shares will be granted This witl be
the final MSP awai d granted to Executive Directors as the Remuneration
Policy that willbe presented to shareholders for approval at the AGM in
July 2014 [detailed on pages 90 1098 of this Repor U] does not nclude a
matching share plan

Two equally weighted performance measures will be applied 1o MSP
Matching Share awards eachmeasure 1 elates to half of the totat MSP
award meanmng no more than half of the total award can vest i one of the
performance medsur es does not meet its mimimum vesting threshoeid

The total shareholder return [TSR) part

The comparator group against which TSR performance witl be
assessed gver the three-year per formance period consists of

Great Portland Estates plc Harmimerson ple Intu Properties ple
Land Securtties Group PLC SEGRG ple Big Yellow Group PLC
Capiial & Counties PLC Derwent London ple Grainger plc
Hansteen Holdings ptc Helical Bar ple LondonMetric Property plc
St Modwen Properties PLE Shaftesbury PLLC The UNITE Group plc
UK Commer cral Property Trust Lid and British Land The percentage
of the part of the MSP Matching Award linked to TSR performance
wilt be determined as follows

British Land 5 TSR relatwe to the comparator group
at the end of the performance period

Percentage of TSR part
of award vesting %

Below median 4]
Median 25

Further vesting per each 1% TSR exceeds median

(o a maximum of 100% of TSR part of award) 1875

99
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The gross income growth (GIG) part

British Land s gross income growth will be assessed relative to the
Investment Property Databank [IPD} Quarter ly Unwverse fthe IPD
Universel Inorder for the part of the MSP Matching Award linked to GIG
pet fermance to vest Briish Land s GIG over the three-year per formance
period must be equal ta that of the IPD Universe [the Growth
Requirement | The percentage of the GIG part of the MSP Matching
Award vesting wilt be deter mined as follows

British Land 5 GIG relative to the IPD Universe
at the end of the performance penod

Percentage of GIG part
of award vesting %

Below Growth Requirement 0

Equat to Growth Requirernent 25

Further vesting per each 0 5% per annum GIG
exceeds the Growth Regurement [to a maximum
of 100% of GIG par t of award] 25

Long-Term Incentwve Plan ILTIP]

It 15 mntended that the final LTIP grant under the Remuneration Policy
approved by shareholders at the AGM in 2014 [available on pages 84 to 91
of British Land s 2014 Annual Report) will take place in June 20146 As the
intentien s to grant an LTIP award in advance of the new Remuneration
Policy and amended LTIP rules being presented for sharehotder approval
at the AGM in July 2016 no further LTIP award will be granted 1o
Executive Dhirectors during the year to 31 March 2017 Therefore the first
LIIP award to Executwe Directors under the new Policy if approved 1s
not intended 1o be granted until the financial year ending 31 March 2618
Two equally weighted perfor mance measures will be applied to L.TIP
awat ds granicd in the year ending 31 March 2017 each measur e relates
1o hatf of the total LTIP award meaning no more than half of the total
award can vest if one of the per for mance ineasur es does not meel its
minimumvesting threshold

The total property return {TPR] part

British Land s TPR over the three year performance period will be
assessed relative to the IPD UK Annual Property Index [the IPB
Benchmark | The percentage of the TPR part of the LTIP award vesting
will be deterrmuned as follows

Bntish Land s TPR relatve to the IPD Benchmark
at the end of the performance pernod

Percentage of TPR part
of award vesting %

Total Accounting Return [TAR]

Briush Land s TAR aver the three-year performance period wili be
assessed relative to the same comparator group of companies that
performance will be assessed aganst under the MSP TSR measure
The percentage of the TAR part of the LTIP award vesting will be
determuned as follows

Percentage of TAR part
of award vesting %

British Land s TAR relative to the comparator group
at the end of the performance period

Below medan 4]
Metian 25
Upper guartile 100

Thet e will be straight-line vesting between median and upper guartile
performance

The per formance measures that will apply to LTIP awards granted under
the new Remuneration Policy that will be presented far shareholder
approval at the AGM in July 2016 Ithe first grant of which ts not intended
10 take place untit the financiat year ending 31 March 2018] are described
on page 88

Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration

The following fee structure vatl apply for the Chairman s and Non-
Executive Directors fees subject to shareholder approval of our new
Remuneration Policy at the AGM in July 2014 This represents a change
from the current structure undet which Non-Executive Directors receve
fees based in parton then attendance at Board and Conmittee meetings

The Chairman s annual fee has not been changed relative to the prior
year Itisintended that fees paid to the other Non-Execuhive Directors
sn respect of service between 1 April 2016 and the 2016 AGM [paid In
accol dance with the current Remuner ation Policy approved by
sharehoiders in 2014]) wilt be deducted from the annual fees sel out
below so0 that fees received in respect of the full year 10 31 March 2017
are n e with the structure set out below

Chairman s annual {ee £369 340
Non-Executive Directar s annual fee L41 000
Senior Independent Dhrector s annual fee £10 000

Below median 0 Audit Committee or Rernuneration Commitiee Chairman s
Median 25 1 annual fee £20,000
Upper quarule 106 | Remuneration Commistiee or Audit Commuttes member s
annual fee £8 000
Nominaiion Commutlee member s annual fee £4 000
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How we applied our Remuneration
Policy during the year ended
31 March 2016

Single total figure of remuneration (audited information)
The fallowing tables detail all elements of remunet atton receivable by Britsh Land s Direclors i respect of the year ended 31 March 2016 and show
comparatwe figures for the year ended 31 March 2015

Other items in Pension or

Taxable Annual Longterm the nature of pension
Salary/iees benefits' incentive incentives  remuneration® altowance Total
2018 2018 2016 2016 206 2018 2016
Executive Directors €000 €000 €000 £000 £000 €000 £000
Chris Grigg 840 21 840 1681 33 294 3709
Lucinda BeH 493 21 410 819 28 a2 1853
Charles Maudsley 446 22 410 841 17 &7 1823
Tien Roberis 448 21 400 861 19 106 1855
2015 2015 2015 2815 2015 2018 2015
Executve Directors €000 £00¢ £000 €000 £000 £000 £000
Chris Grigg 800 7 1152 4259 32 280 4551
Lucinda Beli 465 21 500 1863 17 58 2934
Charles Maudsley 425 22 540 1670 H) 54 2737
Tun Roberts 427 22 570 1 696 21 76 2812

Taxable benehts include car allowance privale medicalinsurance and subsidised gym membership The Company provides the tax gross up on subsidised gym
membership and the figures included above are the grossed upvalues An adjustment has been made to the prier year s corresponding amount to reflact the fact
that gym memberstup benefits wer e not disclosed an a grossed up basis in that year

* Other items in the nature oi remuneration include life assurance permanent health insurance annual medical check-ups professionat subscription fees the vaive
of shares awarded under the all-employee Share Incentive Plan and the notienat gain on exercise for any Sharesave Schemsz options that mature during the year

Fees Taxable benefits’ Tatal

2014 2015 2018 2015 2016 2015
Charrman and Non-Executive Directors €000 £000 €000 £000 £006 €000
John Gildersleeve (Chairman} 369 352 40 &0 429 2
Aubrey Adams 68 69 - - 48 69
Simon Borrows 48 67 - - 8 67
Lynn Gladden &7 1 1 - 48 }
Dido Harding* nfa 34 n/a - nfa 34
William Jackson 70 &6 - - 70 bt
Tim Score 88 73 1 - 89 73
tord Turnbull 7 ks - - 97 79
Laura Wade-Bery® 44 nfa - nfa L4 nfa

¥ Taxable benefits inctude the Chairman s chauffeur cost and expenses tncurred by other Non-Executive Directors The Cempany provides the tax gross up on these
benafits and the figures shown ahove are the grossed up valugs An adjustment has been made to the priar year s corresponding amount to reflect the fact that chauffeur
¢0sts were not disclosed on a grossed up basis inthat year

* Dido Harding resigned as a Director on 10 December 2014

* Laura Wade-Gerywas appointed as a Director on 13 May 2015
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Notes to the single total figure of remuneration table

@ Anauak Incentive

The level of Annual Incentive awartd 1s determined by the Remuneration Committee based on Briish Land s performance and each indwiduat
Executive Directoi s contribution duving the year Annual Incentive measures ai e not strsctly weighted and the Committee assesses pei (o1mance
in the round The Comnuttee s assessment for the year ended 31 March 20141s set out below underlaken with reference to perfermance against

the following quantitative and qualitative measures using data available at the year end

Range of Range of
performance perfarmance
beiween between
medan and n line with
in Line with expectations

expectations  and maximum pay-oul
f 2

¥ s

160% pay out
Ino increased
pay-cut above
this maximum
pay out point]

50%' pay-out
[periormance
nbine with
expeciauons]

25%' pay-out
[no pay-out betow
Quantitative Measures this median point|

Narrstive descnption of performance against measures

Untevered property
capital returnvs IPD

Property
returns Total property returns ®
vsiPD
Accounting  Totai accounting return ®
returns vs preperty majors
Leasing actvity vs ERV @
Rental
growth ERV growtivs IPD »
g::ﬁetrlymg Profit growthvs budget ®
performance znd property majors

- Cap tal growth of 6 8% outperfarming tPO by 50 bps both
Retail and Dffices cutperformed thesr sector indices

- Total property returnof 11 3% perfarming in ine with 1IPD
although both Retal and Offices outperformed their sector
indices

- Totat accaunting return above the estimated median of the
property majers at 15 8% when adjusted to reflect changes
to 4K Commercial Starmp Duty las described opposite]

- Letuings and renewals 6 8% zhead of ERV
- ERV growth ot 5 3% out performing 1PD by 130 bps
boih Reta L and Otfices outpertormed their sector indices

- Profit growth of 16 % ahead of budget and above the
estimated median of the property matars

Qualitative Measures

Progress on Key
projects including

Right developments and ®
Places Execution of targeted
acquisitions and
disposals
Cormpany reputation
with all stakeholders
Customer and a
Orientation  Supporting delivery
of sustainabilizy
objectives
Progress on
strengthening
Capnal
the aividend and @
Efficiency Execution of
debt financings
Expert Quality of pecple and
People management renewal T

~InGtfices completed 5 Breadgate planning achieved at
100 Liverpool Street 1 Finsbury Avenue and Blossom Street
planning epplication submitted for 2 and 3 Finsbury Avenue

« InRetaik compteted Whiteley Phase 2 planning consent
received al Speke planning application submitted for
Eden Watk

- Public consultation for development of 46-acre site al
Canada Water

- Continued reposiiomng of the portfoliowith £1 3 bitlron of
gross acivity acquisittons and investments batanced with
disposals in ling wath plan

- Awarded the Queen s Award {or Enterprise the UK s highest
accolade tor business suceess for cur continued economic
sacial and environmental achievements over five years

- Strong progress ondeveloping Ptaces Pecple Prefer

- Customer satisfaction score maintained at 79/10

- Maintained inclusion in the four target ESG Indices Dow Jones
Sustainatility Indices World and Europe FTSEAGOCUD and
GRESB [Europe Sector Leader]

- Fuliyear dwvidend increased by 2 5 % to 28 34 pence per share

- £915 mulhion refinancings executed including £350 miltion zero
coupon convertible bond

- Finance costs reduced lurther weighted average interest rate
reduced 50 bps to 3 3%
- Retained Qne Star rating for employee satisfaction

- Further strengthening of senior tearm with two external
Executive Commitiee appointments

' ?5% of the maxirmum level = 37 5% of basic salary 50% of the maximum level » 75 0% of basic salary
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The increase i UK Commercial Stamg Duty which took effect on 17 March 2016 impacted the total accounting retur n {TAR] and IFRS profits of
companies with a financial year end of 31 March 2014 but did not impact those with a financial year end of 31 December 2015 The under lying profit
higure used to assess Annual Incentive perlormance was not affected by the change to UK Commercial Stamp Duty So that the TAR performance
of Briush Land for 2015/16 can be compared on a bke-for-tike basis with the other proper ty majors an adjusted and audited figure for BritishLand s
TAR which excludes the impact of the UK Commeraial Stamp Buty change has been used to assess performance In assessing the performance
of the comparatar group for TAR and proht perfermance relative to property majors analysts consensus {before the impact of the UK Commercial
Stamp Duty changel has been used for one company with 3 March year end and reported data has been used for the December year end companies

Over the year each Execulive Director s indwvidual performance was measured against objectives supporting the key areas of our business model
Right Places Custormer Onentation Capital Efficiency and Expert People The Group does not disclose prospective and retrospective performance
measw es for tndivedual performance beyond that disclosed above as the Directors consider this to be commercially sensitive this infarmation will
naot be disciosed at futur e dates fos the same reason

Taking 19 account corpor ate performance aganst the quantitative and qualitative measures over the year to 31 March 2016 aswell as each
Executive Director sindividual performance the Remuneration Commuittee set the Annual incentive awards received by the Executive Directors
at the following levels

Proportion of maximum
potential award granted
Executve Director %

Chris Grigg &7
Lucinda Bell 55
Charles Maudsley 61
Tsm Roberts 60

The maximurn Annual Incentive award achievable s equivalent to 150% base salary The Rernuneration Cemmittee set the aggregate Annual
Incentive received by the Executive Directors for the year ended 31 March 2016 at 62% of the maximnum {93% of base salaryl as compared with
87% of the maximum |130% of base satary] for the year ended 31 Mar ch 2015

One third of each Executive Director s Annwal Incentive award will be deferred and used to purchase MSP Bonus Shares subject Lo a three-year

holdimg requirement under Briush Land s Matching Share Plan [MSP)in accordance with the current Remuneration Policy Ne further performance
measures apply to these deferred shares the MSP is described on pages 9910 100

@ Long term incentives {audited information]

Figures i the “Long term incentives” column are comprised of awards vesting under the Long-Ferm incentive Plan [LTIP} and Matching Shar e Plan
{MSPI including where applicable dividend equivalent payments on those vesting awards and interest accrued on those dividend equivatenis The

L TIP awards and MSP Matching awards gramted to Executive Directors in 2011 are included in the 2014 Long ter mincentives column Vesting of these
awards 1s subject to performance over the three year penod to 31 March 2016 agamst the 1etevant performance conditions which are detailed on
pages 99 to 100 The estrnated vesting values of these awards have been calcutated using the average market value for a Briush Land share for the
pertod from 1 January 2016 to 31 March 2016 [702 6 pencel as the vesting share price

LTIP

Two equally weighted per formnance conditions are attached to the LTIP awards granted in 2013 measuring Briush Land s total property return (TPR]
relative to the funds in the December PO UK Annwal Property Index fthe Index} and total accounting return [TAR) retative to a comparator group of
Brivsh Land and 16 other property companies These awards are due to vést on 5 August 2016 The increase in UK Commercial Starnp Duty which
took effect on 17 March 2016 impacted Briush Land s TPR at 31 March 2016 bui did nat impact the index So that the performance of the Company
and the Index can be compar ed on the same basis an adjusted and audited figure for Briish Land s TPR excluding the impact of the UK Commercial
Stamp Duty change has been used to assess LTIP TPR performance This adjustment will not be required in future years because when determining
LT1P vesuing tevels the impact of this UK Commercial Stamp Duty change wilt fa) already have been reflected inthe TPR of the Company and

the comparator group for awards granted 1n 2014 and 2015 and [b} be reflected in the start point for awards granted in 2016 and future years

The TPR pat L1s expected to vest ai 9% based on British Land s adjusted TPR of 14 9% compared to the Index median of 139% Itis esumated that
the TAR part will vest at 44% the actual vesting rate of the TAR part will be calculated once results have been published by ali of the comparues
within the comparator group This produces the estimated values on vesting set out in the {able on the foltowing page The actual vestingwill be
cortfirmed by the Comnuttee and provided in the 2017 Remuneration Report
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Estmated Estimated dwderd

Award price Number of percentage of  Estimated value of equvalent and

lexercise pricel performance Nurnber of award vesung award on vesting interest

Executive Directer LTIP award date p shares awarded options awarded % £Coo £600
Chris Grgg 05/08/2013 601 266222 - 57 1057 125
Lucinda Bell 05/08/2013 501 116 056 154 742 57 549 55
Charles Maudsley 05/08/2013 401 141430 - 57 561 &7
Tim Roberts 05/08/2013 401 141430 - 57 561 67

The LTIP awards granted to Execulive Directors in 2012 lwhich vesied on 14 September 2015 and ere shown in the 2015 Long term incentives columa}
were subject {0 a performance condition assessing the growth in British Land s nel asset value relative to the mcrease in the capital growth
compoenent of the IP0 UK Annual Property Index This condition 1s detaiied on page 102 of the 2015 Annual Report The vesting values of these awards
have now been calculated using the actual market value on the day vesting replacing the estimated vesting values included in the prior year s single
total figure of remuner ation table

MSP

Two equally weighted performance conditions are attached 1o the MSP Matchig awards granted in 2013 measuring Brittsh Land s total shareholder
return [TSR] relative to a compat ator group of 17 proper ty companies including British Land) 2nd British Land s gross income growth [GIG] 1 etative
ta the IPD Quar ter by Unuverse [the Universel These awards are due tovest on 2 August 206 Aon Hewitt has confu med that the TSR part of Lhe award
witi tapse as Briush Land s TSR performance over the period was 38 0% cempared to a median of 53 7% for the comparator group Tive GIG pattis
expected to vest at 100% as Biitish Land s annuabised GIG over the period 1s expacted to exceed the growth of the Universe by more than the upper
hurdte of 15% Thes produces the estmated values on vesting set out below The actual vesting rate will be confirmed by the Commitiee and provided
in the 2017 Remuneratwon Report

Estimated Estimated Estimated

Number of percentage of value of award dradend

Matching Shares award vesting an vesting equivalent

Executrve Director MSP award date awarded % €400 £020
Chris Gitgg 02/08/2013 177 0% ot 4ab 53
Lucinda Betl 02/08/2013 54 720 50 192 23
Charles Maudsley 02/08/2013 59 428 att 209 25
Tira Roberts 02/08/2013 59 428 50 209 25

The MSP awards granted to Executive Du ectors in 2012 [which vested on 7 September 2015 and are shown in the 2015 Long termaincentives column}
were subject to the same performance conditions as the MSP awar ds granted in 2013 The vesting values of these awards have now been calculated
using the actual market vatue on the day vesting replacing the estmated vesting values included in the prior year s single 1otal iigure of
remuneration table

% Pension or pension allowance audited information]

The figures shown in the Peasion column represent the differing pension arrangements of the Executive Directors During the year ended 31 March
2016 Chris Grigg recewved 35% basic salary as cash in Lieu of pension and Charles Maudsley recewved 15% basic salary as cash in lieu of pension
Lucinda Bell and Tim Roberts earned pension benefits iy defined benefit schemes sponsored by the Company during the year The increase invalue
over the year of their respective penstons s shown in the single wtal figure of remuneration table and further detal1s provided on page 105

There are no additional benefits that will become recewvable by a Direcior in the event that a Director retires early
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Share scheme interests anarded duning the vear (audited mformation)

Long-Term Incentive Plan

The total faw value of each Executive Direclor s LTIP award for the year ended 31 March 2014 was equivalent to 200% of basic salary ai grant At grant
each Director can indicate a preference as to the proportion of the award that they wish to receive as performance shares and the proportion that
they wish to receive as market value optiens The share price used to determine the face value of perfor mance shares and the fair value of options
~and therefore the number of performance shares and market value options awarded - 15 the average market value of the Company s shares over
the three dealirg days immediately prior to the day of awaid The performance conditions attached to these awards are detalled on page 100

Performance shares Number of Percentage vesting on
perfermance End of achievement of mintmum

shares Facevalue  performance perfermance threshald

Executive Director Grant date granted £00g penod  Vesting date %
Chns Grigy 22/04/2015 134 949 1260 31/03/2018 22/056/2018 25
Lucinda Bell 22/046/2015 121 254 986 31/03/2018 22/046/2018 25
Charles Maudsley 22{06/2015 109 754 892 31/03/2018 22/04/2018 25
Tin Roberts 22/06/2015 109756 B892  31/03/2018  22/06/2018 25
Optrons Percentage vesting on
Number Endof achievemnent of mmimum

of optiens Face value Farvatue Exertiseprice  performance performance threshold

Executive Director Grant date granied £0c0 £000' p penod  Vesting date %
Chris Grigg 22/06/2015 206599 1680 420 824 5 31/03/2018 22/06/2018 25

' Opuions are currently valued at one quarter of the value of a perfor mance share therefore the far value of each option awarded 1s one quarter of the face value
of the option

Matching Share Plan

The totat face value of each Executive Dizector s MSP Matching Share awar d for the yeai ended 31 March 2016 was equal to two thirds of ther
Annual Ingentive award in respect of the year ended 31 Mareh 2015 equivatent to 91% basic salary at grant far Chris Grigg 8% for Lucinda Bell
81% for Charles Maudsley and 85% for Tim Roberts The share price used to determine the number of Matching Shares awarded is the market
value of the Company s shares on the day the proportion of the Annuat Incentive 15 deferred

Matching Shares Number of Percentage vesting on

Matching End of achievernent of minirmum

Shares Facevalue performance performance thresheld

Executve Director Grant date granted £000 penod  Vesting date %

Chris Grigy 29/06/215 94 348 768 31/03/20%8  29/06/2018 25

Lucinda Bett 29/06/2015 40950 333 31/03/2018  29/06/2018 25

Chartes Maudsley 29/06/2015 44 226 340 31/03/2018  29/06/2018 25

Tim Roberts 29/06/2015 46 682 380 31/03/2018 29/06/2018 25
Sharesave Scheme

The following options were granted to the Executive Directors during the year under the ali-employee Sharesave Scheme The exercise price s set
al a 20% discount to the average market price of the Company s shares over the three dealing days immediately preceding invitation to the Scheme
The cost of exercise 1s met entirely by the Director and 1s accurnulated by deductions from salary over the peried between grant and vesting

Optons Total to be
deducted from
salary to cover Number of
exercise cost aptions Facevalue Exerise pnce Eartiest
Executive Director Grant date EC30 granted £000 p exercise date Exp ry date
Lucinda Bell 22/06/2015 9 1291 9 697 01/0%/2018 28/02/2019

Directors’ pension entitlements under the defined beneht pension scheme (audited information)

The below table details the defined benefil pension accrued by parvapating Directors at 31 March 2016

Defined beneht pension Normal

accrued at 31 March 2014 retirement

Executive Director £0Ca age
Lucinda Belt m 40
Tim Roberts 81 60

' The acerued penston s based on service 10 the year end and hinzl pensionable satary at that date
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Directors’ shareholdings and share interests {audited mformaton}

Directors shareholdings at 31 March 2014
The following table shows the Direciors interests in fully paid ordinary British Land shares includ:ing shares hetd by connected persons and
for Executive Directors including Maiching Share Plan Bonus Shares and shares held i the Share Incentive Plan Allinteresis are beneficial

Holding at Holding at
Director 31 March 2015 31 March 2015
Chris Grigg 1118 0%0 955 204
Lucinda Bell 162 894 164 201
Charles Maudsley 158 887 159 801
Tim Rober ts 173042 274189
John Gitdersleeve 5220 5220
Aubrey Adams 20000 20000
Simon Borrows 300000 300000
Lynn Gladden 1665 0
Willam Jackson 120 304 42983
Tim Score 12 693 6946
Lord Turnbetl 20401 18 790
Laura Wade-Gery' 1670 nfa

' Laura Wade-Gerywas appointed as a Director on 13 May 2015

Purchases after the year end up to one month before publication of the Notice of Annual General Meeting

On 6 Aprit 2016 Lynn Gladden was allotted 1 063 shares Willam Jackson was aliotted 486 shares Timn Score was allotted 1 416 shares Lord Turnbull
was allotted 359 shares and Laura Wade-Gery was allotied 718 shares all at a price of 696 3945 pence per share as part of their standing
instructions ta receive shares in full or part satisfaction of their Non-Executive Directors fees

On 14 April 2016 Chris Grigg purchased 20 shares Lucinda Bell purchased 20 shares Charles Maudstey purchased 17 shares and Tim Robes ts
purchased 71 shares all ata price of 730 5208 pence per share under the partnership etement of the Share Incentive Ptan [SIP) Accordingly

Chris Grigg was awarded 40 shares Lucinda Bell was awarded 40 shares Charles Maudsieywas awarded 34 shares and Tim Roberts was
awarded 42 shares under the matching element of the SIP On 6 May 2016 Chinis Grigg acquired 48 shares Lucinda Belt acquired 153 shares Charles
Maudsley acquired 50 shares and Tim Roberts acquited 144 shares all ata price of 722 pence per share under the dividend element of the SIP

Executive Directors minimum shareholding guideline
The mimimum shareholding guideline requires the Executive Dis ectors ta hold fully vested shares of d certain percentage of salary The number
and value of shares required as a target 1s fixed once a year

There 1s no set imescale required to reach the target but it should be achieved ths cugh the regqular additions antiapated by vestings of long term
mcentive awards No purchases are required either to reach the level or to respond to share price falls bwt Executive Directors are expected to increase
thewr holding of shares each year untll the tar get 1s attained Shares included are those unfettered and benelicially owned by the Director and by his or
her connecled persons [not ncluding deferred Annual Incentive Shares Matching Share Plan Bonus Shares or locked-in Share Incentive Plan shares)

The guidetine shar eholdings for the year 1o 31 March 2017 are shown below

Percentage of

Percentage Unfettered  basic salary

of basic salary holding at held at

1o be hetd Guidelne 1 March 31 March

Executive Director inshares holding 2016 2016
Chris Grigg 225% 269807 1031183 B40%
Lucinda Bell 150% 105 567 122 478 174%
Charles Maudsley 150% 95557 16707 183%
Tim Robet ts 150% 95557 129031 203%

Although there i1s no guideline holding for Non-Executive Directors they are encouraged to hold sharesin British i and The Company facilitates this
by offertng Non-Executive Directors the ability to purchase shares using thewr post-tax fees Lynn Gladden Wiiliam Jackson Tim Score Lord
Turnbull and Laura Wade-Gery teceived shares in full ot part satisfactron of their Non-Executive Directors fees during the year
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Unvested share awards

Number Subject to End of
outstand ngat  performance  performance
Executive Director Type Date of grant 3% March 2016 measures penod”  Vesting date
Chnis Grigg LTIP performance shares 05/08/13 266 222 Yes 31/03/16 05/08/14
LTIP perfermance shares 23/06/14 233804 Yes 31/03N17 23/06/17
LTIP performance shares 22/06/15 154 949 Yes 31/03/18 22/06/18
MSP Matching Shares 02/08/13 127 096 Yes 31/03/16 02/c8/14
MSP Matching Shares 30/06/14 101 766 Yes 3170317 30/06/17
MSP Matching Shares 29/06/15 94 348 Yes 31/03/18 29/06/18
Lucinda Bell LTIP performaence shares 05/08/13 116 094 Yes 31/03/16 05/08/14
LTIP performance shares 23/06/14 135 898 Yes 310317 23/06117
L1IP performance shares 22/04/15 121 254 Yes 31/63/18 22/06/18
MSP Matching Shares 02/08/13 54720 Yes 31/03/16 02/08/16
MSP Matching Shares 30/06/14 43816 Yes 31/0317 30/06/17
MSP Matching Shares 29/06/15 40950 Yes 31/03/18 29/06/18
Charles Maudsley LTIP performance shares 05/08/13 141 430 Yes 31/03/16 05/08/16
LTIP performance shar es 23/06/14 124 208 Yes 31/03/17 23/06/17
LTIP perforimance shares 22/06/15 109754 Yes 31/03/18 22/06/18
MSP Maiching Shares 02/08/13 5% 428 Yes 31/03116 02/08/16
MSP Matching Shares 30/06/14 47 584 Yes 31/03/17 30/06/17
MSP Matching Shares 29/06/15 44 226 Yes 31/03/18 29/06/18
Tim Roberts LTIP perfotmance shares 05/08/13 141 430 Yes 31/03/16 . 05/08/té
LTIP performance shares 23/06/14 124 208 Yes 31/0317 23/06/17
LTIP performance shares 22f06/15 109756 Yes 31/03/18 22/06/18
MSP Matching Shares 02/08/13 59 428 Yes 31/03/16 02/08/t6
MSP Matching Shares 30/06/14 67 584 Yes 31/03/17 30/06117
MSP Matching Shares 29/06/15 46 682 Yes 31/03/18 29/06/18

' Awards with a performance period ended 31/03/2016 are included within the 2014 Long term incentives column of the single total figure of remuneration table on
page 104 The notes tothe singte total figure table on pages 103 1o 104 autline the degree to which performance measures have been or are expectedio be achieved
and the resultant propertions of the awards that are expecteats vest

Unvested option awards {not available to be exercised]

Number Subject o End of

outstanding at Optionrprice performance  performance Date becomes Exercisable

Executve Durector Type Date of grant 31 March 20146 p measures pernod' axeresable untit
Chris Gngg LTIP options 22106115 206 599 B24 5 Yes 31/03/18 22/06/18 22/06/25
Lucinda Bell LTIP options 05/08/13 194 742 401 Yes 31/03/6 05/08/16 05/08/23
Sharesave options 23/06/14 1547 574 No nfa 01/09/17 28/02/18

Sharesave oplions 22/06/15 1291 697 No nfa 01/09/18 28/02/19

Tim Roberts Sharesave options 19/06/13 2348 5 No nfa 01/0918 28/02/19
Sharesave options 2306014 3135 o4 Ne n/a 01/0911% 29702420

' Awards with a performance period ended 31/83/2016 are inctuded within the 2014 Long term incentives ¢olumn of the single totat figure of remuneration table on
page i01 The netes to the single total higure table on pages 103 to 104 outhine the degree to which performance measures have been or are expectedio be achieved
ang the resultant properiions of the awards that are expecied to vest
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Vested optten awards {available to be exertised)

Number

outstandingat  Oplion price Exertisable
Executve Director Type Date pf grant 31 March 2016 P untl
Chris Grigg LTIP options 259/04/09 779 as7 29/06/19
LTIP options 11/06/10 1073825 447 /06420
LTIP options 28/06/M 695 652 575 28/06/21
LTIP options 14/09/12 743 494 538 14409/22
Lucinda Bell LTIP opticns 1106110 47952 447 11/06/20
LTIP optiens 141210 11764 510 14112/20
LTIP options 14105012 138 289 538 14/09/22

Options exercised during the year ended 31 March 2014
Market price on
Number  Optionprce  Date became date of exercise
Executive Director Type Date of grant exercised p exercisable  Date exercised p
Lucinda Bell Sharesave options 26/06/12 2295 392 01/09/15 01/09/15 8035
Tim Roberts LTIP options 05/12/05 17483 8236 05/12/08 01/12/15 846
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Further disclosures

Relatve iImportance of spend on pay

The graph below shows the amount spent on remuneration of all
employees [including Executive Dit ectors] relative to the amount spent
on disttibutions to shareholders for the years to 31 March 2014 and

31 March 2015 Remuneration of employees increased by 7% relative to
the prior year and disinbutions to shareholders inci eased by 3%
Distributions te shareholders include ordinary and scrip dividends and
the spln beiween property income distributions (PID) and non-prope ty
income distuibutions (non-PID} s shawn

Relative importance of spend on pay

2015/16 m‘- £81m
I 257rm

2014115 £76m
gy

Seven-year total shareholder return and Chief Executive s remuneration
The graph to the right shows Briush Land s total shareholder return for
the seven years from 1 Aprid 2009 10 31 March 2014 aganst that of the
FTSE Real Estate Investment Trusts [REIT] Tolal Return Index for the
same period The graph shows how the totat return on a £100 investment
in the Cormpany made on 1 Aprit 2009 would have changed over the
seven-year period measured comparedwith the total returnon a £100
investment in the FTSE RLIT Total Return Index The FTSE REIT Totat
Return Index has been selected as a sintable comparator because it is
the index in which British Land s shares are classtfied

The 2009 base pomt reguired by the regulations goverming this
remuneration report disclosure was close te the bottom of the property
cycle Brihsh Land s share price had not fallen as much at that time as
the average share price of the FTSE REITs Sector thereby setting a
mgher base point for subsequent growth The table belaw details the total

Remuneration of employees mcluding Directors

W Wages & salaries
Annual Incentives

{ ] Social security costs
B Pension costs

M Equuty-settled share-hased payments

Distributions to shareholders
W PID cash dividends paid to shareholders

M PID 1ax withholding

B Net cash equivalent of new shares issued under
Non-PID Scrip dividends
B Net cash equivalent of new shares 1ssued under

PID Scrip dividends

Total Sharcholde: Return
Rebased to 100, Aprit 2009

350

300

250

20

|

p=

/
150 -
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remuneration of the person undertaking the rofe of Chief Execulive over Aonl Apnl Apnl April April Apnl Apnl March
the same pertod calculated on the same basis as the single total figure 200 0 An oz 3 WE W15 06
of remuneration table and the Annual Incentive payouts and long term B The Briuish Land Company PLC
incertlive vesting rates as a percentage of the maximum oppor turity B FTSE REITs Sector
Source Aan Hewstt

2010 261 ALY 2013 M4 2015 2016
Chief Executive Chrs Grigg Chns Gngg Chnis Grigg Chnis Gngg Chns Gngg Chnis Gngg Chns Gngg
Chief Executive s single total figure
of remuneration (£000] 2082 2329 5353 4810 5398 6551 3709
Annual Incentive payout against maxemum
opportunity [%) &7 83 75 75 90 %% 67
Long term incentives vesiing rate against
maxmum opportunity (%] nfa nfa 99 63 98 23 54
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Chief Executive s remuneration compared to remuneration of British Land employees

The below table shows the percentage changes in differ ent elements of the Chief Execulive s remuneration refative to the previous financial year
and ihe average percentage changes n those elements of remuneration for employees based at British Land s head office over the same pertod
Head office employzes have been chosen as an appropriate comparator group for this purpose as employees based at Brinsh Land s head office
carry out wor k of the most simitar nature to the Chief Executive

Average change

Value of Chief Value of Cinet Change in In rernuneratian

Executve Executie Chigt Executive e'ement of

remuneration remuneration remuneration Bntish Land

element 2016 efement 2015 element employees

Remuneration elernent £000 £000 % %
Salary B840 800 50 54
Taxable benehts 21 21 0o 27
Annual Incentive 840 1152 =271 -68

Executive Directors external appointments

Executive Directers may take up one non-executive directorship at another FTSE company subject to Briush Land Board approval Cheis Grigg was
appanted a non-executwve director of BAE Systems plc an 1 July 2013 Duning the year to 31 March 2016 Chris Gnigg recewed a fee of £86 495
including £2 495 of expenses deemed to be taxablel from BAE Systemns plc which he retamed in full Lucinda Bell was apponted a non-executive
director of Rotork pic an 10 July 2014 During the year to 31 March 2016 Lucinda Bell receved o fee of £43 625 from Rotork plc which she retained
nfutt 101219

Statement of voting at the Annual General Meeting
The table below details the results of the shareholder vote to approve the Directors Remuneraten Repar tat the 2015 AGM and the shareholder vote
to approve the current Remuneralion Policy at the 2014 AGM The Cornmitiee was pleased to note the high levels of shareholtder support

Votes % Vales % Total votes Vates
Resolution AGM for for aga nst against cast withhetd
Approval of Directors Remuneration Report 2015 480 540 854 9733 17257841 247 697798705 54 059 347
Approval of Directors Remuner ation Policy 2014 484 058 054 9730 18953475 270 /03011480 1198 374

Consideration by the Directors of matters relating to Directors remuneration

Throughoul the year the Remuneration Commitiee was chaired by Lord Turnbutt Lynn Gladden and Williarm Jackson were members of the
Commiltee throughout the year Laura Wade-Gery was appointed as a Director of the Company and member of the Commiitee on 13 May 2015
The fotlowing persons assisted the Commidtee during the year Chiis Grigg {Chief Executivel Jofi Sharpe [Head of Operations] Elane Williams
Charles Middleton and Victorsa Penrice [each of whom acted as secretary to the Remuneration Commttee during the year] and Alan Judes

of Strategic Remuneratien

The Commiitee appointed Atan Judes of Strategic Remuneration as its independent advisor for the year He atso gave advice to the Company on
human 1 esources and shiare plan matters The Committee is satisfied there 1s no conflict in tum providing such services 1o the Company Strategic
Remuneration 1s a member of the Remuneration Cansultants Gieup and adheres 1o the Rermuneration Consuttams Group s Code of Conduct
Strategic Remuneration was selected by the Chairman of the Reruneration Committee followsng a competitive tender process

The Cormvmitlee assesses the advice given by Alan Judes of St ategic Remuneration to satisfy itseli thal the advice 1eceived s objective and
ndependent Alan Judes has a privale meeting with the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee once a year in accordance with the Code
of Canduct of the Remuneration Consuliants Group Fees charged by Strategic Remuneration fer the year amounted to £48 400 exctuding VAT
€73 400 excludmg VAT for the year ended 31 March 2815} and are charged on a ime basis

This Report was approved by the Board on 16 May 2016

AV\-J—J'—‘{__‘_:““'L«M

Lord Turnbull

Chairman of the Remuneration Commitiee
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DIRECTORS REPORT AND ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

Directors' report and additional disclosures

The Director s present their report on the affai s of the Group together
with the audited financial stalements and the report of the auditor for
the year ended 31 March 2016 Information required 1o be disclosed

in the Directors Report may be found below and in the fallowing
sechons of the Annual Report and Accounts 2016

Section in

information Annual Report Page

Dmvidend recommended during
the year Strategic Repart 52

Strategic Repost 1510 17

Sustainabilily governance

Governance and

Political denations and expenditure remuneration 78
Greenhouse gas emissons Strategic Report 48
Financial instruments - nsk management

objectives and policies Strategic Report 54

Future developments of the business of

the Company Strategic Report 41019

Governance and
remuneration 77 and 85

Employment policies and employee
involvement

Risk factors and principat risks Strategic Report 5/ 063

Articles of Association
The Company s Articles of Association may only be amended by special
resolution at a general meebing of shareholders

Subject to applicable law and the Company s Articles of Assocation
the Directors may exercise all powers of the Company

Matters reserved for Board approval see page 73

Board of Directors

The Dur ectors bisted on the Board of Director s pages constituted the
Board during the year Inaccordance with best practice the [hrectors
will retire ot the AGM and will offer themselves for election and annual
re-election as required

Board of Directors see pages 66 10 69

Directors’ liability insurance and mdemnaty

The Company has indemnified tis current Directors The indemnity
arrangements are qualifying indemnity provisions under the Companies
Act 2006 and are currently in force at the date of this Report (A 1 3] &

Purchase of own shares

The Cempany was graated authority at the AGM in 2015 to purchase ls
awn shares up 1o a lotal aggregate value of 10% of the 1ssued nomunal
capttal subject to market-standard maximum and murirnum price
consiramts That authonty expires at this year s AGM and a resolution
will be proposed for its renewal During the year the Company made no
purchases of Its own shares

Shairc capital

The Company has one class of ordinary share and all shares are fully
paid [25 pence each] On a poll at a general meeting every holder or proxy
has one vote for every share that they hold On a show of hands at a
general meeting each holder and proxy has one vate

Each ordinary share cari ses the right to participate equally in distributions
and dividends Theie are neither restrictions on the transter of shares nor
on the size of a holding

Al the AGM 1n 2015 the Directors were given the power (o atlot shares
up to a nominal ameunt of £85 056 843 as well as additional authority
1o atlot a further £85 056 863 on a rightsssue Thisauthority expires
at this year s AGM at which a similar resolution will be proposed

The rssued share capital has been inct eased during the year by fully pasd
1ssues as follows

Number of ardinary
shares of 25p
15 Aprit 2015 to Shares in tieu of
14 January 2014 Directors fees 12 504
Tt Aprit 2015 to On exercise of options
30 March 2016 under the Long-Term
Incentive Plan {LTIP] 403 817
15 May 201510 Onvesting of shares
23 December 2015 under the LTIP B9 761
FApril 20150 On vesling of shares
14 Septernber 2015 under the Fund Managers
Perfaimance Plan 360986
15 April 201510 On exercise of options under
4 March 2016 the Sharesave Scheme 134 107
5 August Z815t0
12 Febs uary 2014 Scrp allotment 6 407965

21 August 2015 Share Incentive Plan Free

Share Award allotment 177066

Onvesting of Maiching
Shares under the Maiching
Share Plan {MSP] 182 831

07 Septemnber 2015

Substantial mterests
As at 31 March 2016 the Company had heen notified of the tollowing
major interests nits ordinary shares

Fercentage of
Interesis inthe oidinary shares

Company s m 55U

arghnary shares %

Blackrock Inc' 86 222 399 829
Norges Bank 61739045 293
APG Algemene Pensigen Groep NV 51212198 492
GIC Private Linited 41042 589 394

' Of the 84 222 399 share interasts notified to the Company by Blackrock 327 645
share interests are hetd pursuant to qualifying hinancial instruments or iinancral
instruments with sim lar econormic effect) The remainder of Blackrock s
holading and all cther substantial mterests lisied in the above table arise from
direct or ndirect interesis in ordinary shares

So far as the Company 1saware no other person holds a notifiabie
interest in the Company s ordinary shares

Since the year end but prior to the date of this Report the Company has

been notified by GIC Private Limited that its interesis in the Company s
ordinary shares has increased to 4% 226 746
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Governance amd remunceration

DIRECTORS REPORT AND ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES CONTINUED

Warver of diidends

Unde: the trust deed establishing the Britsh Land Employee Share
Trust the trustee has waived any dividends payable in respect of any
shares held by them untess othetwise directed by the Company [ether
than in respect of shares held as @ nominee)

Significant agreements
There are no significant agreemenis to which the Company 1s party that
take effect aiter or termenate upon a change of control of the Company

Payments policy

We recognise the unportance ol good supplier relationships to the
overall success of our business We manage dealings with suppliers
in a fair consistent end transparent manner and have signed up to the
UK Government s Piompt Payment Cade At the year end there were
3412015 36) suppliers days outstanding

Esents after the balance sheet date
There were no reportable evenis after the balance sheet date

Auditor

The Audit Commitiee has recommended resolutions at the 2016 AGM to
reappomnt PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the Company s auditor and
to authortse the Audit Commuttee to agree the auditor s remuneration

Disclosure of imtormation to auditor

Each of the persons who s a Director at the date of approval of this

Report confirms that

- sofaras the Dnectorss aware there 1s no relevant audit infermation
of which the Company s auditar 1s unaware and

- the Director has taken all the sleps that he/she cught to have Laken
as a Director i order 1o make himsellfherself aware ol any relevant
audit :nformation and to establish that the Cornpany s auditor 1s aware
of that snformation

Thus confie mation 1s given and should be intecpt eted in accordance with
the provisions of section 418 of the Companies Act 2006

Disclosures under Listing Rule 9 8 4R
Infor mation required to be disclosed i compliance with LR 9 8 4R may
be found in the following sections

Section in
Information Annual Report Page
Amount of mnterest Financial statements 132

capitalised by the Group

Additional unaudited Other information 184 to 204
financial information unaudited

Waiver of dividends Additional disclosures 112

Governance arrangements

Information regardmg the Company s governance arrangements Is set
oul on pages 66 to 85 These pages are incorporated by reference into
the Direciors Report
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Directors’ interests m contracts and conflicts

of imterest

Mo contract existed during the year in relation to the Company s business
inwhich any Director was matersally interested

The Company s policy 1s that Directors notily the Chairman and the
Company Secretary of alt new ouiside interests and conflicts of interest
as andwhen they anse The noufication 1s then annually referred to the
Board for approval Furthermore the Board reviews the policy on an
annual basis and following the most recent review in November 201511
conctuded that the policy operated efieciively

Annual General Meeting (AGM)

The AGM of The British Land Company PLC will be held at The Montcalm
London Marble Arch 34-40 Great Cumberland Place London WIH71W
on Tuesday 12 July 2016 at ¥i 00 am Further tnformation will be
availabie on the Notce of AGM [F 2 41& The AGM 15 the principal
occasion when shar eholders are able to ask questions of thesr Board
and the chairmen of the mam commuttees We look forward to seeing
youthere [E 23]@

Management Report

The Strategic Report and the Directors Report together are the
management repori for the purposes of the FCAs Disclosure &
Transparency Rules [DTR 4 1 5R)

The Directors Report was approved on behali of the Board on 16 May 7016

o

Elaine Williams
Company Secretary and General Counsel
16 May 2016




DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Derectors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report
the Director s Remuneration Report and the financial statements
in accordance with applicable taw and regulations

Company law requires the Directors 1o prepare féinancial staternents
for each financial year Under that law the Directors have prepared the
Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporung Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and
the parent Company financial statements in accerdance with United
Kingdom Gener ally Accepted Accounting Practice [United Kingdom
Accounting Standards and applicable taw}

Under Lompany law the Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they grve a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of the profii or loss
of the Group for that period In prepaning these financial statements the
Directors are requured to
- setect suitable accounting policies and then apply them conststently
- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent
- state whether IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and applicable
UK Accounting Standards have been followed subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explained in the Group and parent Company
finanoial statements respectively and
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it 1s appropriale to presume that the Company will
contiue in busmess

The Director s are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records
that are suffivient to show and explain the Campany s transactions and
thsclose with reascnabte aceuracy atany time the iinancial positson of

the Company and the Group and enable them to ensure that the financial
staternents and the Directers Remuneration Report comply with the
Companies Act 2006 and as regards the Group financial statements
Article 4 of the IAS Regulstion They are alsc responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Company «nd the Group and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and otherirregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the mantenance and integrity of the
Company swebsite Legsslation in the United Kingdem governing the
preparation and dissermination of financial statements may differ from
legtslation in other jurisdictions

The Director s consider that the Annual Report and Accounts taken
as awhole 15 farr balanced and under standable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company s
position and perfoi mance business model and strategy

Each of the Directors whose names and functions are listed in the

governance and remuneration section confirm that, to the best of

then knowledge

- the Group financal statermments which have been prepared in accordance
with IFRSs as adopted by the EU give a true and fair view of the assets
liabilities financal position and profit of the Group and

- the Strategic Report and the Directors Report include a far review
of the developmeni and performance of the business and the position
of the Group together with a descriptian of the principal nsks and
uncertainties that It faces

By order of the Board

UMl

Lucmda Bell

Chief Financiat Officer
16 May 20156
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Financial statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE

BRITISH LAND COMPANY PLC

Report on the inancial statements

Our opinton

In our opinion

- the Bnitish Land Company PLC s Group financial staterments and
Company financial statements fthe financial statements] give a true
and fair view of the state of the Group s and of the Company s affairs as
at 31 March 2016 and of the Group s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended

- the Group financial statemenis have been properly prepared in
accordance with International Financizl Repor iing Standards [ IFRSs
as adopted by the European Union

- the Company financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with United Kingdom Generaity Accepted Accountg
Practice and

- the financial statements have been prepared m accordance with
the requisements of the Companies Act 2006 and as 1egards the Group
financial statements Aticle 4 of the AS Regulatran

What we have audited

The financial statements inctuded within the Annual Report comprise

- the Censobidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2016

- the Company Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2014

- the Conselidated Income Staternent and the Consolrdated Statement of
Comprehensive Income for the year thep ended

- the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended

- 1he Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended
and

- the notes to the financial statements which include a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

Certain required disclosures have been presented elsewhere in the
Annual Report rather than in the notes to the financial statements
These are cross-referenced {rom the hnanciat staternents and are
wdentified as audited

The binancial reparting framewor k that has been appliedin the
pteparation of the Group financial statements is applicable law and
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union The linancial reporting
framework that has been applied m the preparation of the Company
financial staterments 1s applicable law and United Kingdem Accounting
Standards [United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accaunting Practice]
including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework

i16 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2014

Our aud:t approach

Overview

Our 2014 audit was planned and executed having regard to the fact

that the Group s eperations were largely unchanged in nature from

the previous year additronally there have been no significant changes
ta the valuation methodology and accounting standards relevant to the
Group inlight of this our appioach ta the auditin terms of scoping and
areas of focus was largely unchanged

Afull scope audit was performed by the Group team for all subsidiai ies
aof the Group and the following joint ventures Broadgate Meadowhall
and Leadenhall

Matenalty

- Overatl Group matenality £138 million [2014/15 £130 million} which
represents 1% of Total assets

- Specific Group matenality appled to pre-tax profit £18 mullon (2014/15
£15 mitlion} which represents 5% of undertying pre-tax profit

Areas of focus

- Valuation of investment and development properties

- Revenue recogmiticn specifically focusing on non-standard revenue
transactions

- Accounting for transactions including acguisiions and disposals of
investment properties review of the accounting treatment of the deterred
constderation recewed from one of the Group s joint venture partners the
£1i0 millon debenture bonds tender offer and purchase and the 1ssuance
of 350 mullion convertible bonds in the year

- Taxation - REIT status and tax provisions

The scope of our audit and our areas of focus
We conducted our audit sn accor dance wath International Standards on
Audiing [UK and Ireland} [ 15As [UK & Iretand] ]

We des:gned our audit by determining matenshity and assessing the
risks of materiat misstatement in the financial statements In partcular
we looked al where ihe Dnectors made subjective judgements for
example in signticant accounting estimates that involved making
assumptions and considering future events that are mherently uncertatn
Asn all of our sudits we also addressed the f1sk of management
overisde of internal controls including evaluaung whether there was
evidence of bias by the Directors that represented a risk of materal
misstatemnent due to fraud

The risks of matertat misstatement that had the greatest effect onour
audit ncluding the atlocation of our resources and eftort are dentified
as areas of focus in the table below We have also set out how we
taored our audit te address these speciic areas inorderto provide an
optauon on the financral stalernents as a whole and any comments we
make on the results of our precedures should be read in this context
This s not a complete list of att risks identified by our audit




Area of focus

How our audit addressed the area of focus

Valuation of investment and development properties
Refer to pages 80 to 83 [Report of the Audit Comimittee] pages 127
to 129 [Accounting palicies) and pages 136 to 139 INote)

The Group s investment proper ty portfolio 1s split between office
and residential properties in London retail and leisure properties
across the UK and the assets at the Canada Water site witha
valuation in the Consolidated Balance Sheet of £9 643 mithon

The valuation of the Group s investment proper ty portfolio 1s nherentty
subjective due to among other factors the indwidual nature of each
property its location and the expected futur e rentals for that particular
property For developments factorsinclude projected costs lo complete
and tmung of practical completion

The vatuations were carried out by third party valuers CB Richard Ellis
and Knight Frank [the Valuers] The Valuers were engaged by the
Directors and perfarmed thesr work in accordance with the Royal
Institute of Chartered Surveyors [ RICS ) Valuation - Prolessional
Standards The Valuers used by the Group have considerable
experience of the markets in which the Group operates

In deterrmuning a property s valuation the Valuers lake inlo

account properly-specific mformation such as the current tenancy
agreements and rental income They apply assumphions for yrelds and
estimated markel rent which are influenced by prevatling market yields
antt comparable market transactions to arrive at the final valuation

For developments the residual appraisal methed s used by estimating
the fair value of the completed project using a capitalisation method less
estimated costs to completien and a r1sk premism

The sigmficance of the estimates and judgements involved coupled with
the fact that only a smatl percentage difference inindividual property
valuations when aggregated, could result n a matenal nisstatement
warrants specific audit focus in this area

There were also a number of specific factors affecting the valuations

in the year

- a number of developrments thal were completed in the year are now
valued as standing Investment properiies so we have paud particular
focus to the valuation methodology applied to those assets

~ the nature of the Canada Water site which compnses three contiguous
sites that Brnitish Land are currently master-planning as a combined
large scale mixed use development site resulied in our audit payng
particular tocus to the relevant valuations and

- the UK superrarket sector continues to be an area of focus gven
performance in the sector

We read the valuation repor is for all the properties and confrmed
that the vatuatran approach for each was in accordance with RICS
standards and sunable for use n determining the carrying value
for the purpose of the inancial statements

We assessed the Valuers qualifications and expertise and read thew
terms of engagement with the Group to determine whether there
were any matlers that rmight have affected thewr objectivity or may
have imposed scope limitations upon their work We also considered
fee arrangements between the Valuers and the Group and other
engagements which might exist belween the Gioup and the Valuers
We found no evidence 1o suggest that the objectivity of the Valuers

in thewr performance of the valuations was compr orised

We performed testing on the standing data 1n the Group s information
systems concerning the valuation process We cariied out procedures
on a sampte basis 1o salisfy ourselves of the accuracy of the property
information supplied o the Valuers by management For developments
we confirmed that the supporting information for construction contracts
and budgets which was supplied to the Valuers was alse consistent
with the Group s records

The audit team including our valuation speciabists attended

meetings with each of the Valuers at which the valuations and the key
assumptions therain were discussed Qur work focused on the largest
properties in the portfolio and those where the assumptions used and/or
year-on-year capital value movement suggested a possible outlrer
versus market data for the relevant secior We also focused on
superstores Canada Water and completed developments for the
reasons relerred to opposite We compared the investment yields used
by the Valuers with an estimated range of expected yields determined
via t eference to published benchmarks We also considered the
reasonableness of other assumptions that are niot so readily comparable
with published benchimarks such as Esumated Rental Value | ERV ) void
rates and rent-free periods Finally we evaluated year-on-year
movernents in capitat value with reference to published benchmarks
Where assumptions were outside the expected range or otherwise
unusual and/or valualions showed unexpected movements we
discussed these with the Valuers in our meetings held with them and
obtaned additional audit evidence to support the explanations recerved

e g coples of lease agreements to support new lettings that have
increased valuation during the period in thus way professional
scepiicism was exercised in our evaluation ot whether assumptions were
appropriate in bight of the evidence provided by significant transactions
which had taken place in the market during the year

It was evident from our nteraction with management and the Valuers
and fram our review of the valuation reports that close attention had
been paid to each property s individual characteristics at a granular
tenant by tenant tevel as well as considering the overall quality
geographic location and desirabdity of the asset as a whole The
evaluation of whatwere the appropriate asswmphions io apply to any
given property included determining the level of impact that recent
and significant market tranrsactions should have on each indwidual
propet ty svaluation given its umigue charactertstics did not reveal
any i1ssues We saw evidence that allernative assumptions had been
considered and evaluated by managerment and the Valuers before
determuning the final vatuation We concluded that the assumplions used
1n the valuations were supportable in light of avadable and comparable
mar ket evidence
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Financial statements

REPORT OF THE AUBITOR CONTINUED

Area of focus

How sur audit addressed the area of focus

Revenue recognition
Refer to pages 80 to 83 {Report of the Audit Committeel pages 127
to 129 lAccounting policies) and page 131 [Note)

Revenue for the Group cansists primnar ily of rental income Rental
incorme s based on tenancy agreements where there s a standard
pracess in place farrecording revenue which 1s system generated
There are however cei tain transactions within revenue that warrant
additional audit focus because of an increased inherent risk of error
due to then non-standard natui e

These include spreading of occuprer incentives and guaranieed rent
Increases - these balances reguire adjustments made to rental income
to ensure revenue 1s recorded on a straight-line basis over the course
of alease

We carried oul tests of controls over the cash and accounts receivable
processes and the related [T systems to obtamn evidence that postings to
these accounts were reliable For rental income balances we then used
data-enabled audit techniques to identfy all standard revenue journals
posted using these systems and precesses

The remanung journsts retated to non-standard transactions These
included rectasstications withsn revenue accrued income and bad debt
prowsions For each category of non-standard revenue summansed
above we have understood the nature and assessed the reasonableness
of journals being generated and performed substantive testing over

a sample of these tems There have been no exceptrons arising from
our testing over non-standard revenue transactions

For batances not included within rental income such as service charge
income we perfot med substantive testing on a sample basis No1ssues
wer e noted

Accounting for transactions
Refer to pages 80 to 83 {Report of the Audit Commitiee] pages 127
t0 129 [Accounting policies] and pages 130 to 164 [Notes to Accounts]

There have been a number of transactions during the year
These warranted additional audit focus due 1o the magmitude
of transactions and the polentiat for complex contractual terms
thatintroduce judgement into how they wer e accounted for
Key transactions subject to addivanal audit focus were
- purchase of addtional urts in HUT for £59 mullron
- acquisition of One Sheldon Square for £210 mitlion
- tssuance of £350 million convertible bonds
- recognition of deferred consideration receved from
one of the Group 5 joint venture partners
- profit on disposal of investrment properties and trading
properties of £45 million and
- £110 mitlion debenture bonds tender olier and purchase

For each transaction we understood the natur e of the transactien and
assessed the praposed accounting treatmeni in relation to the Group s
accounting policres and relevant IFRSs

For the purchase of additional umits in HUT we agreed the net asset
value used in the share price calculation to suppor ting informatien
including external Net Asset Value certificates

For all acquisitions and disposals we obtained and reviewed the key
supporting documentation such as Sates and Purchase Agreements
and romptetion staternents Consideration receved or paid was agreed
to bank statements and deferred consideration postings No maternal
1ssues were found as a result of these procedures

For the conver ible bond we have inspected the hond agreement
and cbtaned evidence of all the key inputs into the bond 1ssue price
We have also considered the accounting treatment and concurred
with management s treatment

For the deferred censtderation recerved from one of the Group s joint
venture partners we have inspected the sharehotder agreement that
governs the fee payment obtained evidence that the mitestones that
trigger the payment have been met and have inspected the calculation
of the payment amount and agreed the cash receipl We have assessed
the accounting treatment and concur with the treaiment

For the debentur e bonds tender effer and purchase we have agi eed
the repayment of the debentures and recalculated the finance charge
incurred through agreaing the varicus tender documents resolutions
contained in the Commitiee of the Board and cash paymenis The
linance char ges have been expensed through the Income Statement
We have reviewed thes treatment and concur with ths
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Area of focus

How our audit addressed the area of focus

Taxation
Refer to pages 80 1o 83 {Report of the Audit Comimttee)
pages 127 to 129 [Accounting poticies} and pages 133 and 144 [Notes]

The Graup s status as a REIT underpins its business model and
shareholderreturns Forthis reason 1t warrants special audit focus
The obligations of the REIT regime inctude requirements to camply with
talance of business dividend ¢nd income cover lests The Broadgate
joint ventur e ts also structured as a REIT and as such REIT cormplrance
15 also of s elevance for this jont venture in addition to the overall Group

Tax provisions are in place to dccount far the risk of challenge
of certamn of the Group s tax prowisions Given the subjective
nature of these provisions additional audhi focus was placed
on tax provisions

We i e-performed the Group s annual REIT compliance tests as well as
those tests for the Broadgate REIT Based on our work peiformed we
agreed with management s assessment thai all REIT compliance tests
had been met to ensure that the Group and Broadgate maintains its
REIT staius

We used our tax experuse to evaluate tax provisions and potential
exposures as at 31 March 2014, chatlenging the Group s assurmptions and
judgernenis through our knowledge of tax circumstances and by reading
1elevant correspondence between the Group and Her Majesty s Revenue
& Customs and the Group s external tax advisars We concluded that the
tax provisions wet e within an appropi wate range based on the supportng
wformation prowided by the Group s tax departrment

How we taitored the audit scope

We tatlored the scope of our audit to ensure thatwe performed enough
work [0 be able to give an opinion on the financial statements as a whole
taking into aceouni the structure of the Group the accounting processes
and conirols and the industry in which the Group operates

The Group and Cempany financial staterments are produced using ¢
single consolidation systemn that has a direct interface with the general
ledger We performed our audit procedures aver the general ledger
system and tested the interface with the consolidation system

Afull scope audit was perfermed by the Group audrt team for all
subsidiaries of the Group and the following joint ventures Broadgate
Meadowhall and Leadenhall This gives coverage over substantially
allof the Group

In establishing the gverall approach {o our audit we assessed the rnsk
of material misstatement taking into account the nature tikebhood and
potential magmiude of any nusstatement Following this assessment
we applied professionat judgement to determine the exlent of tesiing
requn ed over each balance in the financial statements

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality
We sel certaim quantilative thresholds for materiality These together
with gualitaiive considerations helped usto determiune the scope of our
audit and the nature biming and extent of our audit procedur es on the
mdadual inangial staternent lne ilers and disclosures and in evaluating
the effect of misstaternents both indvidually and on the inancal
siatements as a whote

Based on eur professional judgernent we determined matertality
far the financral statements as a whole as follows

Gverall Group materiality £138 milbon

How we determined it 1% of total assets

Ratronale for benchmark applied A key determinant of the

Group svalue s direct property
invesiments Due tothis the key
area of focus in the audit1s the
valuation of investmmeni proper ties
On this basis we set an overalt
Group matertality level based

on total assets

In addiion we set a specific materiality level of €18 mulbion [2014/15

£15 muthion} for nems within underlying pre-tax profit This equates to 5%
of profit befare tax adjusted for capital and other items Inarnving at this
judgement we had 1egard to the fact that the underlying pre-tax profit

15 & secondary hinancialbindicator of the Group [refer to note 2 of the
financial statements page 130 where the term is defined in full)

We agreed with the Audit Commuttee that we would report to them
misstatements identitied during our audit of underlying pre-lax items
above £1 mallon{2014/15 £31 million as well as misstatements below
that amount that 1in our view warranted reporting for qualitative reasons
Thisyear we agreed with the Audin Commmtiee that we would report to
them any misstaiements identfted during our audit of capital and other
items above £6 9 million [2014/15 n/al as well as misstatements below
that amount that 10 our view warranted reporting far qualdtative reasons

Going concern

Under the Lisung Rules we are requs ed to review the trectors
staternent set out on page 77 i relation o going concern

We have nothing te report having performed our review

Under 15As [UK & Ireland) we are required to report ta youif we have
anything material to add or to draw attention 1o i relation to the
Directors staternent abeut whether they considered it appropriate to
adopt the going concern basisin preparing the linanaal statements We
have nothing material 1o add or lo draw attenbion 1o

As noted in the Directors statement the Directors have concluded that it
15 appt opriate to adopt the going cancern basis in prepaning the linanaial
stalemenis The going concern basis presumes that the Group and
Company have adequate resources to remain in operation and that the
Directersintend them o do so for at {east one year from the date the
financial statementswere signed As part of our audit we have concluded
that the Dir eciors use of the going concern basis s appropriate
However hecause not alt future events or conditions can be predicted
these statements are not a guaraniee as to the Group s and Company s
ability to continue as a going cancern
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Financial statcments

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR CONTINUED

Other required 1eporting
Consistency of other infermation

Companies Act 2006 apinion

In our epimian the information given in the Strategic Report and

the Directors Report for the financial year for which the fmancial
statemen!s are prepar ed 1s consistent with the financial statements

ISAs (UK & Ireland] reporting
Under I15As (UK & Ireland) we are required to repori ta you if
1N OkIE OpIHON

- Information in the Annual Reportis We have no exceptions
- materally inconsistent with the mformation 1o report
in the audited linancial statements or
- apparently materially incorrect based on or
matenally inconsistent with our knowtedge
of the Group and Cornpany acquned in the
course of performing our audit or
- otherwise misteading

We have no exceptions
to report

- The statement given by the Directars on
page 76 n accordance with provision C 11
of the UK Corporate Governance Code [the
Code ] that they consider the Annual Report
taken as a whole to be fan belanced and
understandable and provides the information
necessary for mernbers to assess the Group s
and Company s performance business mode]
and strategy 1s malerially iInconsistent with
our knowledge of the Group and Company
acauired i the course of performing our audit

- The section of the Annual Report on page 82
as required by provsion C 3 8 of the Code
describing the work of the Audit Committee
does not appropriately address matters
comnmunicated by us {0 the Audit Committee

We have no exceptions
to report
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The Directors assessment of the prospects of the Group and of
the principal risks that would threaten the solvency or liquidity
of the Group

Under i5As (UK & trelandi we at e required to report 1o you If we have
anythung material lo add or 1o draw attention to in relavon 1o

We have nothung material
tcadd or to draw
aitention to

- the Directors confirmation on page 76
of the Annual Report 1In accordance with
provision C 2 1 of the Code that they have
carrred out a robust assessment of the
principal nisks factng the Group ancluding
those that would threatenits business model
future performance solvency or hquidity

- the disclosures in the Annual Report
that describe those risks and explain how
they are being rmanaged or mitigated

We have nothing matenal
to add or to draw
attention to

We have nothing matenal
to add or to draw
atlention to

- the Directors exptanation on page 58
of the Annuat Report in accordance with
proviston C 2 2 of the Code as to how
they have assessed the prospects of the
Group over what pericd they have done
s0 and why they consider that pertod to
be appropnate and thewr statement 85
to whether they have a reasonable
expectation that the Group will be able
to continue 1n operation and meet s
liatulities as they fall due over the penod
of their assessment including any related
disclosures drawing attenlion 1o any
necessary quabfications or assumptions

binderthe Listing Rules we are required to review the Directors
statement that they have carried out a robust assessment of the
principal risks facing the Group and the Direclors statement in s elation
to the longer termviabilty of the Group Our revtew was substantially
less i scope than an audit and only consisted of making inquiries and
censidering the Director s process supporting then statements
checking that the statements are in al:gnment with the relevam
provisions of the Lode and considering whether the statements are
consistent with the knowledge acyuired by us in the course of performing
out audt We have nothing Lo report having performed our review

Adequacy of accounting records and information

and explanations received

Under the Compames Act 2006 we are required 1o report to you if

IN OUr ApINION

- we have not recewed att the information and exptanations we require for
our audit or

- adequaie accounting records have not been kept by the Cornpany
or returns adequate for our aucit have not been receved from branches
notvisited by us or

- the Comnpany hinancial statements and the part of the Directors
Remuneration Report to be sudited are not in agreement wath the
accounting tecords and returns

We have no excepiions to report ansing from this responsibility




Directors remuneration

Directors remuneration report - Companies Act 2006 opinion
In our opinion the part of the Direciors Remuneration Report

to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with

the Companies Act 2006

Other Companies Act 2004 reporting

Under the Carnpanies Act 2006 we are required 1o report to you if
inour opinson certain disclosures of Directors remuneraiion speciiied
by law are not made We have no exceplions to report ansing from

this responsimlity

Corporate governance statement

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the part of the
Cas porate Governance Statement relating t ten further provisions
of the Code We have nothing to repori having performed our review

Responsibihities for the financial statements
and the audit

Qur responsibilities and those of the Directors

As explained more fully in the Directors Responsibilittes Statement
set out on page 113 the Birectors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satistied that they give a true
and fan view

Our 1esponsibility s to audit and express an opirion on the hinancial
staternents in accordance with applicable law and 15As [UK & lreland]
Those standat ds reguire us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board s Ethical Standar ds for Auditors

This report inclucdhng the opimons has been prepared for and only for
the Company s mesnbers as a body in accas dance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not in
gving these opinions accept or assume responsibility for any other

pur pase of to any other persan to whom this report is shown or into
whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed hy our prior
consent i writing

What an audit of financial statements involves
An audn tnvolves obtaining ewidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the finanaiat statements sufficient to give reasonabte assurance that
the financial statements are free from material misstaternent whether
caused by fraud or error Thismcludes an assessment of
- whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Group s and the
Company s circurnstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed
- the reasonableness of significant accounting estmates made by
the Directers and
- the overall presentation of the financial statements

We pnimanily focus our work in these ar eas by assessing the Directors
Judgermnents against avaltable evidence forming our own judgements
and evaluating the disclosures i the financial statements

We test and exarmine information using sampling and other auditing
techniques to the extent we consider necessary to provide a reasonable
basis {or us o draw conclusions We obtain audit evidence threugh
testing the effectiveness of controls substantive procedures or a
combinatien of both

In addiion we read all the financial and non-financial information in
the Annual Report tordentify matenal inconsistencies with the audited
financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently
materially incorrect based on or materially inconsistent with the
knowledge acquired by us in the cour se of performing the audit

I we become aware of any apparent material nusstatemments or
Inconsisiencies we considet the implications for our report

S

John Waters (Semor Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
L.ondon

16 May 2014

% The maintenance and integrity of the The British Land Company PLC website
1s the responsibility of the Directors the work carred aut by the auditors does
not involve consideration of these matters and accord ngly the auditors accept
no responsibdity for any changes that may have occurred to the financiat
staternents since they were initially presented on the website

® Legislation in the United Kingdom goverming the preparation and dissemination
of financial statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions
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Finmncial scatements

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

2016 5
Capital Camiat
Undertying'  and other Total Underiying’  and other Total
Mote £m £m £m £m Ern £m
Revenue 3 569 21 590 50% B 355
Costs 3 128) [11} (139} 115] {45) [160]
3 L 10 451 390 1 396
Jomt ventures and funds [see also below] ] 135 262 397 129 597 726
Adrinistrative expenses (93 - {931 85) - 85]
Valuation movement 4 - 8é 516 - 884 884
Profit on disposal of investment properties and ivestments - 35 35 - 20 20
MNet financing costs
- hnancing incorme 6 5 65 70 7 - 7
- tinancing charges b (1m) {34) [145] (112) 1471 {1391
(108) 3 {75} [105) {47 (152]
Profiton ardinary activities before taxation 377 954 1,331 329 1460 1789
Taxation 7 33 33 |24} [24]
Profit for the year after taxation 1,364 1745
Attributable to non-caontrolling interests 14 g 19 16 39 55
Attributable to shareholders of the Company 363 982 1,345 313 1397 1710
Earnings per share
- basic 2 131 2p 168 3p
- dituted 2 124 1p 16773p
Alt results derwve Irom continuing opet atiens
2018 2015¢
Captal Capitat
Underlying'  and other Totat Undertying'  and other Tatat
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m
Results of joint ventures and funds accounted for using the
equity method
Underlying Profit 135 - 135 29 - i29
Valuation movernent 4 - 245 245 - 589 289
Prefit an disposal of investment properties trading properties
and mvestments b 18 18 B 6 s
Taxation - (1) {1 - 2 2
11 135 262 397 12% 597 726

" See defirntion 0 glossary

2The prior year compalatives hava been restated See note 1
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

20146 x5
£m £m
Piofit for the year after laxation 1,384 1765
Other comprehensive income
Itemns that will not be reclassified subsequently to profitor loss
Net actuarial loss on pension scheme (1 &
Valuation movements on owner-occupred property 19 10
18 5
items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
[Lossest gans on cash flow hedges
- Group (241 (71)
- Joimt ventures and funds (31 3
- Reclasstfication of iterns from the statemnent of comprehensive income - 30
(271 [38]
Transferred to the income statement {cash flow hedges]
- Foreign currency der ivatives 2 1
- Interest rate derwvatives 10 8
12 (3l
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
- Hedgingand translatian 3 6
- Othet 3 [
Deferred lax on itemns of ather comprehensive ncome (151 10
Other comprehensive loss for the year 12} 126]
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,352 1739
Altributable to non-conteelling interests 19 a3
Attributable to shareholders of the Company 1,333 1686
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Finaneial statements

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2016

2016 2015
Note £m £m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment and devetopment praperties 10 9,643 9120
Owner-occupied property 10 95 40
9,738 9180
Other non-current assets
Investments i joird ventures and funds H 3,353 290t
Other investments 12 142 379
Defet red tax assets 16 3 -
Interest rate and currency dervative assets 17 1467 139
13,403 12 599
Current assets
Trading properties 10 328 274
Debtors 13 33 20
Cash and short term deposits V7 T4 108
472 402
Total assets 13,875 13 001
LIABILITIES
Current Labilities
Short term borrowings and overdrafts 17 [74) (102)
Creditors t4 (218) [241)
Cor poratien tax 18) {9)
[310) (372
Non-current babiities
Debentures and loans 7 {3,687) {3 847]
Other non-current liabdiies 15 122) 791
Deferred tax liabilities 16 - (12
Interest rate and currency dervative liabilities 17 (137} 1124]
13,948) 14 064)
Total Labilities 14.254) |4 436]
Net assets 9,619 8565
EQUITY
Share capnal 260 258
Share premium 1,295 1280
Merger reserve 213 3
Other reserves 931 [82]
Retained earnings 7,667 6 563
Equity attributable to sharehalders of the Campany 9,342 8232
Non-controlling interests 277 333
Total equity 2,619 8945
EPRA NAY per share* ya 919p 829

* As defined n glossary

John Gildersleeve Lucinda Bell

Chairman Chief Financial Officer

The financtal statements on pages 122 o 164 were approved by the Board of Directors and signed on it behatf on 16 May 2016
Company number 621920
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

20148 015
Note £m fm
Rental incame receved from tenants 435 w7
Fees and other mcome recerved 58 49
Dperating expenses paid to suppliers and emptoyees (152} {128)
Cash generated from operations 341 318
interest paig (124) [124]
Interest received " 18
Corporation taxation repayments received 8 -
Distributions and other recervables from joint ventures and funds i 54 73
Net cash inflow from operating activities 294 285
Cash flows frem investing activities
Developrment and other capital expenditure (258) {1571
Purchase of invesiment properties 1243) 1172}
Sate of mvestment and trading properties 564 415
Payments received in respect of {uture trading property sales 40 32
Purchase of investments - (7]
Acquisttion of Speke Unit Trust - (90)
Tesco property swap - 1931
Investment m and loans to joint ventures and funds (241) 173]
Capital distributions and loan repayments from joint ventures and funds 386 134
Net cash inflow {outflow) from investing activities 230 i111)
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of ordinary shares 5 12
Dwidends paid 19 (235] [228]
Dwidends paid to non-controlling nter ests 16 (151
Acqursition of units in Hercules Unit Trust (61 (93]
Closeout of imnterest rate denvatives 15 {12)
Cash collateral transactions (24} 10
Decrease in bank and other borrowings 9191 (581)
Drawdowns on bank and ather borrowings 373 703
Issue of zero coupan 2015 converuble bond 344 -
Net cash outflow from financing activities (518) {208)
Net increase ldecrease] in cash and cash equivalents é (341
Cash and cash equivalents ai 1 Aprit 108 $42
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 114 108
Cash and cash equivalents cansists of
Cash and shor t term deposits 17 114 138
' The pnor year comparaives have been restated See note 1
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Finuncial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES N EQUITY

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Hedging
and Re Nan-
Share Share translation  valuation Merger  Retained controlling Total
capital  premum  resene’ reserve reserve  £arnings Total  interests equity
£m £m £&m Em fm £m £m £m £m

Balance at 1 April 2015 258 1,280 [76) (&} 213 §,563 8,232 333 8,545
Profit for the year atter taxation - - - - - 1,345 1,345 19 1,364
Losses on cash flow hedges - - [24) - - - 124} - (24)
Revaluation of owner-occupied property - - - 19 - - 1% - 19
Exchange and hedging mevements in joint ventures and
funds - - - {3] - - (3 - 3
Reclassilication of gains on cash flow hedges

- Foreign currency denvatives - - 2 - - - 2 - 2

- Interest rate derivalives - - 10 - - - 10 - 10
Exchange differences on transtation of for eign aperations - - 13} 3 - - - - -
Net actuarial loss on penston schemes - - - - - k}} )] - (h}
Deferred tax on items of
other comprehensive iIncome - - 118) 1 - - [15) - (15}
Other comprehensive [loss] income - - 31) 20 - (1 f12) - 2j
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 131) 20 - 1,344 1,333 19 1,352
Share issues 2 15 - - - 2] 9 - 5
Fair value of share and shai e option awards - - - - - 8 8 - 8
Purchase of units from non-centrolling interests - - - - - - - (59) 159}
Loss on purchase of units from non-controlling interests - - - - - 51} m - al
Dwidends payable inyear [28 Op per share} - - - - - [287]  [287) - {287]
Dvidends pavable by subsidiaries - - - - - - - (15} 18l
Adjustmenti for scrip dividend element - - - - - 52 52 - 52
Balance at 31 March 2015 240 1,295 (107] 14 213 7,667 9,342 277 9,619
Batance at 1 April 2014 255 1257 {32 {381 213 5091 6746 an 7117
Profit for the year after taxation - - - - - 1710 1710 39 17465
Losses an cash flow hedges - - 169) - - - 169) {2) il
Revaluation of owner-occupied property - - - 10 - - 10 - 10
Exchange and hedging movements in joint venlures and
funds - - - 3 - - 3 - 3
Reclassificatian of items fram the statement
of comprehensive Income - - - 30 - - 30 - 30
Redlassificauon of [losses] gans on cash flow hedges

- Foreign currency derivatives - - (1 - - - 11 - n

-1interest 1 ate derivatives - - 8 - - - 8 - 8
Exchange differences on
transtation of foreign operations - - 6 (6] - - - - -
Net actuanial loss on pension schemes - - - - - {5} (5} - {5)
Defet red tax on items of other camprehensive income - - 22 (5} - (71 10 - 10
Giher comprehensive {loss} income - - (44) 32 - (12 (24 {2 {26)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - [44) 32 - 1698 1686 53 1739
Share I1ssues 3 23 - - - (10l 16 - 16
Non-controlting mterest on acquisition of subsidiary - - - - - - - 31 31
Fairvalue of share and share aption awards - - - - - 10 10 - 10
Purchase of units from non-controlling interests - - - - - 2 2 {103) f101]
Dividends payabie in year (27 3p per share) - - - - - (277 [277) - [277]
Dwidends payable by substdiaries - - - - - - - (191 (9
Adjusiment for scrip dvidend element - - - - - £9 49 - £9
Balance at 31 March 2015 258 1280 {76) (6] 213 6563 8232 333 8 545

The balance at the beginning of the year includes £10m n relation to translation and [£86m) in relation to hedging
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1 Basis of preparation sigmificant accounting
pohicies and accounting judgements

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for the revaluation of
properties investments held for trading and derivatives The financial
staternents have also been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Repas ing Standards [IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Unien and theretore comply with article 4 of the EU IAS regulation
and in accordance with the Companies Act 2006

In the current financial year the Group has adopted Annual Improvements
to IFRSs 2010-2012 cycle and 2011-2013 cycle and Defined Benefi Plans
Employee Contributions - Amendments to IAS 19

The adoption of these standaids has not had a material impact onthe
Group and atherwise the accounting polictes used are consistent with
those contained in the Group s previcus Annual Repor t and Acceunts

for the year ended 31 March 2015

A number of new standar ds and amendments to standards and
interpretations have beenissued but are not yet effective for the current
accounting pertod None of these are expected to have a maierial impact
on the consalidated financiat staterments of the Group except the
following set out below
- IFRS 9 - Financial instruments will impact both the measurement and
disclosures of financial instruments and s effective for the Group s year
ending 31 March 2019 The Group has not yet completed its evaluation
of the effect of the adoption
- IFRS 15 - Revenue from contracts wath customers does not apply
to gross rental income  but does apply to service charge imcome
managerment and per formance fees and trading property disposals
and 1s effective for the Group s year ending 31 March 2019 The Group
does not expect adoption of IFRS 15 to have a material impact on the
measurement of revenue recogrition but additianal disclosures wall
be required weth regards to the abave sources of tncome
- IFRS 14 - Leases will impact both the measurement and disclosures
of the Group s head leases andhis effective for the Group s year ending
31 March 2020 The Group has not yet completed s evatuation of the
effect of the adoption

Restatement

Duiing the year the accounting fer Broadgate Estates a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group which acts as a pr operty manager has been
reviewed resulting in a reclassification of items presented in the
Consolidated income Statement and the Consolidated Statement

of Cash Flows

This rectassification had no impact on either IFRS profil befare tax

or Underlying Profit 1t resulted in a £29m increase in other fees and
comrusstons received offset by a £26m increase in other fees and
commussions expenses and a E3mincrease In admunistrative expenses

This reclassification had no impact on the net cash inflow from opet ating
activittes presented in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

it resutted in £35m increase In fees and other iIncome received and 4
£35m increase in operating expenses pad 1o suppliers and employees

In addition the format of the Consolidated income Statemment has been
changed o aid the clanty and usathlity of the financial statements and the
prior-year comparatives have been re-presented to reflect this change

Going concern
The financia! statements ave prepared on a going concern basis as
explained the corporate governance section on page 77

Subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates [including funds)

The consolidated accounts include the accounis of the Brish Land
Company PLC and «ll subsichar es [entities controlted by Britush Land]
Contialis assumed wher e Brnish Land has the power and the abitity
to affect the financral and operating policies of an investee entily 5o as
10 gain henefits from its activities

The results of subsidianes joint ventures or associates acquired or
disposed of dunng the year are included from the effective date of
acouisitron or up to the effective date of disposal Accounting policies
of subsidiaries jointventures or associates which differ from Group
accounting policies are adjusted on consolidation

Business combinations are accounted for under the acquisiion method
Any excess of the purchase price of business combinations over the fair
value of the assets habilites and contingent babilites acquired and
resulting deferred tax thereon is recogrised as goodwill Any discount
recewved Is credited to the income statementin the peniod of acquisition

All intra-Group transactions balances income and expenses are
ebiminated on consolidaton Joint ventures and asscaiates including
funds are accounted for under the eguity method whereby the
consolidated balance sheet incorporates the Group s share [investor s
share} of the netassets of 1ts joint ventwi es and associates The
conschdaled income statementincerporates the Greup s share

of Joint venture and associate profits after tax

Thewr profits Inctude revaluation movements on investment properties

Distributions and other receivables from joints ventures and asscciates
Iincluding funds) are classed as cash flows from operating activities
except where they relate to a cash flow arising from a capital transaction
such as a properiy or investment disposal In this case they ar e classed
as cash ltows from mvesting actvities

Properties

Properties are exter nally valued on the basis of fair value at the balance
sheet date Investrnent and owner-occupied properties are recorded at

valuation whereas trading ptoperties are stated at the lower of cast and
net realisable value

Any surplus or deficit arising onrevaluing investment properuesrs
recognised in the capitaland ether colurnn of the income statement

Any sui plus arising on revaluing owner-occupied propei ties above

cost 1s recognised 1n other comprehensive income and any deficit anismg
tn revaluatton below cost for owner-occupied and trading properties s
recogrised in the capital and other column of the income statement

The cost of properties in the course of development includes attributable
interest and other associated outgoings including attributable
development personnel costs interest 1s calculated on the developmemt
expenditure by refer ence to specibic borrowings where relevent, and
otherwise on the werghted average rate interest rate of Briush Land PLC
borrowings interest s not capitalised where no development activity 1s
taking place A property ceases to be treated as a development property
on practical completion

Investment property disposals are recogmsed on completion Profits

and losses arising are recognised through the capital and other coturmn
of the income statement The profit on disposal 1s determined as the
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Finaneial statements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the assei at the commencement of the accounting pertod plus capital
expenditure 1n the period

Trading property disposals are recognised n line wath the revenue
policies outlined below

Where investment proper ties are appropiiated to trading stock
they are transferred at market value If properties held for trading
are appropriated to nvestment they are transferred at book value
In deter miming whether leases and related propesties represent
operating or finance leases consideration 15 given to whether the
tenant or landlor d bears the nisks and rewards of ownership

Financial assets and Liabiities
Trade debtors and creditors are iilially recognised at {air value and
subsequently measured at amortsed cost and discaunted as appropriate

Dther investments include loans and receivables held at amortised

cost and investments held for trading classified as tair vatue through
profit or loss Amortised cost of loans and receivables is measured using
the effective nterest method less any impairment Interest s recognised
by applying the effective interest rate Investments held for trading are
inbatly recorded at fair value and are subsequently externally valued on
the same basis at the balance sheet date Any surplus or defieit arising
on revaiuing investments heid for trading s recognised in the capital

and other celumn of the iIncome statermnent

Where an investrnent proper iy is held under a head lease the head
{ease 1swnitially recognised as an assel being the sum of the premium
paid on acquisition plus the present vatue of mimimum ground rent
payments The corresponding rent lizbibity to the head teaseholder

1s inctueded in the balance sheet as a finance tease obligation

Debt mstruments are stated at their net proceeds onissue Finance
charges including premua payable on settlement or redempten

and direct 1ssue costs at e spread over the period to redemption using
the effective interest method Exceptional finance charges incurred due
to eat ly 1 edemnption lincluding prermiums| are recogrised in the income
statement when they occur

Conver tible bonds are designated as fair value through profit or loss
and so are presented on the balance sheet at fair value with all gains
and losses Including the wrie-off of issue costs recognised in the
capital and other column of the inceme statement as a component of
net financing costs The interest charge inrespect of the coupan rate on
the bonds has been recogrsed within the underlymg coinponent of net
financing costs on an accruals basis

As defined by IAS 39 cash flow and fair value hedges are carried al fair
vatue on the balance sheet Changes in the tair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualify as effective cash flow hedges are recogrused
directly through other comprehensive income as a movernent in the
hedging and translation reserve Changes in the far vatue of derwatives
that are designated and quabify as effective fair value hedges are
recorded in the capital and other column of the income statement along
with any changes in the fair vatue of the hedged ttem that s attributable
to the hedged nisk Any ineffective portion of all dervatives s recognised
in the capitat and other column of the income statement Changes i the
fair value of derivatives that are not i a designated hedging relationship
under IAS 39 are recorded directly in the capital and other column of the
income statement These dervatives are carried at fair value on the
halance sheet
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Cash equivalents are hrmited to mstruments with a matut ity of less than
three months

Revenue

Revenue comprises rental income and surrender premia service chat ge
income ranagement and performance fees and proceeds fram the sale
of trachng praperties

Rental income including fixed rental uplifts from investment property
teased out under an operating lease is recognised as revenue on a
straight-line basis ever the lease term Lease incentives such as rent-free
periods and cash contributions to lenant fit-out are recogrised on the
same straight-bne basis being anintegral part of the net consideration for
the use of the investrment property Any rent adjustments based on apen i
market esbmatedrental values are recognised based on management
estimates from the rent review date i relation to unsettled rent reviews
Cantingent rents heing those lease payments that are not fixed at the
nception of the lease including for example turnover rents are
recegnised in the period in which they are earned

Surrender premia for the early determination of a lease are recogmised
as revenue rmimediately upon receipt net of dilapidations and nen
recoverable outgoings relating to the lease concerned

Service charge mcome 1s recognised as revenue in the periad to which
itreiates

Management and performance fees receivable are recogrused as revenue
In the period to which they relate Performance fees are recegnised al the
end of the performance period when the fee amount can be estimated
reliabty and it 1s virtually certain that the fee wilt be recewved

Proceeds from the sale of trading properties are recognised when the
risks and rewar ds of ownership have been transferred Lo the purchaser
This generally occurs on cempletion Proceeds from the sale of trading
properties ai e recognised as revenue 1n the capital and other column of
the income statement All other revenue described above is recogrised
n the underlymng column ef the mcome statement

Taxation

Current tax 15 based on taxable profit for the year and 1s calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the batance
sheet date Taxable profit ditfers from net profit as repor ted in the
ncome stalement because It excludes iterns of income or expense that
are not 1axable for 1ax deductible]

Delerred tax s provided an items that may become taxable mthe future
or which may be used to offset against taxable profis in the future on the
temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
tiabtisties for financral reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxalion purposes on an undiscounted basis On business combinations
the deferred tax effect of fair value adjustments s incorporated in the
consolidated bdlance sheet

Employee costs

The fair value of equity-settled share-hased payments to employees s
determuned at the date of grant and s expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting pertod based on the Group s estimate of shares or
options that will eventually vest In the case of options granted fair value
1s measured by a Black-Scholes pricing model

Defined benefit pension scheme assels are measured using fair values
Penston scheme labilities are measured using the projected unit eredn
method and discounted at the rate of return of a high quality corporate
bond of equivalent term to Lthe scheme Liabilittes The net surplus




{where recoverabte by the Group) or dehat s recogmsed in fullin the
consolidated hatance sheet Any asset resulting from the catculation 1s
limited io the present value of avarabte refunds and reductions in future
contributions to the ptan

The current service cost and gains and losses on settlement and
curtallments are charged to operating profit Actuanal gains andlosses
are recognised m full in the period i which they occur and are presented
in the consolidated staternent of comprehensive mcome

Contribulions to the Group s defined contribulion schemes are expensed
on the basis of the cantracted annual contaibution

Accounting judgements and eshimates
In applying the Group s accounting policies the Directors are required
to make judgements and estmates that affect the financial statements

Sgnificant areas of estimation are

Valuation of ps operties and investments hetd for trading The Group
uses external professtoral valuers to determine the relevant amounts
The primary sour ce of evidence for property valuatians should be recent
comparabte market transactions on an arms-length basis However
the vaiuation of the Group s property portfolio and invesiments held for
trading are imherently subjective as they are made an the basis of
assumptions made by the valuer s which may nol prove to be accurate

Otherless sigmificant areas of estimation include the valuation of fixed
rate debt and interest rate derwatives the deterrmination of share-based
payment expense and the acluarial assumptions used in calculating the
Group s retirement benekit obligations

The key areas of accounting Judgerment are

REIT status Brirsh Land 15 a Reat Estate Investmenrt Trust [REIT)

and does not pay tax onits property mcome or gains on property sales
provided thal at teast 90% of the Group s property income 15 distributed
as a didend to sharehatders which becames taxable n thew hands

In addiion the Group has to meet certain cenditions such as ensuring
the property 1 ental business represents more than 75% of totat pr olits
and assets Any potental or praposed changes to the REIT legslation are
monitored and discussed with HMRC [t s Manragement s intenuion that
the Group will continue as a REIT for the for eseeable future

Accoumting for joint ventures and {unds In accordance with IFRS 10
Consolidated financial statements IFRS 11 Joint arrangements and
IFRS 12 Disclosures of interests in other entities an assessmentis
required to determine the degres of control or infiuence the Group
exercises and the form of any canirot to ensure that the financial
statement treatment s appropriate

Interest in the Group s jont ventures is commonty driven by the terms
of the partnership agreements which ensure that cantrel Is shared
between the partners These are accounted for under the equity method
whereby the consolidated balance sheet incorporates the Group s share
of the net assets of 1its joint ventures and associates The canselidated
income statement incorporates the Group s share of joint venture and
assocaie profits after tax

Accounting for transactions Property transactions are complex
nature and can be matenial to the financial slatements Assessmentis
required 1o determine the most appropriate accounting tr eatinent of
assels acquired and of potentat contractual arrangements in the legat
documenis tor bath acquisitions and disposals Management consider
each transaction separately and when considered appropriate seek
independent accounting advice
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Fiuancial stalements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

2 Performance measures

Earnings per share

The Group measures financal performance with reference to underlying earnings per share the European Public Real Estate Association (EPRA}
earnings per share and IFRS earnings per share The relevant earnings and weighted average number of shares bncluding dilusion adjustrents)

for each performance measur e are shown below and a reconciliation between these 1s shown within the supplementary disclosures [Table B on page 179

EPRA earnings per share s calculated using EPRA earnings which s the IFRS pr ofit after taxation attr ibutable to sharehelders of the C.ompany
excluding mvestiment and development property revaluations gansflosses an mvesting and trading property disposals changes in the fairvalue
of financial Insts uments and associated close-out costs and therr retated taxation EPRA earnings [diluted] alse takes into account dilution due

to the 2012 convertible bond

Undertying earnings per shai e 1s calculated using Underlying Profit adjusted for underlying taxation [see note 7] Underlying Prefitis the pre-tax
EPRA earnings measure wiih addtionat Company adjustments No Company adjusimenis were made in either the current or prior year For the year
ended 31 March 2015 the 2012 converubte bond was not dilutive {or underlymg earnings as the contingent conditions assaciated to the band had not
been met The convertible conditions period ended on 25 September 2015 and therefore the bond was treated as dilutive in the current year

2016 2015
Relevant Relevant

Relevant number Earrungs Relevant number Earnings

earmngs of shares per share earmngs of shares per share
Earnings per share €m mitlion pence £m mullion pence
Underlying
Undei lying basic 365 1,025 354 33 1016 308
Undet lying diluted 3n 1,089 341 313 1022 306
EPRA
EPRA basic 345 1,025 356 313 10146 308
EPRA diluted 371 1,089 341 N9 1080 295
IFRS
Basic 1.345 1,025 1312 1710 1016 168 3
Dituted 1,381 1,089 1241 1710 1022 1673

Net asset value

The Group measures financial position with reference to EPRA net asset value {NAV) per share and EPRA triple net asset value [NNNAV] per share
The net asset value and number of shares for each performance measure 15 shown below A reconciliation between {FRS net assefs and EPRA net
assets and the relevant number of shares for each perfarmance measure 1s shown within the supplementary disclosures [Table B on page 180]
EPRA net assets 1s a proportionatly consolidated measure that is based on IFRS net assets excluding the mark-to-market on effective cash flow
hedges and related debt adjustments the mark-to-market on the converibte bonds as well as defer red taxation on proper ty and derivative
valuations They mclude the valuation surplus on trading properties and are adjusted for the dilutive smpact of share opticns and the £400 miltion
converubte bond maturing in 2037

2014 15

Retevant Net asset Relevant Net asset

Relevant number value per Relevant number value per

net assets of shares share net assets of shares share

Net asset vatuo per share £m mllion pence £m mellion pence
EFRA

EPRA NAV 10,074 1.096 919 9035 1090 829

EFPRA NNNAY 9,640 1,096 880 8 35% 1090 767

IFRS
Basic 9,419 1,029 935 85465 1020 840
Diluted 10,019 1.096 914 8565 1032 830

Total accounting return
The Group also measures financial pet for mance with reference to total accounting reiurn This s caleulated as the increase i EPRA net asset value

per share and dividend paid in the year as a percentage of the EPRA net asset value per share at the start of the year

2016 s
Increase n  Dividend per Totalt IncreaseinNAY  [hwidend per Tatal
NAY per share share paid accounting per share share paid accounting
pence pence return pence pence return
Total accounting return 90 28 02 14 2% 141 2730 24 5%
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3 Revenue and costs

2016 2015

Capital Capual

Undarlying  and other Undertying and other

£m Em £m £m

Rent recevable 437 - 369 -
Spreading of tenant incentives and guaranteed rent increases 12 - 26 -
Surrender premia ? - 4 -
Gross rental income 451 - 399 -
Trading proper ty sales proceeds - 3] - 51
Service charge income 72 - 465 -
Management and per for mance fees [from jeint ventures and funds] 8 - 7 -
Other fees and commissions 38 - 34 -
Revenue 5469 21 505 51
Trading property cost of sales - 1) - [45]
Service charge expenses (72) - 145] -
Property operating expenses (28) - (24] -
Other fres and cCOmMMISSIONS expenses {30} - [26] -
Costs [128) 1li] {1151 [45]
441 10 390 6

The cash element of net rental Income recogmised dur ing the year ended 31 March 2014 frem properties which were not subject (o i secut ity
interest was £229m {2014/15 £182m} Preperty operating expenses relating to investment properties that did not generate any rental Income wer e
E£1m {2014/15 £2m] Contingent rents of £3m [2014/15 £3m] were recognisedin the year

<4 Valuation morements on property

2016 2015
£m £m
Consolidated income statement
Revaluation of properiies 616 884
Revaluation of properties held by jomt ventures and funds accounted for using the equity method 245 589
841 1473
Consclidated statement of comprehensive income
Revaluation of owner-occupied properties 19 10
880 1483
5 Auditor§” remuneration — PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
2014 201%
Em £m
Fees payable to the Company s auditors {or the audit of the Company s annual accounts 02 02
Fees payable to the Company s auditors for the audit of the Company s subsidiaries pursuant 1o legislation 04 04
Total audit fees 0é 06
Audit-related assurance services 01 01
Total audit and audit-related assurance services 07 o7
Other fees
Tax advisory services - -
Other services 0.1 g1
Total 08 08

In addinon to the above PricewaterhouseCooper s LLP wet e remunerated for non-audit fees in PREF an equity accounted property fund [see note 1)
The Group s share of tees totalled £0 2m [2014/15 £0 2m] PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP are not the external auditors to PREF
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6 Net financing costs

2016 2015
£m tm
Underlying
Financing charges
Bank loans overdrafts and derivatives {30 (36)
Gtherloans (88) {88l
Obligations under head leases (2) 12]
(gFd1)] 112¢)
Development interest capitalised 9 14
1) (412
Financing tncome
Deposits securitues and liguid invesiments 3 2
Loans to joint veniures 2 5
5 7
Net financing charges - underlying (104) 0sl
Capital and other
Financing charges
Valuation movements en tianslation of foreign currency debt 2 i
Hedging r eserve 1ecycling (2 H
Valuation movements on fair value derivatives 54 108
Valuation movements on faun value debt (53] 11041
Recyching of fan vatue movement on close-out of derivatives 1] 121
Caputal financing costs! (29} {2l
Fair value movement on conver hble bonds - {351
Valuation moverment on translation of foreign currency net assets - l
Fair value movernent on non-hedge accounted dervatives = ]
(34) 147}
Financing income
Fair value movement on conwverhble bonds 1A -
Fair value movernent on non-hedge accounied derivatives 1 -
&5 -
Net financing income Icharges) - capital AN 147]
Net financing costs
Total financing iIncome 70 7
Total financing charges [145] 1591
Net financing costs 175} {152)

Primariiy debenture bands tender otfer and puschase

Intesest payabte on unsecur ed bank loans and r elated interest rate derivatives was L1901 [2014/15 £24m] Interest on develepment expenditure
1s capttalised at the Group s weighted average mierest rate of 2 6% [2014/15 3 3%] The weighted average interest rate on a propor Lonalely

consolidated basis at 31 March 2016 was 3 3% [2014/15 3 8%}
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7 Taxanon

2015 2015
£m Em
Taxation income [expensel
Current taxation
UK corporation taxation 20% [2014/15 21%) (15 ]
Adjustments in respect of prier years 17 -
Total current taxation income lexpense| 2 [t
Deferred taxation on revalustions and derivatives N {23)
Group total taxation 33 {24}
Atiributable 10 joint ventures and funds 4] 2
Total taxation income [expense) 32 122
Taxation reconcibatron
Profit an ordnary actvities before taxation 1.3 1789
Less profit attributable to joint ventures and funds [397] {726}
Group profit an ordinary activities before taxation 934 13463
Taxation on ptofit on ordinary activiies at UK cor poration taxation rate of 20% [2014/15 21%} 1187) [223)
Cifects of
REIT exempt Income and gains 161 232
Taxation losses 1 [10)
Deferred taxateon on revaluations and dervatives 3 (23]
__Adjestments in respect of prior years 17 -
Group total taxation income {expensel 33 {24}

' Acurrent laxation expanse of £1m [2016/15 £2m expense] and a deterred taxation expense of Fnil {2014/15 £4m credit] arese on profits attribetable to joint ventures
and funds

Taxation attnbutable te Underlying Profit for the year ended 31 March 2016 was a credit of C2m {2034/15 €nil) Corporation taxation payable at 31
Mareh 2016 was £18m (2014715 £9ml as shown on the balance sheet

8 Staff costs :
2018 2015
Staff costs [including Directors) £m £
Wages and salanes 57 50
Social security costs ) 6
Pension costs 7 [
Equity-settled share-based payments 10 14
81 76

The average monthly number of employees of the Company during the year was 260{2014/15 249) The average monthly number of Group
employees ncluding those employed directly at the Group s properties and their cests recharged to tenants was 492 [2014/15 598)

The Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors are the key management personnel Their emolurnents are summarised below and further
detait s disclosed in the Remuneration Report on pages 84 ta 110

20%4 205

Directors emotuments m Em
Short term employee benefits 54 58
Service costin relation ta defined benefit penston schemes 02 02
Equity-setited share-based paymenis 59 b4
116 124
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8 Statf costs continued

Staff costs
The Group s equity-settled share-based payments comprise the Long-Term Incenuive Pian [LTIP) the Matching Share Plan [MSP) the Fund
Managers Perfarmance Plan [FMPP] and various savings related share option schemes

The Company expenses an esumate of how many shares are likely to vest based on the market price at the date of grant taking account of expected
performance against the relevant performance tar gets and service pertods which are discussed in further detailin the Remuneration Report

For all schemes except the Company s Long-Term Incentive Ptan share options the lair value of awards are equal to the market value at grant date
The key Inputs used to value share options using a Black-Scholes madel granted under the Company s Long-Term Incentive Plan are shown betow

22 June
Long-Term Incentrve Plan Awards in the year ended 31 March 2016 2015
Share price and exercise price at grant date 825p
Expected option tife in years 7
Risk free rate 19%
Expected volatlity 34%
Expected dwidend yield 3%
Value per opilon 201p

Movements in shares and options are given in note 20

9 Pensions

The Briush Land Group of Companies Pension Scheme | the scherne is the princrpal defined benefit pension scheme in the Group The assels of the
scheme are held in a trustee-admimstered fund and kept separate from those of the Company 115 nat contracted out of SERPS [State Earmings-
Related Pension Scheme] and it 1s not planned to admit new employees to the scheme The Group has thiee other small defined henefu pension
schemes There s also a Defined Contribution Pension Scheme Contributtons {o this scheme are at a flat 1 ate of 15% of satary for non-Directors
and pard by the Company

The total nel pension cost charged for the year was £7m [2014/15 £6m] of which £4m [2014/15 £3iml relates ta definad contribution plans and £3m
12014/15 £3m) relates to the current set vice cost of the delined benefit schemes

A full actuanial vaiuation of the scheme was carried out at 31 March 2012 by consulling actuaries AON Hewitt Assocrates Ltd The employers
contributions will be pard 1n the future at the rate recommended by the actuary of 54 4% per annum of basic salaries The best estimate of employer
contributions expecied to be pard during the year to 31 March 201715 £3m The major assumptions used for the actuanal valuaton were

2016 2015 2014 2M3 2012
% pa % pa % pa % pa % pa
hscount rate 32 31 44 41 46
Satary inflation L8 48 52 47 47
Pensions increase 32 32 35 31 31
Price inflatuon 33 RE] 37 32 32

The mortality assumptions are based on standard mor tahity tables which allow for future mortality improvements The assumptions are that a
member currenily aged 60 witl bive on average for a further 297 years f they are male and tor a fur ther 31 S years if they are female Fora member
whao retires in 2036 at age 60 the assumptions are that they will live on aver age fora fursher 31 6 years afier retn ement if they are male and for a
furthet 33 1 years aiter reurement if they are female

Composition of scheme assets

2016 2015

€m fm

Equities 52 55
Diversified growth funds 77 81
Other assets ] 3
Total scheme assets 137 139

The vast major ity of the scheme assels are quoted in an active market
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9 Pensions continued

The amount included i the balance sheet ansing from the Group s obligations in respect of its defined beneiit scheme 1s as fallows

2046 015 034 2013 mz
tm tm fm Em Em
Present value of defined scheme obligatons [143) 145) [125) [119) 107
Fairvalue of scheme assels 137 139 131 120 109
Irrecoverable surplus - - (6! n 2]
Liability recognised in the balance sheet []] 16 - - -
History of experience gains and losses
2018 wms 2004 2012 012
£m Em £m Em £€m
Total actuar iat loss recognised in the conschidated statement of compr ehensive Income’
Amount? (1l 5l (2) 4) 131
Percentage of present value an scheme Liabitities 07% 36% 14% 31% 27%
Movements staled after adjusting {or irrecoverability of any surplus
2 Cumulative loss recognised 1n the statement of comprehensive iIncame 1s £37m (201415 £36m)
Movements i the present vatue of defined benefit obligations were as fotlows
016 2015
£m £m
A1 April (145} [125]
Cuszent service cosl (3] 13
Interest cost (5 {3}
Actuarial gan [toss)
Gain fram change in demographic assumptions - 14
Gam [loss] from change in inancial assumptions 4 132}
Gain on scheme Labitities ansing from experence 3 4
Benefits pad 3 2
At 31 March {143 1145)
Movermnents in the far value of the scheme assets were as follows
2016 2015
£m £m
At 1 April 139 13
interest income on scheme assets & &
Contributions by employer 4 2
Actuanal ltoss) gan 7
Benefits paid (31 (21
At 31 March 137 139

Through its defned benefit plans the Group 1s exposed to a number of risks the most significant of which are detailed below

Asset votatility

The babitries are calculated using a discount rate set with a reference to corporate bond yields (f assets underperform thisyreld thiswill create
adehait The scheme holds a signifrcant por tion of growth assets fequities and diversthed growth funds] which although expecled to outperiorm
col porate bonds in the long term create volatility and risk in the short term The atlocation to growth assets 1s monitored {0 ensure it remains
appropriate given the scheme s {ong term objectives

Changes in bond yields

A decrease 1n corporate bond yields will increase the value placed on the scheme s labilises for accounting purposes although this will be partially
offset by anincrease i the vatue of the scheme s bond holdings
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9 Pensions continued

Inflatien nisk

The majority of the scheme s benefit obligations are linked toinflation and higher inflation welt lead to hugher babilities {although in most cases caps
on the level of inilaticnary increases are i place to protect againsi extreme milation] The majority of the assets are exther unaffected by or only
loosely correlated with inflaiton meaning that an increase minflation will also increase the defict

Life expectancy

The majority of the scheme s obligations are to provide benefits for the Ufe of the member so increases in life expectancy will result in an mcrease
inthe liabiliies

10 Property

Property reconcitiation for the year ended 31 March 2016

Canada Water was added as a property sector in the year reflecting the key role the campus hasin the strategy of the Group Conseguently the prior
year comparatives in this note have been restated to reflect this additional property sector

investrment
Investment
and
Retall & Offices & Canada development Owner-
leisure  residential Water Developments  properties Trading occupied
Level 3 Love! 3 Level3 Levei 3 Level 3 properties Level 3 Total
m fm Em Em €m £m fm £m
Carrying value at 1 April 2015 5,584 2,902 249 385 9,120 274 40 9,454
Addiions

- property purchases 4 234 - - 238 - - 238
- development expenditure 4 [} 1 43 54 59 - 113
- capitalised nterest and staff costs - - 1 3 4 5 - 9

- capital expenditure on asse! management
insbiatives kAl 24 1 - 116 - - 116
99 264 3 48 412 b4 - 476
Depreciation - - - - - - ]| n
Disposals 1372] (13¢] - 7 (509) {n) - 3200
Raclassificabions 135 22 - 172} (15) i2) 17 -
Revaluations included inincome statement 181 359 4 82 616 - - 616
Revaluation in¢luded in OCH - - - - - - 19 19

Movernent in tenant incentives and contracted
rent uplift balances 10 9 - - 19 - - 19
Carrying value at 31 March 2014 5,617 3,436 256 334 9643 325 95 10,043
Head lease Liabililes [note 195) [37)
Valuation surplus on trading properties 85
Group property portfolio valuation at 31 March 2016 1011
Nen-controtiing interests (324)
Group property portfolio valuation at 31 March 2016 attributable to shareholders 9,787
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10 Property conunued

Property reconciliation for the year ended 31 March 2015

Invesiment
Investment
and
Retail & Offices & Canada development
lesure  residential Water Developments  properties Trading Qwner-
Level 3 Level 3 Levet 3 Lewel3 Levet3  properites occuped Total
£m £m fm fm £m £m fm £m
Carrying vatue at 1 April 2014 4 336 2 550 105 261 7,272 271 47 7,590
Additions
- properly purchases b - 141 - 147 - - 147
- acquisition of subsidiaries 1000 - - - 1,000 - - 1,000
- development expenditure 1 it 4 52 48 46 - 114
- capitabised Interest - - - - - 8 - 8
- capital expenditure on asset management
Intiatives 35 i 6 - 42 - - 42
1042 12 151 52 1,257 54 - 1,31
Depreciation - - - - - - {1 m
Disposals [219] (1021 - n2 [333) 145] - 1378)
Reclassifications - 14) - 4 2 (8] 4 -
Revaluations included in income staternent 397 433 17) 71 884 - - 884
Revatuation inciudad in OCI - - - - - - 10 10
Movement in tenant Incentives and contracied
rent uplift balances 8 23 - 7 38 - - 38
Carrying value at 31 March 2015 5 584 2902 249 385 9120 274 60 9,454
Head lease tiabilities [note 15) 141)
Valuation surplus on trading propertes 94
Group property portfolio valuation at 31 March 2015 §.509
Non-controlling interests 14411
Group property portfolio valuation at 31 March 2015 attributable to shareholders 9,068

Property valuation
The different vatuation method levels are defined below

Level 1 Quoted prices [unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets o laelities

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices mcluded within Level 1 that are ahservable far the asset or lability either direcily [ e as prices or indirecily
lie derved from prices}

Level 3 Inputs for the asset ar Liability that are not based on observable market data [unobservable nputs)

These levels are speaified in accordance with IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement Property valuations are mherently subjective as they are made on
the basis of assumptions made by the valuer which may not prove to be accurate For these reasons and consistent with EPRA s guidance we have
classified the valuatons of our property por tfobie as Level 3 as delined by IFRS 13 The unobservable nputs to the valuatians are analysed in the {able
on the following page

The Group s total praper ty portfolio was valued by Independent external valuet s on the basis of tair valug 1n accordance with the RICS Valuation
- Professional Standards 2014 ninth ediion pubbished by The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors

The mformation provided to the valuers and the assumpiions and valuauons models used by the valuers are reviewed by the property por ttolic team
the Head of Offices the Head of Retait and the Chief Financial Officer The valuers meet with the external auditors and also present directly to the
Audit Commuttee at the intenim and year end review of results Further details of the Audit Commuttee s responsibilibies in relation to valuations can
be found in the Report of 1he Audit Comrutiee lon pages B0 to 83)
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10 Property conunued

Investment properties excluding properties held for development are valued by adopling the nvestrment method of valuaton This approach
mvolves applying capitalisation yields to current and future rental sireams net of income vouds ansing from vacancies or rent-free periods and
associated running costs These capitalisation yrelds and fuiure rental values are based on comparable property and leasing transactions in the
market using the valuers prafessional judgement and market observation Other factors taken into account in the valuations include the tenure
of the property tenancy detaits and ground and structural conditions

tn the case of ongoing devetopments the approach applied is the residuat methad of valuation which s the mvestment methiod of vatuation as
described above with a deduction for all costs necessary to complete the development incluting a notional finance «qst together with a further
allowance for remaining risk Properties held for development are generally valued by adopting the fugher of the 1esidual method of valuation
allowing for all associated risks aor the investment method of valuation for the existing asset

Copies of the vatuation certificates of Kmght Frank LLP and CBRE car be found at www britishland com/freports
Within thesr valuation report CBRE have highlighted that they expect considerabte uncertamnty to arise if there 1sa deciston for the UK to exit the
EU following the referendum on 23 June 2014 and that this has the potential to reduce invesiment volumes and liquidity This s a forward-looking

statement which has no impadt on the valuations as at 31 March 2016

A breakdown of valuations split between the Group and its share of joint ventures and funds 1s shown betow

2016 2015

Joint Jaoint

ventures and venjures and
Group funds Tetal Group funds Total
£m £m £m m Em £m
Knight Frank L1LP 7,529 3,876 14,105 6795 143 10108
CBRE 2,582 1,381 3.943 2714 1401 4115
Total property portfolio valuation 10,111 4,937 15,048 2509 4714 14 223
Non-controlling interests (324) 78] (400] 641 h105) {546]

Total property portfolio valuation

attributable to shareholders $.787 4,861 14,648 9068 4 609 13 677

Information about fair value measurements using unobservable inputs (Level 3]

ERY per sq ft Equivalent Yield Costs to complete per sq ft
Fatr vatue at
31 March 2015 Valuation Min Max  Average Min Max  Average Min Max  Average
investment £m technique [4 £ £ % % % L € £
Investment
Retail & leisure 5,608 methodology 2 75 22 3 1l 3 - 45 8
Investment
Offices & residenual'? 3,492 methodology 4 136 53 i 8 4 - 150 15
Investment
Canatla Water 250 methodology 15 25 22 1 5 3 - 5 4
Residual
Developments? 343 methodelogy &5 107 /3 4 5 4 - b 447
Total 9,693
Trading proper tes
at fair vatue 418
Group property
portfolio vatuatien 10,111

Includes owner-occupied
< Includes Residential with an average capital value per sq {t of £1 028 inciluding developmenis at 2nd value and mxed use
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10 Property continued

All other factors being equal

- a higher equivatent yreld or discount rate would lead to a decrease in the valuation of an asset

- anncrease in the current or estimated future renta! stream would have the effect of increasing the capitat value and
- anngrease In the costs to complete would lead 10 a decrease in the valuation of an asset

However there are ntei relabionstups between the unobservable inputs which are partially determined by market conditons which would impact
on these changes There were no transfers between valuation levels in the period

Additional property disclosures - including covenant information

AL31 March 2016 the Group property portfolio valuation of £10 111m [2014/15 £9509m) comprises freeholds of £6 184m (2014/15 £6 098m} wirtuat
treeholds of £906m [2014/15 £811m] and long leaseholds of £3 021m [2014/15 £2 600m] The historical cost of properties was £6 544m {2014/15 £6 582m)
The property valuation does natinctude any investment properties held under operating leases [2014/15 Eml)

Cumutative interest capitabised agamst investment development and trading proper ties amounts to £88m [2014/15 £81m}

Properties valued at £2 559m [2014/15 £2 £79m] were subject 10 a security interest and other properiies of nen-recourse companies amounted
Wil 254m [2014/15 £1345m] totalling £3 803m [2014/15 £3 844ml

Included within the property valuation s £110m £2014/15 €£102m]in respect of accrued coptracted rental uphitincome

11 Joant ventures and funds

Summary movement for the year of the investments in joint ventures and funds

vemJuc;:;\; Funds Total Equity Loans Total
£m £m £m £m fm £m
At1April 2015 2586 315 2,901 2598 303 2,901
Additions 246 - 246 14 232 246
[sposals i2l N3 {15) - i15] (1s)
Share of proftt on ardinary activities after taxation 345 32 397 397 - 397
[hstributions and dwvidends
- Capttal - [76) (78] (76} - 763
- Revenue (90} N3 e3l 1103 - 103
Hedging and exchange movements 4 1] 3 3 - 3
At 31 March 2016 3 19 244 3,353 2833 520 3,353

Additionat investments in joint ventures and funds covenant informatien
At 31 March 2016 the investments i jomnt ventures included within the total investments in joint ventures and funds was £3 348m {2014/15 £2 B6%m)
being the £3 353m total investment shawn above less the netinvestment of £5m (201615 £32m}in PREF a property fund m Continental Europe
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11 Jomnt sentures and funds conunued

The summarised income statements and balance sheets below and on the following page show 100% of the resutis assels and Lizbilives of joint
ventures and funds Where necessary these have been restated to the Group s accounting policies

Joint ventures and funds summary financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

Broadgate MSC Property BL Sainsbury

REFT Intermediate Superstores Tesco Joint
Lid Holdings Ltd Lid Ventures'

Norges Bank

Euro Bluebeil LLP Investment
Partners {GIC] Management J Sainsbury ple Tesco PLC

City Qifices  Shopping Centres
Property sector Broadgate Meadowhalt Superstores Superstor es
Group share 50% 0% 50% 50%
Summarised income statements £m £m £m fm
Revenue® 244 102 56 19
Costs 148) {23) 1] -
196 79 55 19
Adminisiralive expenses - - - -
Netinterest payable 184) 138} (24) &
Underlying Profit 110 43 3 10
Met valuation moverment 334 50 {38] {9
Profit on disposal of investment properties and investments - ~ 2 -
Profit on ordinary activities before taxaton ; dhk 92 (3) i
Taxation - - - 1
Prafit on ordinary activities after taxation (113 93 [3) 2
O1her comprehensive incomne lexpenditured 5 - - 3
Total comprehensive income 449 93 [3] 5
British Land share of totat comprehensive income 225 46 (2) 3
British Land share of distributions payable 44 i7 1 4
Summarised balance sheets £m {in £m £m
Investment and trading properties 4 622 1784 944 354
Current assels 4 5 2 -
Cash and deposits 293 32 80 6
Gross assels 4,919 1,823 1,028 360
Current habiliies 77 31 {30] i3
Bank and securiised debt {1842 [694) 1462 (184}
Other non-current habiliies [65) {24) - {15)
Gross babilities (1,984) [749) (492 (202)
Net external assets 2,935 1.074 536 158
British Land share of net assets 1,467 §37 269 79

Tesco joint veniures mclude BLT Holdings [2010] Limited as at 31 March 2016
US3 joint ventures include the Eden Walk Shopping Centre Unit Trust and the Fareham Property Partnership
Hercutes Unit Trust jmnt ventures and sub-funds includes 508 of the resutts of Deepdate Co-Ownership Trust Gibraltar Limited Partnership and Valenune Co-Gwnershsp

Trustand 41 25% of Birstalt Co-Ownership Trust The balance sheet shows 50% of the assets of these jo nt ventures and sub funds

-

Included in the colurnn headed Other joint ventures and funds are contributions from the following BL Goodman Limited Partnzrshup The Aldgate Place Limited

Partnership, Bluebution Property Management UK Limited Crty of Londen Difice Umt Trust and Pillar Retail Europark Fund [PREF) The Group s ownership share
of PREF 15 5% however as the Group is not able to exercise control over significant decisions of the fund the Group equity accounts for its interest in PREF

-
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uss Leadenhall Hercules Unit Trust Gther TOTAL
The SouthGate Limited Jamt Holding Co ot ventures joint verdures TATAL Group share
Partnership Ventures? [Jerseyl Ltd and sub-funds? and funds* 2014 2016

Untverstties
Superannualion

Avwva Scheme Group Oxford
Investors PLLC Properties
Shopping Shopping City Otfices Retail
Centres Centres Leadenhall Parks
50% 50% 50% Various
£m £m £m £m £m £tm £m
19 12 35 38 4 531 266
14) {3t (101 171 {1 l99] (44)
13 Q 25 kY 5 432 222
{1 - 1 16 [2i (0] (5]
i) - - i8l - [164) [82)
1 9 24 17 3 258 135
4 12 124 4 7 490 245
- - - - 30 32 18
15 21 148 z1 40 780 98
- - - - 131 2 [
15 4 148 21 37 778 197
- - - 12} - & 3
15 21 148 19 37 784 400
n 74 10 25 400
b 3 59 31 179
£m £m £m fm £m £m £m
267 252 42 4612 108 9.889 4944
2z 1 - 4 14 32 i8
5 7 5 i 33 470 239
274 240 947 625 155 10,391 5,21
{4} {6 (&) 7] {51) (215) 111)
- - - [139) - (3,321) (1,660)
[28) - - 4] {13) (154) (77
(32) (&) (8) (150) (69 [3,690) {1,848)
242 254 41 475 86 6,701 3,353
ik 128 47 237 4d 3,353

The borrowings of joint ventures and funds and their subsidiaries are non-recourse to the Group All joint ventures are incorporated in the United Kingdom with
tha exception of Broadgate REIT Limited the Eden Walk Shapping Centre Unit Trust and Leadenhall Rotd ng Co bJersey] Limued which are incorporated in Jersey
Of the funds the Hercu'es Unit Trust [HUT) joint ventures and sub funds are .ncorporated in Jersey and PREF in Luxembourg

These financiai statements include the results and financral position of the Group s interest in the Fareham Property Partnership the Aldgate Place Limited Partnershup

the BL Goodman Linmted Parinersiup the Auchinlea Parinership and the Gibraltar Limited Partnership Accordingly advantage has been taken of the exempuiens
provided by Regutation 7 of the Partnership [Accounts] Regutations 2008 not to attach the partnership accounts 1o ihese financial statements
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Finunwial statements

NOTES 7O THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

11 Joint venrures and funds continued

The summartsed income staterments and balance sheets below and on the following page show 100% of the results assets and biabilinies of joini
ventures and funds Where necessary these have been restated to the Group s accounting policies

The prioryear comparatives below have been repr esented ta reflect the presentation adopied in the current per iod

Jointventures and funds summary financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Broadgate MSC Property BL Samnsbury

REIT Intermedate Superstores Tesco Joint
Lid Hold ngs Lid Ltd Ventures

Norges Bank

Euro Bluebell LLP fAvestment
Partners [GIC) Manageiment J Sainsbury ple Tesco PLC

Ciy Olfices  Shopping Centres
Proper ty sector Broadgate Meadowhall Superstores Superslores
Group share 50% 50% 50% 50%
Summarnised iIncome statements fm £m £m £m
Revenue 214 94 &0 $7
Costs (50] 119) - (5
164 75 &0 g2
Administrative expenses 4] - - "y
Net interest payable {88) [38) 128) {50}
Underlying Profit 75 37 32 41
Net vatuation movement 664 151 14 17
Profit on disposal of mvestment p1operties and investments - - (3} 4]
Profit on ordmary actvities before taxation 739 198 43 94
Taxalion - - - 9
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 73y 198 43 63
Other comprehensive (expenditure] Income (21 {71 4 &
Total comprehensive income 718 "M 47 &9
British Land share of total comprehensive income 359 96 24 35
British Land share of distributions payable 15 ? 42 7
Summarised balance sheats Em £m £m Em
Investment and trading properiies 4 209 1719 1039 363
Current assels 5 5 3 -
Cash and deposits 272 32 25 i
Gross assets 4,486 1,756 1,067 349
Current Liabilitres {82) [31) {261 {51
Bank and securitised debt (2142 (721 [478) (184)
Other non-current liabthities 164} [24]) - i20]
Gross liabitities [2,288) (778) (504) [209)
Netexternal assets 2,198 80 563 140
British Land share of net assets 1.099 490 282 80
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Uss Leadenhall Hercules Unit Trust Other TOTAL TOTAL
The SouthGate Lirnited Joint Holding Co joint ventures Jaint ventures Group share
Partnership Ventures Uersey[ Lid and sub funds and funds 2015 2015
Unsversities
Superannuation
Aviva Scheme Group Oxford
Inveslors PLC Properties
Shapping Shoppeng City Difices Retail
Centies Centres Leadenhall Patks
50% 50% 50% Varigus
fin £m £m fm Em £m £m
123 n 15 53 15 573 28¢%
[ 13} 19 16) [3) 98] 1491
3 8 3 47 12 477 240
] - - - (3] 18) [4)
n - - 15 {2 (212) 1107]
1 8 & 42 7 259 129
24 25 2n 83 - 1171 589
- - - i 16 8 é
37 33 207 104 23 1,438 724
- - - - 12) 7 2
37 33 207 104 21 1,445 726
- - - 1) [10) (29 (13)
7 33 207 103 1 1,416 713
19 17 104 52 7 713
4 4 - 37 - 141
Em Em £m £m £m Em €m
262 235 770 706 a0 9,443 LMNMe
2 - 2 2 23 42 25
2 ? 4 1 21 382 192
264 244 776 719 184 9,867 4,936
14 [4) 14 (71 [65) {228) {119
- - - (1271 - 13,652} 1.827]
(28] - - 5} [44) (181) 891
(32) 3] (4) [135) (109) [4,081) (2,035)
234 240 712 584 75 5,806 2,901
117 120 186 283 44 2,901
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

11 Joint ventures and funds continued

Operating cash flows of joint ventures and funds {Group sharel

2016 2015
£m Em
Rental mcome recerved from ienants 208 234
Feesand other income receved 1 1
Operating expenses paid to supplier s and employees 18) {24)
Cash generated from operations " 209
interest pard (I:19] 114}
Interest raceived 1 2
UK corporation tax paid ] 7}
Forergn tax paid (1) 21
Cash inflow from operating activities 102 88
Cash inflow frem operating activibes deployed as
Surplus cash retained within joint ventures and funds 44 15
Revenue distnibubions per consolidated statement of cash flows S8 73
Revenue distnibutions split between controlling and non-controllinginterests
Attribuiable to non conirolling interests 4 7
Attributable to shareholders of the Company 54 66
12 Other investments
2016 2015
Investment Loans, Investiment Loans
held for recervables heldfor  recenables
trading and ather Totat trading and other Total
£m £m £m fm £m £m
At 1 Aprit 99 280 a7y 92 170 262
Additions - 35 35 - 13 13
Disposals - (272 1272) - 12] {2}
Revaluzation 2 - 2 7 - 7
Depreciation - 2) (2) - !l (1}
AL 31 March 101 41 142 99 280 379

The investment held for trading comprises interests as a rust beneliciary The trust s assets comprise freehold rever sions ina poot of commer ciat
properties comprising Sainsbury s supersiotes The inter est was categonsed as Level 3 in the far value hierarchy 1s subject to the same inpuls as
those disclosed in note 10 and its fair vatue was determuned by ndependent exiernal valuers

Included within the loans receivables and other batance s €rul {2094/2015 £243min relation to a loan to the Brogdgate joint venture which is

carnied at amorbised cost and was fully repaid in the year
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L3 Debtors

2014 015

m fm

Trade and other debtors 24 16
Prepayments and accrued mcome ¥ 4
a3 20

Trade and other debtors are shown after deducting a pi ovision for bad and doubtful debts of £16m [2014/15 £16m] The charge to the income
statement :n relation to bad and doubiful debts was £1m 2014/15 £1m)

The Duectors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other debtors 1s approximate to their fawr value There 15 no concentration of credit risk
with respect to trade debtors as the Group has a large number of customers who are paymng their rentin advance

Asal 31 March trade and other debtors outside thew payment terms yet not provided for are as follows

Outside credit terms but not impaired

Within credit More than

terms 0-1month  1-Z2 menths 2 months

£m £m £m £m

2016 12 11 1 -

2015 9 7 - -
14 Creditors

2016 2015

£€m £m

Trade creditors 39 61

Other taxation and social secunty k1 3

Accruals 72 98

Deferred ncome 73 71

218 261

Trade creditors are interest-free and have settlement dates within one year The Birectors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other
creditarsis approximate to their tair value

15 Other non-current liablities

2016 2015

£m £m

Other creditors 70 32
Head [eases' L8 41
Nei pension iabibities & 6
122 79

" Includes £9m ¢nrelation to head lease babdities on trading properties held at cost
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Finaneial stntements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

16 Deferred tax

The movement on deferred tax 1s as shown hetow

"
Deferred tax assets year ended 31 March 2014
1 April Credited to Credited [debited!  Transferredto 31 March
2015 income to equity joint ventures 2016
£m £m £€m £m £m
Interesi rate and currency derivative revaluatians - - 5 - 5
Othertiming differences - 4 - - &
- é 5 - 1
Deferred tax Liabilities year ended 31 March 2014
€m £m £m £m €m
Property and investment revaluations (5] - (2) - n
Interest rate and currency derivative revaluations (4) 25 21 - -
Other uming differences 3 - - 2 m
2) 25 1231 2 (8
Net deferred tax (liability) asset 112) n |18] 2 3
Deferred tax assets year ended 31 March 2015
3 April Expensed Credited to Transterred to 31 March
2004 to come equity joint ventures 2015
fm £m tm Ern fm
Deferred tax Labilities year ended 31 March 2015
£m £m £m £m m
Proper Ly and mvestment revatuations - (5] - - (5}
Interest rate and currency dervative revaludtions - {19 15 - (4}
Dther timing differences 14] 1 - - {3t
14] (23 15 - 12}
Net deferred tax {iability} asset 4] [23) 15 - (12}

The following corporation tax rates have been substantively enacted 20% effective from 1 April 2015 reducing o 19% effective from 1 April 2017
and 18% effective from 1 Aprit 2020 The deferred tax assets and Liabibties have heen calculated at the 1ax rate eflective in the period that the tax1s
expected to crystallise

The Group hds recognised a defer red tax asset calculated at 18% (2014/2015 20%] of C&rm (2014/2015 Enill in respect of capitat losses from previous
year s avatlable for offset against future capital prafit Further unrecogmsed deferred tax assels in respect of capiial losses of £60m £2014/2015
£87m] exist at 31 March 2016

The Group has recognised defer: ed tax assels on det ivative revaluations to the extent that future matching taxahle profits are expected io arise

At 31 March 2016 the Group had an unrecagmssed deferred tax asset calculated at 18% [2014/2015 20%] of £51m {2014/2015 £38mi i respect of UK
revenue 1ax losses 1 om previous years

Under the REIT regime developrment properties which are sotd within three year s of completton do not henelit from tax exernption A131 March 2016

the value of such properties s £9467m (2014/2015 £1 008m) and if these properties were to be sold and no tax exemption was available the tax arising
would be £56m [2014/15 £66m)
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17 Net debt

2018 2015
Footnote £fm £m
Secured on the assets of the Group
9125% First Mortgage Debenture Stock 2020 i1 34 35
5 264% First Mortgage Debenture Bonds 2035 3N 355
5 0055% First Mor tgage Amortising Debentures 2035 100 99
5 357% First Mortgage Debenture Bonds 2028 349 344
& 75% £ irst Mortgage Debenture Stock 2020 82 174
Bank toans 12,13 733 263
Loan notes 2 2
1,651 1974
Unsecured
5 50% Senior Notes 2027 10 98
6 30% Semor US Dollar Notes 2015 - 104
3 893% Senior US Bollar Netes 2018 2 28 28
4 635% Semor US Dollar Nates 2021 ? 145 158
4 Ta6% Semor US Dollar Notes 2023 2 105 99
5 003% Senior US Dollar Notes 2026 2 &9 &4
3 B1% Senior Notes 2026 13 m
3 97% Senior Notes 2026 114 114
1 5% Convertible Bond 2017 445 493
(% Convertible Bond 2020 334 -
Bank leans and overdrafts 634 704
2,110 1975
Gross debt 3 3,761 3949
interest rate and currency derivative liabilities 137 176
Interest rate and currency derwvative assets (167) {139
Cash and short term deposits 45 (114) (108}
Total netdebt 3,817 34828
Net debt attributable to non-controtling interests (104) [19g]
Net debt attributable to shareholders of the Company 3,513 3638
' These are non-recourse borrowings with no recourse for repayment to other companies or assets in the Group
2016 2015
£m £m
11 BLD Property Holdings Lid 34 35
1 2 Hercules Urut Trust 443 645
1 3 TBL Properties Limited and subsidiaries 290 318
767 998

? Principat and interest on this berrowang was fully hedged into Sterting at a floating rate at the tme of 1ssue

" The principal amount of gross debt at 31 March 2016 was £3 552m {2014/15 €3 717m] Included in this s the principal amourt of secured borrow.ngs and other

barrowsngs of non-recourse companies of £1 563m of which the borrow:ngs of the partly-owned subsidiary Hercules Uit Trust, not beneficiatly ewned by the Group

15 £109m

= Included within cash and short term deposits 1s the cash and short term gepesits of Hercules Unit Trust of which £8m s the proportion not beneficially owned

by the Group

* Cashand deposits not subject to a security :nterest amount to £$3m {2014/35 £84m}
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

17 Net debt continued

Maturity analysts of net debt

2016 2015

fm fm

Repayable within one year and on demand T4 102
Between one and two years 504 71
two and five years 1,491 1707

bive and ten years 807 943

ten and fifteen years 500 747

fifteen and twenty years 385 [

twenty and twenty five years - 3n

3,687 3847

Gross debt 3,761 3 949
Inter est rate and currency dervatives {30) {13
Cash and shori lerm deposits (114) [108)
Net debt 3,617 3828

1 5% Convertible bond 2012 {maturity 20417)
On 10 September 2092 Briush Land [ fersey) Lirmited (the 2012 ssuer] a whally-swned subsidiary of the Group 1ssued £400 mittion 1 5% guaranteed
convertible bonds due 2017 [the 2012 bonds] al par The 2012 Issuer s fully guar anteed by the Company in respect of the 2012 bonds

Subject to their terms the 2012 bonds are convertibte inta preference shares of the 2612 Issuer which are automaticatly transferred to the Company in
exchange for ordinary shares in the Company or at the Company s election any combination of ordinary shares and cash Bondholders may exercise
their conversion right at any ltme up 1o [but exctuding] the 28ih dealing day beiore 10 September 2017 [the maturity date]

The mitial exchange price was 693 07 pence per ardinary share The exchange price 1s adjusted based on cet toin events

From 25 September 2015 the Company has the ophion to redeern the 2012 bands at par «f the Company s share price has traded above 130% of

the exchange price for a speofied persad or at any ume onre 85% by nominat value of the 2012 bands have been converted redeemed or purchased
and cancelled The 2012 bonds will be redeemed at par an 10 September 2037 {the maturity date) if they have not already been converted redeemed
or purchased and cancelled Noredemption of the bonds occurred in the year

0% Convertible bond 2015 [maturity 2020]
On 9 _fune 2015 Briish Land (White] 2015 Limited [the 2035 kssuet] a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group rssued £350 million zero coupon
guaranteed converttbte bonds due 2020 (the 2015 bonds) at par The 2015 tssuer s fulty guaranteed by the Company in respect of the 2015 bonds

Subject to their terms the 2615 bonds are convertibte into preference shares of the Issuer which are dutomatically transferred to the Company n
axchange for ardinary sharesn the Company o1 at the Company s election, any combination of ordimary shares and cash From 20 Juty 2035 up to
and including 29 June 2018 a bondholder may exercise iis converston right o the share price has traded at a level exceeding 130% of the exchange
price for a specified period Thereafter and up to but excluding the 7th dezling day before § June 2020 {the maturity date] a bondhotder may convert
at any ime

The imitial exchange price was 1103 32 pence per ordinary share The exchange price is adjusted based on certain evenis [such as the Company
paying dwvidencis in any year above 14 18 pence per ordinary share)

From 30 June 2018 the Company has the oplion ta r edeem the 2015 bonds at par if the Cornpany s share price has iraded above 130% of the
exchange price for a specified period or at any time once 85% by nominat value of the 2015 bonds have heen convertad 1edeemed or purchased
and cancelled The 2015 bonds will be redeemed at par on 9 June 2020 [the matunity datel if they have not already heen converted redeemed or
purchased and cancelled
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17 Net debt conunued

Fair value and book value of net debt

2014 2015

Fairrvalue Bookvalue [hfference Farvalue Bookvalue  Dference

€m Em fm Em

Bebentures and unsecured bonds 1,637 1.613 24 1925 1785 140
Convertible bonds 779 779 - 493 493 -
Bank debt and other floating rate debt 1,384 1,349 15 1691 1601 20
Gross debt 3,800 3,761 ki 4109 3949 160
Interest rate and currency derwative liabiltties 137 137 - 126 126 -
Interestrate and currency detvative assets 1167} (167 - 139] {1394 -
Cash and short term deposits (114} (114) - {108] o8} -
Net debt 3,654 3,617 ¥ 3988 3828 140
Nel debt attiibutable to non-cont: olling inter ests fos) (104) 2) [192] [190} 12)
Net debt attributable to shareholders of the Company 3,550 3,513 37 3796 3638 158

The fair values of debt, debentur es and the conver tibte bonds have been established by obtaining quoted market prices from brokers The bank debt
and loan notes have been valued assuming they could be renegotrated al contracted margins The derivatives have been valued by calculating the
present value of expected future cash flows using appropriaie market discount raies by anindependent treasury advisor

Shor L term debtors and creditor s and other investments have been excluded from the disclosures on the basis that the fan value 1s equivalent

lo the book value

Group toan to value [LTV)
2018 2015
£m £m
Group loan to value [LTV) 25% 28%
Principal amount of gross debit 3,552 nig
tess debt attnibutable 1o non-controlling interests (109 {z00)
Less cash and short term deposits [balance sheet) M4) 1108)
Plus cash attributabie to non-controlling mterests 8 10
Total net debt for LTV calculation 3,337 1419
Croup property portfolio valuation fnote 10) 10,111 9509
Investments in joint ventures and funds [note 11} . 3,353 2901
Other investments [nete 12} 142 379
Less property and mvestments atiributable to non-controlling interests 1384) {528
Total assets for LTV calcutation 13,222 12 261
Proportionally censolidated loan to value [LTV}
2016 2015
£m Em
Propertionalty consolidated loan to value (LTV) 32% 35%
Principal amount of grass deint 5,217 5404
Less debt attributable to non-controlling interests [128) (2001
L.ess cash and short term deposits (353) (300)
Plus cash atinbutable to nen-contralting mterests 9 10
Total net debt for proportional LTV calculation 4,745 4914
Group property portfolio valuation note 10) 10111 9509
Share of praper ty of joint ventures and funds [note 10) 4,937 4714
Other Investments [note 12) 142 379
Less other investments attributable to jomt ventures and funds i&) 23}
Less prope ty attributabte to nan-controlling interests (400) 15446]
Total assets for proportional LTV calculation 14,786 13933
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17 Net debt continued

British Land Unsecured Financial Covenants
The two financial covenants applicabte to the Group unsecured debt ncluding convertible bonds are shown below

2016 2015

£m tm

Net Borrowings not to exceed 175% of Adjusted Capital and Reserves 34% 38%
Principal amount of gross debt 3,552 Iny
Less the relevant propet tion of borrowings of the partly-owned subsidiary/non-controlling interesis [109) (200)
Less cash and deposits [balance sheel] 1114 {108)
Plus the relevant proportion of cash and depesits of the parlly-owned subsidiary/non-controtling interests 8 10
Net Borrowings 3,337 3419
Share capital and reser ves [balance sheet] 9,819 8545
EPRA deferred tax adjustment {EPRA Tabte Al 5 13
Trading propet ty surpluses {EPRA Table Aj 23 9%
Excepuional refinancing charges [see below} 287 300
Fanr value adjustments of finanaal instruments [EPRA Table A) 198 257
Less reserves attnibutable 1o non-contrelling interests [balance sheel) (277] (333
Adjusted Capital and Reserves 9,925 8 898

In caleulating Adjusted Capital and Reserves for the purpose of the unsecured debt financial covenants there s an adjustment of £287m (2014/15
£300m] to reflect the cumitiative net amortised exceptional tems relating to the refinancings i the years ended 31 March 2005 2006 and 2007

2016 5
£m £m

Net Unsecured Borrowsngs not to exceed 70% of Unencumbered Assets 29% 28%
Principal amount of gross debt 3,582 3n?
L ess cash and deposits not subject to o security interest {being £93m less the relevant praportion of cash and depesits of the
partly owned subsidiary/nan-coniroliing interests of £5m} {88) 171
Less principal amount of secured and non-recourse boi rawings [1,562) [1906)
Net Unsecured Borrowings 1,901 1734
Group property portfolio valuation {note 10} 10111 9509
Investments In joint ventures and funds [nete 1) 3,353 2901
Othes investments [note 12) 142 379
Less mvestments in joit ventures [note 11 (3,348] (2 869)
Less encumbered assets [note 10} (3,803) {3 844)
Unencumbered Assets 6,455 5076
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17 Net debt connnued

Reconciliation of movement in Group net debt for the year ended 31 March 2014

Arrangement
Business Foreign costs
2015 Cash flows combinations Transfers? exchange Fair value amortisation 2016
Short ierm borrowings 102 {104) - 76 2 - - 74
Long term borrowmgs 3,847 (98} - 74} 14 (9) 7 3,687
Derivatives! 13 22 - - (13) [26) - (30
Toiat Liabities from financing actvities 3,936 (180) - - 3 (351 7 3.7
Cash and cash equivalents [108) (6) - - - - - 114}
Net deht 3,828 (184) - = 3 [35) 7 3,617
Reconcitiation of movement in Group net debt for the year ended 31 March 2015
Arrangement
Business Foregn costs
014 Cashflows combinations Transfers? exchange Farvalue  amortisation 2015
Shor L term borrowings 495 (695) - 102 - - - 102
Long term borrowings 2803 614 379 (102) 40 104 7 3847
Del vatives’ 25 (4] - - {47 13 - (13l
Total Lakxlities from financing actwities 3323 17 379 - {7 17 7 3936
Cash and cash equivalenls {142] 34 - - - - - {108}
Net debt 3181 151 379 - 1] 17 7 3828
' Cash flows on derwatives include £7m of net receipts on dervalive njerest
1 Cash flows on derwatives include £8m of net receipts on derivalive interest
? Transters comprises debt maturing from long term to short term borrowings
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17 Net debt continued

Fair vatue hierarchy

The table below provides an analysis of inancial nstruments carried at {air value by the vatuation method The fair value hierarchy levets are defined

In note 19
2016 2015
Level 1 Levet 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£m £m Em m £m £m £m £m
Interest rate and currency der vative assets - 11671 - (167) - 39 - 1391
Other investments - held fer trading - - (101} i161) - - {99 1991
Assets - (167 1101} (248] - (1391 991 {238]
Interest rate and curiency derivative babilites - 137 - 137 - 126 - 126
Conver tible bonds 779 ~ - 779 493 - - 493
Liabilities 779 137 - 916 493 126 - 619
Total 779 {30) 1101 648 493 131 {99! 381
Categories of hinancial instruments
2016 2015
£m £m
Financial assets
Fair value through income statement
Other investments - held {or trading 101 99
Derivatives in designated hedge accounting relationships 164 139
Derivatives not in designated hedge accounting relationships 3 -
Amortised cost
Trade and other debtors 24 16
Cash and short term deposits M4 108
Other investments —loans and receivables 41 280
447 442
Financial Liabilities
Fair value through income statement
Convertible bonds (7791 1493}
Dervatives in designated hedge accounting retationships (137} [126)
Amortised cost )
Gross debt 12,9821 {3 4561
Head teases payable (46 il
Creditors (133} (178)
[4,0771 {4 294)
Total 13,630) {3 652

Bains and losses on financrat instruments as classed above are disclosed in note 6 [net inancing costs] note 13 [debtors] note 4 (vatuation

movements on propet tyl the consclidated income statement and the cansolidated statement of comprehensive income The Directors consider that
the carrying amounts of other nvestments and head leases payable are approximate to their fair value and that the carrying amounts are recaverable
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17 Net debt conunued

Capital nisk management

The capitat structure of the Group consists of net debt and eguity attributable to the equity holders of The British Land Company PLC comprising
tssued capitzal 1eservesandretamed earnings Risks relaiing to capital structure are addressed wilhin managing 11sk in delivering our strategy on
pages 57 to 63 The Group s objectives policies and processes for managing debt are set out in the financial policies and principles on pages 54 te 56

Interest rate risk management
The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge exposure 1o the vaniability in cash flows on floating rate debt such as revolving bank facitities and

floating rate bonds caused by movements in markel rates of interest

At 31 March 2016 the fair value of these derwatives1s a net Liability of £136m Interestrate swaps with a lair value of £137m have been designated
as cash (low hedges under |1AS 39

The inetiectiveness recogmised 1n the income statement an cash flow hedges i the year ended 31 March 2016 was Eml (2014/15 €nul}

The cash Rows oceur and are charged to profit and loss until the maturity of the hedged debt The table below summarises variable rate debt and
{greign currency denominated debt hedged at 31 Maich 2016

Cash flow hedged debt

2016 2015

£m £m

Outstanding  al one yea 413 1138
at twoyears 663 538

al five years 250 450

al ten years 250 250

Fair value hedged debt
The Group uses interest rate swaps 10 hedge exposure on fixed rate financial habilities caused by movernents in market rates of interest

AL3T March 2014 the fan value of these derivatives 1s & net asset of £166m Inter est r ate swaps with a fairvalue of £164m have been designaled as
fair value hedges under 1AS 39 [2014/15 asset of £133m]

The cross currency swaps of the 2018/2021/2023/2026 US Private Placements fully hedge the foreign exchange exposure at an average floaung rate
of 146 basis points above LIBOR These have been designated as {an value hedges of the US Private Placements

Interest rate profile - Inctuding effect of dervatives

2018 2015

£m £m

Fixed or capped rate 2,372 2589
Varable rate {net of cash) 1,245 1239
3,617 3828

All the debt s effectively Sterbing denomimated except for £10m [2014/15 £39m) of Euro debt of which Eril 1s at a fixed rate [2014/15 £36ml

A1 31 March 2016 the weighted average inter est rate of the Sterling fixed rate debtis 3 5% [2014/15 4 B%] The weighted average period for which the
rate is fixed 1s 91 years [2014/15 71 yearsl The floating rate deht 1s set for per 1ods of the Company s choosing at the relevant LIBOR lor similar] rate

The proportion of net debt at fixed or capped 1 ates of interest was 66% ot 31 March 2016 on a spot basis Fhe proportion of net debt at hixed or capped
rates of interest as an average over the next five-year lorecast penod on a proportionatty consolidated basis was 60% at 31 March 2016 Based on
the Group s mnterest rate prefile at the balance sheet date a 576 bps increase in nterest rates would decrease annual profits by £72m [2014/15
£53m decrease} Sivlarty a 59 bps reduction would increase profits by £7m (2014/15 £5mincrease] The change in interest rates used for this
sensivity analysis is based on the largest annual change in three month Sterling LIBOR over the last ten years The impact assumes LIBOR

does not fall below 0%

British Land | Annual Repor t and Accounts 2016 153




Finaneial statements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

17 Net debt continued

Interest rate profile - including effect of dervatives continued

Upward movements i medium and long term interest rates associated with higher interest rate expectations increase the value of the Group s
mlerest rate swaps that provide protection against such meves The converseis true for downward movements in the yield curve The majority of the
Group s Interest rate swaps which provide such protection qualify s effective cash ftow hedges under 1AS 39 therefore mavements in the fair value
are recogrised directly in equity rather than the income statement A 204 bps shift represents the largest annual change in the seven-year Sterling
swap rate over the last ten years Al 31 March 2016 a 204 bps paratiel upward shiftin swap rates would mcrease the vatue of these interest rate
swaps by £151m [2014/5 £151m] A 204 bps downward shiflin swap rates would reduce the value of these interest rate swaps by £197m [2014/15
£155m) Because the interest rate swaps a1 e matched by floating rate debt the overall effect on Group cash flows of such movernents 1s minimal

The 1 5% 2012 Convertible Bond and 8% 2015 Convertible Bond are both designated as {air value through profit or loss Principal components of the
market value of both bonds inctude Briish Land s share price and its volanlity and market interest rates

The fair value of the 1 5% 2012 Convertible Bond at 31 March 2016 was a £445m tiability At 31 March 2016 a 204 bps parallel upward shuftin interest
rates would reduce the [air value iability by €13m and a 204 bps downward shift in interest rates would increase the fair value hability by £14m

The fair value of the 0% 2015 Conver tible Bond at 31 March 2016 was a £334m lrabitity At 31 March 2916 a 204 bps paratlel upward shiftin interest
rales would reduce the fairvalue abiity by £27m and a 204 bps downward shift in interest rates would increase the far value Labilizy by £30m

Foreign currency risk management

The Group s policyis to have no materiat unhedged net assets oi Latmisies denominated in foreign currencies The currency risk on over seas
investments is hedged via foreign currency denominated borrowings and derivatives The Group has adopted net invesiment hedging in accordance
with |AS 3% and therefore the pertion of the gan or loss on the hedging instrument that 15 determined to be an effective hedge is recagresed directty
in equity The ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging Instsument is recognised immedately in the Income statement

The table below shows the carrying amounts of the Group s foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities Contingent Lax on overseas
investments not expected to occurisignored for hedging purpeses as s the requirement to fair value interest rate swaps Based on the 31 March
2014 posilion a 33% appreciation (largest ennual change over the last len years) in the Euro relative to Ster ing would resutt in a £mit change [2014/15
€nill in repor ted prafits

Assets Liabdities
2016 2015 2016 2015
£m £m £m £m
Furo denominated 10 39 0 39

Credit risk management

The Group s approach 1o credit risk management of counterparties isteferred to o the financial policies and principles on pages 54 to 56 and the
risks addressed wihin managing nisk i delivering our strategy on pages 57 to 63 The carrying smount of financial assets recorded in the financial
statements represents the Group s maximurm exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any cotlateral obtained

Cash and shorl term deposits at 31 March 2016 amounted to £114m (2014735 (108m) Deposits and interest 1 ate depostts were placed with financial
institutions with BBB+ or better credit ratings

AL 31 March 7014 the fanr value of all nterest rate dervative assels was £167m [2014/15 £139m}

At 31 Maich 2014 prior to taking imto account any of fset arrangements the largest combined credit exposure to a single counterparty anising from
rnoney mar ket deposits kiquid Invesimentis and dervatives was £85m [2014/15 £59m] This represents 0 6% (2014/15 0 5% of gross assets

The deposit exposur es are with UK banks and UK branches of international banks

The Group s exposure 10 credit 11sk in respect of its trade receivablests analysed in note 13 Provisicns are made taking account historic credit losses
and the creditworthiness of debtors

Liquidity nisk management
The Group s approach 1o kiquidity risk management 1s discussed in the financial policies and principles on pages 54 to 56 and the risks addressed
within managing risk in defivering our straiegy on pages 57 to 63

The following table presents a maturity profile of the contracted undiscounted cash ftows of financigl liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay The table includes both interest and principal fltows Where the interest payable 15 not fixed the amount disclosed
has heen determined by reference 1o the projected interest rates implied by yield curves at the reporting date For derwauve finanoal instruments
that settle on a net basts [e g interest rate swaps! the undiscounted net cash flows are shown and for derivatives that require gross settlement

[e ¢ cross currency swaps the undiscounted gross cash flows are presented Where payment cbligations are in {oreign currencies the spot
exchange rate ruking at the balance sheet date 15 used Trade creditors and amounts owed tojoint ventures which are repayable within one year
have been excluded from the analysis
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17 Net debt continued

Ligwidrty risk management continued
The Group expects to meet s financial liabilities through the various available liguidity sources ncluding a secure rental income profile assel sales
undrawn commutted borrowing facilities and n the longer term debt refinancings

The Group leases out all its investment properties under aperating leases with a weighted average tease length of nine years This secure income
profile 15 generated from upward only rent reviews long leases and high occupancy rates The future aggr egate runimum rentals recewvable under
non-cancellable operating leases 1s also shown in the table below Income from joint ventures and funds s not Included betow Additional Liguidity
will artse from letuing space in prope: ties under construction as well as from distributions recewed fr om joint ventures and funds

2016
Three

Within Follawing to five Over five
ane year year years years Total
£m £€m €m £m £m
Debt! 74 L&1 1,47 1.577 3,585
Interest on debt 102 100 268 538 1,009
Derwative payments 13 14 77 395 499
Head lease payments 2 2 b 239 249
Total payments 194 577 1,822 2,749 5,342
Derwative receipts (23] (25) (104) (383} (535)
Net payment 1 552 1,718 2,366 4,807
Operating leases with tenants 437 419 1,133 2,389 4,378
Liquidizy surplus {deficit 246 1133} [585) 23 429)

Cumulative Liquidity surplus [deficit) 266 133 [452) [429)

2018
Three

Within Following to five Over five
one year year years years Total
£m tm Em fm £m
Debt! 105 76 16i5 1950 3 /hé
Interes! on debt 126 125 328 519 1198
Derwative payments 121 113 74 407 418
Head lease payments 2 2 [ 723 233
Total payments 304 79 2023 3199 5,795
Dervative receipts 11321 [24) [90) 1385} 631
Net payment 222 195 1973 2814 5164
Operating leases with tenants 443 431 1180 2782 4 836
Liquidity surplus [deficit] 271 236 {7531 (32} [328]

Cumulative Liguidity surplus [deficit) 223 457 {294 [328)

Gross debt of £3 761m [2014/15 £3 94%m)] represents the total shown less unamortised 1ssue costs of £39m [2014/15 £23m) plus fair value adjustments to debt
o £195m [2014/15 £226m}

Any short term Liquidity gap between the net payments required and the rentals receivable can be met through ather liguidity sources available 1o the
Group The Group currently holds cash and short term deposuts of £114m of which £93m 1s not subject to a security interest |see footnote 5 to net debt
table on page 147} Further Lguidity can be achieved through sales of property assets or investments and dehtrefinancings

The Group s property portfolio s valued externally at £10 111m and the share of joint ventures and funds property1s valued at £4 937m The undrawn

commitied borrowing facilities available to the Group are a further source of iquidity The smaturaty profile of committed undrawn borrowing facilities
15 shown overleaf
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17 Net debt continued

Maturity of committed undrawn borrowing facilities

206 2015

£m £m

Maturity date over five years - -
between four and five years 1,113 930

hetween thiee and four years 95 -

Total facilities available for more than three years 1,208 930
Between two and three years 85 41
Between one and two years - 235
Within one year &0 10
Total 1,353 1236

The above Taciities are comprised of Brittsh Land undrawn facilities of £1 150m, ptus undrawn facilities of Hercules Unit Trust totalling £203m

18 Leasing

Operating leases with tenants
The Group leases out alt of its nvestment proper ties undet operating leases with a weighled aver age lease tength of nine years (2014/15 ten years]

The future aggregate romimum rentals 1 eceivable under non-cancellable operating teases are as follows

2015 2015

£m €m

Less than one year 437 443
Between one and two years 419 431
Between three and five years 1,133 1180
Between sixand tenyears 1241 1353
Between eleven and {Hteen years 624 783
Between sixteen and twenty years 357 443
Aller twenly years 165 203
Total 4,378 4 836

The Group s leasehold iInvestment properties ar e typically under non-renewable leases without significant restnctions Finance lease habilities are
payable as follows no contingent 1 ents were payable in ether period

204 2015
Mimmuam Minimum
lpage lease
payments Interest Principal paymenis [nterest Principal
£m £m £m Ern Em tm
British Land Group
Less than ane year 2 2 - 2 ? -
Between one and two years 2 2 - 2 -
Between two and five years [ [ - ] -
More than five years 239 193 46 723 182 41
Total 249 203 Lb 233 192 4]
Less future finance charges (203} [t92]
Present value of lease obligations 4é [l
More than five years L& 41
Present value of lease obligations 46 41
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19 Dawvidend

The fourth quarter interim dividend of 709 pence per share totatling £73m (2014715 6 92 pence per share totalling £71m] was approved by the Board

on 16 May 2016 and 1s payable on 5 August 2016 to shareholders on the register at the close of business on 1 July 2014

The Board will announce the availability of the Scrip Oividend Alternative if available wia the Regulatory News Service and on its website www
britishland com/dividends) no tater than four business days before the ex- dividend date of 30 June 2016 The Board expects to announce the sphit
between Property Incorne Distributions [PIDY) and non-PID income at that hme  Any Scrip Dividend Alternative will not be enhanced PID dividends
are paid as required by REIT legrslation after deduction of withhotding tax al the basic rate lcurrently 20%} where appropriate Certain ctasses of
shareholders may be able to elect to 1eceve dividends gross Please refer to our website www britishland com/dividends for details

Pence per 2016 2015
Payment date Diwdend share Em
Currentyear dividends
0508 2014 2016 4thinterim 709
0605 2016 2016 3rd interim 709
12 02 2016 2016 2nd intertm 709 73
Q4 11 2015 2016 1st interim 709 72
28346
Prior year dividends
07498 2015 215 4thinterim 692 Al
0605 2015 2015 3rd interim 697 A
13 02 2015 2015 2nd interim 692 Al
0711204 2015 1stinterim 592 70
2768
08 08 2014 2074 41h interim 675 48
0205 2014 2014 3rctinterem 475 48
Dwidends in consolidated statement
of changes in equity 287 277
Dadends settled i shares (52} (49]
Dividends settled in cash 235 228
Trimmg difference relating ta payment
of wathholding tax - -
Dividends in cash flow siatement 235 228
! Scrip alternative treated as non-PI0 for this dividend
20 Share captal and resermves
2015 M5
Number of ordinary shares in tssue at 1 Apnil 1,031,788,286 10127464 481
Share issues 8,774,037 $2 021 805
At 31 March 1,040,562,323 1031788 286

04i the issued 25p ordinary shares 427 shares were held in the ESOP trust (2014715 98 453]) 11 266 245 shares were held as treasury shares
(2016/15 11 246 245] and 1029 295 451 shares were In free 1ssue [2014/15 1020 423 588] No treasury shareswere acquired by the ESOP trust
during the year Allissued shares are fully paid

Hedging and translation reserve

The hedging and translation reserve compnises the effective portien of the cumulaive net change in the fair value of cash flow and foreign currency
hedging nstruments aswell as all for eign exchange differences ansing from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations
The foreign exchange ditferences also inctude the translation of the liabilities that hedge the Company s net investment in a forewgn subsidiary

Revaluation reserve
The revaluation reserve relates to owner-occupied properties and nvestments i joint ventures and funds

Merger reserve
This comprises the premium on the share placing in March 2613 No shdre premium ts recorded inthe Company s financral statements through
the operation of the merger reltef provisions of the Companies Act 2006
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20 Share capital and reserves contmued

At 31 March 2016 opuons over 7 341 620 ordinary shares were outstanding under employee share option pians The options had a weighted average
Ufe of 4 4 years Details of outstanding share options and shares awarded to empleyees inctuding Executive Directors are sel out below and on the

fotlowing pages

Exerpise dates
At1Apnl Vested but Exercised! At 31 March Exertise
Date of grant s Granted  notexercrsed Vested Lapsed 2016 price pence From To
Share options Sharesave Scheme
280610 38159 - - 1377001 14591 - 37000 00915 290214
01071 8476 - - 1911} {393} 7172 473 00 010916 280217
26 0612 92 390 - - {87 800i {4 5901 - 39200 010915 290216
26 0612 52 262 - - [2 320 {7 244} 42,698 39200 010917 280218
190613 4120 - - (2 005] [4 404] 34,792 511 00 010916 280217
190613 16 376 - - {4891 [685] 15,202 31100 010918 280219
730614 159 415 - - [1961] [21100] 137,254 574 00 010917 289218
230614 131 433 - - [696] [3745] 122,192 574 00 01091 280220
220615 - 84 687 - - (8 520) 76,167 49700 010718 280219
220615 - 63 599 - - (5 24%) 58,350 69700 010920 280221
539912 148 286 - [132982] [56 389] 498,827
Long-Term Incentive Plan - Cptions Vested, Not Exercised
310505 164 8B40 - - 173 551 (9% 289] - 726 68 310508 300515
051205 141 254 - - 1105483 (35774 - 823 60 051208 041215
7906 09 2193 - - (7 441) - 14,472 38700 290612 2904619
25109 6,063 - - {4 063] - - 47500 25112 251119
211209 77443 - - 14 989 - 72,454 44600 211212 211219
110610 1420932 - - {208 549 (4026} 1,208,357 44700 110513 110620
141210 G0 568 - - [19112] {17891 69,667 51000 141213 141220
280611 1108 870 - - 19412] (52451 1,084,233 57500 0614 288621
191211 174 B24 - - [75 649] {3 ¢001 95,575 45100 191214 191221
140912 - 1178819 - (58 630 4979) 111,710 53800 140915 140922
201212 - 151 458 - {28 853) [2488) 120,317 56300 201215 01222
050813 - 18172 - - (11 456} 8,716 60100 050816 050823
051213 - 22530 - - 16 764) 5,746 40000 051216 051223
230614 - 87845 - - (79 955) 7890 £84 00 230617 230624
3206727 1459024 - 1607132]  [256 462] 3,802,157
Laong-Term Incentive Plan - Unvested Options
14 0912 1292739 - (1178819 - 3970 - 53800 140915 140922
201212 198 211 - 1151,6581 - (46 553 - 56300 201215 201222
050813 799 292 - 118 172) - [117442] 663,678 40100 050816 050823
051213 508 874 - (22 5301 - [83744) 402,600 400 00 031216 051223
2304614 1131228 - [87845) - 1213675) 829,708 684 00 230617 230824
121214 26127 - - - - 26,127 75783 121217 1212 24
220515 - 1199784 - - {81261 1.118,523 824 50 220618 220625
395647 1199784 1459 024) - i656595] 3,040,638
Total 7703110 2807094 [1459024) (74014} [965448] 7,341,620
Weighted average exercise price
of options [pence) 563 676 551 535 651 580
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20 Share captal and reserses conunoed

Share price
A1 Apni Exercised/ At31March atgrantdate
Date of grant 2615 Granted Vested Lapsed 2016 pence Vesting date
Perfarmance Shares Long-Term Incentive Plan
140912 860 412 - [B19950F  [44 452) - 53800 140915
201212 103130 - (86 845] 16 285 - 563 06 201215
050813 1124 612 - - (88 159} 1,036,453 401 00 0508 16
051713 270334 - - {40108] 230,226 600 00 051216
230614 1539336 - - BNy 1,359,223 484 00 230617
121214 4 354 - - - 4,354 75783 121217
22046 15 - 128992 - [88 057) 1,201,849 824 50 220618
3902178 1289926 (902 795]  {457184) 3,832,125
Fund Managers Perfermance Plan
120912 170466 - [166936] (3 530) - 53700 120915
0z 0813 199543 - {190 251) (9292) - 59900 020815
020813 199 476 - (5 380] 14 432] 179,664 59900 02 0816
569 485 - (362 56/] 127254] 179,664
Matching Share Plan
050912 386994 - 11828311 (204163 - 30000 050913
020813 375338 - - (26 448] 348,890 409 64 020816
300514 317164 - - [27 508] 289,540 702 40 300617
290615 - 296438 - 14 468] 282,170 806 00 290518
1079498 296838  [182831) (272 6B5] 920,620
Total 5551161 1586564 (14481930  [757123] 4,932,409
Weighted average price of shares [pence) 611 82 540 595 597
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Finsneial statcments

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

21 Segment information

The Group allocates resources to investment and asset management accarding to the sectors i expects to perform over the medium term Its three
principal sectors are Offices Retail and Canada Water The Office sector includes residential as this 15 often incorporated into Office schemes and
Retal includes leisure for a stimitar rationale Canado Water was added as a principal secior in the year reflacting the key role the campus has in the

strategy of the Group Consequently the prior year camparatives in this note have been restated to retlect thes addiional principal sector

The relevant gross rental income netrental mcome operanng result and property assels being the measures of segment revenug segment result and
segment assets used by the management of the business are set out belaw Management reviews ihe perfarmance of the business principaity on a
propos ttonally consolidated basis which includes the Group s share of joint véntures and funds on a Line-by-line basis and excludes non-controtling

intes ests in the Group s subsidiaries The chief operating decisron smaker for the purpose of segment information s the Executive Commitiee

Gross rental mcome 1s derived from the rentsl of buitdings Operating result 1s the net of net rental income fee income and admmistrative expenses

No custorner exceeded 10% of the Group s revenues in either year

Segment reselt

Offices and residentiai Retail and laisure Canada Waler Ctherfunallocated Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 0158 215 2016 2015 2016 2015
£m £m Em £m £m £m £m fm £m £m
Gross rental income
British Land Group 133 121 291 248 8 4 - - 432 375
Share of joint ventures and funds 14 89 104 146 = - &4 8 222 243
Total 247 214 395 394 8 b 4 8 854 518
Net rental income
Briush Land Group 124 132 277 233 7 6 - - 408 N
Share of joint ventures and funds 10 85 99 14] - - 3 8 212 234
Total 234 197 376 374 7 b 3 8 620 585
Operating result
Briush Land Group 112 m 260 718 7 b {46) (41} 333 284
Share of joint ventures and funds 109 82 102 138 - - 1) 10 210 230
Total 221 183 362 356 7 ) (&7} {31] 543 B
2016 2015
Reconciliation to Underlying Profit €m £m
Operating result 543 514
Nei financing costs (180} [201)
Underlying Profit 343 313
Reconciliation to profit on erdinary activities before taxation
Underlying Profit 363 N3
Capital and other 954 1440
Underlymng Profit attributable
to non-controlling mierests 14 16
Total profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1,331 1789

0f the total revenues above £4m [2014/15 £8m]was derived from outside the UK
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21 Segment information continued

Segment assels

Dffices and residential Retait and le1sure Canada Water Gtherfunallocated Total
2014 2015 2018 2015 2016 2015 20t& 2015 2016 2015
£m £m £m £m £m £m tm £m £m £m
Property assets
Brittsh Land Group 4,181 3520 5,323 5275 283 273 - - 9,787 9068
Shar e of joint ventures and funds 2,843 2530 2,018 2039 - - - 40 4,861 4 609
Total 7,024 6 050 7.3 734 283 273 - 40 14,648 13 677
Reconciliatran to net assets
2014 2015
British Land Group £m fm
Property assets 14,648 13 677
Other non-current assets 138 256
Non-current assets 14,786 13933
Other net current Labilives 257 3071
Adjusted net debt (4,765)  [4918]
Other non-cut rent liabilibes (90) (73}
EPRA net assets [undiluted) 9,674 8635
Conver ible diiuticn 400 400
EPRA net assets {diluted) 10,074 2035
MNon-conti olling interests 277 333
EPRA adustments (732) {8033
Netassets 9,619 8565

22 Capital comnutments

The aggregate capital commitrments to pur chase construct or develop investment property for repairs maintenance or enhancernents or for the
purchase of investments which are contracted for but not provided dre set out below

. 246 2045

€m fm

Briush |_and and subsidranes includes share of development loan facility] 174 198
Share of joint ventures 40 42
Share of funds 2 2
216 242

23 Related party transactions

The Group had provided a development toan of up to £320m to the Broadgate jointventure secured against the 5 Broadgate developrment The loan
was {ully repaid during the year Interest and commitment fees earmed on the loan during the year were £4m [2014/15 £8m]

Details of transactions with joint ventures and funds are given innates3 6and 11 During the year the Graup recognised joint venture management
fees of £8m [2014/15 £7m)

Details of Directors remuneration are given in the Rermunes ation Report on pages 86 to 110 Details of k ansactions with key management personnet
are provided in note 8

Details of transactions with The British Land Group of Companies Pension Scheme and other sraller pension schemes are givenin note 9

The purchases by related partes of Simon Borrows of two flats in London for a total of £4m from a Briish Land Group company as approved at last
year s Annual General Meeting completed during the year
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24 Contingent Liabilitics

Group, joint ventures and funds

The Group joint ventur es and funds have contingent liabililies in respect of legal claims guarantees and warranties arssing in the ordinary course

of business It 1s not antrcipated that any matertal babihties wall arise irom contingent liabilities

23 Subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests

Set out helow 1s surnmanised financial information for each subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are material to the Group
The information helow 1s the amount before inker company eliminations and represents the consolidated resulis of the Hercutes Unit Trust group

Summarised income statement for the year ended 31 March

Hercules Unit Trust

2014 2015

£m fm

Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 59 142
Atirihutable to non-controlling interests 19 55
Attributabte to the shareholders of the Company 40 87

Summansed balance sheet for the year ended 31 March

Hercutes Unit Trust

201& 25

£€m £m

Total assets 1,490 1687
Total babilies (449] (674}
Net assets 1,021 1013
Non-controlling interests 277 333
Equity attnbutabie to shareholders of the Company 744 680

Summarised cash flows

Hercutes Umit Trust

2018 2015

£m fm

Net [decreasel increase in cash and cash equivalents (51 2
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 Apri 35 33
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 30 35

The Hercules Unit Trustis a publicly histed Unit Trust The Unit price at 31 March 201615 £719 [2014/15
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26 Audit exempnions taken for subsiharies

The following subsidiares are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 retating 1o the audi of indvidual accounts by virtue of

Sechion 479A of that Act

Companies House
Name reg number
Briuish L and Agua Partnership Limited 6026919
Brush |.and Aqua Partnership [2] Limited 024521
Apartpower Lipnted 2832059
Pillarcaisse Management Limited 2941307
Bl Guaranteeco Limted 5403335
WH Holdings Limited 2487391
Wates City Point Lirnited 2973114
BL HC Property Holdings Limited 06894044
BL Health Clubs Ph Na 1 Limited 05643248
BL. Health Clubs Ph No 2 Limited 05643261
StJames Retail Park Northampton Limited 5396394
Pdlar Nugent Lirmited 2567031
Pillar Develepments Limited 2850421
United Kingdom Property Company Limited 266486
Bnitish Land Her cules No 1 Limited 3527580
Pilar Estates Linited 3044028
Pillar {Dartfor d) Limited 2783384
BL Goodman [LP} Limited 5056902
Piller Broadway Limited 3589114
Parwick Investments Limited 00454239
Hilden Properties L simited NI062887
BL [Maidenhead) Cornpany Limited To67834
Wardrobe Holdings Limited 06049158
BL Cwmibran Limited 7780251
BLGP Chess No 1 Limited 8572585
Ludgate West Lamited 4882129
Bayeast Property Company Limited 435800
Boldswtch Lirmited 2307096
Exchange House Holdings Lirited 2037407
Paddington Central | [GP) Limited 3891376
Regrs Property Holdings Linited 891470
Dinwell Limned 5035303
TPP Investments Limited 4843814
BL Osnaburgh St Residential Lid 06874923
Moorage {Property Developments) Lirmited 1185513
39 Victena Street Lamited 703733
Teesside Leisure Park Lirnited 2672136
Cavendish Geared Limited 2779045
Pillar Auchinlea Limited 2661047
Pillar Europe Management Limited 289182¢
Pillar Retail Parks Lirmted 2725163
Wales City Of Londen Properties Limited 1788526
BLO [SJHrvestments Liswted 4484750
Adamant Investment Cor poration Limited 225149

Companies House

Name reg number
The Liverpool Exchange Company Limited 496255
Osnaburgh St eet Limited 5886735
Adshilta Limited 1052683
Rohawk Properties Linited 789485
Blaxrull [Fwenty Ninel Limuted 5279010
Pillar [Beckton] Limiled 2783376
Briish Land Properiy Adwisers Limited 2793828
Brinsh Land Hercules Limited 2789381
Briish Land Hercules No 4 Limited 3108851
Sprint 1118 Limited 5860847
Longford Street Residential Limited 8700158
Meadowbank Retail Park Edinburgh Limsted 548980%
BF Propco {No 19) Limited 527013
worydell Lirmted 3264791
Broadgate {PHC 8] Lirnited 3707220
BVP Developments Limited 3534586
FRP Group Ltd 2B44685
BLU Property Management Limited 1020347
Piltar Her cules No 2 Limited 2839069
Orake Circus Leisure Lirnited 9196208
Blu Evtates Limited 3325057
Diomedes Property No 1 Limited 5278996
Chrisiu Norminees Limited 732510
voryhull Limited 2307407
Pardev [Broadway) Limited 2891851
Piltar [Kirkcaldyf Limited 3074412
Pillar Fort Limited 2806956
Pittar Futham No 2 Limeted 266246
Pillar Glasgow 3 Limited 5070548
Bexile Liruted 573889%
T [Par tnership] Limited 03436754
TBL [Ferndown] Lirnited 3854372
TBL (Brem Park} Limited 3852947
Paddington Block A{GP Lid 93720570
Paddington Block B IGP Lid 9320577
Paddington Kiosk [GP) Ltd 93205462
P'C Lease Nomnee t id 320541
PC Partnership Nominee Lid $320533
BL Broadgate Fragment 1 Limned Q400407
BL Broadgate Fragrent 2 Limited 9400541
BL Broadgate Fragment 3 Linted 2400411
BL Broadgate Fragment 4 Limited 9400409
BL Broadgate Fragment 5 Limited 9400413
BL Breadgate Fragment 6 Lunited 9400414
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The following parinerships are exernpt from the requirements to prepare publish and have audited individual accounts by virtue of regulation 7
of The Partnerstips [Accounts] Regulations 2008 The results of these partnerships are consolidated within these Group accounts

Name

Name

Bl Shoreditch Lirnited Par tnership

BlChess No 1 Limited Partnership

Paddington Centrall LP

Paddington Central it LP

Meadowhall Oppertunities Limited Partnership
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Heretord Shopping Centre Lirnited Partnership
Bt Lancaster Limuted Partnership

Paddington Block ALP

Paddington Block B LP

Paddington Kiosk LP




COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH FRS 101 AS AT 31 MARCH 2016

2018 2m5
Note £m fm
Fixed assets
Investrnents and toans 1o subsidiaries D 27,518 27370
Investrments m yoint ventur es D 395 392
Gther investments D 17 264
Interest rate derivative assets E 167 139
Deferred tax assets 1 -
28,098 28165
Current assets
Debtors G 14 4
Cash and short term deposits E 35 18
50 22
Current babilities
Short term borrowings and overdrafls E {74) {102)
Creditors H 177 {i03)
Amounls due to subsidiaries [19,225] (18 881
[19,378] (19088
Net current Labibties (19,3241 119 064)
Total assets less current Liabilibies 8,772 9101
Non-current lsabitities
Debentures and loans E (2,216) (2462
Interest tate del vative Liabilities E (119) (111
Deferred 1ax and other non-cuirent abilittes - {13)
(2,335] (2 586)
Net assets 6,437 & 515
Equsty
Calted up share caprtal | 260 258
Share premium 1,295 1280
Other reserves [120) [74)
Merger reserve 213 213
Retained earmings 4,789 4858
Equity sharehotders funds 6,437 6 515
John Gildersleeve Lucinda Bell
Chairman Chief Financial Officer
Approved by the Board on 16 May 2014
Company number 621920
" The prior year comparatives have been restated on transition to FRS 101 See note A on page 167
British Land | Annuat Report and Accounts 2016 165




Financial statemearts

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Profit and
Share Other Merger loss
Share capital premum reserves raserve account Total
£rn tm Em fm £m £m
Balance at 1 Apnl 2015 {restated) 258 280 194 213 4 858 6,515
Share Issues Y4 15 - - i12) 5
Adwistment for scrip dividend element - - - - 32 §2
Dividend paid - - - - {287} (287}
Fan value of share and share option awards - - - - 8 8
Nei actuarial loss on pension schemes - - - - )| i1
Profit tor the year after taxation - - - - 7 m
Derwative valuation movement - - (28] - - 24)
Balance at 31 March 2014 260 1295 (120) 213 4789 6,437
Balance at 1 April 2014 {restated] 255 1257 f24} 213 3632 5333
Adjustiment for change n capitalised interest accounting policy - - - - 37 7
Share 1ssues 3 23 - - - 26
Adjusiment for scrip dividend element - - - - 49 49
Dividend paid - - - - 277 {2771
Net actuarial loss on pension schemes - - - - 15 (5}
Profit for the year after taxation - - - - 1422 1422
Derivative valuation movement - - {70} - - (70}
Balance at 31 March 2015 [restated) 258 1280 [94] 213 4 B58 6515

The vatue of distributable reserves within the profit and loss account s £3 336m [2014/15 £3 514m)
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{(A) Accounting policies

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except tor the revaluation of
detivatives These financial statements have also been prepared in
accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework [ FRS 101 ] The amendments to FRS 101 [2013/14 Cycle)
issued 1n Juty 2014 and effective immedtately have been applied

In preparing these financial statements the Company applies the
recogniion measurement and disclosure requirements of international
Financiat Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU { Adopted IFRSs |
but rakes amendments where necessary in order to comply with the
Companies Act 2006 and has set out below where advantage of the FRS
101 disclosure exernptions has been laken In these financial statements
the Company has adopted FRS 101 for the first trne

The Company meets the defimiion of a qualifying entity under FRS 300
[Fainancial Reportmg Standard 100 issued by the Financial Reporting
Council Accordingly in the year ended 31 March 2016 the Campany

has changed its accounting framework from UK GAAP to FRS W1 as
issued by the Financral Reporting Council and has in doing so applied
the regur ements of IFRS 1 6 33 and related appendices The prioryear
financial statements wer e restated for material adjustments on adaption
of FRS 101 in the current year as set out below

The Company has taken advantage of the following disclosure
exermptions under FRS 101

[al the requirements of IAS 1 10 prowide a Balance Sheet at the beginning
of the penod in the event of a prior peniod adjustment

[b] the requirements of AS 1 1o provide a Statement of cash flows for
the period

Reconciliation of Profit and Loss

{cl the requirements of IAS 110 prowide a statement of compliance
with IFRS

tdl the requirements of tAS 1 1o disclose informdtion on the
management of capital

tel the requirementis of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 Accounting
Policies Changes in Accounting Esumates and Errors to d:sclose
new IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective

[f] the requirements In IAS 24 Related Par ty Disclosures to
disclose related party transactions entered into between two
or more members of a group provided that any subsidiary which
is @ party to the transaction 1s wholly owned by such a member

(g} the requirements of paragraph 17 of 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures
to disclose key management personnel cempensation

(h) the requirements of IFRS 7 1o disclose financial instruments and

(1] the requirements of paragraphs 91-9% of IFRS 13 Fan Value
Measurement to disclose information of Fair value valuatien
techmgues and inputs

Explanation of transition to FRS 101

This 1s the fr st year that the Company has presented its financial
statements under FRS 101 [Financial Reporting Standard 101 1ssued

by the Financial Reparting Council The followng disclosures are
restatements of batances disclosed under pievious UK GAAP in the prior
year The last financial statements under previous UK GAAP were for the
year ended 31 March 7015 and the date of transition to FRS 101 was
thetefore 1 April 2014

The following is a reconciliatien (lustrating the adjustments posted to
the Profit and Loss and Balance Sheet to restate the prior year
compar atives as a resut! of the transition to FRS 101 fr om UK GAAP

2015 UK Trans.tion 2015

GAAP  adjustments FRS 101

£m £m Em
Administrative expenses [77] - {77
Finance costs (85 - {8a)
Other Profit and Loss 1 584 - 1584
Total impact to Profit and Loss 1,422 - 1,422

Raconciliation of Batance Sheet

Transition 2014 UK Transition 2014 FRS

Transttion M5UK  adustrents 2015 FRS GAAP  adjustments 10

reference £m £m £m Em £m Em
Creditors h) (101} {2) o3l {891 {2 (91)
Share premsum ] 1283 (3l 1280 1260 {31 1257
Retained earnings (A 4 857 1 4 B58 3631 1 3632
Other Balance Sheet 478 2 480 533 2 535
Totalimpact to Balance Sheet 6,517 (2] 6,515 5,335 {2) 5,333
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Financial statements

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET CONTINUED

Explanation of transition to FRS 101 conunued

Transition adjustment {1)

Share schemes are subject to National Insurance on the gam employees
make Under UK GAAP the exercise price was estimated to be the share
price prevailing at the balance sheet date whereas under £RS 101 this
was measured as the estmated share price at the exercise date Upon
canversion this 1esulied in an addhtional €2m creditor and o £2m debit

to retained earrings

Transition adjustment (i)

Under UK GAAP upon redernption of a converiible bond in 2004
unamortised capitalised loan 1ssue costs were debsted to the profit
and loss Under FRS101 these issue costs of £3m are debited to share
premum and credited to retained earnings

Notice of continued adoption of financial reporting standard (FRS) 101 -
reduced disclosure framawork

The Board continues to consider that it is in the best interests of the
Group for The British Land Company PLC to continue to apply FRS 101
Reduced Disclosure Framewaerk for its next financial year commencing
1 April 2016 A shareholder or shareholders holding in aggregaote 5% or
more of the total allatted shares in The Brtish Land Company PLC may
serve objections to the continued use of the disclosure exemptions on
The Briush Land Company PLC inwrding to 1ts regisiered office (York
House 45 Seymour Street London W1H 7L X} not later than 31 July 2015

Going concern
The financial statemenis are prepared on the going concern basts as
explained in the corpordte governance section on page 77

Investments and leans

investments and loans in subsidiaires and joint ventures are stated
al cost less provision for impairmeant

(D) Investments and loans to subsidianes

Significant judgements and sources of estimatien uncertainty

The key source of estwnation uncertainty relates to the Company s
investments in subsidiaries and jaint ventures In estimating the
requrement ior Impairment of these investments management make
assumptions and judgernents on the value of these investments using
inherently subjective underlying asset vatuations suppar ted by
independent valuers

(B) Dividends

Deiaits of dmvdends paid and proposed are included in note 19 of
the consolidated financial statements

(C) Company profit for the financial vear after tax

The Company has not presented its own profit and loss account as
permutted by Section 408 of the Compames Act 2006 The prefit after
tax for the year was £171m (2014/15 profi £1 422m)

The average monthly number af employees of the Company duting
the year was 260 (2014/15 249]

Employee costs include wages and salares of £35m [2014/15 £33m)]
social security costs of £5m [2014/15 £5m] and pension costs of £6m
2014/15 £5m] Details of the Executive Directors remuneration are

disclosed in the Remuneration Report

Audit fees in telation to the parent Company only were £0 2m
(2014/15 £0 2m)

Investments
Shares in Loans to n joint Other
subsidiaries  subsidiaries venlures  investments Total
£m tm £m £m £€m
On 1 Aprid 2015 frestated) 20197 7173 392 264 28,026
Additions - 509 18 4 ki)
Disposals - 1432} [14) 251 (697)
Write back of [provision for] 71 - (1} - 70
As at 31 March 2016 20 268 7250 395 17 27,930

The historical cost of shares in subsidaries ts £20 529m [2014/15 £20 558ml Investments injoint ventures of £395m [2014/15 £392m) ncludes
£216m [2014/15 £205m] of toans to joint ventures by the Company Results of the joint ventures are set out in note 11 of the consotidated financial
staternents The historical cost of other investments is £87m [2014/15 £2562m|
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{E) Net dcbt

2016 2015
£m £m
Secured on the assets of the Company
5 764% First Martgage Oebenture Bonds 2035 N 355
5 0055% First Moi tgage Amortising Debentures 2035 100 98
5 357% First Mor tgage Debeniure Bonds 2028 349 344
6 75% First Morigage Debenture Bonds 2020 62 182
Loan notes 2 2
884 981
Unsecured
5 50% Senior Notes 2027 101 98
& 30% Semior US Dollar Notes 2015 - 104
3 895% Semor US Dollar Notes 2018! 28 28
4 635% Senior US Dollar Notes 2021 1865 158
4 T66% Semor US Oollar Notes 2023 105 99
5 003% Senior US Dollar Notes 2024 &% 64
3 81% Senior Notes 2026 13 m
397% Senior Notes 2026 16 14
Fanr vatue of options to1ssue under 1 5% convertible bond 2017 48 100
Fairvalue of options to 1ssue under 0% convertible band 2020 27 -
Bank leans & overdrafts 634 707
1,406 1583
2,290 2 564
Gross debt
tnterest rate and currency derivative liabilities 1y m
Interast rate and currency derivative assets {167) {139]
Cash and shart term depasits (34 nsl
Net debt 2,206 2518

' Pringipal and interest on these borrewings were fully hedged into Sterting at a floating rate at the time of 1ssue

1 5% Convertible bond 2012 [maturity 2017)
On 10 September 2012 British Land [Jersey) Limited {the 2012 ssuer] a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company 1ssued £400 rmillien 1 5%
guaranteed convertible bonds due 2017 [the 2012 bonds) at par The 2012 lssuer s fully guaranteed by the Company In respect of the 2012 honds

Subject to thewr terms 1the 2012 bonds are convertible iia preference shares of the 2012 [ssuer which are automatically transferred to the Company
in exchange for ordinary shares in the Company or at the Company s election any combnnation of erdinary shares and cash Bondholder s may
exercise their conversien right at any time up to {but excluding} the 20th dealing day before 10 September 2017 [the matunity date]

The inttial exchange price was 693 07 pence per ordinary share The exchange price 1s adjusted based on certain events

From 25 Sepiember 2015 the Company has the option 1o redeerm the 2012 bonds at par if the Company s share price has traded above 130% of

the exchange price for a spechied peciod or at any tme ance 83% by normanal vatue of the 2012 honds have been canverted redeemed or purchased
and cancelled The 2012 bonds will be redeemed at par on 10 September 2017 [the maturiiy date] if they have not atready been converted redeemed
or purchased and cancelled Noredemption of the bonds eccurred in the year

The intercompany loan between the Issuer and the Company artsing from the transfer of the loan proceeds was witially recognised at farr value

net of capitalised 1ssue costs and 1s accounted for using the amorused cost method inaddinon to the intercompany lean the Coampany has entered
into a dervative contract relating to its guarantee of the obligations of the Issuer in respect of the Bonds and the commuiment te provide shares or
a combination of shares and cash on conversion of the Bonds This derivative contract is included within the balance sheet as a liability carmed at
fair value through profit and loss
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET CONTINUED

{E) Net debt conunued

0% Convertible bond 2015 (maturity 2020}
0n 9 June 2015 Briush Land (Whiie] 2015 Limited {the 2015 Issuer] a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company sssued £350 mitlion zero coupon
guaranteed convertible bonds due 2020 ithe 2815 bondsl at par The 2015 Issuer 1s fully guaranieed by the Company in respect of the 2015 bonds

Subject to their terms the 2015 bonds are convertible snto preference shares of the Issuer which are automatically transferred to the Company in
exchange for ot dinary shares in the Company or at the Company s election any combination of erdinary shares and cash From 20 July 2015 up to
and including 29 June 2018 a bendholder may exercise its conversion right if the share price has traded at a level exceeding 130% of the exchange
price for a specified period Thereafter and up to but excluding the 7th dealing day before 9 June 2020 (the maturity date] a bondholder may convert
at any ime

The inihal exchange price was 1103 32 pence per ordinary share The exchange price 1s adjusted based on certain events [such as the Company
paying dsvidends in any year above 14 18 pence per ordinary sharel

From 30 June 2018 the Company has the option to redeem the 2013 bonds at par if the Company s share rice has traded above 130% of the exchange
price for a specified period or at any time once 85% by nomunal value of the 2015 bonds have been converted redeemed or purchased and cancelled
The 2015 bonds will be redeemed at par on ¢ June 2020 [the matur ity date] if they have not alr eady been ronverted redeemed or purchased and
cancelled

In addition to the intercompany loan, the Company has entered into a denivative contracl relating 1o sis guarantee of the obligations of the Issuerin

respect of the bonds and the commitment to provide shares or a combination of shares and cash on conversion of the bonds This dertvative contract
15 included within the balance sheet as a bability carnied at fair value through profit and loss

Matunity analysis of net debt

2016 2013

£m £m

Repayable within one year and on demand 74 102
between one and two years 109 75
two and five years 414 697

five and len years 807 961

ten and fiiteen years 500 747

fifteen and twenty years 85 )

twenty and twenty five years - i

2,216 2462

Gross debt 2,290 2 564
Inter est rale dervatives (48} (28]
Cash and short term deposits 34} (18}
2,208 2518

(F) Pension

The British Land Group of Lompanies Pension Scheme and the Defined Contribution Pension Scheme are the principat pension schemes of Lhe
Company and details are set out in note 9 of the consolidated financial statements
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(G) Debtors

2016 2015
£m £m
Trade and other debtors 9 2
Prepayments and accrued income 5 ?
14 4

{H) Creditors
Restated
il 2015
£m £m
Tiade creditors 3 23
Cor poration tax 18 19
Other taxation and sowal secunity 2% 24
Accruals and deferred income 27 37
77 103

(I) Share capital

Ordmary shares

£m of 25p each

Issued, called and fully pa:d
A1 April 2015 258 1031788 286
ssued 2 8774 037
At 31 March 2016 260 1,040,542,323
Drdinary shares
Em of 25p each

Issued, called and fully paird
A1 Apnl 2014 255 1017 7466 481
issued 3 12021 805
At 31 March 2015 258 1031788 286

() Contingent habilities, capital commitiments and 1elated partv transactions

The Company has contingent babilibes in respect of legal claims guarantees and warranties anising in the ordinary course of business

s not antropated that any matenial Lisbilities will anise from the conbingent liabibities

At 31 March 2016 the Company has £13m of capital comemitrments (201615 £27m]

Related party transactions are the same for the Company as tor the Gioup For details refer to note 23 of the consolbidated financial statements
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Finnacial statements

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET CONTINUED

(K) Related undertakings

Disclosures relating to subsidiary undertakings

The Company s subsidiaries and other related undertakings at 31 March
2016 are listed helow All Group entitres are included in the consohidated
hinancial results

fndirect holdings

Company Name UK/Overseas Tax Resident Status
1 &4 & 7 Triton Limited UK Tax Resident
10 Brock Street Limited UK Tax Resident

10 Por trman Sguare Unit Trust {Jersey!
{Units}

Overseas Tax Resident

Unless otherwise stated the Company holds 160% of the voting tights 10 Tritan Street Limited UK Tax Restdent
and benehicial inleresis in the shares of the following subsidianes 17-19 Bedford Street bimited UK Tax Resident
partnerships associated joni ventures and joint arrangements 18-20 Craven Hill Gardens Lirmited UK Tax Resident
The subsidiaries and reiated under takings are registered in the United 2G T ock Street Limited UK Tax Ressdent
Krgiam unless otedatarse and he st coplolof e of 3 oo et i
P yshares lnless 338 Euston Road Limited UK Tax Resident

otherwise stated

35 Basinghall Street First Limited UK Tax Resident
The Company holds the major ity of its assets in UK companies although 33 Basinghail Street Second Limited UK Tax Resident
sorne are held in overseas companies In recent years we have reduced 330 Euston Road Limited UK Tax Resident
the number of overseas companies in the Group 392 Victoria Street Lirrnted UK Tax Resident

8 10 Throgmorton Avenue Limied UK Tex Resident
Direct holdings Adamant Investment Corporation Limited UK Tax Resmdent
Company Narme UK/Overseas Tax Resident Stalus ~ Adshlta Limited UK Tax Resident
B L CT Holdngs Limited [Jerseyl UK Tax Resident  Aldgaie Place [GP) Limited [50% inter est] UK Tax Resident
BL Bluebutton 2014 Lirmited UK Tax Resident  Apai tpower Linuted UK Tax Resident
BL Davidson Lirmited UK Tax Resident  Ashband Limuted UK Tax Resident
BL Exempt Insurance Services Limited UK Tax Resident  Austral House Unit Trust [Jerseyl [Units) Overseas Tax Resident
BL Intermediate Helding Company Limited UK Tax Resident  [39 94% interest]
BLSSP [Funding Limited UK Tax Resident  Basinghall Street Unit Trust Uersey] [Units) Overseas Tax Resident
Bluebuttan Property Management UK UK Tax Resident (35 94% nterest]
Limited [50% ntes est) BLCT 12697 Limited (Jersey] UK Tax Resident
Boldswitch [No 1] Lirnited UK Tax Resident B L CT 121500) Limited Llersey] UK Tax Resident
Boldswitch Limied UK Tax Resident B L CT [29900] Limuted {Jer sey) UK Tax Resident
Briush Land ersey] Limited {Jer seyl UK Tax Resident B LU [11193] Larnuted [Jersey] UK lax Resident
IFounder Shares] Balsema Limited UK Tax Resident
Briush Land City UK Tax Resident  Barnriass Linited UK Tax Resident
Briush Land City 2005 Lirited UK Tax Resident  Barndrill Limited UK Tax Resident
Brtrsh Land Cry Offices Limded UK Tax Resident  Bayeas: Property Co Lirmited UK Tax Resident
British Land Financing Limited UK Tax Resident  Bexile Limited UK Tax Restdent
British Land Investments Netherlands Overseas Tax Resident  BF Propco [No 11 Limited UK Tax Resident
Holding BV [Netherlands) 8F Propco [No 101 Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land Properties Limuted UK Tax Resident  gr Propco [No 12} Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land Real Estate Limited UK Tax Resident  Jf Propca No 13) Limited UK Tax Resident
Britsh Land Securities Lirnited UK Tax Resident  gr Propco (Na 19} Limited UK Tax Resident
Britsh Land Securiusation 1999 UK Tax Resident  pp Propce {No 3] Lunited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate {Funding) PLC UK Tax Resident B propcg {No 4 | Limited UK Tax Resident
Bioadgate Estates Insurance Mediation UK Tax Resident e Propca (No 5| Limited UK Tax Resident
Services Limited

BF Properties [No4 | Limited LK Tax Resident
Hyfleet Limited UK Tax Resicdent

BF Properties [No 5) Limited UK Tax Resident
Kingsmere Productions Lumsted UK Tax Resident

Bu stall Co-Ownership Trust [Member UK Tax Resident
Linestair Limited UK Tax Restdent [ 1arast) (41 25% interest]
London and Henley Holdings Lemited UK Tax Resident 1) & 'N Acquusition Limited UK Tax Resident
ﬂﬁ?:;vhali Pensions Scheme Trustee UK Tax Resident 5y [Maidenhead] Company Limited UK Tax Resident
MSC Property Intermediate Hotdings UK Tax Resrdent BL (5P) Cannon Streat Limited UK Tax Resdent
Lirmted [50% interest] BL [SP] kavestment (1] Limited UK Tax Resident
Plantation House Limited UK Tox Resideni  BLISP) Investment {2) Linited UK Tax Resident
Priory Park Merton Linited UK Tax Ressdern BL [SPHnvestment {3] Limited UK Tax Resident
Regis Property Hotdings Limited UK Tox Resident  BLISP] Investment [4] Limited UK Tax Resident
The British Land Corpot ation Limited UK Tax Resdent B Baker Co 2012 Limited | Jersey] Overseas 1ax Resident
Vitalcreale UK Tax Residemt  BL Bradford Forster Limted UK Tax Resident
Real Asset Insurance Limited (Guernseyl Over seas Tax Resident  BL Broadgate Fragment 1 Limited UK Tax Resident

BL Broadgate Fragment 2 Limited UK Tax Resident
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Company Name UK/Overseas Tax Resident Status~ Company Name UK/Overseas Tax Resident Status
BL Broadgate Fragment 3 Limited UK Tax Resident  BL Meadowhall No 4 Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Broadgate Fragment 4 Limited UK Tax Resident  BL Office iNon-City] Holding Company UK Tax Resident
BL Broadgate Fragment 5 Limited UK TaxResident  LIMited
BL Broadgate Fragment 6 Limited UK Tax Regident  BL Office Holding Company Limied UK Tax Resident
BL Chess Limited UK Tax Residant  BL Osnaburgh 5t Residentsal Lid UK Tax Resident
BL Chess No 1 Limited Partnership UK Tax Resident  BL Piccadilly Residential Lirmited UK Tax Resident
{Partnership Interest) BL Piccadilly Residenuat Management Co UK Tax Resident
BL City Difices Halding Company Limited UK Tax Resdent  Limited

BL Piccadilly Residential Retail Limited UK Tax Resident

BL Clifton Moor Limited

UK Tax Ressdent

BL Cwmbran Limted

UK Tax Resident

BL Department Stores Holding Company
Limited

UK Tax Resident

BL Doncaster Wheatley Limited

UK Tax Resident

BL Eden Walk J2012 Lirvted [Jersey]

Overseas Tax Resident

Bi ESOP Limited {isle of Man}

QOverseas Tax Resident

BL European Fund Management LLLP
IMember Interest]

UK Tax Resident

BL European Holdings Limited

UK Tax Resident

BL Fixed Uplift Fund Limited Par tnership
[Jerseyl

Overseas Tax Resident

BL Fixed Uplift Fund Nominee No 1 Limited
[Jerseyl

Overseas Tax Resident

BL Fixed Uplift Fund Narminee No 2 Limitad

Overseas Tax Resident

BL Residential Gener al Partrer Limited
[50% nterest)

UK Tax Resident

BL Residental No 1 Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Residential No 2 Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Residual Holding Company Limited UK Tax Resident
81 Retad Holding Company Limited UK Tax Resident
81 Retal Warehousing Holding Company UK Tax Resident
Limted

BL Sansbury Superstores Linuted [50% UK Tax Resident
nterest)

BL Shoreditch General Partner Limited UK Tax Resident
BL. Shorechtch Limited Partnership UK Tax Resident

[Partnership Interest)

Bt Shoreditch No 1 Limited

UK Tax Resident

[Jerseyl BL Shoreditch No 2 Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Fund Limited [Jer seyl Overseas Tax Resident  BYL Superstores Holding Company Lirmited UK Tax Restdent
BL Goodman {General Par iner} Limited UK Tax Restdent  BL Triton Building Restdential Limited UK Tax Resident

[50% interest)

BL Goodman {LP) Limited

UK Tax Resident

BE Unnt Trust [ Jersey)

Qverseas Tax Resident

BL Unitholder No 1 {J] Limited {Jerseyl

Qverseas Tax Restdent

BL GP Chess No 1 Limited UK TaxResident gy (nihotder No 2 [J) Linited Lerseyl Over seas Tax Restdent
gtﬁ:i{:ﬁem Lirmted [Lirtuted by UK Tax Resident  B1 Unwersal Limited UK Tax Resident

BL Wardrobe Court Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
gt :g :322:}] LLJ:-::(Z(::I Ei 12: E::g::: BL West [Watling House] Limited UK Tax Resident

Blackglen Limied UK Tax Resident
BL HC Dollview Linuted UK Tax Resident

Blackwall [1) UK Tax Resident
BL HC Hampshere PH LLP (Member UK Tax Resident
Interesi) Blaxmill [Thirty | Limied UK Tax Resident
Bt HC Health And Fitness Haldings Limited UK Tax Resident  Blaxmit Twenty-nine] Lymvited UK Tax Resident
BL HC invic Lersure Limited UK Tax Resident  BLDIA] Limited UK Tax Resident
BE. HC PH CRG LLP {Member Interest} UK Tax Resident  BLO{Ebury Gatel Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC PH LLP iMember interest) UK lax Resident  BLD [SJ} Investments Limsted UK Tax Resident
BLHC PH No 1 LLP {Member Interest) UK Tax Resigent BLD IS Limited UK Tax Resigent
BL HC PH No 2 LLP [Member hterest] UK Tax Resigens  BLD Land Lumted UK Tax Resident
BL HC PH No 3 LLP (Member Interest) UK Tax Resident  BLD Properties Lumited UK Tax Resident
BL HC Property Holdings Lirmited UK Tax Residem  BLD Property Holdings Linuted UK Tax Resident
BL Health Clubs PH Mo 1 Limuted UK Tax Resident  BLT Holdings 2610 Ltd {50% interest UK Tax Resident
BL Health Clubs PH No 2 Limited UK Tax Residen!  Bi-U Estates Limiied UK Tax Resident
BL High Street and Shopping Centres UK Tax Resigent  BtY Property Management Limited UK Tox Resident
Holding Company Limited BLU Securittes Lirmted UK Tax Resident
BL Lancaster Limited Parinership UK Tax Resident  British Land {Joint Ventures] Limited UK Tax Resident
[Parinership Interest] Briush Land {whitel 2015 Lirnited (Jerseyl UK Tax Resident
BL Leadenhatl [Jersey) Lid [ersey) Qverseas Tax Resident  [Founder Shares)
BL Leadenhall CLCo Limited [Jerseyl Overseas Tax Resident  Briish Land Acquisttions Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Leadenhalt Holding Co ersey] Ltd Overseas Tax Resident  Brish Land Aqua Parnershup (2 Limited UK Tax Resident
Hersey) Bittisih Land Aqua Par tnership Lisnited UK Tax Resident
Bl Leisure and Industrial Holding Company UKTax Resident  Briush Land Company Secretarial Limited UK Tax Resident
Limited Briush Land Construction Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Maytorr Offkces Lumuted UK Tox Resident British Land Department Stores Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Meadowhall Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident 5 ieh Land Developrrents Lirmited UK Tax Resident
BL Meadowhall Lirmited UK Tax Resident

Briish Land Eating BY [Netherlands)

Overseas lax Resident
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Company Name

UK/Overseas Tax Resident Status

Company Name

UK/Overseas Tax Resident Status

Briush Land European Holding BV
[Nether tands)

Overseas Tax Resident

City of London Office Unit Trust [Jersey)
[Uruts] (35 94% interest]

Overseas Tax Resident

Britsh Land Fund Management Limited UK Tax Resident  Comgenic Limited UK Tax Resident
Briish Land Hercules Limited UK Tax Ressdent  Cornish Residential Properties Trading UK Tax Resident
Briush Land Hercules No 1 Limited UK Tax Resideny  Limited

British Land Hercules No 3 Limnied UK Tax Reaigent  ormish Residential Property Investrents UK Tax Resident
British Land Hercules No 4 Limited UK Tax Resident Limited

Briosh Land HIF Limiced UK Tax Residont Crescent Weslt Properlies UK Tax Resident
Briush Land In Town Retail Limsted UK Tax Resident Deepdale Co-Ownership Trust [Member UK Tax Resident

£ X NESWEN  nterest) [37 46% mterest)

Briush Land Industral Limited UK Tax Resident e py nvestment Holdings Liruted UK Tax Resident
Elrr:fl:?:dLand Investiment Managerment UKTax Resident o1 mted UK Tax Restdent
British Land Investments N V [Netherlands) UK Tax Reswdent glomeges Eroper:y :o 12 ll..lmllec; EE PX Eesngen:
British Land tnvestments Netherlands BV Overseas fax Resident  ——oeco T [OPETY 0 mite X TEsICen
{Netherlands) Dromedes Properly No 3 Limiteg UK Tax Resident
British Land Letsure Lirited UK Tax Resident  Dromedes Property No 4 Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land Offices {Non-Cityl Lirited UK Tax Resident  Diomedes Property No 5 Limited UK Tax Resident
Briush Land Offices iNon-Cityl No 2 Limited UK Tax Reaident  Jtomedes Properiy No 6 L imited UK Tax Resident
Briush Land Offices Limited UK Tax Resident  Dtemedes Property No 7 Limyted UK Tax Resident
Briish Land Offices No 1 Limited UK Tax Resident  Dtomedes Praperty No 8 Limied UK Tax Resident
British Land Property Advisers Limited UK Tax Resident  Drake Circus GP L L C {United States) Overseas Tax Resident
Bruish Land Property Management Limited UK Tax Resident  Drake Circus Leisure Limited UK Tax Resident
Briush Land Regeneration Limited UK Tax Resident  Drake Circus Limited Partnes ship [Umited Overseas Tax Resident

Bi1tish Land Retail Warehouses Limited

UK Tax Resident

British Land Superstores fNon Secunused]
Number 2 Limited

UK Tax Resident

Broadgate [PHC 8] Linited

UK Tax Resident

B:oadgale Adjoining Properties Limited

UK Tax Resident

Broadgate Business Centre Limited

UK Tax Resident

Broadgate City Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate Court Investments Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate Estates Linuted UK Tax Resident
Broadgate Estates People Management UK Tax Resident
Lirnited

Broadgate Estates Retal Management UK Tax Resident
Lirmited

Broadgate Exchange Square UK Tax Resident
Broadgate Investment Holdings Lirmited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate REIT Limited {Jersey] (50% UK Tax Resident
irterest]

Broadgate Sguare Limited UK Tax Resident

Broughtan Unit I ust [Jersey] [Units]
{75 31% interest)

QOverseas Tax Resident

Broughton Retail Park Limuted {Jerseyl
{75 31% interesl)

UK Tox Resident

Brunswick Park Limited UK Tax Resident
BVP Developrnents Limited UK Tax Resident
Casegood Enterprises UK Tax Resrdent
Caseplane Limited UK Tax Resident
Cavendish Geared Hl Limited UK Tax Resident
Cavendish Geared Limiied UK Tax Restdent
Caymall Lerruted UK Tax Resident
Chantway Limited UK Tax Resident
Cheshine Propet tes Limited UK Tax Resident
Chrisilu Nominees Limited U¥ Tax Resident
Clarges Estate Property Management Co UK Tax Resident
Limited

Cldton Moor Lumited UK Tax Resident

States] {Pat tnei ship interest)

Drake Circus Unit Trust (Jersey} [Unitst

Overseas Tax Resident

Drake Property Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
Drake Property Nominee [No 1§ Limied UK Tax Resident
Drake Property Nominee {No 2] Linmted UK Tax Resident
Eden Walk Shopping Centre General UK Tax Resident

Partner Lirnited [50% interest]

Eden Walk Shopping Centre Urit Trust
fJer sey] [Umits] [50% interest]

Overseas Tax Resident

Edtnburgh Fort tnit Trust [Jersey] {Uruts)
{75 31% interest)

Overseas Tax Resident

Etementwir tue Limited UK Tax Resident
Euston Tower Limied UK Tax Resident
Exchange House Holdings Liumuted UK Tax Resident
Finsbury Avenue Estates Lumited UK Tax Resident
Four Broadgate Limited UK Tax Resident
FRP Group Limited UK Tax Resident
Gararnead Properties Limited UK Tax Resident
Gardenray Limited LK Tax Ressdent
Gibratiar General Pariner Limited [37 66% UK Tax Resident
interest)

Gibi attar Norminees Lirnited (37 66% UK Tax Resident
interest]

Giltbrook Retail Park Nottingham Limited UK Tax Resident
Glenway Limited UK Tax Resident
Hempel Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
Hempel Hotels Limited UK Tax Resident
Hercules Property Limited Par tnership UK Tax Resident
[Partnership Interest] {40 68% interest]

Hercules Property UK Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
Her cules Property UK Linuted UK Tax Resident

Hercules Unit Trust {Jersey] {Units] [75 31%

Overseas Tax Resident
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Hereford Shopping Centre GP Limited UK Tax Resident
Hereford Shopping Centre Limited UK Tax Resident

Partnership {Partnership Interesi




Company Name

UK/Overseas Tax Resident Status

Hereford Shopping Centre bmt Trust
(Jer sey] [Units]

Overseas Tax Resident

Hilden Properties Limited

UK Tax Resident

Horndrift Limited

U¥ Tax Resident

HUT nvesimeants 2 Limited Elerseyl

QOverseas Tax Resident

HUT Investments Limited [tersey) 175 31%
imerest)

Overseas Tax Resident

Industrial Real Estate Limited

UK Tax Resident

Insistmetal 2 Limited

UK Tax Resident

Company Name UK/Overseas Tax Resdent Status
One Sheldon Square Limited [Jersey) Dverseas Tax Resident
Orbial Shapping Park Swindon Limited UK Tax Resideni
Osnaburgh Street Limited tJK Tax Resident
Paddington Block A {6P) Lid UK Tax Resideni
Paddington Block A LP [Partner ship Interest] UK Tax Resident
Paddington Block B [GP] Ltd UK Tax Resident
Paddington Block 8 LP [Parinership Interest) UK Tax Resident
Paddington Centi al | {5P] Limtted UK Tax Resident

vorydell Linnsted

UK Tax Resident

ivorydetl Subsidiary Limited

U Tax Resident

Paddington Central | LP [Partnership
Interest)

tJK Tax Resident

ivoryhill Limited

UK Tax Resident

Paddington Central | Norminee Limited

UK Tax Resident

Paddington Central | Unit Trust {Jerseyl

Overseas Tax Resident

Jetbloom Lirmited UK Tax Resident  [Units]
L & H Devetopments Limited UK Tax Resident  Paddingtan Cent sl It [GPI L imited UK Tax Resident
Lancaster General Partner Linuted UK Tax Resident  Paddington Central FLP UK Tax Resident

Lancaster Unit Trust [Jerseyl [Unns)

QOverseas Tax Resident

| eadenhatl Holding Co [Jes sey) i.td [Jersey]
[50% nterest]

UK Tax Resident

Paddington Central IF Unit Trust [Jersey)
[Unuts|

Overseas Tax Resident

Lwerpool One Managernent Company

UK Tax Resident

Paddingtan Central IV Unit Trust [Jerseyt
(Units]

Overseas Tax Resident

Limsted [50% interest} Paddingion Kiosk IGP) Ltd UK Tax Resident
Liverpool One Manzgement Services Limted UK Tax Resident  Paddington Kiosk LP UK Tax Restdent
Londan and Henley [UK] Limnited UK Tax Resident  Paddingion Central Management Company UK Tax Resident
London and Henley Limited UK Tax Resident ~ Limited [87 50% interes)

Lonebridge UK Limited UK Tax Resident  Pardev [Broadway] Limited UK Tax Resident
Longford Street Residential Lirnted UK Tax Resident  Perdev [Luton] Linited UK Tax Resident
Ludgate Investment Hotdings Limited UK Tax Resident  Parinv Northern Limited UK Tax Resdent
Ludgate West Limited UK Tax Resident  Parwick Holdings Limited UK Tax Restdent
Manbrig Praperties UK Tax Resident  Parwick Investments Limited UK Tax Resident
Marble A1 ch House Unit Trust [Jersey) Overseas Tax Resident  Parwick Properties Limited ersey) UK Tax Restdent
{Unitsl PC Batiic Wharf Limited UK Tax Resident
Maylar Properties UK Tax Restdent  PC Canal Limited UK Tax Restdent
Mayflower Retall Park Bassldon Limuted UK Tax Resident  PC Lease Nominee Lid UK Tax Resident
Meadowbank Retail Park Edinburgh | imited UK Tax Resident  PC Partnership Nominee Litd UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Centre 1999] Limited UK Tax Resident  PCourt Unit Trust {Jerseyl [Urts} Over seas Tax Resident
Meadowhall Centre Limited UK Tax Resident  Pillar [Beckton) Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Centre Pension Scheme UK Tax Resident  Pillar {Birstall] Lrnuted UK Tax Resident
Trustees Limited Pillar {Cricktewoad} Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhali Estates [UK] Limited UK Tax Resident  py(1ar [Dartford) Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Group IMLP) Limsted UK Tax Resident  pyjiar (Futham) Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Haldings Limited UK Tax Resident  pyiar [Kirkcaldy) Limted UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Opportunities GP Lirnited UK Tax Resident  p(|ar Auchintea Lirnited LiK Tax Resident
Hersey) Pilar Broadway Limited UK Tax Resdent
Meadowhall Opportunities Lirited UK Tax Resident

Partnership |Jersey) [Parinership interest} Pilar Cheetham Hill Limaed UK Tax Resident
Meadowhalt Gpporunities Nominee 1 UK Tax Resident  Fittar City Pic UK Tax Resident
Limited Pillar Dartiord No 1 Linuted UK Tax Resident
Meadowhatt Oppoariunities Nomenee 2 UK Tax Resident  Pilar Deaton Limited UK Tax Resident
Limited Pillar Developments Limitad UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Training Limited UK Tax Resident  Pifar Estates Limited UK Tax Resident
Mercart UK Tax Resident  Pillar Estates No 2 Limited UK Tax Resident
Mercart Holdings Lirited UK Tax Resident  Pitlar Europe Managerment Limited UK Tax Resident
Minhill [nvesiments Limited UK Tax Resident  pyjlar Farnborough Limited UK Tax Resident
Moorage [Property Developments) Limited UK Tax Resident  pitiar Fort Lirnited UK Tax Resident
Moorfields Nommee 1 Limited UK Tax Resident  Pyltar Futham No 2 Limited UK Tax Restdent
Maorfields Norninee 2 Limited UK Tax Resident  pilfar Gallions Reach Limited UK Tax Resident
Nugent Shopping Park bimiied UK Tax Resident  Pyfiar Glasgow | Limiied UK Tax Resident
iNumber 80 Cheapside Limied UK Tax Resident  piilar Glasgow ? Limised UK Tax Resident
One Hundr ed Ludgate Hill UK Tax Resident
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Company Name UK/Overseas Tax Resident Status ~ Company Name UK/Qverseas Tax Resident Status
Pillar Glasgow 3 Linited UK Tax Resident  TBL [Lisnagebvin] Linited UK Tax Resident
Pitlar Hercules Na 2 Limited UK Tax Resident  TBL IMaudstone] Limited UK Tax Resident
Pillar Kinnaird Lirviied UK Tax Resident  TBL {Milton Keynes} Linuted UK Tax Resident
Piltar Nugent Limited UKTax Resident  TBL {Peterborough] Limited UK Tax Resident
Pillar Projects Limuted UKTaxResident  TBL Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
Pillar Proper ty Group Limited UK Tax Resident  TBL Properties Limited UK Tax Resident
Piller Retait Eurepark Fund [Pref} Overseas Tax Resident  Teesstde Leisure Park Limited [51% interest) UK Tax Resident
{Luxembourg! [Member Interest) (65 30% The Aldgate Place Limited Partnership UK Tax Resident
interest] {Partnership interest} {50% mterest)

Prllar Retail Par ks Limited UK TaxResident  The Brinsh Land Residential Limited UK Tax Restdent
Pillar Speke Lumted UK Tax Resident  Partnership [Partnership Interest) (50%

PillarCarsse Management Limited 150% UK Tax Residen|  'nterest)

interest) The Dartford Partnership [Member Interest] UK Tax Resident

Pilarman Limited

UK Tax Resident

PillarStore Liamnited

UK Tax Resident

{50% tnterest)

The Gibraltar Limited Partnership {37 66%
interesil

UK Tax Resident

PtliarStore No 3 Limited UK Tax Resident

The Liverpool Exchange Company Lirmited UK Tax Resigent
Power Court GP Limted UK Tax Resident

The Mary Street Estate Limited UK Tax Resident
Power Court Luton Limited Partnership UK Tax Resident

The Meadowhall Education Centre [Limited UK Tax Resident
|Par tne1 ship Interest] v 6 rae] 150% mt }
Power Court Nomnee Limited UK Tax Resident  —J-—waralice pinterest

The Relaill and Warehouse Company Limited UK Tax Resident
Power Court Nominees No 2 Limited UK Tax Resident TheTBL P & Partership (Partner sh K Tax Resident
PREF Management Company SA [Spainl Dverseas Tax Resident lm:rest] roperly Farinersiip id P axreside
Project Sunrise Investments Limited UK Yax Resident 1, Whileley Co-Owner ship Trust [Member UK Tax Resident
Project Sunrise Limited UK Tax Resident  Inter est] (50% interest]
Project Suniise Proper ties timited UK Tax Resident  TPP tnvestments Limited UK Tax Resident
Reboline Limiied UK Tax Resident  Tweed Piemier 1 Limited UK Tax Resident
Reqent s Place Holding Campany Limited UK Tax Resident  Tweed Premier 2 Limited UK Tax Resident
Regents Place Management Campany UK Tax Resident  Tweed Premuer 4 Limited UK Tax Restdent
Limited Union Property Corporauon Limited UK Tax Resident
Renash UK TaxResident )4, Property iloldings [London) Linited UK Tax Resident
Rigphorte Limited UKTax Resident {194 Kmgdom Property Company Limuted UK Tax Resident
Ritesol UK Tax Resident  jrhan Estates Management Limited UK Tax Resident
Rohawk Properties Limited UK Tax Resident  y;lantne Co-ownership Trust [Member UK Tax Resident
Salmax Proper ties UK Tax Resident  mterest] 137 66% nterest)
Seymour Street Homes Limiled UK Tax Resident  Vatenine Uit Trust [Jersey] {Unisi {75 31% Overseas Tax Resident
Shopping Centres Lumited UK Tax Resident  Interest}
Six Broadgate Limited UK Tax Resident  Vicinitee Limited UK Tax Resident
Southgate General Partner Limited [50% UK Tax Resident  ¥intners Place Limited UK Tax Resident
merest) War drobe Court Limited UK Tax Resident
Southgate Property Unit Trust Llersey) Over seas Tax Resident Wardrabe Hotdings Limited UK Tax Resident
(Units] [50% interest] Wardrobe Place Limited UK Tax Resident
Speke Ulml Trust [Jersey} {Umitsh 65 9% Overseas Tax Resident e City of London Properties Limied UK Tax Resident
nterest
. . Wates City Point Limited UK Tax Resident
Sprint 1118 Limited UK Tax Resident

Wates City Property Management Limited UK Tax Resident
St James Parade [43) Limited UK Tax Resident

Waesthourne Terrace Partnership UK Tax Resident
St James Retail Park Northampton Limited UK Tax Resident  [parine ship Interest}
St Stephens Shopping Centre Linited UK Tax Resident  wagtgate Retail Park Wakefield Limited UK Tax Resident
Stocklon Retad Park Limited UK Tax Resident Whiteley Shopping Centre Unit Trust Overseas Tax Resident
Surrey Quays Limited UK Tax Resident  [Jerseyl Unus]
Sydale UK Tax Resident WK {Austral Housel First Limited UK Tax Resident
T [Partnershipl Lirnited UK Tax Resident WK lAustral House] Second Limited UK Tax Resident
Tallress Limitect UK Tax Resident WK Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL [Brent Park] Limited UK Tax Reswdent  York House W1 Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL [Bromley] Lemited UK Tax Resident
TBL [Bursledon] Lirrsted UK Tax Resident
TBL [Buryl Lirited UK Tax Restdent
TBL [Ferndowni Linited UK Tax Resident
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SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES
UNAUDITED

Table A Sumimary mcome statement and balance sheet

Summary income statement based on proportional consolidation for the year ended 31 March 2016
The foliowing pro forma informatron 1s unaudited and does not form part of the consobidated primary statements or ihe notes thereto It presents the
results of the Group with its share of the results of jmnt ventures and funds inciuded on a line-by-tine basis and excluding non-controtling interests

Year ended 31 March 2014 Year ended 31 March 2615
Less Less

Joint ventures non-controliing Proportionally Jontventures non-controling  Proportionally

Group and funds interests  consclidated Group and funds interests  consobidated

£m £m fm Em Em £m Em £m

Gross rental income 451 23 (28] 654 399 250 (31} 418
Property operating expenses (28] (%) 1 [34) [24) f1al i 133t
Net rentalincome 425 222 (27} 620 375 248 (300 585
Administr ative expenses (93] s) 4 {94 {85} (4] 1 {881
Net fees and other income 16 - 1 17 15 - 2 17
Ungeared Income Return 348 217 [22] 543 365 234 (27 514
Net inancing costs 110é) 82 8 (180 1105 19/} H (201}
Underiying Profit 242 135 [14) 363 200 129 116 313
Underlying taxation 2 - - 2 - - - -
Underiying Proft after taxatson 244 135 141 345 200 129 {16) 313
Valuation movement 841 1,473
Other capital and taxation [net)! 48 50
Capital and other 909 1523
Total return 1,274 1836

' includes other comprehensive income movement in dilution of share optians and the movement in items exctuded far EPRA NAV
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Finaneial statements

SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES CONTINUED
UNAUDITED

Table A (continued)

Summary batance sheet based on proportional consolidation as at 31 March 2016

The fotiowing pro forma information 1s unaudited and does not form part of the consalidated primary statements or the notes thereto it presents
the composition of the EPRA net assets of the Group with 1ts share of the net assets of the joint venture and fund assets and liabilities included
on a line-by-tline basis and excluding non-centrotiing interests and assurning full dilutian

Mark-1o-
market on
effective cash
Share of Less flow hedges Valuation  EPRAMNet EPRANet
joint non- and related Convertible  surplus on assets assels
ventures  contralling Share  Deferred debt Head bond trading  31March 31 March
Group & funds Interests  gphions tax  adustments leases adjustmeni  properties 2016 2005
£m Em £m tm tm £m £m Em £m £m tm
Retarl properties 5 662 2109 {400] - - - {30} - - 7,341 7314
Office proper ties 4118 2 835 - - - - (18] - 87 7,024 4,050
Canada Water
properiies 283 - - - - - t6] - 6 283 273
Other properties - - - - - - - - - - 40
Total properties 10063 4944 (400 - - - [52] - 93 14,648 13 677
Investments in point
ventures and funds 3353 (3353) - - - - - - - - -
Otherinvestments 142 14} - - - - - - - 138 256
Other net thabilitses)
assels (322 {121) 3 34 5 - 52 - - {347) (380}
Net debt 3617 i1 466] 120 - - 198 - - - 14,745) 14,918
Dilutton due to
convet tible bond - - - - - - - 400 - 400 400
Net assets 2419 - 1277) 36 5 198 - 400 93 10,074 9033
EPRA MNAV per share
[note 2) 919p B29p
EPRA Net Assets Movement
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2014 31 March 2015
Pence per Pence per
£m share £m share
QOpening EPRA NAV 9.035 82¢% 7027 688
Income return 355 34 313 3
Caprtal return 909 77 1523 145
Dividend paid (235] (21) [228) {27)
Diletion due 10 2012 convertible bond - - 400 (8]
Closing EPRA NAV 10,074 19 92035 829
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Table B EPRA Performance measures

EPRA Performance measures summary table

2016 M5
Pence per Pence per
£m share £m share
EPRAEarmngs - basic 345 3546 313 308
- diluted n a1 319 295
EPRA Net imitial Yietd 4 1% 4 3%
EPRA 1opped-up Nei limtial Yeeld 4 5% 4 8%
EPRA Vacancy Rate 20% 2 9%
2014 2015
Net assat Net asset
value per value par
Net assets share pence Net assets share pance
EPRA NAV 10,074 919 9035 829
EPRA NNNAV 9,640 880 8359 767
Calcutation and reconeidiation of EPRA/IFRS earnings and EPRA/IFRS earnings per share
2015 205
£m Em
Profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company 1,345 1710
Exclude ’
Group - current taxation 12) 1
Group - deferred taxation (311 23
Jomntventures and funds - current taxation 1 2
Jont ventures and iunds - deferr ed taxation - (4}
Group - valuation moverment (616} {884)
Group - profit on disposal of investment properues and investments [35) {20
Group - profil on disposal of trading praperties {10) {6l
Jontventures and funds - net vatuation movement fincluding resuli on disposals| 1263) (595
Changes i fair value of financial Instruments and associated close-out costs (31 47
Non-conirolling interesis in respect of the above 5 39
Underlying Profit 353 313
Group - underlying current taxation 2 -
EPRA earnings - basic 365 313
Dilutive effect of 2012 cenvertible bond ) 6
EPRA earnings - diluted 3N 319
Profit attributable to the sharehelders of the Company 1,345 1710
Dilutive effect of 2012 converuble bond 6 -
IFRS earnings - diluted 1,351 1710
M6 2015
Number Number
msthion melion
Weighted average number of shares 1,036 1027
Adjustment for Treasury shares 3] m
IFRS/EPRA Weighted average number of shares [basic) 1,025 1014
Ditutive effect of share options 2 2
Dhtunve effect of ESOP shares 4 4
Ditutive effect of 2012 convertible band 58 -
IFRS Weighted average number of shares [diluted) 1.089 1,022
Ditutive eifect of 2012 convertible bond - 58
EPRA Weighted average number of shares [diluted) 1,087 1080
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SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES CONTINUED
UNAUDITED

Table B continued

Net assets per share
2014 2015
Pence Pence
€m  pershare fm  pershare
Balance sheet net assets 9,619 B 5485
Deferred tax arising on revaluation movements 5 13
Mark-to-market on effective cash ilow hedges and related debl adjustments 198 257
Dilution effect of share options 34 37
Surplus on trading properties 93 96
Convertible bond adjustment 400 4060
Less non-conirotling interests [277) (333]
EPRA NAV 10,074 1% 2035 829
Deferred tax arising on revaluatron movements {24} {13}
Mark-1o-market on effeclive cash low hedges and related debt adjusimenis {153} {257
Mark-to-market on debt (257] [408]
EPRA NNNAY 9,640 880 8357 767

EPRA NNNAV 1s the EPRA NAV adjusted to reflect the lar value of the debt and derivatives and to include the deferred taxation en revaluations

and derivatives

2014 15

Number Number

mullion milion

Nurnber of shares at year end 1,040 1031
Adjustment for treasury shares [41)] i
IFRS/EPRA number of shares [basic) 1,029 1020
Ditutive effect of share options 2 4
Dilutive effect of ESOP shares ? 8
Dilutive effect of 2012 convertible bond 58 -
IFRS number of shares [diluted] 1,098 1 032
Dilutive effect of 2012 convertible bond - 58
EPRA number of shares {diluted] 1,094 1090
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Table B continued

EPRA Net Initial Yietd and topped-up Netlnitial Yield

2016 2015
£m £m

Investrment property - wholly-owned 9,787 9048
Investment property — share of joint ventures and funds 4,881 4 5469
Less developments residential and land 18%4)  [1148)
Completed property portfotto 13,754 12 489
Allowance for estimated purchasers costs 985 784
Gross up completed property portfolio vatuation 14,739 13273
Annuatised cash passing rental ncome 607 573
Property culgoings (8 18l
Annualised netrents 599 567
Rent expr ation of rent-free periods and fixed uplifis' 43 b4
Topped-up netannuakised rent 662 431
EPRA Net initial Yietd 41% 4 3%
EPRA topped-up Net lnitial Yield 4 5% 4 8%
including fixed/mimimum uplifls receved 1n beu of rental growth 24 26
Total topped-up netrents 684 457
Overall ‘topped-up Netinitial Yield 4 7% 4 9%
Topped-up net annuatised rent 462 431
ERVvacant space 14 20
Reversions 42 18
Total ERY 718 669
Net Reversionary Yield 4 9% 5 0%

* Theweighted average period over which rent-free periods expire s 1 year (201415 1 year]
The above is stated tor the UK portfolio only

EPRA Ne! Initial Yield [NIY) basis of calculation

EPRA NIY s calculated as the annuatised net rent lon a cash flow basis] divided by the gross value of the completed property portfclio The valuation
of our campleted property portfolio 1s determined by our external valuers as at 31 March 2016 plus an altowance ior estmated purchaser s costs
Estimated purchaser s costs are determined by the relevant stamp duty liability plus an estimate by our valuers of agen: and legal fees on notional
acquisition The net rent deduction altowed for property outgomngs is based on our valuers assumptions on future recurring non-recoverable revenue
expenditure

in calculating the EPRA topped-up NIY the annualised net rent 1s increased by the total contracted rent fromexpiry of rent-free periods and future
contracted rental uplifts where defined as not in beu of growth Overall topped-up NIY 1s calculated by adding any other contracted future uplift to
the topped-up net annualised rent

The net reversionar y yield 1s catculated by dieding the iotal esimated rental value [ERV] for the completed property portfolio as determined by our
external valuers by the gross completed property portfolio valuation

The EPRA vacancy rale s calculated as the ERVY of the unrented lettable space as a proportion of the total rental value of the completed property
portfotio

EPRA Vacancy Rate
2018 015
fm fm
Annualised patential rental value of vacant premises 14 20
Annualised polential rental value for the completed property porifolio 728 652
EPRA Vacancy Rate 2 0% 29%

The abave 15 stated for the UK portiolio only
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SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES CONTINUED
UNAUDITED

Table B contunued

EPRA Cost Ratios

2016 2015

Em £m

Property operating expenses 25 23
Adminisirative expenses 0 84
Share of joint ventures and funds expenses 13 14
Less Performance and management fees [from joint ventures and funds) 9 19!
Net other fees and commisstons (8} (8t
Ground rent costs 131 {3l

EPRA Costs [including direct vacancy costs] (A) 108 101
Direct vacancy cosls {1 (1]
EPRA Costs [excluding direct vacancy costs] [B) 97 90
Gioss Rental Income less ground rent costs 429 374
Share of joint ventures and funds (GRI tess ground rent costsl 222 241
Total Gross Rental Income iess ground rent costs (C) 651 415
EPRA Cost Ratio lincluding direct vacancy costs} [A/C] 16 6% 16 4%
EPRA Cost Ratio lexcluding direct vacancy costs) [B/C) 14 9% 14 6%
Overhead and operating expenses capitatised [including share of joint ventures and tunds) 4 -

In the current year employee costs in relation to staff time on devetopment projects have been capitalised into the base cost of relevant development
assets

Table C Gross1ental income

2016 2015

£m Lm

Rent recewvable 615 981
Spreadmg of tenant incentives and guaranteed rentincreases 3& 33
Surrender premia 3 4
Gross rental income 654 618

The current and prior period information 1s presented on a proporttonaily consolidated basis excluding nen-cantrotling inter ests
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Table 1) Property related capital expenditure

2016 2015

Joint Joint

ventures veniures
Group and funds Total Group and funds Total
Acquisisions 238 - 238 147 - 147
Development 104 58 162 664 83 147
Like-for-itke portfelio 99 & 105 &7 23 90
Other 25 15 40 25 8 33
Tatal property related capex Lbb 79 545 303 114 417

The above 1s presented on a propertionally censolidated basis excluding non-controlting interests and business combinatiens The Other category
conians amounts owing to tenant mcentives of £27m (2014/15 £18m) capitakised staff costs of £4m [2014/15 Enil] and capniatised interest of £9m

[2034/15 £15mt
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Other Information

Unaudited

Acguisitions and disposals

Gross rental tncome

Majeor hotdings

Occupters representing over 0 5% of total contracted rent
Partfolio valuation

Retail portfolio valuation - previous ctassification basis
Porttalio weighting

Portfolio yield and ERY movements

Total property return {as calculated by IPDI
Portfolio net yields

Portfolio net yietds - previous ctassification basis
Lease length and occupancy

Annuansed rent and esuimated rental value (ERY)
Rent subject to open market rent review

Rent subject to lease break or expiry

Superstores

Recenily completed and commutted developments
Near term pipeling

Medium term pipeline

Residential develapment programme
Sustainability performance measures

Ten year record

Sharehotder information

Glossary
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Other lnfarmation

UNAUDITED

Acquusinons and disposals

Acquisitions

Price Price Annual

[Gross) !Bl Share] Passing Rent
From 1 Apnil 2015 Area £m £m &’
Completed
t Sheldon Square Offices London 210 210 10
Hercules Umt Trusi unst purchase! Retail Various 95 95 3
19-33 Liverpool Sireet Oifices Lendon 22 22 1
Broughton Chester development land Retail Norih Wesi 5 3 -
Teesside Lersure Park Retasl North East 2 2 -
Total 334 332 16
' Units purchased aver the course ef the period £95m represents purchased GAV
+ BLshare of net rent topped up {orrent frees
Disposals

Price Prce Annuat

[Gross]  |BL Share] Passing Rent
From 1 April 2015 Area £m m £m
Completed
Parkgate Rotherham Retail Yorkshire 170 i20 &
39 Victorta Street Offices London 139 139 5
Birstall Leeds Retail Yorkshere 107 3 V4
PREF - France and Portugal Retail Europe &7 43 4
Hatters Way Luton & Hylton Riverside Sunderland Retail Various 45 34 2
560 London Road Camberley Retail South 38 38 2
BDebenhams Oxford Retail South 23 23 1
The Hempel Cotlection Residenuiat Londen 20 20 -
Superstore disposals Retait Various 154 122 §
B&M Daventry Retail Midlands 9 1
Bedford Street Residential Londan 4 -
Aldgate Place Residenbal London 1 -
Exchanged
Aldgate Place Residenttal London 32 16 -
The Hernpel Collection Residential London 18 18 -
Total 827 518 29

' BL share of annualised rent topped up for rent frees
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Gross rental income! 2

12 months 10 31 March 2006

Annualised as at 31 March 2016

Vs & JVs &
Accounting basis Em Group Funds? Total Group Funds? Total
Regronal 55 89 144 52 83 135
Local 100 26 126 97 26 123
Mutti-lets 185 115 270 149 109 258
Department Stores & Leisure 57 - 37 56 - 56
Superstores n 36 47 9 35 A
Solus/Other 21 - 4 18 - 18
Retail & Leisure 244 151 395 232 144 76
West End 125 - 125 125 - 125
City 5 14 ne 5 19 124
Dffices 130 114 244 130 119 249
Resdential® 3 - 3 3 - 3
Dffices & Residential 133 114 247 133 19 252
Canada Water 8 - 8 8 - -]
Total 385 265 450 373 263 536
Tahle shows UK tatal with previous classification provided on Campany website www britishland com/results
' Excluding developments under construction and assets held jor development
2 Gross rental income wall differ from annualised rents due to acceunting adjustments for fixed and mimmum cortracted rental uplifts and lease incentives
" Gioup s share of propertes in joint ventures and funds including HUT at share
* Stand-alone residential
Major holdings
At 31 March 2014 Bt Share Sqft Rent  Occupancy Lease
lexciuding developments under construchion) % 000 £m pa' rate%?  lengthyrs®
Broadgate 30 4724 226 993 78
Regent s Place 100 1590 79 987 74
Paddington Central 100 806 33 998 78
Meadowhatl 50 1500 80 983 69
Sainsbury s Superstorest 50 2526 56 1000 140
The Leadenhall Building 50 603 37 978 116
Debenhams Oxford Sireet 100 363 n 1000 230
Teeside 100 269 15 991 57
Gtasgow Fort 100 510 14 94 2 65
Brake s Circus 100 570 16 98 4 52
Annuabised EPRA contracted rent including 100% of jo.nt ventures and funds

? includes accommaodation under offer or subject to asset management at 31 March 2016
? Weighted average to frst break
« Comanises stand alone asselsfaroperties
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Other Inforntion

UNAUDITED CONTINUED

Occupiers representing over (.3% of total contracted rent

% of total 95 of total
At 31 March 2016 rent” rent’
uBs AG 57 New Look a9
Tescoplc 56 Vodafone (18
Debenhams 53 SporisDireci 09
JSainshury Ple Lé Aon Plc 08
Kingfisher IB&Q] 26 Asda Group 08
HM Government ?? Home Retal Group 08
Next plc 21 JPMargan 07
Visgin Active 18 Reed Smith 07
Facebook 17 Hennes 07
Spirtt Group 16 Deutsche Bank AG 07
Alliance Boots 15 JD Sports 67
Wesfarmers 14 Mayer Brown 07
Visa inc 14 Mothercare 67
Dixons Carphone 14 ICAP Ple 0é
Marks & Spencer Plc 14 t.end Lease 06
Arcadia Group 13 Cartson [TGI Friday sl 06
Dentsu Aegss 13 Pets at Home 03
Herbert Srmuth 12 Credtt Agricole 03
RBS 11 Lewis Trust 05
T1JX Cos inc [TK Maxx) 10 Steinhoff 05
Gazprom 10

' Rent contracied on both 5 Broadgate and 1-3 Finsbury Avenue/100 Liverpool Street lease whilst UBS mave 3 0% aro-forma for run off of UBS rent at 1-3 Finsbury

Avenue/1G0 Liverpool Street
2 includes the impact of rent-free iIncentives
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Portiolio valuation

Change %+
Vs &
Group Funds' Tetal
At 31 March 2016 £m £m fm Hi H2 FY
Regional 1052 1792 2844 28 02 30
Local 1893 485 2378 15 1 26
Multi-lets 2,945 2,27 5,222 22 0é 28
Department Stores & Leisure 1004 1 1005 34 25 40
Superstores 153 628 781 17 69 211
Solus/Other 333 - 333 01 (D4 05
Retail & Letsure® 4,635 2,906 7,341 18 07 24
West End 3904 - 3904 81 Lé 128
City 104 2782 2886 85 24 n1
Oftices 4,008 2,782 6,790 83 37 121
Residential* 173 61 234 67 03 57
Offices & Residential® 4,181 2,843 7,024 82 35 18
Canada Water 283 - 283 26 09 17
Total 8,899 5,749 14,648 47 20 &7
Standing Investments 8,204 5,673 13.877 45 19 64
Developments £95 76 kil 59 31 94

Table with previcus classification provided on Company websile ai www bntishland com/results
' Groups share of properties in joint ventures and funds incluging HUT at ownership share
? Valuation movement during the period (after taking account of capital expenditure] of properties held at the balance sheet date including developments ictassified by

end use| purchases and sales

¥ Including committed developments

¢ Stand-alone residential

Retal portfoho s atuation — previous classification bass

Valuation' Change %* ERV Growth %3 NEY Yield Compression bps
At 31 March 2016 £m Hi H2 Y Hi H2 FY Hi1 HZ2 FY
Shapping Par kst 3346 1" a3 i3 09 19 28 5 2 7
Shopping Cenires 2205 KE:! 0y 47 29 19 39 14 5 18
Superstores 781 [14] 05) (211 09 (03 13 [5) 1 {8
Department Siores 406 29 30 60 - 03 03 12 13 25
Leisure 403 42 18 61 03 03 06 22 23 54
Rotail & Leisure® 7,341 18 07 24 09 15 24 8 5 13

Group s share of preperties in joint ventures and funds including HUT at share
* Valuation movemnent during the period fafter taking account of capial expenditure] of properties held at the balance sheet date including developments [classified by

enduse] purchases and sales
* Ascalculated by iIPD

* Solus/Other assets under current Retall segmentation previously included in Sheppig Parks

* Including commitied developments
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Ocher idormation

UNAUDITED CONTINUED
Portfoho weighting
2016 s ™Mb

2015 lcurrent} [current]  [pro-torma |
At 31 March % % £m %
Regionat 202 194 2 844 190
Local 148 163 2378 159
Multi-lets 7o 357 5,222 349
Department Steres & Leisure 71 69 1,005 67
Superstores &7 53 781 52
Solus/Other 28 23 333 22
Retail & Leisure 53 & 502 7,341 490
Wesi End 239 766 3904 280
City 188 197 2886 193
Offices 427 46.3 6,790 473
Residential? 19 16 234 18
Offices & Residential 44 6 479 7,024 491
Canada Water j 18 19 283 19
Total 1000 1000 14,648 1000
London Weighting 55% 58% 8,490 59%
Tabte with previous classification provided on Company website www britishland com/results !
' Pro forma for developments under constructian at estimated end value las determined by Lhe Broup s external valuers] and post period end transactions
? Stand-alone residential
Portfolio vield and ERV moyements'

NEYS ERV Growth % NEY Yizld Cornpression bps?

At 31 March 2016 % H1 H2 Y H1 H2 FY
Reglonal 48 17 18 35 1 4 15
Local 52 10 22 33 7 2 9
Multi-lets 50 14 20 i 9 3 12
Department Stores & Leisuie 51 02 02 04 19 17 37
Supersiores 52 (09l 103 3 13 1 16}
Solus/Other 51 01 0o 61 1 1 2
Retail & Leisure 50 09 1§ 24 8 5 13
Weslt End 44 41 26 99 24 3 28
Cny* 44 48 43 23 16 (4] 12
Dthices 44 44 50 94 20 {0 21
Canada Water 32 02 02 0% 11 1 13
Total 47 23 30 53 13 3 17

Tabte with previous classification provided on Company websie www briushland com/results

' Excluding developmenis under construction assets held for devetopment and residential assets

? Ascalculated by 1PD
? Including notional purchaser s costs

¢ City ERV growth of 7 3% and West End ERV growth of 7 1% on a bke-for-like basis
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Total property return (as calculated by 1PD)

FY to 31 March 2016 Retail Otfices Tatal
% Braish Land IPD Bnoshland iPD  BnushLand IPD
Capitai Return 25 23 123 (RR| 68 63
- ERV Growth 24 14 94 78 53 40
- Yietd Compressian' 13bps 18 bps 71 bps Z20bps 17 bps 23 bps
ncome Return 52 51 32 39 42 47
Total Property Return 78 75 158 15 4 113 113
Net equivalent yield movernent
Portfoho net yields! 2
EPRA topped QOverall Net Net
EPRAnet upnetintial tappedup et equmalent  reversionary
imtial yield yietd  iitial yreld yeld yield
At 31 March 2014 % % %ot % %
Regional 43 44 45 48 48
Locat 48 51 52 52 52
Mutti-lets 45 47 48 50 50
Department Stores & Lersure 47 48 &4 31 40
Superstores 53 53 53 52 52
Solus/Other 56 56 56 51 47
Retail & Leisure 47 48 51 50 49
West End 35 19 40 44 46
City 32 44 45 44 53
Offices 34 42 42 L4 49
Canada Water 28 28 28 32 34
Jotal 41 45 47 47 49
' including notional purchaser s costs
- Excluding developments under cansiruction assets held for development and resideniial assets
? Including rent contracied from expiry of rent-iree periods and fixed uplifts not m lieu of renial growth
* Including fixed/mimimurn uplifts [excluded fram EPRA defintion)
Portfohio net vields! 2— presious classification basis
EPRA topped Overalt Net MNet
EPRA net up net initial topped up net equialent  reversionary
nigial yeld yield itk yield yeld yeid
At 31 March 2016 % % %t % %
Shopping Parks 47 49 49 St 50
Shopping Centres 45 46 47 49 49
Superstot es 53 53 33 52 52
Department Stores 39 39 56 42 35
Leisure 41 41 76 64 48
Retail & Leisure 47 48 51 50 49
Including notional purchaser s cosis
2 Excluding developments under construction assets hetd for development and residentiat assets
* Including reni contracied from expiry of rent-free periods and frxed uplifts not in hieu of rental growth
* Including fixed/minsmum uphifts (exctuded from EPRA definition]
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Other Information

UNAUDITED CONTINUED

Lease length and oceupancy?

Average lease length years

Occupancy rate %

Occupancy
At 31 March 2016 To expiry To break Occupancy  {underlying)
Regianal 79 69 958 978
Local 87 75 989 994
Multi-lets 83 72 973 98 4
Departmen? Stores & Lewsure 197 1746 1000 10G 0
Superstores 142 138 1000 1000
Solus/Qther 05 105 1000 JLaleNe
Retail & Leisure 104 98 380 990
West End 95 75 978 981
City 102 83 98 4 991
Dffices 98 79 981 98 &
Canada Water 75 74 98 4 991
Total 102 90 980 98 8
Table with previous or IPD classification provided on Company website www britishland com/results
* Excluding develcpments under canstruction and assets heid for development
* Including accommodation under offer or sub,ect to asset management
Annualised rent and estimated rental value (ERV)?

Annuahsed rent
[valuation basis] £m? ERV E£m fwverage rent £psf
Vs &

At 31 March 2016 Group Funds Total Tatal Contracied? ERY
Regional 54 B4 138 195 328 359
Lecal 97 27 124 134 242 247
Mutti-tets 151 m 242 289 280 297
Department Stores & Leisure 51 - 51 44 153 131
Superstores 9 H 44 43 214 208
Solus/Qther 18 - 18 14 188 150
Retail & Leisure 229 146 375 392 240 243
Wess End 125 - 125 165 515 40 6
City 5 94 99 162 500 603
Offices 130 94 224 327 510 604
Residentials 3 - 3 4
Offices & Residential 133 94 227 N
Canada Water 8 - 8 9 187 214
Total 370 240 610 732 301 krg

Table with previous classification provided on Company websile at www britishland com/results
Excluding gevelopments under construction and assets held fer development

? Grass rents plus where rent reviews are outstanding any ntreases to ERV [as determined by the Groups external valuers} tess any ground rents payable under head

leases exciudes contracted rent subject to rent free and future uplift
3 Annualised rent plus remt subject tosentiree

- Stand-atone residential
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Rent subject to open market rent reviewn!?

At 31 March 2014 07 018 1% 2320 2023 2017-19 20§7-21
For pertod to 31 March m £rm £m tm fm £m Em
Regional 15 12 17 10 18 ¥4 72
Local 1t 24 21 12 i 56 79
Multi-lets 26 36 38 22 29 100 151
Department Siores & Leisure - - - - - - -
Supersiores 5 4 8 12 14 17 43
Solus/Other - 1 - - - 1 1
Retail & Leisure 31 41 46 34 43 118 195
West End ) 70 20 15 ? 46 63
City 1 4 13 14 16 18 48
Offices 7 24 33 29 18 &4 m
Canada Water - - - - - - -
Total 38 45 79 43 &1 182 306
Potential uplift at current ERV 1 2 4 2 1 7 10
Table with previous classification provided on Company website www britishland com/results
' Excluding developments under construciion residenital assets and asseis held for develapment
Rent subyect to lease break or expary?
At 31 March 2016 2007 2018 2019 2020 200 m7-19 017-21
For pertod to 31 March fm tm £m Em fm £m £m
Reguonal 13 12 9 13 9 34 56
Lecal 9 ] 8 n 9 23 43
Muiti-lets 22 18 17 24 18 57 99
Department Stores & Leisure - 1 - - - 1 1
Supersiores - - - - - - -
Solus/Other 1 - - - & 1 7
Retail & Leisure 23 19 17 24 24 59 107
West End 10 8 10 4 19. 28 51
Cuy 17 3 17 14 8 37 59
Ofices? 27 " 27 18 27 45 10
Canada Water 1 - 1 - 1 2 3
Total 51 30 45 42 52 126 220
% of contracted rent 73% [ A 6 5% 61% 7 6% 18.2% 319%
Potential uplift at current ERV? [ 3 1 [3 1 18 23
Tabte with previous classification provided on Company website www briushland com/results
' Excluding developments under construction and assets held for development
! Based on ofhice space anty
¥ Asdetermined by the Group » valuers excluding near term developrnents
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Other lnformation

UNAUDITED CONTINUED
Superstores

Stand-alene Superstores' In Mults let assets’ Totsl Exposure ™

Valuation Capital Valuation Capital Valuatign Captal

Store Size Noal 8L share} Value WALL Mool [BLsnarel Value WALL Noof [BL share] Value WALL
000 sqft Stores £m psf o FB Slores £m psi o fFB Stores £m pst to FB
>100 8 177 351 124 5 357 938 130 13 534 457 128
75-100 i3 270 467 179 2 55 415 128 15 325 457 179
50-75 i 256 404 124 ] 12 194 H1 17 248 385 123
25-50 8 52 226 83 3 32 457 14 6 1 B4 281 104
0-25 2 8 177 91 17 80 436 11 19 88 387 109
March 2016 47 763 383 139 28 536 482 127 7% 1,299 419 135
March 2015 57 924 395 145 29 529 491 139 84 1,483 424 144
Geographicat Spread Gross Rent (Bl Share} Lease Structure
t_ondon & South 57% Tesco f37m RPland Fixed 8%
Rest of UK 43% Sainshurys £30m OMRR 92%

Other £om

' Excludes £8m non-foodstore occupiers in superstore led assets and £10m Samnsburys Newaguay sold post period end
? Excludes nonfood-format stores e g Asda Living
? Excludes £101m of investments keld for trading comprising freehold reversions n a pool of Sainsbury s Supersiores

Recently completed and committed dey elopments

lLet & Resi Sales
PC Current Costio Under ResiEnd Exchanged &
BL Share 5qft Catendar Value complete ERV Offer Value Coempleted
At 31 March 2016 Sector % 000 Year Cm £m’ £ £m £m fm
5 Broadgate Ofhices 50 710 Completed 469 8 192 192 -
Yatding House Offices 100 79 Completed kY) 1 19 - -
Whiteley Leisure Fareham Retail 50 57 Completed i2 1 a4 ¢é -
Glasgow Foit_M&5 & Retail Terrace  Retail 75 112 Completed 35 3 20 17 -
Totat Completed in Period 708 553 13 237 215
4 Kingdom Street Otfices 100 147 422017 81 &4 95 - -
Clarges Mayfair Mixed Use 100 192 Q42077 404 107 52 - 456 259
Glasyow Fort IMSCP and additional
retail/lessure umts] Retait 75 12 Q320% 2 5 04 0?2 -
The Hempel Phase 1 Restdential 100 25 Q7206 26 ? - - 50 36
The Hempel Phase 2 Residential 100 32 G326 48 12 - - 72 8
Aldgate Place Phase 1 Residential 50 221 Q22016 &d 14 - - 79 55
Total Under Construction 629 505 204 161 02z 657 358
Retail Capral Expenditure? 107

Data ncludes Group s share of properties in jomt ventures and funds lexcept area which1s shown at 100%)
From 1 Aprid 2016

* Estirnated headine rental value net of rens payable under head leases [excluding tenant incentives]

¥ Capex committed and under way within our investment portfolio relating to leasing and asset management
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Near term pipeline

BL Sqft Start On Totat Cost*
At 31 March 2014 Sector Share cco Site Em Status
100 Liverpool Street Offices 50 520 2017 279 Consented
1 Triton Square? Offices 100 217 20%7 370 Pre-submission
1 Finshury Avenue Offices 50 303 217 150 Consented
5 Kingdomn Street® Offices 100 240 2017 228 Consented
Blossom Street Shoreditch Mixed Use 100 340 2017 256 Consented
Plymouth Lersure Retail 100 102 2016 41 Consented
New Mersey Speke - Leisure Retal &6 46 016 20 Consented
Crawley Homewares Park Retail 160 52 2016 26 Consented
Atdgale Place Phase? Residential 50 145 2016 a9 Consented
54 The Broadway Ealing Residentiat 100 34 2016 21 Consented
Total Near term 2,019 1,450
Relail Capital Expenditure* 20
' Total cost inciuding site value Excludes nolional snterest as intarest I1s capiialised indmidually on each development at our capitalisatien rate
? Existing net areas scheme n early design stages
3210 000 sq ft of which s consented
¢ Forecast capital commitments within gur investment portfolic over the next lwo years relating to leasing and asset enhancement
Mediom terin papeline
At 31 March 2016 Settar BL Share S({Jqﬂ'; Status
2 -3 Finsbury Avenue Offices 50 550 Submutted
Eden Walk Kingston Mixed Use 50 562 Subrutted
Canada Water Master plan' Mixed Use 106 5500 Pre-subrmission
Farster Square Bradford Phase 3 Retail o 63 Consented
Meadowhall Leisure Retail 50 330 Pre-submission
Glasgow Fort - Retail Extension Retail 75 60 Cansented
Futney High St eet Residential 100 110 Consented
Total Prospective 7,175
' Assumed net area based on gross area of up to Tm sg it
Residential development programme
Current Cosito Excha r‘-qseac;e;
Sqit  No Market P Date/ BL Share Value come?  EndValue  Completed
A131 March 2016 000 Units Status % Em £m £m £m
Clarges Maylair 103 34 Q42017 100 286 88 456 259
Mixed use 102 34 285 88 454 259
The Hempel Phase 1 25 15 022016 100 26 ? 50 36
The Hempel Phase 2 32 18 Q372016 100 48 12 72 8
Aldgate Piace Phase 1 221 154 Q22016 50 44 14 79 55
Resi-led 278 187 118 28 201 9y
Aldgate Place Phase 2 145 Consented 50
34 The Broadway Ealing 34 Consented 100
Near Term prospective 179
Total Commutted Residential 381 221 404 116 557 358
Data includes Group s share of progerties in jaint ventures and funds |except area winch s shown at 10051
' Excluding completed sates
2 From 1 Apnil 2016 Costio complete excludes notionalinterest as interesi 1s capitalised indwiduatly on each development at our capitabisation rate
* Ircludes completed uniis (€22 8m)
¢ Includes 9 500 sq it of alfordable housing (17 units]
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Other Information

UNAUDITED CONTINUED

Sustamability perfornmunce measures

The data below cavers 8% of our multi-let managed portfolio by value [66% of assets under managementl and 100% of development projects

Scope
lassets or
2015/16 2014/15 01Y14 units]

EPRA best practice recommendations on sustainability reporting’
Total electricity consumiption [MWh] 172238 171419 164 038 $7/169
Total district heating and cooling consumption {MWh) 0 0 289 0/0
Total fuel consumption IMWh 38 234 36 399 30 085 45/44
Building ener gy intensity (kWh per m?) Dffices 263 41 27699 26076 34/37
Shopping cenlies 51 82 6000 407 13713
Retail parks 1023 916 937 35/42
Building energy intensity (kWh per workstaton or 10 000 visitors] Offices 5169 3978 5 659 31/37
Shapping cenlies 1276 1488 1740 1213
Retanl parks 238 224 297 33/42
Total direct [Scope 1) gt eenhouse gas emissions [tonnes L0.] 7927 7519 7335 A5/46
Total indirect [Scape 2} greenhouse gas emissions liennes Clel 38710 42 503 38 619 97/109
Greenhouse gas intensity from building energy consumption Offices [gress intet nal areal 014 a15 014 34/37
[tonnes COze per m Shopping centres 003 0903 003 13413
Retail parks 00066 & 006 0005 35/42
Total water consumptian {m3} 653 490 557 041 654 59N 68/81
Buitding water intensity [m? per m#) Offices 074 044 065 32/37
Shopping centres 036 034 034 1412
Retait parks 006 a67 108 15/22
Building waler intensity [m? per workstation or 10 000 wisitors]  Qffices 1376 14 29 13 67 30/37
Shopping centr es g8 89 878 771 11112
Retait parks i32 19 227 15/22
Total waste by disposal route [tonnes and %j Recycied 14 533 (68 6%) 12541167 %] 13059 [66%] 60760
Incinerated 6522136 8% 5437129 2%} 5 306 (27%] 80/60
Landfilled 134[06%)  615133%]  146517%] 40/60
Sustainably cerufied assets - Ener gy Performance Ao B 30% 22% - 2 36%/2 856
Ceruficates [% by valuel Ctok 67% 75% - 2369/ 854
Fub 3% 3% - 2369/2856
2015/16 Seops

Additional sustainability data ih year one of our five-year strategy
Wellbeing Ermployee score for our offices supporting theirwellbeing 87% -
Wellbeing Visilor score for the shopping experience 4 2/5 29/53
Commusnity British Land employee volunteering 84% 911107
Commumty Cemmunity progi amme as a percentage of pre-tax pr ofits 063% 91/107
Community Community programime beneliciaries 29 482 91/107
Future proofing Developments on track to achieve BRECAM Excellent for offices and Fxcetlent or Very Good lorretail 82% 117
Future proofing Landlord energy reduction versus 2009 [index scorel 38% (62/100] 75178
Future progfing Carbaon [scope 1 and 2] 1 eduction versus 2009 [index score} 40% 160/100] 75/78
Fuiure prooting Portfolio at high risk of flood % 267/273
Fuiure procfing Ener gy generation [(MWh] 1126 8/
Skitls and opportunity Employees paid Living Wage Foundation wage 100% -
Skills and opportunity Supplier woi kiorce paid Living Wage Foundation wage at our properties 72% 89/101
Skitls and opportunity Supply chain spend within 25 mites of our proper ties 4£9% 59/108
Skitls and opportunity Supplier workiorce hving within 25 mules of our places 67% 108/120

' As per EPRA best practice recommendations, total energy and water date covers energy and water procured by Briish Land Energy water and carbon intensity data
covers whole buliding usage for Offices and commen parts usage for shopping cenires and retail parks

For more detailed data on all these indicaters and addiienal indicators please see our Sustainability Accounts 2016 www britishland com/data

196 British Land | Annual Repor t and Accounts 2015




TEN YEAR RECORD

The table below summarises the tast tenyears results cash flows and balance sheets

2015 215 2014 203 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
£m fm £m £m £m Em £m Em £mt £m

Income’ _
Gross rental ncome 554 618 597 567 572 541 5461 650 709 706
Net rental income §20 585 562 341 546 518 545 598 4667 661
Net fees and other income 17 17 15 i5 17 18 15 20 40 50
Interest expense [net) (180) (201 [202) (204) (218} (2121 (246] (2921 £350] {370)
Admimistrative expense (94) {88l [78) {761 {76) 168} [65) {58) [73) {84
Underlying Profit 343 313 297 274 269 256 249 268 284 257
Exceptional costs
[not included in Underlying Profit)* - - - - - - - [119] - (305)
Dividends declared 287 277 266 234 231 2 225 198 179 107
Summarised balance sheets
Total properties at valuation'? 14,648 13677 12040 10499 10337 G572 8539 84725 13471 16903
Net debt (4,765  [4918] (48900 [64266) [4690) (41731 {4084 {4941 (6413}  (7741)
Qther assets and liabilities il 276 1123) 1264) {264) 1298 (51 [297) 122 {300]
EPRA NAV/Fully diluted ad)usted net assets 10,074 2035 7027 5967 5381 5101 4 407 3387 6936 8862
Cash flow movemnent - Group only
Cash generated [rom operations 341 318 243 197 211 182 248 406 477 494
Cash outflow irom cperations [47) (33] [24) i/ 15] 28 112] (207 {295) [273)
Net cash inflaw {1 o operating activities 294 285 219 190 206 210 136 205 182 219
Cash inftow foutflow] from capwtal expenditure
nvestments acquisilions and disposals 230 1111) (660] 202] [547) {240) [39) 418 857 [54]
Equity diadends paid [235) [228) {159] {203} i212) {139} [154] (188] 161} 91}
Cash [outflow] inflow from
management of iquid resaurces and financing (283) 20 607 213 630 157 [485) (58] (830} (1]
Increase {decrease) in cashé [ 134) 7 (2) 77 {12} {542 377 48 63
Capital returns
Growth in net assets? M5% 2846% 17 8% 109% 55% 157% 301% [511%) [216%] 136%
Total returné 142% 245% 200% 4 5% 95% 177% 335% 1616%) 1181% 143%
Total return - pre-exceptional 142% 245% 200% 4 5% 95% 177% 335% {603%) 11B1%] 213%
Per share information’
EPRA net asset value per share 1%p 829 488p S%6p 5%5p o67p 504p 398p  11lép 1 3%p
Memarandum
Dwidends declared in the year 28 4p 277p 270p 26 4p 26 1p 26 0p 260p 798p 292 0p 169p
Dmidends pard 1n the year 28 0p 273p 267p 26 3p 26 0p 26 0p 273p 300p 267p 14 4p
Dituted earnings
Underlying EPRA earnings per share 34 1p 30 6p 294p 30 3p 297p 28 5p 28 4p 410p 44 3p 359
IFRS earmings [loss) per sharet 1241p 1873p  1102p 315p S38p  952Zp  1326p 1614 1p] (251 0pl  38%4p
' Including share of jo'nt ventures and funds
z Represents movement i dilutad EPRA NAV
* Including surplus over book value of trad'ng and development properties
* including exceptional finance costs 1n 2007 £305 milkon and 2009 £119 rmllion
2008 restated for [FRS The UK GAAP accounts shows gross rental income aof £620 million and Underlying Prohitof £175 mullion
* Represents movemnent wn cash and cash equivalents under IFRS and movements in ¢ash under UK GAAP
7 Adiusted for the nights issue of 361 mitlion shares in March 2009
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Other infornmtion

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Fmancial calendar

2016

Fourth quar ter ex-dividend date 30 June 2016
Fourth quarter dividend payment date 5 Auguslt 2016
m7

First quarter rading Staiement 18 July 2016
First quarter ex-dindend date 6 October 2016
First quarter dvidend payment date 11 November 2016
Half year results 16 November 2016
Secend quarter ex-dividend date January 2017
Secend quarter dividend payment date February 2017
Third quarter Trading Statement January 2017
Third quarter ex-dividend date March/aprit 2017
Third quarter dwidend payment date May 2017
Full year resulis May 2017
Fourth quarter ex-dwidend dale June/July 2017
Fourth guarter dwidend payment date August 2017

The Board will anncunce the avatlability of ¢ Scrip Alternative for each dividend if offered wia the Regulatory News Service and on the Group s
website www britishland com no later than fous business days before each ex-dwvidend date For the fourth quarter divedend of 2616 the Board
expecls to announce the splii between PID and non-PiD income at the same tme Any Scrip Alternative witl not be enhanced

Analysis of sharcholders — 31 Mach 2016

Number Balanre as
Range of holdings % at 31 March 2014 %
1-1 00D 8367 5418 4024 681 039
1001-5000 5257 34 04 11211 850 109
500%-20 000 9260 596 8 65% 554 084
20 001-50 000 27 175 8 654 309 084
50 001-Highest 628 407 996 745 682 95 84
Total 15 442 10000 1029296 078 100 00

Nurber Balance as
Holder type of ho'ders % at 31 March 2018’ %
Individuals 6693 4334 11942 035 116
Nomines and insitutionat investors 8749 56 66 1017354 043 98 84
Total 15 442 10600 1029294078 160 0¢

' Excluding 11 264 245 shares held intreasury
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Registrars

Brinsh Land s Share Registrar Eguimiti Limied
(Equintti} can be coniacted at Aspect House
Spencer Road Lancing West Sussex

BN99 6DA

The Sharehotder Helpline ts 8371384 2143
Lines are open from 8 30am ta 5 30pm Monday
to Fniday The general enquines number for
averseas callers s +44 {01121 415 7047

Equintti s website 1s www shareview co uk
Registering on this site wilt endhle you to

- view your Briish Land shareholding online

- update your detalls and

- opt to receive shareholder maitings
etectronically

Equinitiis also the Registras for the BLD
Property Hotdings Limited Stock

Bank of New York [operaiing through Capital
British Land s febentures Registzar canbe
contacted at The Registry 34 Beckenham
Road Beckenham Kent 8R34TU

‘the Bondholder Enguiry Lineis 0871 664 0300
Calls cost 10 pence per minute plus network
extras Lmes are open from ? 00am to 5 30pm
Monday to Friday

Share dealing service

Equinitt offers Shareview a service which
allows UK residents to buy or sell

British Land shares

UK residents can deal in British ¢ and shares
an the mternet or by phone Logonto

www sharaview co uk/dealing or call

(0845 603 7037 between 8 30am and 4 30pm
Monday to Friday fer more infarmation about
Shareview and for details of the rates If you
are an existing sharehotder you will need your
shareholder reference number which appears
onyour share cei ificate

Dwidends

As aREIT Briitsh Land pays Property
Income Distnibution (PID) and non-Property
Income Dsstribution Inon-PIB] dividends
More information on REITs and PIDs can

be found in the glossary on page 202 ar

in the nvesiors section of our website at
www britishland com/dividends

Briush Land dividends can be patd directly
into your bank or building society account
instead of being despatched lo you by cheque
Mor e information about the benehis of having
dividends pawd directy inio your bank ar
bullding society account and the mandate
form to set this up can be found in the
Investors section of our website at

www britishland com/dividends

Senp Dividend Scheme

Brinsh t.and offers the opportunity to

par ticspate in the Scrip Dvidend Scheme
from lime 1o time which enables participating
shareholders to receive shares instead of
cashwhen a Scrip Alternative 15 ofiered for
a particular dividend For more information
and for details ot how to sign up to the Scrip
Dwidend Scheme please visit the Investors
section of our website at

www britishland com/dividends/
scrip-dividend-scheme

Honorary President

S John Ritblat became Managing Divertor of
British Land in 1970 and Chatrran i 1971 He
retired from the Boar d in December 2006 and
was apponted Honorary President in
recognition of hus work buillding Briish Land
o the industry leading company 1s today

Website and shareholder communications

The British LLand cor parate website conlains a
wealth of mdterial for sharehaolders including
the current share price press releasesand
mformationon among other things REITs and
dividends The website can be accessed at
www britishland com

Il you cur rently receive paper copias of
shareholder commurmications you may prefer
to recewve electranic capies via the British Land
website instead When a document s produced
for shareholders you will recerve an email
containing a ink directly to the new document

If you would Like further informaiion or
wauld like to elect for website delivery of
shareholder commurucations please visit
www shareview co uk or telephone the
Sharehotder Helpline

Annual Generat Meeting

The Annuat General Mesing of The

8riush Land Company PLC will be

held at The Montcalm London Marble Arch
34-40 Great Cumberland Place London
WIH 7TW on 19 July 2016 at 11 00am

ShareGift

Shareholders with a small number of shares
the vatue of which makes 1t uneconomic 1o sell
them may wish to consider donating them to
the charity ShareGilt [registered charity
1052686] which speciatises in using such
holdings far charnable benefit

A ShareGift b anster fo: m can be obtained
from Equimt

For further information, contact

ShareGift

17 Carlton House Terrace
London SW1Y 5AH

Telephane +44 [0]20 79303737
Webstie www sharegift org

Unsolicited mail

On request British Land s legatly required 1o
make its share reqister avatable to other
orgamisations The Mailing Preference Service
1s an independent orgarssation offering free
services to help reduce the amount of
unselicited mait you receive

For more tnformation or to register visit
www mpsonline org uk

Registered office
The Briush LLand Company PLC s registered
office s

York House

45 Seymour Street

London W1H 71X

Telephone +44 101207484 4466
Fax +44(0i20 7935 5552
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Orther informution

GLOSSARY

Adjusted net debt 1s the Group net debt and

the Gioup s share of joink venture and funds aet
debt exctuding the mark-to-market on effective
cash flow hedges and 1 etated debt adjustiments
and non-controthing mterests A reconciliation
between Group net debt and adjusted net debt
15 included in Table Awithin the supplementary
disclosures

Annualised rent s the gross property rent
recetvable on a cash basis as at the reporting
date Addiionally stinctudes the external
valuers estimate of addittonal rentin respect of
unsettled rent review tuinover rett and sundry
income such as that from car parks and
commercizlisation less any ground rents
payable under head leases

Assets under management I1s the full value

of all assets owned and managed by British
Land and includes 100% of the value of akl joint
ventures and funds

BREEAM {Building Research Eslabtishment
Environmental Assessment Method| assesses
the sustainability of buildings agamst a range
of social and environmental critena

Capital return i1s calcutated as the change

in caprial value of the UK portfolio less any
capital expenditure incurred expressed as

a percentage of capital employed Isiart value
plus capitat expenditure] over the perod

as calcuiated by IPD Capial returns are
catculated monthly and tndexed 1o pravide

a teturn over the relevant pericd

Capped rents are rents subject to a maximum
level of uplift at the specified rentreviews as
agreed at the time of letting

Collar rents are rents subject to a minimum
tevel of uplit at the specified rent reviews as
agreed at the ume of letung

Contracted rent 1s the annualised rent
adjusting for the inciusion of rent subject
to rent-free pertods

Customer satisfaction includes consumers
as weil as occupiers Thisincludes exit survey
data for consumer satisfaction in the retail
husiness aswell as office and retail occupier
satisfaction scores andin future we aim to

be able to further expand to inctude consumer
satisfaction for other sectors

Developer s prefit is the profit on cost
estimated by the valuers that a developet
would expect The developer s profit 1s typically
calculated by the valuers to be a percentage

of the estimated total development costs
includimg land and notional finance costs

Development uplift is the total increase

in the vatue fafier taking account of capital
expenditure and capitalised interest] of
properties hetd for development during the
penod 11 also mcludes any developer s profit
recogrsed by valuers in the period

Development cost s the total cost of
constructien of a project te completion
excluding site values and finance costs [knance
cos1s are assumed by the valuers at a notional
rate of 5% perannum)

EPRA 15 the European Public Real Estate
Association the industry body for
European RE|ITs

EPRA Cost Ratio lincluding direct vacancy
costs} s the ratio of net gverheads and
operaling expenses against gross rental
income [with both amounts excluding ground
rents payable] Net overheads and operating
expenses relate to alt admimistrative and
aperating expenses mcluding the share of joint
ventures overheads and oper ating expenses
pet of any service fees recharges or other
income specifically intended to cover averhead
and property expenses

EPRA Cost Ratio [excluding direct vacancy
costs}is the ratio calculated above butwiih
du ect vacancy costs rermoved fram net

overheads and operating expenses balance

EPRA earnings 1s the IFRS profit after taxation
attrbutable to shdreholders of the Company
excluding :nvestment and development
property revatuations gans/iosses on
investing and trading property disposals
changes in the fair value of inancial
instruiments and associated close-out costs
and their related taxation These iiemsare
presented m the capital and other columnol the
income staternert A reconcilration between
profit attributable to shareholder s of the
Company and EPRA earrungs s mcluded in
Table B within the Supplementary Disclosures

EPRA NAV per share 1s EPRA NAV dnvided by
the diluted number of shares at the period end
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EPRA net asset vatue [EPRA NAV] s a

propor tionally consolidated measure
representing the IFRS net assets excluding the
mark-io-market on eftective cash flow hedges
and related debt adjustments the mark-to-
market on the canveriible bonds as well as
deferred {axation on property and dervative
valuations Itincludes the valuabon surplus

on irading properues and 1s adjusted for the
dilutive impact of share options and the

£400 million conver tible bond maturing in 2017
Areconciliation between IFRS net assets and
EPRA NAY s inrcluded in Table B wathin the
Supplementary Disclosures

EPRA net initial yieltd 1s the annualised

rents generated by the portiolio after the
deduction of an estimate of annual recurring
irrecoverable preperty oulgoings expressed
as a pel centage of the portfotio valuauon
[adding national purchaser s costsl excluding
development and 1esidential properties

EPRA NNNAV 1s the EPRA NAY adjusted to
reflect the fairvalue of debt and dervatives and
to include deferred taxation on revaluations

EPRA Topped-Up Net imitsal Yield 1s the current
annualised rent net of costs topped-up for
contracted uphfts where these are noain ligu
of rental growth expressed as g percentage of
capital value after adding notionat purchaser s
costs excluding development and residental
properties

EPRAvacancy rate 1s the estimated rmarket
rental value [ERV] of vacant space divided by
ERYV of the whole partiohio excluding
developments and residential property

Estimated Rental Value [ERVHis the exiernal
valuers opimicn as to the open market rent
which on the date of valustion could reasonably
be expected to be obtained on a new letling or
rent review of a property

ERY growth is the change in ERV overa

period an the standing investment properties
expressed as a percentage of the ERV at the
start of the period ERV growth s calculated
monthly and compounded for the perrod subgect
1o measurement as calculated by IPD

Fair value movement is an accouniing
adjustment to change the book value of
an asset or liability to us market value

Footfall is the annuatised number of
visitors entering our assets

Footfall grewth movement i footfall against
the same period in the prior year on properties
owned throughout both compar ahle periods
aggregated at 100% share




Gross investment activity as measured by
our share of acquisiions sales and investrent
in commilied develepment

Gross rental income IS the gross accounting
rent recewable {quoted either for the perod or
on an annualised basis] prepared under IFRS
winch requires that rental income from fixed/
minimum guaranteed rent reviews and tenant
mcentives 1s spread on a strawght-Une basis
over the entire lease to first break Ths can
resull in income being recogmised ahead of
cash flow

Group s The British Land Company PLC and
its subsidiarnies and excludes its share of joint
ventures and funds [where not treated as a
subsidiaryl on a ine-by-line basis [ e not
proporuonally consolidated)

Headline rent ts the contracted gross rent
recevable which becomes payable after all the
tenant incentives n the letting have expired

IFRS are the International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union

Income return is calculated as net income
expresset as a percentage of capial employed
over ihe period as calculated by IPD Income
returns are calculated monthly and indexed

to provide a return over the relevant period

Interest cover is the number of imes net
interest paydble 1s covered by Underlying Profit
before net mterest payable and taxation

IPD s Investment Property Databank Ltd
which produces independent benchmarks
of property returns and Briish Land UK
portfolio returns

Lettings and lease renewals are compared
both to the previous passing ren! as at the stari
of the financial year and the ERVimmediately
priorto letting Both compansons are made

on a net effective basis

Letting performance against ERY comparisen
of achieved letting terms on tong term lettings
and renewals against valuation assumptions on
like-for-like space calculated gn a net effective
basis, aggreyated at 100% share

Leverage see loan to value [LTV)

Like-for-like rentat incorne growth s the
growth in net rental income on properies
owned throughout the current and previous
periods under review This growth rate includes
revenue recognition and lease accounting
adjustments but excludes properties held for
development in either period and praperves
with guaranteed rentreviews

Loan to value LTV} is the 1atio of principat
value of gross debt less cash shortterm
deposits and liguid investments to the

aggr egate value of properiies and investments

Managed portfolio consists of multi-let
properties where we have controi of facitittes
and ubibiies management

Mark-to-market 1s the difference between
the hook value of an asset or bability and nis
market value

Multi-channel retailing 1s the use of a

variety of channets ina customer s shopping
expertence ncluding research beforea
purchase Such chanpelsinclude retaill

stores enline stores mobie stores mobile app
stores telephone sales and any other method
of fransacting with a custorner Transacling
includes browsing buying returning as wek

as pre- and posi-sale service

Net Development Value i1s the estimated end
value of a development project as determmed
by the external valuers for when the building
1s completed and fully let {taking into account
tenant incentives and notsanal purchaser s
costs) Itis based on the valuersview on ERVs
yietds tetting vords and tenant incentives

Net effective rent is the conts acted gross rent
receivable taking mto account any rent-free
period or other tenant incentives The
incentives are treated as a cost-to-rent

and spread ovel the lease to the earliest
lermination date

Net equivalent yield is the wetghted average
income return {after adding notional
purchaser s costs) a propet ty will produce
based upan the iming of the income received
In accordance with usual practice the
equivalent yields {as determined by the
external valuers) assume rent 1s received
annually in arrears

Net Initiat Yield is the current annualised
rent net of cosls expressed as a percentage
of capitalvalue after adding nottonal
purchaser s costs

Net rental income s the rental income
recewvable In the period after payment of di ect
property cutgoings which typically comprise
ground rents payable under head leases void
costs net service charge expenses and other
directrrecoverable property expenses Net
rental income 1s quoied on an acceunting basis
Net rental incorne will differ from annualised
net cash rents and passing rent due to the
eftects of income from rent reviews net
praperty outgoings and accounting adjustments
for fixed and minimum contracted rent reviews
and lease Incentves

Net reversionary yietd Is the anticipated yield
to which the imtial yieid will rise [or falll once
the rent reaches the estimated rental value

Occupancy rate 1s ihe estimated rental

vatue of let units as a percentage of the total
estimated rental vatue of the portfolio excluding
development and residential properties It
tncludes accommodation under offer subject to
asset management [where they have heen taken
back for refurtishment and are not avaiiable to
tet as at the balance sheet date} or occupied by
the Group

Omni-channel retailing 15 the evolution of
multi-channel retarling but1s concentrated
more on a seamless approach to the consumer
experience through all avaitable shopping
channels1 e mobile internet devices
computers bricks and martar televtsion

radio direct mail catalogue etc

Over rented ts the term used to describe when
Lhe contracted rents ahove the estimated
rental value (ERV}

Overall topped-up netinitial yreld 1s the
EPRA topped-up Net lnriat Yield adding alt
contracted upliits to the annualised rents
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Other infornetion

GLOSSARY CONTINUED

Passing rent 1s the gross rent less any ground
rent payable under head leases

Property Income Distributions (PIDs] are
profits distributed to shareholders which are
subject to tax in the hands of the shareholders
asproperty income PlDs are normatly paid
net of withholding tax currently at 20% which
the REIT pays to the tax autharities on behalf
of the shareholder Certain types of shar eholder
{1 e pension funds} are tax exempt and receive
PIDs without withholding tax REITs also pay
out normal dividends called non-PlDs

which are taxed in the same way as dividends
recewved from non-REIT companies these
are not subject to withholding tax and for UK
individual shareholders qualify for the tax

free dividend allowance

Portfolio valuation s reporied by the
Group s external valuers In accordance
with usual practice they report valuatiens
net after the deduction of the notional
purchaser s costs including stamp duty
land tax agentand legat fees

Proportionally consolidated measures include
the Group s share of joint ventures and funds
and exclude non-controtiing inteirests in the
Group s subsidaries

Rack rented 15 the term used to describe when
the contracted rentis in ine with the estimated
rental value [ERV) implyng a mil reversion

Rent-free period see Tenant lor lease)
ncentives

REi{Ts are property companies that allow
people and organisations to invest 1n
commercial property and recerve benefits

as 1If they directly owned the properties
themselves The rental mcome after costs

15 passed directly ta shareholders in the farm
of dvidends tn the UK REITs are required to
distribute at least 20% of their tax exempt
property income to shareholder s as dvidends
As a result, over time 3 signtficant proportion
of the total 1 eturn for shareholders s likely to
come from dividends The effect is that taxation
1s moved from Lhe corporate level 1o the
investor level asinvestors are hiable for

tax as if they owned the property directly
British Land became & REIT in January 2007

Rent reviews take place at intervals agreed in
the lease ltypically every five years] and their
purpose 1s usually to adjust the 1ent to the
current marke! level at the review date For
upwards-only rent reviews the rent will either
remain at the same tevel or increase f market
rents have increased] at the review date
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Rents with fixed and rminimum uplifts are
either where renis are subject to contracted
uplitts at a level agreed at the ime of letting
orwhere the rent s subject to an agreed
minemurn tevel of uplift at the specified

1ent review

Retailer sates growth movement m retaiter
sales against the same persad tn the prior
year on occupiers providing sales data
throughout both comparable periods
aggregated at 100% share

Retail planning consents are separated
between A1 A2 and A3 - as sei outin The Town
and Country Planning [Use Classes] Order
Within the Al category Open Al permission
allows far the majority of types of retai
inctuding fashion ta be accommedated white
Restricted Al perrmssion places [tmitts on the
types of retail that can operate [for example

a restriction that only bulky goods operators
are allowed to trade at that site)

Class Description Use for all/any of the following

purposes

Al Shops Shops, retail warehouses
hardressers undertakers
uravel and ticket agencies
post offices petshaps
sandwich bars showrooms
domestic hire shops dry
cieaners funerat directors
and iniernet cafes

A2 Fnancal and Fmancial services siich
professianal as banksand building
services societies professional

services [other than health
and medical services)
mcluding estate and
employment agencies

It does not include betung
offices or pay day loan shops
- these are now classed as
5t geners uses

For the sale of foed and
drink lor consumption on
the premises - restaurants
snack bars and cafes

Cinemas musicand concert
hdlls bingo and dance halls
{but not right ctubs}
swimming baths skating
rnnks gymndsiums or areds
forindoar er outdoor sperts
and 1 ecreanons

A3 Restaurants
and cafes

D2 Assembly
and leisure

Reversion 1s the Increase in rent estimated by
the external veluers where the passing rentis
betow the estimated rental value The increases
tn rent arise on rent reviews and letting of
vacant space ol re-letting of expiries
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Scrip dividend British Land may offer its
shareholders the oppor tuntly lo receve
dividends in the farm of shares instead
of cash Thisis known as a Scrip dividend

Standing investments are assets which are
directly held and not ity the course of or held
{or development

Tenant [or lease} incentives are incentives
offered to occupiers te enterinto a lease
Typically this will be aninitial rent-free period
or a cash ceniribution to fit-out Under
accounting rules the value of tease incentives
1samortised through the incorne statement
on a straight-line basis to the earliest lease
termination date

TMT standsfos technelogy media and
felecommunications

The residual site value of a development 1s
calculated as the estiimated [net} development
value less developmeni profit all development
construction costs finance costs {assumed at
anouenal ratel ef a project to completion and
notional site acquisition costs The 1esidual

is determined Lo he the current siie value

Topping out s a traditional construction
ceremony to mark the occasion when
the structure of the bullding reaches
the highesl point

Total property return s calculated as the
change in capiiat value tess any capital
expenditure incurred plus net income
expressed as & percentage of capitat emptoyed
over the period as calculated by IPD Total
pioperty returns are calculated monthly

and indexed to provide a return gver the
relevant period

Total return [total accounting return) is the
growth in EPRA NAV per share plus dividends
paid and this can be expressed as a percentage
of EPRA NAV per share at the beginning of

the period

Total shareholder return 1s the growth in value
of a shareholding over a speaified perod
assurmnyg dividends are reinvested to purchase
addiional units of stock

Total Tax Contribution 15 3 mare
comprehensive view of tax contnbutions than
the accountancy-deftned tax figur e quoled in
most financial statements It comprises taxes
and levies paud direcily aswell as taxes
collected from others which we administered

Turnover rents jswhere all or a portion
of the rent s linked to the sales or turnover
af the occupler




Under rented is the term used to describe
when the contracted teni 1s below the
estimated rental value {(ERV] implying a
positive reversion

Undertying earnings per share {EPS] consists
of Underlying Profit afler tax divided by the
dituted weighted average number of shares
in1ssue during the period

Underlying Profit is the pre-1ax EPRA earnings
measure with additional Company adjustments
No Company adjustments were made in either

the current or prior yeer

Valuatien upliftis the mcrease in the portfolio
valuation and sales receipts of properties sold
during the pertod net of capital expenditure
capialised interest and development team
costs and transaction costs incurred
expressed as o percentage of the portfolio
valuation at the start of the peried plus net
capital expenditure capiialised imterest and
development team cosls and transaction costs

Virtual freehold represents a long leasehoid
tenure for a period of up to 999 years A
peppercorn or nominat rent1s paid annuatly

Weighted average debt maturity - each
tranche of Group debt 1s mulupbed by the
remaining periad to its maturity and the sum
of the results s dvided by total Group debt in
1sste al the penod end

Weighted average interest rate s the Group
loan interest and net der ivative costs per
annum at the period end divided by 1otal
Group debt in1ssue at the penod end

Weighted average unexpired lease term:s

the aver age lease term remaining o fis st break
or expiry across the portfolio weighted by
coniracted rent excluding development and
residential properties

Yield compression occurs when the net
equivalent yield of a property decreases
measured n basis paints

Yield en cost is the estimated annual rent of
the completed development divided by the total
cosi of development including site value and
notional finance costs to the point of assumed
rent commencement expressed asa
percentage return

Yield shift 1s a movement [usually expressed
in bpslin the net equivalent yield of a proper ty
asset or ike-for-Uke portiolio over a grven
period weighted by net capital value Yield
COMPression is a commenly-used term for

a reduction in yields
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Forward-looking statements

This Press Release contains certam forward-looking statements Such
statements 1 eflect current views on among other things our markets
activities projeciions objectives and prospects Such forward-looking
stalements can sgmetines but not always, be identified by their reference
10 a date or point in the future or the use of farward-laooking terminology
including terms such as believes estimates anticipales expects
forecasts mtends due plans projects goal outloak schedute
target amm, may, likelyto, will would could shoutd orsimilar
expressions or it each case thewr negative or other vanations or comparable
terrnunology By their nature forwaid-loaking staternents involve inherent
risks assumptions and uncertainties bec ause they relate to future events
and depend on circumstances which may or ray not occur and may be
beyond our ability to control or predict Forward-looking statements should
be regarded with caution as actual results may differ materially from those
expressed inof implied by such statements

important factors that coutd cause actustresults perforrmance or
achievernents of British L and to differ raterially from any outcomes or
resulis expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements include
among ctherthings {al generat business and political, social and econormic
conditions globally [b) the outcorne and consequences of the referendum on
Biiain leaving the EU {c} industry and market trends (inclucing demand n
the property investment market and property price volatility} {d] competition,
{e] the behawiout of other market participanis [f] changes in gevernment and
other requlation meluding in relation to the environment health and safety
and taxation fin particular in respect of Briush Land s status as a Real Estate
investment Trust) (g) nftation and consuiner confidence (htabour relations
and work stoppages [Il naturak disasters and adverse weather condttions

[} terrorisrn and acts of war [k} British Land s overall business strategy

risk appelite and ivestment cheices in s portfolio management [l legal

or other proceedings aganst ot altecting British Land {m) rebiable and
secure T infrastiucture [nd changes th occupier demand and tenant defautt
{0) changes in financial and equity markets including interest and exchange
rate Huctuations, {p] changes in accounting practices and the interpretation
of accounting standards and (g} the availabilty and cost of hinance The
Cormpany s principal nisks are described in greater detailin the section

of this Press Release headed Managing risk in delivering our strategy
Forward-looking staternents in 1his Press Release or the Brinsh Land
webside or made subsequently whach are attobutabte to British Land or
persons acting on (s behalf should therefore be construed it bight of

att suchfactors

Information contained in this Press Release relating to Briish Land or its
share price arthe yield on its shares are not guarantees of and should not

be 1elied upon as an indicator of future performance and nothing in this
Press Release should be consirued as a profit forecast Any forward-looking
statements made by or on behalf of British Land speak anly as of the date they
are made Such forward-looking statements are expressly qualified in their
enlirety by the factors relerred to above and no representation assurance
quarantee or warranty 1s given in relation to them [whether by British Land

or any of its associates Direciors olficers employees oradvisers) including
as to thewr cempleteness accuracy or the basts on which they were prepared

Other than n accordance with our legal and regulatory obligatiens inctuding
under the UK Financial Conduct Authorsty s Listing Rutes and Disclosure
Rules and Transparency Rules] British Land does notintend or undertake to
update or revise forward-looking stalernents lo reflect any changes in British
Land s expectations with regard thereto or any changes in information
events condilions or circumstances on which any such staterent s based
This document shali not under any circumstances create any implication
that there has been no change in the business or altairs of Britsh Land since
the date of this document or that the information contained herein is correct
as at any Ume subsequent to this date
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Design and production
Addison Group
addison-group net

Photography

Board photography
Barry Willis

#SayCheesegrater

During the year we held our
#SayCheesegrater Instagram
competitron We have used
two photegraphs (n thss report
which were taken by

Tom Mearns @themearns
Sonni Modi @stealth_hquk
Ross Dickson @dickson ross
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50% recycled fibre and 50%b sustainably
sourced fbre certified by the Forest
Stewardship Council [FSC] Pulp bleached
using an Elemental Chlorine Free [ECF]
process Manufaciured by z paper mill
cerufied o the IS0 14001 environmental
managernent standard
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Ty, FSC
i e
~ s —u:-:::-_




..J/MI/// e

LR

;Wn“/z/// /JM/, éﬂ”/%ﬂ ...,,. , .
/Am’ \ ﬂ- E\ i a%’ﬁ
LI ///// //, SIS RGCE ST . -3...,“4...-...

| N e

et CREAL S

R

Vo Ee gl .
I_, «./yrﬂu..x ] \.N
l- 4.\| N v ..!.-.H..
m/“ !..., .l, n.,.\

i

l
.,-_

*

.
<
£
3 3
- 3
£ 3
2
£l
5 D ou
b
,wu T%WM “
=
< .nquDCr.c -ld
E =8 5 o 4
c & 35 52% =
g5 5% %73
S5éE:nfSE5 % 0.J
ODﬂnLOdFMB -
dHWD?.m,I,m.D@.u
w.ms.m.uIHMX hm
ZERSzEL £ EQ




